
 

1 
 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY      PUBLIC AGENDA 

Thursday, August 19, 2021        Time:  8:30 a.m. 

              Non-Public Session: 8:30 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. 

        Public Meeting to commence at 10:00 a.m. 

 

Place: 55 International Drive - Board Conference Room 

Watch Meeting Via Live Stream:  https://townhallstreams.com/towns/pease_dev_nh 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

 

AGENDA 

 

I. Call to Order: 

 

II. Non-public Session*:  (Levesque) 

 

III. Vote of Confidentiality*:  (Fournier) 

 

IV. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes:  Board of Directors’ Meeting of June 17, 2021 * (Anderson) 

 

V. Public Comment: 

 

VI. Old Business: 

A. Approval: 

1. Spyglass Development, LLC - 30 New Hampshire Avenue – Exterior 

Improvements * (Parker) 

 

VII. Finance:  

A. Executive Summary * 

 

B. Reports:  

1. FY2021 Financial Report for the Twelve Month Period Ending June 30, 2021 * 

2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending April 30, 2022 * 

 

C. Approval: 

1. Service Credit Union, Establishing Account / Resolution Approval * (Lamson) 

 

VIII. Licenses/ROEs/Easements/Rights of Way: 

A. Reports: *  

1. Veterans Count Event – 120 Aviation Avenue & 2 parking lots located at Aviation 

Avenue & Hampton Street - Right of Entry  

2. DGA Productions & MLB Network – Portsmouth International Airport at Pease 

(PSM) for Commercial Shoot – Right of Entry  

3. US Navy – Use of North Apron for Emergency Vehicle Operating Classes (EVOC) 

through December 31, 2021 - Right of Entry 

4. Pease Greeters – Flight Welcome Activities - Right of Entry 

5. PROCON, LLC –North Apron - Right of Entry 

6. PROCON, LLC – 14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227) - Right of Entry 

https://townhallstreams.com/towns/pease_dev_nh


 

2 
 

7. Herb Gillen Airshows, LLC - Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron 

- Right of Entry 

8. Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. – 35 Airline Avenue - Right of 

Entry 

 

 B. Approval: 

1. US Coast Guard – Use of 75 Parking Spaces at 14 Aviation Avenue – Right of 

Entry * (Fournier) 

 

IX. Leases: 

A. Report *: 

 1. Sublease between 200 International, LP to Optris Infrared Sensing. LLC 

 

X. Contracts: 

A. Reports *: 

1. Builder’s Risk Insurance – Policy Extension for PSM Terminal Project 

2. Golf Course – Convection Double Oven  

 

B. Approvals: 

1. OAG Worldwide, LLC - License Agreement * (Lamson) 

2. Bobcat of New Hampshire – Tracked Skid Steer Loader * (Parker) 

 

XI. Signs: 

A. Report: 

1. Global Seafood Alliance (fka Global Aquaculture Alliance) - 85 NH Avenue * 

 

B. Approval: 

1. Galvion - 160 Corporate Drive * (Levesque) 

 

XII. Executive Director: 

A. Reports: 

1. Insurance Update 

2. Air Show Update 

3. Golf Course Operations 

4. Airport Operations 

a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)  

b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 

c) Noise Line Report  

(i) June & July 2021 * 

 

B. Approvals: 

1. Bills for Legal Services * (Fournier) 

2. Gate 13 – Secured Area Requirements * (Lamson)  

 

XIII. Division of Ports and Harbors: 

A. Reports: 

1. Port Committee Meeting Minutes of October 3, 2019 * 

2. Camera and NRV Replacement at Rye Harbor Marine Facility *  



 

3 
 

3. Commercial Mooring Transfer – Walsh to Riley * 

4. Commercial Mooring for Hire – Esther’s Marina * 

5. Commercial Mooring Transfer – Eastman III to McLaughlin * 

6. Commercial Mooring Transfer – Redican to Collins * 

 

 B. Approval: 

  1. Winter Boat Storage Final Proposed Fee Amendment * (Anderson) 

 

XIV. New Business: 

 

XV. Special Event: * 

 

XVI. Upcoming Meetings: 

 

Golf Committee  September 13, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 

Finance Committee  September 13, 2021 @ 9:00 a.m. 

Board of Directors  September 16, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m.  

 

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

 

XVII. Directors’ Comments: 

 

XVIII. Adjournment: 
 

XIX. Press Questions: 
 
 

* Related Materials Attached 

** Related Materials Previously Sent 

*** Related Materials will be provided under separate cover 

+ Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting 

 Confidential Materials 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P:\BOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current\Agenda August 19, 2021 (PUBLIC).docx 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 in 	 31 Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

RIGHT TO KNOW UPDATE: Effective January 1, 2018, RSA 91 -A, the Right to Know Law was modified to include that "If a 

member of the public body believes that any discussion in a meeting of the body, including in a nonpublic session, violates 

this chapter, the member may object to the discussion. If the public body continues the discussion despite the objection, 

the objecting member may request that his or her objection be recorded in the minutes and may then continue to participate 

in the discussion without being subject to the penalties of RSA 92-A:8, IV or V. Upon such request, the public body shall 

record the member's objection in its minutes of the meeting. If the objection is to a discussion in nonpublic session, the 

objection shall also be recorded in the public minutes, but the notation in the public minutes shall include only the members 

name, a statement that he or she objected to the discussion in nonpublic session, and a reference to the provision of RSA 

91-A:3, II, that was the basis for the discussion." 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non-

public session pursuant to NH RSA 91 -A:3 for the purpose of discussing the: 

1. Dismissal, Promotion, or Compensation of any Public Employee 

[NH RSA 91 -A:3, II (a)]; 

2. Sale / Lease of Property [NH RSA 91 -A:3, II (d)]; and 

3. Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH RSA 

91 -A:3, II (I)]. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ Non-Public Lease - Personnel Sale of Property 8-1 9-21.docx 

TAKING Y 0 U THERE 

www.peaseday.org  



7A --, 

11111
00..._  ' ' •,:. ■ 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL Inter;, 	 rive Port8ITIOu1, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, the Pease Development 

Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the divulgence of 

information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of 

its August 19, 2021, meeting related to Dismissal, Promotion, or 

Compensation of any Public Employee; Sale / Lease of Property; and the 

consideration of legal advice from legal counsel are matters which, if 

disclosed publically, would disclose confidential information and would 

render the proposed actions ineffective and further agrees that the 

minutes of said meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a 

majority of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid circumstances no longer 

apply. 

N: \ RESOLVES \2021 \Confidentiality 8-19-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

wWw.p rt. e d'e 1 . 0 r 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 international Dr e Portsmouth. NH 03`3 01 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Anderson: 

I make a motion to approve the minutes of the Pease Development 

Authority Board of Directors meeting dated Thursday, June 17, 2021. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \Approval of Minutes 8-19-2021.clocx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Y.; Vti 	oeaseday.org  



1 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

Thursday, June 17, 2021 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING 
MINUTES 

Presiding: 	Kevin H. Smith, Chairman 
Present: 	 Neil Levesque; Erik Anderson; Thomas G. Ferrini; Steve Fournier; Margaret F. 

Lamson; and Susan B. Parker 
Attending: 	Paul E. Brean, Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Executive Director; Anthony I. 

Blenkinsop, Deputy Director /General Counsel; Maria Stowell Engineering Manager; 
Iry Canner, Finance Director; Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Finance Director; Geno 
Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH") Director; Scott DeVito, Pease Golf 
Course General Manager; Greg Siegenthaler PDA, IT Director and Raeline A. O'Neil, 
Legal Executive Assistant. 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order: 

Vice Chairman Levesque ("Levesque") called the meeting to order at 8:31 a.m. 

Chairman Smith ("Smith') and Director Fournier ("Fournier') were not in attendance at the time 
the meeting was called to order. 

II. Non-public Session: 

Director Parker moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors will enter non-public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 for the 
purpose of discussing: 

1. Sale or Lease of Real or Personal Property [RSA 91-A:3, II (d)]; and 
2. Consideration of Legal Advice provided by Legal Counsel [NH RSA 91-A:3, II (1)]. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous (7-0) roll call vote for; motion carried. 

The non-public discussions commenced at 8:32 a.m. 

Director Fournier arrived to the meeting at 8:36 a.m.; Chairman Smith arrived to the meeting at 
8:44 a.m. 

Director Fournier moved the motion and Director Parker seconded that the Board of Directors return 
to public session at 9:16 a.m. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



2 

III. Vote of Confidentiality: 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Levesque seconded  that be it resolved, pursuant 
to NH RSA 91-A:3, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the 
divulgence of information discussed and decisions reached in the non-public session of its June 17, 
2021, meeting related to the sale or lease of property and the consideration of legal advice from legal 
counsel are matters which, if disclosed publically, would render the proposed actions ineffective and 
further agrees that the minutes of said meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority 
of the Board of Directors, the aforesaid circumstances no longer apply. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for: motion carried. 

IV. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: Board of Directors' Meeting of May 20, 2021 

Director Levesque moved  the motion  and Director Anderson seconded  a motion to approve the 
minutes of the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors meeting dated Thursday, May 20, 
2021. 

Discussion: Director Lamson ("Lamson") stated she was impressed with the comments made by Mr. 
Bald who had been the Executive Director and his statement regarding the mid-90s, $25 million had been 
invested into the Tradeport as the start up for this project and the $25 million has been paid back to the State. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

V. Public Comment: 

There were no public comments. 

Chairman Smith ("Smith") asked the Board about moving item 2 under leases up in the agenda prior 
to going onto old business. Smith indicated in the interest of the group of individuals who were present for 
item IX. A. 2. 68 New Hampshire Avenue — Consent to Lease Assignment and Approval of Lease 
Amendment; all Directors concurred. 

68 New Hampshire Avenue — Consent to Lease Assignment and Approval of 
Lease Amendment 

Director Fournier moved  the motion and Director Levesque seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby: 

a. 	approves and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Consent 
of Sublessor and Agreement Concerning Assignment of Sublease 
("Consent") by and between PDA, Cinthesys Real Estate 
Management, LLC, and Gather, a New Hampshire non-profit 
corporation, for the premises located at 68 New Hampshire Avenue 
on substantially similar terms and conditions contained in the draft 
Consent attached hereto; 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



3 

b. approves and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into Lease 
Amendment No. 5 ("Amendment") on substantially similar terms 
and conditions contained in the draft lease Amendment attached 
hereto, contingent on the Assignment of the Sublease to Gather; and 

c. approves and authorizes such other action(s) and the execution of 
such other document(s) as shall be necessary or advisable to 
implement the transaction; 

all as more fully described in the memorandums of Maria Stowell, Engineering Manager dated June 8, 
2021 and Paul E. Brean, Executive Director dated June 9, 2021, attached hereto, and incorporated 
herein. 

Discussion: Lamson asked of raised gardens; Blenkinsop indicated this was something that Gather 
indicated it would like to do with the premises. However, based on review by the PDA staff, raised beds would 
not be a permitted use as zoning does not authorize agricultural uses. Along with zoning, there are practical 
reasons this would not be allowed which is contained within Stowell's memorandum within the packet. 

Director Parker ("Parker") asked how many people Gather had served in its last fiscal year. Deb 
Anthony ("Anthony"), Executive Director of Gather, spoke on behalf of the attendees to indicate it would be 
hard to determine, but did state it served 10,000 per month through a variety of programs. Many of the 
individuals served are in mobile programs. Anthony indicated that the pantry market at the site may average 
of 75 / 80 people a day. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried. 

VI. 	Old Business: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	Lonza Biologics, Inc. — Emergency Generator 

Director Fournier moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves the request for a variance from Part 308.02 (c) of the 
PDA Zoning Ordinance to allow the installation of an emergency generator with a diesel fuel tank 
capacity of 3,312 gallons, submitted by Lonza Biologics, Inc. ("Lonza") and attached hereto, as part of 
the work to construct a new production suite inside the premises located at 101 International Drive; 
contingent upon Lonza securing the requisite variance from the City of Portsmouth's Board of 
Adjustment for the additional fuel storage associated with the installation of the emergency generator; 
all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering dated 
June 9, 2021. 

Discussion: Lamson asked the location of the generator; Stowell indicated that it would be on the south 
side / far side of the building as they are fitting up that side of the building. 

Director Anderson ("Anderson") stated the memorandum referenced additional variances in 2015 and 
2019 for the storage of diesel fuel; asked how much fuel is stored on the property now. Stowell indicated the 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



4 

last page of her memorandum shows a spreadsheet which indicates a breakdown of storage tanks and the new 
request being highlighted. Brean indicated that there is approximately 21,000 gallon capacity at this time on 
its campus. Anderson asked if Lonza would have to go to DES or would it just be PDA approval; Stowell 
indicated the variance is needed because PDA's land use controls references a capacity of 2,000 gallons; but 
there are no wetlands that would require approval. The units are self-contained units and the tank is integral 
to the unit (it is typically a double walled tank and has containment for the tanks). The greatest risk of spill 
would be when the tanks are being refilled; there are procedures in place to protect from spills. Anderson 
asked if an explanation was received as to why Lonza wanted to exceed the 2,000 gallon limitation; Stowell 
indicated it is due to the size of the generator and the larger tank is necessary. Stowell indicated that Patrick 
Crimmins was present for Lonza and could answer any additional questions. Stowell stated the production 
suites take a great deal of power and they need to be able to continue to operate during outages. 

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

 VII. Finance: 

Smith indicated this would be Finance Director Iry Canner's ("Canner") last meeting as he would be 
retiring. Canner indicated that PDA has done a good job in succession planning as the Board has met Suzy 
Anzalone ("Anzalone") who is ready to take the torch and move forward in the position. 

A. Executive Summary 

Canner indicated he would be speaking to the two financial reports and Anzalone would be speaking 
to the 0 & M Budget and the Revolving Loan Fund ("RLF") requests which require approvals. 

B. Reports: 
1. 	FY2021 Financial Report for the Ten Month Period Ending April 30, 2021 

Canner stated that the operating revenues are slightly higher than budgeted and the operating expenses 
are below budget (either COVID related or as a result of timing differences) leaving an end result of PDA's 
operating income being $1.5 million greater than anticipated; minimizing the need to go to the RLF (sic 
Revolving Line of Credit — "RLOC"). Canner also spoke to fee revenues being greater than budgeted due to 
rounds of golf played. Conversely, Canner spoke to additional impacts such as the decrease in fuel sales 
primarily due to the closure of the Portsmouth Fish Pier ("PFP"), reduction of the pay-for-parking at PSM and 
fuel flowage fees as a result of COVID. 

Lastly, Canner spoke to operating expenses being below budget; some drivers are open positions 
within PDA and a lighter winter than anticipated. Canner indicated at this time there are 62 filled positions 
and there continues to be four open positions. Lamson asked of the two positions open at the airport (security 
specialist and operations specialist); Executive Director Brean ("Brean") indicated this was due to the impact 
of COVID. Brean stated that PDA has been able to multitask some positions and would like to keep these 
airport positions open at this time; PDA has backfilled the maintenance positions. 

Vice Chair Levesque ("Levesque") asked of the open position for the Deputy Chief Harbor Master; 
Brean indicated that position is being actively recruited. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



5 

Director Ferrini ("Ferrini") asked if it was possible to see a line-by-line of salaries of personnel; Brean 
indicated this could be provided. Ferrini indicated he does not know what would be competitive / non-
competitive; Brean indicated it is a competitive hiring market at this time. 

Canner spoke to over $22 million in capital expenditures with offset monies from state or grants from 
the FAA; while PDA has an available RLOC of $15 million, it has a current drawdown of $250,000 and 
anticipates being able to bring the RLOC down to zero during the next nine months. Canner indicated that 
PDA is awaiting the pension information from the state and would like to get that booked into FY21. 

Canner indicated the external audit has commenced this week which is being performed partially 
onsite and virtual; there will be a physical inventory performed on June 30 th ; it is anticipated that the auditors 
will be present. The physical inspection will commence with the fuel and maintenance items; Canner 
indicated last year, due to COVID, this was performed with a cell phone and the auditors remained virtual 
while this was performed. 

Canner briefly spoke to the various business units and indicated that Skyhaven is operating within 
budget primarily due to higher fuel sales due to increased fuel consumption. 

Ferrini asked of the operating expenses listed on page 14 and asked why Skyhaven is projected out to 
$810,000; Canner indicated the $810,000 is the budget for FY21. Canner further indicated that it probably 
won't reach that number due to the open positions and milder winter, so anticipate an underrun of the budget. 

Anderson asked if at Skyhaven, PDA acted as the FBO for that facility; Brean indicated that there is 
no FBO at Skyhaven. Further, Brean indicated that PDA has a self-fueling program at that location and the 
fuel is bought at wholesale and sold at retail. Brean indicated that aside from fueling, only other services 
provided by PDA at Skyhaven are tie-down and anchoring. 

Canner briefly spoke to golf operations and how Pease Golf Course ("PGC") is above golf budget in 
terms of golf fees due to rounds of golf played. Canner indicated that YTD golf rounds, this season since the 
March 26th  opening, is at 6,000 and this time last year due to COVID PGC was approximately 400 rounds of 
golf played. Canner indicated that for this year PGC is up by 10.5% due to golf fees; and that Grill 28 sales 
are starting to turn around and are up by approximately 6%. Further, the simulator fees are well above budget 
from the prior year by 25%. 

Canner spoke of the Division of Ports and Harbors ("DPH") unrestricted funds and its underruns being 
driven by the loss of fuel sales at the PFP; indicated it is anticipated that fuel sales will return late summer / 
early fall. 

2. 	Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending February 28, 2022 

The cash flow projections take into account the finishing up of the airport / terminal projects and 
anticipate no outstanding debt in the fall. During the next nine months it can be seen under use of funds just 
over $8 million and grant awards as a source of funds of $7.2 million. 

Ferrini asked if PDA will get to the projected debt of zero; Canner affirmed. Ferrini indicated that 
while that it is a good thing he asked if PDA was doing enough and if PDA is utilizing its debt capacity or is 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



6 

there not opportunity (investment / infrastructure) for that. Canner spoke to the May meeting when Anzalone 
shared the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) which included over $70 million including grant funding and 
available projects. The projects were graded (A, B & C) so there would be room to look at infrastructure (i.e.; 
loop road) while this is not a high priority it is something that the Board might consider given the debt levels 
and the favorable investment environment. Canner indicated that there are plenty of projects contained in the 
CIP which could raise to the surface. 

Canner spoke to PDA's goal of keeping $1.5 million available in working capital and interest rates 
being flat at this time for the RLOC through Provident Bank. 

Canner indicated DPH's unrestricted funds will begin to whittle down and collection of fees will 
commence again during the January/February/March timeframe. Canner indicated that Anzalone will provide 
more information regarding the RLF, but did state that this helped to save hundreds of jobs and kept the local 
fishing industry afloat. The demand for loan monies is low and the cash balances are starting to get close to 
$300,000, the overall fund balance being $1.2 million with approximately $800,000 in outstanding loans. 

Director Levesque left the room at 9:54 a.m. and returned at 9:56 a.m. 

Smith indicated that Canner has been a steady hand at the tiller for quite some time; Canner indicated 
he has been at PDA for 11.7 years. 

C. 	Approvals: 

Anzalone provided background on how the budget is put together prior to delving into the 
presentation. Initially, Finance meets with the Executive Director to review some of the key assumptions for 
incorporation into the budget (i.e.; pricing / staffing changes, flights, financial targets etc.). After this 
discussion, Finance brings the budget and forecast together, starting with an initial forecast for the remaining 
year. Once a draft is prepared, this information is forwarded to each department / management teams; then 
individual meetings were held to discuss cost drivers to the business units. Finance then makes appropriate 
changes to the budget model and looks at several factors (i.e.; reasonableness; significant changes in 
revenues / expenses and the understanding thereof; financial targets etc.). The draft budget is presented to 
the Executive Director for a final review prior to presentation to the Board. 

Speaking directly to the proposed budget, Anzalone indicated that on the revenue side, PDA 
budgeted for approximately $17 million in operating revenue which represents a 4.7% increase over the prior 
year's budget. Anzalone indicated the revenues are driven by many factors such as golf revenue, fuel 
flowage increase at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM), DPH increase in fee structures and 
anticipation of fuel sales at the PFP; the facility rental was flat this year due to different revenue streams and 
cash flow adjustments. The operating expense is indicated at $14 million which is a decrease of just under 
2% of the previous year budget with some factors driving this being interest expense, environmental testing 
(this is an educated guess); and LEO (driven by enplanements). Anzalone also spoke of an anticipated 
increase in insurance (liability, aviation, property insurance etc.) between 10 to 20%. 

Anderson asked if there were a process PDA goes through for insurance: Blenkinsop indicated there is 
and that the last time PDA went out for a proposal was in approximately 2018 and the Board authorized the 
use of three different agents for different lines of coverage with a one year agreement with four additional year 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



7 

options. Blenkinsop indicated in 2022 PDA will be going out to bid again for coverage by insurance 
agency(ies). Anderson indicated there could be variability by going out to bid; Blenkinsop affirmed and further 
indicated PDA has seen that the cost of coverage go up and have been advised by current agents of anticipated 
increase due to COVID. 

Parker asked Blenkinsop if he inquired as to the drivers of the increase in rates; Blenkinsop indicated 
detailed reports had been received. Brean indicated the reference to northeast storms and the rising sea levels 
being driving factors of the rate increase. Blenkinsop indicated prior to the August meeting he will reach out 
to PDA's agents and ask what they are seeing in the market; may be able to provide an update to the Board at 
either the August or September meeting. 

Anderson spoke of the 4.7% increase in revenue and a factor being golf course operations; Anzalone 
indicated it was over the prior budget being COVID driven with individuals wanting to golf which played a 
role in that increase. Anderson also asked of the percentage average of the rental increase for the 125 leases; 
Anzalone indicated this would be under the facilities rentals which is where PDA is staying flat. Although an 
average 2% inflation increase has been calculated, some of PDA's bigger leases will result in a change to some 
of the cash flows in 2022. Anzalone indicated it is a $27,000 decrease over the prior year budget. Brean 
indicated the difficulty in seeing this due to the lease rentals (it comes down to the CPI index). 

Anderson asked if there were a projection regarding the fuel flowage increase; Brean indicated it is 
determined on the amount of fuel pumped but what has been forecasted is $126,000 for the $.01 increase. 

Anzalone spoke of some key operational items PDA plans to undertake in 2022 and moving forward 
(being more efficient and control of expenses). Also there are no incremental staffing increases from the 
current levels and salaries are capped at 3.5% total (COLA of 1.5% and a merit increase of 2%). 

Anzalone spoke of the various revenues of the business units: 
1. Airport (PSM) — Pay-for-Parking, fuel flowage increase and other incremental fees from 

concessions. Anderson asked if it were possible to break down the fuel flowage further 
to indicate charter, commercial, civilian and troop flights to see the development. Brean 
indicated he thought PSM had the ability to obtain this information in order to categorize 
the fuel flowage in this manner. Anderson thought it would be interesting to see the 
developing trends and how it is broken down. Brean indicated he could have this 
prepared for the next Board meeting. 

2. Skyhaven - no changes to the rental rates, but it is 100% occupied with a waitlist. 
3. Tradeport - inflation has been budgeted by 2% but that there may be revenue streams 

that show the Tradeport flat in FY2022. 
4. Golf — driven by the rounds of golf played and anticipate 61,000 rounds of golf played 

for the FY2021 season which goes into FY2022. It is anticipate in the out years it does 
drop down a little. 

5. Grill 28 — agreement for concession and as they get back up to speed after COVID (this 
will have a direct impact on the concession revenue paid). 

6. DPH — increase in pay rate of seasonal employees to $12.16/hr. to be consistent with 
other state agencies; however, but there will be an increase to storage fees from $9/ft. 
to $18/ft. which will help to offset the increase to wages. Also, it is anticipated that the 
PFP will be complete and the fuel will be back online. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



8 

Anzalone stated regarding operating income (on a cash basis) and what this means is PDA is excluded 
non-cash expenses like depreciation (i.e.; in FY22, PDA anticipates a $3.3 million cash margin and an increase 
can be seen in the out years). This would be reinvested in capital / Tradeport infrastructure, which will vary 
from year-to-year depending on projects (either internally funded or by meeting PDA share of a grant). 

Parker asked if the CARES Act funding had been built into the budget base; Anzalone indicated it is a 
onetime event (it is anticipated PDA will receive funds by end of FY21; the grant has been submitted). 

Anzalone indicated that the proposed budget is a tight budget and does not contain a lot of fluff. Further 
she indicated she appreciated the team effort provided by all; the business units are committed to managing 
and controlling expenses in each of their respective cost centers. 

Brean thanked the Board for allowing the succession planning in the Finance Department as it has 
allowed Anzalone to be brought on early to work with Canner who has a tremendous amount of institutional 
knowledge. Brean indicated Canner has been critical in some of the large lease deals at the Tradeport and in 
forecasting of some of the models (i.e.; reset with PCA a couple years ago; Lonza deal). Brean indicated that 
Canner will be missed, but has left PDA on a good path. 

Ferrini stated the operational management and recordkeeping of this complex endeavor is very solid 
and he looks at it as being high level complex management which is well done. When he looked at marketing, 
which was not mentioned, he did not see a marketing / business development position in the organizational 
chart. Ferrini indicated he assumed Brean and others performed this and while it is a lot about managing, he 
doesn't know where or to what extent $500,000 (or less) spent on business development/acquisition is 
reasonable / not reasonable. He does not see a muscular business development section in the organizational 
chart (i.e.; business planning; growth planning; how to expand etc.). Brean indicated that the unit managers 
are very skilled in what they do and in the past there had been a critical components of marketing the Tradeport. 
Brean also spoke to very skilled developers at the Tradeport who have taken on this and the majority of the 
budget now is more airport service development. Brean affirmed that this budget does not have the marketing 
aspect included and it is more or less the team that takes on the initiatives (i.e.; potential for a large aviation 
space to be developed). Ferrini spoke to an Economic Developer and the potential to add more people (jobs / 
businesses) is there strategic planning (i.e.; is there enough, are more resources needed). Where PDA has the 
income, is something to think about going forward. Brean completely agrees and values the comments by 
stating it has been a challenging year due to the pandemic and indicated that the Tradeport would benefit if it 
were to bring on a role to assist in marketing/development. 

Lamson spoke of the early years at the Tradeport and there was forward thinking to long term planning 
and marketing between the Board and staff (i.e.; informed that marketing golf was done through flyers), but 
there hasn't been anything put in regarding development. 

Parker stated we are in a post COVID 19 world and things regarding global economy are going to be 
different (i.e.; communication pathways and ceding of positions to other people who can handle the economy 
and social development) which can be challenging. Further, we should be on the lookout for ways to think 
about economic and social development planning in ways we have not understood, but it will equal growth. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



9 

1. Proposed FY 2022 Operating Budget and FY 2023-FY2025 Forecast 

Director Ferrini moved the motion  and Director Levesque seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby accepts the recommendation of the Finance Committee and 
accepts and approves the proposed FY 2022 Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Budget and FY 
2023 — FY 2025 O&M Forecast; all in accordance with the documentation submitted by Suzy 
Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

2. Release of the Economic Development Administration's ("EDA") Federal 
Interest in the EDA Revolving Loan Fund 

Director Anderson moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that in accordance with the 
recommendation of the Revolving Loan Fund ("RLF") Committee the Pease Development Authority 
("PDA") Board of Directors recommends and approves of a Request for Release of the Economic 
Development Administration's ("EDA") Federal interest in the EDA RLF Award consistent with the 
requirements of the "Reinvigorating Lending for the Future Act," contingent upon: 

1. The continued use of the funds in offering financial and related assistance to members of 
the local fishing industry along the New Hampshire Seacoast, and to aid in the creation 
of economic opportunities in support thereof; 

2. The continued role of the RLF Committee with the use of these funds pursuant to the 
provisions of RSA 12-G:54, as may be amended; and 

3. The continued use of the Five Year Revolving Loan Fund Plan as a guide for future 
strategies, policies, operating rules, and administrative procedures for operating the 
RLF, as may be periodically updated at the discretion of the RLF Committee and the 
PDA Board of Directors. 

All in accordance with the memorandum of Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance dated 
June 7, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

Anderson indicated this program has been around for a considerable amount of time and when it was 
offered, it was conditionally proposed by EDA with it requiring a 25% contribution from the State. 
Anderson further indicated New Hampshire is the only state that has a program of this nature that has a 
relationship with a financial institution in existence. 

VIII. Licenses / ROEs / Easements / Rights of Way: 
A. 	Report: 

1. 	Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million Air) — Right of Entry, 53 Exeter 
Street 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17 ;  2021 



10 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of 
License Agreements," PDA entered into a Right-of-Entry with Pease Aviation Partners, LLC (d/b/a Million 
Air), west of Hangar 229 (aka 53 Exeter Street) for the purpose of conducting site inspection and survey 
work on the Premises from June 21, 2021 through December 21, 2021. Director Fournier was consulted and 
granted his consent. 

IX. Leases: 
A. 	Approvals: 

1. 	Port City Air — 44 Durham Street Building Addition (Request for Bump Out) 

Director Parker moved the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and 
execute an Amendment to the Port City Air lease for the construction of a 24' x 26' addition to the 
existing hangar located at 44 Durham Street; all in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth 
in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated June 2, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

X. Contract: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	LeaseQuery — Property Management Software 

Director Anderson moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the PDA Board of 
Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to enter into 
a contract with LeaseQuery for Property Management Leasing Accounting Software; all in accordance 
with the memorandum of Suzy Anzalone, Assistant Director of Finance, dated June 8, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

XI. Signs: 
A. 	Approval: 

1. 	Temporary Banner Signs — 14 Manchester Square 

Director Levesque moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to institute a temporary 
application process for the short-term display of banner flag signs for the purpose of assisting small 
retail business impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic as they reopen, all in accordance with the 
Memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager — Engineering, dated June 9, 2021. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

XII. Executive Director: 
A. 	Reports: 

1. 	Golf Course Operations 

Chairman Smith left the room at 10:19 a.m. and returned at 10:21 a.m. 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



11 

Scott DeVito ("DeVito") Pease Golf Course ("PGC") General Manager stated golf rounds to date are 
a little over 23,000 for the calendar year, for the FY closing out end of June putting PGC around 72,000 and 
at this time on pace to pass that figure in FY22. 

PGC had purchased new LED ballards for the facility which have been installed by PDA electrician 
Al Bishop and Todd Kneeland; they also updated all of the parking lot lights. 

DeVito also spoke to working with Fishnet regarding the PGC website to update with the inclusion of 
drone footage that was obtained last year (these improvements went live today). 

DeVito indicated that PGC's superintendent has been working with the City of Portsmouth Deputy 
Public Works Director Brian Goetz regarding the voluntary water restrictions. PGC is looking at areas where 
it can turn off water to some areas, looking at growing natural areas going forward. Also, due to the recent 
weather over Memorial Day weekend and the past couple of days, have turned off the system off for a few 
days. 

Director Fournier ("Fournier") asked what COVID guidelines are still in place at the golf course 
(timing difference; distancing in restaurant); DeVito indicated for a comfort level there are some guidelines 
PGC is still adhering to (i.e.; barriers still set up in the dining room) but there is full capacity outside in the 
tent and patio. DeVito stated the restaurant association has indicated to continue doing what businesses can 
(PGC also continued the use of hand sanitizer stations around the facility, sanitizing golf carts and 
occasionally fogging the building). 

Anderson asked if the rough mower had been received yet; DeVito indicated the mower is heading 
from Minnesota to the dealer in Connecticut. 

Director Anderson left the room at 10:24 a.m. and returned at 10:25 a.m. 

2. 	Airport Operations 
a) 	Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 

Brean indicated PSM is out of survival mode and things are starting to trend strongly upward. There 
have been about 5,000 enplanements for the month of May (split down the middle between charter and 
Allegiant travel); this equates to about 10,000 people utilizing the terminal facility. Brean reminded the 
Board that due to COVID last year PSM did not break 40,000 enplanements last year. Also, air traffic is up 
35% over 2020 and 20% increase over the last full year prior to the pandemic. This is due to an uptick in 
corporate travel, PlaneSense's operation is extremely busy; and advertising technical stops for corporate and 
military aircraft. 

Brean indicated for the month of May the following: 
1. Revenue parking had about 650 transactions; and 
2. 1.1 million gallons of fuel was pumped. 

Brean spoke of a motion before the Board to raise the fuel flowage fee to $.04/gallon. Brean 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



12 

indicated this increase will assist with increase to insurance premiums previous discussions as well as the 
need to assume all expenses (i.e.; IT and Cyber Security) of the US Customs Board & Patrol (exception 
being labor costs), and custodial operation at the airport to keep it COVID safe. 

Also, there are 147 based aircraft at Pease which is solely commercial / private aircraft, plus the 12 
KC-46s the ANG has, for a total of 159 based aircraft at PSM (anticipate an increase in the short-term). 

Brean spoke of Allegiant's new flights being Nashville, TN and Tampa/St. Pete which have been 
well received by the local community (weekend flights doing well, working on Sunday enplanements). 

The major runway reconstruction is nearing completion (down to the final coat of paint) and Bravo 
and Charlie taxiways have been repaved. Brean indicated that there is a grant in for additional work but it 
hasn't been received as of yet. 

Lamson indicated residents who have taken the Nashville flight have very positive feedback. 

Smith asked whether these flights will continue into the fall; Brean indicated they have been 
advertised as a seasonal route (out to Labor Day or week thereafter) but that all routes started as seasonal and 
if the ridership is there it may continue; PSM is trying to make it happen. 

Brean indicated it is official that ANG Air Show will be held September 9 th  through 12 th  and PDA is 
working with the ANG to assist them in putting on a great show; it should be noted that the ANG will be 
dedicating 10 of the KC-46s during that time period. 

b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW) 

Brean stated return of the summer activity (i.e.; skydiving and the continued uptick of fuel flow) and 
we have invited flight schools from other airports to use the Skyhaven facility as a transient learning stop 
where an instructor can work with a student pilot. 

c) Noise Line Report 
(i) 	May 2021 

Brean informed the Board of four noise inquiries received in May, 2021. Three pertained to fixed 
wing aircraft and the forth pertained to a rotor wing aircraft. The fixed wing inquiries originated from 
Durham, Rye and Portsmouth. The Durham resident's concern was about noise and duration of six F-18's 
and two support tankers departing in succession to the North heading oversees. The Rye resident's concern 
was about a Military C-17 cargo aircraft departing to the south at 11:00 PM. The last fixed wing inquiry was 
from a Rochester resident about continuous noise of aircraft overhead. The noise was from aircraft taking 
passengers up to Skydive departing from the Lebanon Airport in Maine. The rotor-wing aircraft inquiry was 
from a Portsmouth resident who lives adjacent to the southeast end of the airfield. The helicopter arrived 
and departed to the southeast putting the helicopter over the neighborhood. It was a normal take-off and 
landing but a courtesy phone call was made to Maine Helicopters to ask them to fly the runway heading to avoid 
the noise sensitive area if possible. 

Anderson asked of the discussion held in May for additional parking; Brean indicated Anderson 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



13 

would be referring to Bottomline Technologies and there was nothing to bring before the Board at this time. 

Anderson also asked if there were any additional information to provide the Board concerning the 
Lonza expansion; Blenkinsop indicated a draft lease was provided to Lonza in May to include the entire 
parcel (original leased area, the Iron Parcel as well as the recent request for 2.5 acres for additional parking). 
Anticipate hearing back from them anytime now regarding the negotiations as it is important to get the new 
lease in place by October 1S t . Those negotiations will also include discussions regarding the purchase by 
Lonza of the portion of the building that is still owned by PDA. A fair market value appraisal has 
commenced on that portion of the building owned by PDA; the appraiser hopes to have the report to PDA by 
early to mid-July. If Lonza decides to purchase the building it will be necessary to seek a release to purchase 
that portion of the building. Anticipates there will be additional information provided to the Board at either 
the August and/or September meetings. 

B. 	Approvals: 
1. Bills for Legal Services 

Director Ferrini moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to expend 
funds in the amount of $11,832.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority from 
Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green for April 1, 2021 — April 30, 2021 in the amount of $3,944.00 (for 
Tradeport General Representation); for April 1, 2021 — April 30, 2021 in the amount of $7,888.00 (in 
support of MS4 and CLF settlement implementation) for a total of $11,832.00 AND to expend funds in 
the amount of $10,656.00 for legal services rendered to the Pease Development Authority from Anderson 
Kreiger as outside counsel for Federal Regulatory Advice from April 1, 2021 through April 30, 2021; 
for a total amount of $22,488.00 in legal services. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried.  

2. 75 NH, LLC — Request for Tree Removal at 85 New Hampshire Avenue 

Director Fournier moved  the motion  and Director Lamson seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of the request made by 75 NH, LLC for the removal of 
ten (10) to twelve (12) trees near the building located at 85 New Hampshire Avenue, provided that any 
and all requisite permits are obtained and all tree removal work is done with reasonable prior notice 
to the PDA Engineering Department; all in accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, 
P.E. — Manager - Engineering dated June 2, 2021 

Discussion:  Lamson indicated she wasn't going to support this motion, but went over and looked at 
the trees and the shallow root system, so she understands the need for the work. 

Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

3. Fuel Flowage Fee 

Director Lamson moved  the motion  and Director Parker seconded  that the Pease Development 
Authority Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to take all such action 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



14 

as may be required or appropriate to increase the current aviation fuel flowage fee rate by $.01, from 
5.03 to $.04 per gallon on 100 low lead fuel and Jet A fuel, commencing July 1, 2021; all in accordance 
with the memorandum of Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning & Regulatory Compliance, 
dated June 8, 2021. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

Executive Director Brean left the room at 10:36 and returned at 10:38 a.m. 

XIII. Division of Ports and Harbors: 
A. 	Reports: 

Director Geno Marconi ("Marconi") DPH indicated as has been his practice for some time, he has 
provided the Port Advisory Council approved the minutes for the Board's review. 

1. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of April 14, 2021 
2. Port Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of May 12, 2021 

Marconi reported that in accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval 
and Execution of Mooring Permit Transfers", there were two commercial mooring transfers (Flanders to 
Martell being in Hampton and the Flanigan to Methot being in Sagammore Creek). According to the Code of 
Administrative Rules commercial moorings are allowed to be transferred; once a mooring is designated as a 
commercial mooring it has to stay that way and needs to show commercial activity going forward. Marconi 
informed the Board that a general use mooring cannot be converted to commercial and then revert back to 
general use; this was put into place in 2002 during the merge of DPH with Pease. The reason was done was 
there was a decline in commercial activity and this was a way to flat line the loss of commercial activities in 
the harbors. 

3. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Flanders to Martell 
4. Commercial Mooring Transfer — Flanigan to Methot 

Marconi informed the Board that the first pour of concrete was done on June 16 th  at the Portsmouth 
Fish Pier. Marconi further indicated that the sheet pile wall is in, the rebar is in, and what they do is pour a 
footing for the pads where the jib cranes will be. This needs to be done before they can close in the forms 
for the wall cap; the wall cap will be poured today and on the inside on the 18th. Also, some of the fuel 
system has been roughed in but waiting for the final DES review of the plumbing; hoping to have the permit 
by the end of the week in order to complete the final installation. 

Marconi indicated that DPH has been working on the rehabilitation of existing pier at the main port 
terminal and working with DOT on the functional replacement part. Marconi informed the Board that DPH 
is getting ready to go out to bid in July for the rehabilitation of the pier. DPH wanted to see what was going 
on in the industry so had an industry day where DPH had a virtual presentation overview of projects (40+ 
attendees) on Tuesday (6/15) regarding the rehabilitation and functional replacement projects and on 
Wednesday invited marine contractors to walk the facility (30+ attendees). Marconi indicated there were big 
named contractors as well as local subcontractors; the show of interest in the projects provided DPH with a 
comfort level of confidence that these projects are getting some attention. Marconi indicated that the final 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



15 

designs have been received and are being reviewed; Legal is reviewing the bid documents. 

B. 	Approval: 

In preparation of the upcoming motion, Marconi displayed photos take from the Sarah Long Bridge 
showing the types of activities that Cianbro has conducted at the Market Street Terminal. DPH is doing this 
in support of Cianbro's contract with the United States Navy on the super flood basin project. Marconi 
indicated that this project is in a high security area at the shipyard and in order to get equipment and 
materials to the construction site, Cianbro would have to go through the town of Kittery, the security check 
point at front gate and then the higher security check point (is not very efficient). Marconi indicated this 
project was for 80,000 cubic yards of concrete, crushed stone, sand and fly ash and dry cement which came 
across the dock. Also, all of the steel sheet piles and some kasons came in on trucks while some of the long 
ones arrived via rail, which were offloaded under the Sarah Long Bridge. Marconi spoke to a good working 
relationship with Cianbro who was onsite when the Sarah Long Bridge was built. DPH has been supporting 
the current project and looks forward to the next phase of the Super Flood Basin project which will be for 
$700 to $900 million. 

Parker asked Marconi of the turning basin / dredging project and the bidding by the Army Corp of 
Engineers which was supposed to have happened at the end of May; wondered if a schedule had been 
planned and when the job would be done. Marconi indicated that the plan is to commence in November; the 
environmental dredge window is November 15 th  through March 15 th  (750,000 cubic yards of material to be 
moved). Marconi indicated that the bids have not been opened yet (this is always a controlling factor). 

Anderson asked what the climate for funding was regarding the rehabilitation of the pier project, 
Marconi indicated the funding DPH has is roughly $12.5 million ($5 million appropriated by the legislature 
and a BUILD grant was received for the additional funds). Marconi indicated escalating construction costs is 
a concern for all parties. Marconi indicated when DPH puts bids together priorities are set out so if bids 
come in over what is appropriated, there are items that can be removed. However, where this is a partially / 
federally funded (BUILD grant) project those permissions would need to be received from MIRAD. 

Levesque asked the difference in dredging between the Rye project and the turning basin project; 
Marconi indicated that the Rye dredging was approximately 38,000 to 39,000 cubic yards, versus the turning 
basin being 750,000. 

Anderson indicated there has been a tremendous interest in the material from the turning basin project 
as it is a glacial sand material; there are towns in Massachusetts who have expressed an interest in obtaining 
the material for beach rehabilitation purposes. 

Parker asked if it were more sand than mud; Marconi indicated it is more sand than ledge which was 
determined when the geotechnical borings were performed. It has been determined it is over 80% of hard 
glacial sand. Marconi indicated it has been there for a very long time and there are no pollutants in the sand. 
Further, the Army Corp has developed a grant program to help subsidize municipalities who want the sand. 
The difference in the cost between transportation of the sand to the base plant (disposal site located outside 
the Isles of Shoals) to an alternative site would need to be picked up the State / Municipality. Marconi 
provided the example of the base plant being 12 miles to the Isles of Shoals, two alternative sites are 
Salisbury, MA, Newburyport, MA which are on the cusp of the 12 miles, and a third site is one of the 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



16 

beaches on the other side of Boston Harbor (55 miles one way). At the first two sites, the sand could be 
dropped offshore and the waves would move the sand up towards shore, but the third site would require 
having a floating pump put down to pump the material from the barge onto the beach (basically dredging 
sand a second time). Marconi indicated this does not affect DPH's project or contract with the Army Corps 
at all. 

Lamson asked of the additional moorings (5 moorings every year) being requested by Great Bay 
Marina ("GBM"); Marconi indicated GBM requested additional moorings this year, but if DPH can identify 
additional mooring areas suitable for GBM and there is no one on the wait list, DPH will certainly consider 
the request. 

Levesque indicated the key would be no one else on the wait list. 

1. 	Cianbro Corporation — Right of Entry Extension 

Director Anderson moved the motion  and Director Levesque seconded that the Pease 
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and consents to the extension 
of a Right of Entry ("ROE") with Cianbro Corporation for the use of the facilities at the 
Market Street Terminal for the purpose of staging and loading equipment and materials (for 
the manufacture of concrete), loading structural components (i.e. steel sheets and beams) and 
the discharge of clean blasted rock all in accordance with the memorandum of Geno J. 
Marconi, Division Director, dated June 9, 2021. 

Discussion:  None. Disposition:  Resolved by unanimous  vote for; motion carried. 

XIV. New Business: 

XV. Special Event: 

NH ANG Air Show 	 September 11 th  & 12 th , 2021 

XVI. Upcoming Meetings: 

Port Committee 	 July 1, 2021 @ 8:00 a.m. 
Board of Directors 	 August 19, 2021 @ 8:30 a.m. 

All Meetings begin at 8:30 a.m. unless otherwise posted. 

XVII. Directors' Comments: 

XVIII. Adjournment: 

Director Fournier moved the motion and Director Lamson seconded to adjourn the Board 
meeting. Meeting adjourned at 10:53 a.m. 

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous  vote; motion carried.  

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



17 

XIX. Press Questions: 

No members of the press were at the meeting. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

P:\BOARD  MINUTES \2021 \Bd Minutes 6-17-2021.docx 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Board of Directors 	 June 17, 2021 



11000.2.53L.,„_ 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 55 Inte n 	n I 	= Portsmouth. NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION 

Director Parker: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of and authorizes Spyglass Development, LLC ("Spyglass") to 

make exterior improvements to Spyglass's premises located at 30 New 

Hampshire Avenue, as outlined and in accordance with the terms and 

conditions set forth in the memorandum of Maria _J. Stowell, P.E., Manager 

- Engineering, dated August 10, 2021 attached hereto. 

N:\RESOLVES\2021  \Spyglass - 30 NH Avenue - Exeterior Improvements 8-19-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL rnationa Drive PortsmouJI, 1 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul E Brean, Executive Director-4# 

From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager 

 August 10, 2021 

Subject: 	30 NH Avenue, Exterior Renovations 

Spyglass Development, LLC, ("Spyglass") PDA's tenant at 30 New Hampshire Avenue, is proposing to 

renovate the building at this location. The bulk of the work will occur inside, however, Spyglass is also 

proposing renovations to the building's exterior. 

With regard to the exterior work, Spyglass is proposing to add a patio area to the southeast corner of 

the building. An existing awning feature that spans the front of the building will be extended to the 

south and then wrapped around the corner to encompass the patio area, which will have a patterned 

concrete surface. New sidewalk pavement will be constructed along the front and south side of the 

building and existing asphalt pavement will be removed to create a landscaped area along the south 

building face. In all, there will be a net decrease in impervious area on the lot. 

Spyglass will also be repairing or replacing all of the exterior windows on the building. The 

replacements will be of style that is similar to the existing. The building fagade will be enhanced by 

washing or repainting as necessary. 

Renderings showing the improvements are attached. 

It has been PDA policy to seek Board approval for work on any leased parcel when the work will be 

visible from the street. At the August Board meeting, please ask the Board to approve the exterior 

improvements at 30 New Hampshire Avenue. 

N:\ENGINEER\Board  Memos\2021\30 NH exterior renovations.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

0 r 







Date: August 4, 2021 

To: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director 

From: Suzy Anzalone, Director of Finance 

Subject: Executive Summary- Financial Reports 

In anticipation of the upcoming August 19, 2021 Pease Development Authority Board meeting, the following 

is an Executive Summary of the two financial reports for your review and comment: 

Report #1- Financial Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ending June 30. 2021 

Actual operating revenues of $18.8 million are above budget by 15%. Main drivers include increased golf 

course public play and fee revenues associated with facility rentals as well as the $1.6 million in CARES Act 

and GOFERR funding received related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Excluding the CARES Act/GOFERR funding, 

revenues are favorable by 5.5%. Offsetting these gains were decreased fuel revenues associated with the 

reconstruction of the Portsmouth Fish Pier Wall and decreased pay for parking and fuel flowage revenues at 

PSM related to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Actual operating expenses of $12.3 million are below budget by $1.5 million (10.7%) primarily due to expense 

under runs in facilities maintenance, legal, marketing, utilities, and the cost of fuel at the Portsmouth Fish 

Pier. In addition, the favorable winter season also contributed to lower operating costs. 

The resulting Operating Income of $6.4 million is $3.9 million greater than budgeted which directly 

contributed to our ability to address internal working capital requirements and somewhat minimize the need 

to draw-down from the $15.0 million Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC) with the Provident Bank. Favorable 

operating results also leave us with a solid cash position as we start the new fiscal year. 

Business Unit Performance 

Portsmouth Airport 

Operating revenues total $3,231,000 which are over budget by $1,492,000. Excluding the CARES act and 

GOFERR funding mentioned above (which are included in these figures), revenue is under budget by $4.4%. 

Underruns include lower pay for parking revenues and concession revenue (COVID related). Current 

enplanements of 33,449 are greater than the prior year to date (23,957) 

Skyhaven Airport 

Operating revenues total $ 245,000 which is above budget by $51,000. The primary reason for the favorable 

variance was primarily due to higher fuel sales of 20,304 gallons versus FY20 YID sales of 13,344 gallons. 

Total operating income was $8,000 for FY21. Cumulative net cash flow losses, since accepting the operational 

responsibilities for Skyhaven Airport during FY 2009, total approximately $1.7 million. 

1 Page 



Report #1- Financial Report for the Twelve-Month Period Ending June 30, 2021  (continued) 

Business Unit Performance  (continued) 

Tradeport 

Operating revenues total $9,328,000 which is above budget by 64,000. The primary reason for the favorable 

variance is associated with rental of facilities and the Consumer Price Index. 

Golf Course 

Operating revenues total $3,384,000 which is above budget by $921,000 or 37.4%. The primary reasons are 

associated with public play at the golf course. A total of 28,429 rounds have been played through June 30, 

2021 versus 17,538 rounds through June 30th of the prior season. Gross revenues at the Grill 28 of $1,855,000 

are 19.7% greater than the prior twelve-month period ending June 30, 2020. 

Division of Ports and Harbors 

Unrestricted operating revenues total $2,343,000 which is slightly less (3.5 %) than budgeted revenues of 

$2,429,000. The lost fuel sales at the Portsmouth Fish Pier (PFP) have been slightly offset by incremental 

mooring, registration and facilities fee revenues. It is anticipated that the PFP may begin selling fuel by the 

beginning of September, with the final construction and repair phase completed sometime in November. 

Balance Sheet (Page #8) 

Total current assets are $7.4 million consisting primarily of $4.5 million in unrestricted cash and $2.9 million 

in accounts receivables. Net  cash balances (PDA $2.5 million and DPH $2.0 million) have decreased by 

$707,000 since June 30, 2020 due to the following activities: 

Operating Income $ 	6,456,000 

RLOC Line of Credit Draw Down 

Contributed Capital 15,764,000 

Accounts Receivable 6,032,000 

Accounts Payable (4,427,000) 

Capital Expenditures (24,797,000) 

All Other- Net 265,000 

Total $ 	(707,000) 

2 I Page 



Report #1- Financial Report for the Ten-Month Period Ending April 30, 2021 (continued) 

Balance Sheet  (continued) 

The majority of the accounts receivable balances can be attributable to federal or state construction 

activities. 

Restricted assets total approximately $1.6 million and consist primarily of the Revolving Loan Fund which has 

total assets of $1.2 million. At present, there are 21 participant loans outstanding with a principal balance 

outstanding of $1,019,000. 

Capital assets have increased approximately $18.9 million, net of depreciation, to $94.5 million primarily due 

to the extensive capital improvements at PSM including the terminal expansion and runway reconstruction 

project. During the twelve-month period ending June 30, 2021 the more significant capital expenditures 

included: 

• PSM Runway Reconstruction Project $ 11,328,000 

• PSM Terminal Expansion 9,593,000 

• DPH Bulkhead and Construction 1,564,000 

• DPH Main Pier BUILD Grant 1,284,000 

• PSM Alpha South Hold Bay 341,000 

• Volvo L90H Wheel Loader 176,000 

• Automotive Vehicles 115,000 

• PSM Eldorado Bus 72,000 

• All Other 324,000 

Total $ 24,797,000  

Total current liabilities are approximately $6.3 million, representing a $4.3 million decrease from June 30, 

2020. Accounts payables represent $5.6 million, reflecting a $4.3 million decrease from June 30, 2020. I am 

pleased to report that our RLOC at the Provident Bank reflects a zero balance as of June 30, 2021. 

Net pension and OPEB liability for the PDA remains at $9.8 million (FY20 figures). It is anticipated that the 

updated projections from the actuarial consultants will be received in August, 2021. 

As noted on page #5, the current PDA Organization Chart reflects 61 filled benefited positions and 4 open 

benefited positions. 

31Page 



2,000 

Report #2- Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending April 30. 2022 

During the next nine-month period internal cash flow projections are dominated by approximately $9.2 

million in capital expenditures which continue to be primarily in support of the PSM Runway Reconstruction 

Project and the PSM Terminal Expansion. Of these monies, $4.2 million will be grant funded which may 

require the PDA to draw funds (approx. $1.9 million) from our $15.0 million RLOC with the Provident Bank. 

We expect to have the ability to repay this draw within 60 to 90 days based on current expectations of actual 

grant reimbursements. We anticipate having no debt outstanding at April 30, 2022. 

With the FY22 budget in place, we anticipate positive cash flow from operations over the next nine months 

even with the anticipated increases in our business insurance premiums. 

Page # 3 of the report provides the detailed monthly cash flow projections noting the minimum cash balances 

remain at approximately $1.5 million to allow the PDA to address its ongoing working capital requirements. 

As our significant capital expenditure projects wind down, we expect strong cash balances which will enable 

us to fund a significant portion of our FY22 capital expenditures with existing operating cash. 

PROJECTED CASH AND DEBT NUANCES 

4,000 

PROJECTED 
CASH $2,630 

AU0 	SEPT 	OCC 	NOV 	DEC 	JAB 	FEB 	MAR 	APR 

UNRE,IPICTED CASH 

- .7:1(11 .̀EGT 

As mentioned previously, the PDA currently has no debt outstanding under the $15.0 million RLOC with the 

Provident Bank, which is currently at an interest rate of approximately 2.9%. 

I would be pleased to address any questions or supplemental information you may need. 

41 



0 

oC 
et  a. 

Uj  Z 
174  0 g N 

W
u > 
Z 

ILJ 11J  
Z 
1=4 

11-1 
W W 

(NI 	Z 
N c4 
>•• 0 Z 
Li., U. LLI 

W 
ZN 

CD 
I— Csi 

Ch 
Z 1-1 

 (i) 

LAC 

0 

0 
0 

0 
co 



O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S  

%
P

 

T
O

T
A

L
 O

PE
R

A
T

IN
G

  E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 IN
C

O
M

E
 

0,  0  in 
r4 
m  tr 

rf 

4 
to 
oo] 

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

N
E

T
  O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 I

N
C

O
M

E 

CNI 

0, 	 0 N r"..1 
LC) 

cr, 
(;- ;, I 	J-1 
	

Ott 
J., 

JJ,1- 	 (i,"; 	 N 
pt 

N 	CY") 	Lf) 	C; 
0-1 

UD 	Cr) 	C`..1 	CAD 

(..r) 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 

tx.i 

.t- 
;I: 

 
it 

(75 
.,L  

!...i.) 
,'''':•:, 

::2 	 ,„ 

-.-_,--,.- E g 6-1 
,..., 	z to, E 	5 0 

i...r 	< 	 ee 	ce 
> 	U- a. 	:z. 

Es 	;,. 	1 • .1.t 
-1., 	tit 	c) 	

ii, 
'l''; CC 	CI 	< 	(..., 	 -I 

■_. 1, 	< 	Z 	;:-, 	0 
IL  Q 	Lrl 	< 	0 Z  CC 

Z  -.4. 
 

1.11 	
L1J 

Z  1. 	z g E   
IP  

'Li 
 Q 	 Z 	ISif.  

	

-- 
	 0 	 C=F i,'•  • 	L   

p.-„, 	 ,I') 	H 

	

C.' 	ll  1 	 LL 	 cz,I. 	CI 

0 	 --1 
t_:.„ 	 8H-I 	L'•1 	

J.')  = 
H 

,_.,  < 

	

7 	
Ili 

ZL 
 

	

- 	■ 

	

;LI 	,..._1 	,_ 
I 1! LI 	1.1  1 	"---1. 	 Ce  r 	 .  i- 	Lu  Lu 

-  	 ,Ro 	:-.. 	 car .  < 

:',
"' 	

_i 

- 	 , u.i 	
-.,..i.  -..:: 

	

,, ,;: , 	
- 

6
c' 

._ 	cr, 
:). 	tri  .,..„.6 	MI  Cr5 	:  -,' 	'  -'..--. 	t- 

{,. 

 w  0  

	

ri-L- 	 0  N 	 0  ,c  

	

.-).■ 	42) ',,- 	-,,.. 

,, 	; 	■  CI, 
...7,,' 	 ... Li  ; 	4 	- 	‹C  i- 

	

ll- 	
,i.: 

	

W  ''l 	I-; 	.n. 

 

L..,  i•-• I  J  - 	 J ,.  i 

	

0 	--)  c.,.. 	Lb 

	

k..7 	
':::-.- 	 `V  	 '  ;  ,  ■    

	

F.4  r,,,. 	 '—' C) 
0  W
I.Li fx 

	

17. 	

1  ,,:-7'  i.clz..11 

•:  :  ' 	Z  Li 
• -+ 	 .•- 

.., 	 .' !  

	

, 	0 	

:....,.e  kik 	 ..: 

	

Fiel  3 	 • 
;, ,.-.. 	• 	 Q.  t) 	• 	 . 
-.--  -LI ' 	.7.  
II:1  7 	41. 

rsl 
L 

Qt 



col 

c.o 

I  

O 

7-1 

co 	---, 	 -..r• 

Lr) 	 N 
,---;  
7-1 

%.0-  
oo 
Cr) 

Lr) 

,---.1 

1-11 

-,1 
1 

vt 
N 

,-1 
 0 

eri 

,r+ 

141   I  -I  
7,1 

F
U

E
L

 S
A

LE
S

  
(S

E
F

 T
A

B
L

E
 B

E
L

O
w

)  

O 

• 

 t.0 

• O U4  •  L9  
)„.  Z Er..1  

M. aaC  

R
E

N
TA

L  
O

F
  F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 

C
O

N
C

E
S

S
IO

N
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 

G
O

LF
  M

E
R

C
H

A
N

D
IS

E
 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

-  
N

E
T

 

Crl 
U C) 

MI 

ee 

2 

LL1 

SK
Y

H
A

V
E

f4
  A

IR
P

O
R

I 

H
A

M
P

TO
N  

H
A

R
B

O
R

  

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

  F
I S

H
 PI

E
R.

  



•:r 

C.9 z  
/-14  

z 
LLI 

0 
0 

ILI 
a. 

i- 
z 
0 

cL 
0 
u., 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
  S

T
A

FF
  A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

 

uuj  w ay  
a 

(F
IL

L
E

D
 P

O
S

I T
IO

N
S

)  

C.C.) 	n tf- 

rJ 
!AA 

Z w 
• C-)  0,  

, 

■ 

a. 
a. 

U 
0  ■ 

Eta 

W 	c' 

Lr1 	 a 	 (.0 
c+ 

- co 	r--.) 
Lr) 

Li) 
is 

  

if ) 

:-. 	 ii 
r: 

1.1.1 	 a..." 	..Li 	 CL 
0 	 :D 

-.z. 	 ':-.■-; 	0 	(ii 	!.,-1  

,..- 

E  7 
° 

i 
 n 0 CC  -  —I < 0  CD 

CO  U.;  0 0 Z z  In 

	

0- 	CO  0._ 	C.D  ii: ,  tai 
 

...-...i 	
Li., 

m  x =  al 

1  ,..0 	1  1 	.,0 	24 	(A,? 	.), 	C Cl) 	CC 

.--4 	 ,--i 	 ,--i 	Ili 	 0) 

Id ) 	 r-■ 

CA) 	'4 	0-1 	 cor11 

Cr., 	CC 	(.-.) 	lid 
r. •Cr, 

* 
.... 	

1...vi 
..„„ 	 ,.  

...,: 	
6,4 

A 	a': 
4J
.  , 	

..... 	 4.1. Z 
Z 	 ....•2:: 	L-7. 	LI4 	'‘J) 	---, 	 , 

td 	.'ill 	-:,..,;. 
;., .. 

r:-) 	 ,._14.1 	
'2: ,---, 	.i.-1 	Z ,.. 	 .---■ 

C:1 64 	i:i,i  

▪ 

 u.; 	 0..1 	 LD 	M  11 4 	vi. 
v) 	...! 	 ,,,, 	 --, 	 ..-.) 	 , .,.--,.-.,.. 

-, 	u.i 	-c.,  ,,.:: 	ar. 
<,-.: 	6, 	..c J 7..; 

-.- cc  ec 	u.1 	t 

4.1 ka 	w ;-) 	> 	,...--(  ,..i 	I.: 	pc 	L.S..1  

CV 
CC) 



M
C

D
O

N
O

U
G

H 

u) 
• u)

• 

-1  
O a. 5 

00 

3 	tc) 

cn a_  t 
OW 

a. 
co 

I– 	 i– 	I– co 	 cn 	ci) 
cn 71  "*.' 	u, D 	H,„ 71 

	

a. 4  Wa.< 	IX ri. 5 
< 0W  °- 	0 c.) 	0 0 cu  0 	cu 	1  la a. 	 a. 	a. ce) 	 Cl) 	 cn 

(1•9z 
 

21- 
▪ co) 	Z 

2 0,1-  

(1111) %1110 	
2 0LU 	Z 
0

• 

= r 
)-1 S

IE
 

	

1-- 	1– 	r– • re  z z 

- 

z 

WO 	tu oi– m 

• 

OZ 	> co  U < Z CC 4.1 	-12 Z 	U., YD 	U 
0 0 ° 	< la D -I >  

}.., 	(a 0 	0 
0 	0 2 

< ° 	-/ 0 u < 	 ° 

	

0 	0 
W? 	< 	 < 

Z ri ij. 	 < 
.0 j... 	 i  	1 	 —J o 

I- to 

	

NZ z 	c.) cn ta 	Lu. o 	o  cn u)  re 	 ,
0 < 

<  
cc  ce ui 	r  z. . 	z.- 	.., z 0 = co 	 n Ore 	re 

	

ILL caLl 	0 0°  re 0 cn 	m CC 0 	¢ID 

	

r  X D 
o 

.... 	 0 4. 	 2 
0 D < 

0 a) 0  

	

_1 ce 	i 	I_ _____J 
O 

 r-- 	0 	 0 

	

> DI < 	 2 
CI 

Z 

	

CI lil < 	 2 a' H 
02  

	

O 	cc–, rn  cc  o  w re 

	

...  u., cc 	w 0 <u)  
--, < CI) 2 

	

E 0 	CD 
a. a. 

LU H 

	

I- 	 -/ 

	

2 	 -, a" ''  IL ./1  2 4

- 

) 

	

2 ,c' c° z 1– 	m (c3 
L)< 

co m c7) 0 z 

	

cc 	0  u)  

	

al Z 	 c: M A il 	 i D OH  

0 O < < 	c.). 
Fl 	. K 	'- 	 -f < < ° 
O to 	Z 0 	 4 

4 	o t r- 

2 

iu sm.()  	I 
O ri 0 u, 	 (r) z 	 < a.  g re a 0  I 	 z 	< 0 re z 8 	0 z id 111,1 	0 g 1- 0 

Uiciu 	 re 

	

Lu u) 	2  
Zoil ici ailig  i 	 0 n. 

	

o 	.r 
5 wu Al.  IQ 	 4 z 	e. 	4.   
Ei. J'I 	ILI Z D  ,.., 	 ma..., 

O 0 ID 0  ..4 	 U. 
Z iu 	

D 0 0 

... 
	

0U 	 Lu 	cc 
,... 	 re 	E 	cu 	 z CC CC 2 IL 10

>
a 	 y 0 	(-)  2 0 ....- CI 	ta 2 	0 OW re I– 	 0 CD  rt 	kw  

	L.- 4 
	_J m 

 
21 D 	 n „D lu 	 z

- 

 m u) 
U 

	

m 11  41 	 W C.) 	< 4 4  a .., 	 . i_ c( F.- 	 – 0 	CI) U4 

	

1- i cn 	o. 	o 	 x =2 DLurt 	 la 	a. W 	
N

.......  
CD  awl 	 >. 	o K x wE 	0 

o F zw (nx 	I 	1   
re   	

J. 
U   —  .  __I 

LL) E Z =I 4 
Z ...• 4.4 O. Z 
O < z a 
a. –, 0 2 a. U 

111 
Z U 

	

U) U la 	 m 

• 

Z .- 

	

14 wt., 	04 4 .4 ,a 

	

JCgCL 	I- n< 	Wt.] 	=4)..I 111 UJ 
Ill 14 LD 

	

Ea 	ce 4 ILJ 0 (r) 

	

/- Z < 	
a= 	Z 	0  < < 

IL 8 De 	 . 

OZ  z 

Q .  iiii____,__i_____., 

1 

	

0 y 0 E 	 Z 	 0 0 
° 

W 
0 	 •e 	a. 	a- 	co 

0 	< 0 
	8  2 	

W  w
P- 
u) ta 1– 

• N¢ .4 I 	z –1  
Di 

CC 2 I- eL  

	

cn – 	cn a- 
< 1– cu 

	

0 a- 	
LU ..l 

	

0 D. 	
0 ID 

...] 	< z 

(a 
0 < O cn z 	 = I– 	< 5 	 < D 	0 = la 	0 z 	a. a 	cc D 	

g 3 	Y5 a.  

	

U.1 .2 111 	 cI( a 	z a 	-I 0 	 2 cc 	2 -, 2 	c.) 	rr 	la 	al ca 	< cu 	Fa W 	to ca 	2 U. 	in z ce 	2 
2 < LU 	 < 
2 2 ° 
g F-Uj  g 	1 	I 	! 	 ;•   	1-1 
IL Z 4 	X Z 	I- 	CC 	I 	 u) 

	

 0 	C8) 0- 	 •S 	0 0 	0 la 	a. 	ca 0.. 	a. Z 

	

Z
m 

2 < 	
Z 0 01 

	

2 2 	Z 0. 	 2 

	

LD 	
0. U 

	-' 	
g E 	w , 	0 , 	= a

° Z  

	

0 	-.  ‹ a. 
- I 	I CD 	-I 111  

	

LU I- 	 Ill 
• i- 	u) 15 	Lu co 	)– z 	.., 5 	g; 5 	a 5 
O re .e 	a 	z a 	2 a  
o 4 	§

- 

g 	 a w 

	

m La 	z (7, 	cu al 	 ILI 	 Z La - I 	 _A  0 	2 	 > 	c( 

	

2 	 w 	< 	0 	 n 

R
E

L
A

T
IO

N
S

 

 

z 

0 

 

T
O

T
A

L
  B

E
N

E
F

IT
E

D
  P

O
S

IT
 I
O

N
S

 

0 
1.)J 

J-/ 

O 
00 O. 0 

.../
 

H
E 

	

x 	 & S'  i

- s 

 
05.1y 	OW<  ILI 	(a.,./-  

✓ 
ce c_ al 	a 0  cy.  z a.= 
cacu,,0 	_W iii ,y,  0  x< <-1 
i-- o < 	< m a_  N.–  u, ca , 
,.. 0 z 	a) 	au < – 

	

Z 	N a. 
la 0 , 
,, re ce Z 	

0 ID<  a.  (n 

	

...1■11 	
Z 14  a. 41 

	

O 
	

0 a. 	 
au 0 ... 

< re 0 
 0 	

.. 

Po .,.  
✓

z....„ 
0. 

w  W 

Q
Lu c, 

Luz 

	

N 	
_.< 
„ 
0 

	

Z in-1 	
u 

Z 
ce 4 



2 
LI 

(25 
2 -25 

• !. 

5.1:1 

,....5-: 

_-1, 	 , I 	 : 

1 	 -7. 
-. . 

5511. 

■-_,. 

) 

L..,  

, 	 • 

li •r..! 

CD 
1••• 

r•-• 	tiN 

44 
Z 	 (")') 

(1.14  

0 
t44  

< 0 
t.i.c ❑ 

>- 

P- 41   

..< 
IL/ ° 
5■• 

^-4 	Sri 

0')  

LSD 	'.1 	- 

LI) 	t. 	c,-) 

r-i 

(1, H 

cr 	,r-r 

',-i 	1 

HI 

U 

- 	r4 	ri 	g-i 	) 

ce u-, 2 = ›- 
U 	4 > 

Mi 	a 	1-- 
I 	I-- IQ ILI "..■ i-- V; .-41 	Zt1 4 0 

/It ° 0 
>. 	''CI 

t81 	1 	0 i••• 4/ 4 
/-- 3 .4 4 1-- Li} 	U 

5- 	< 

CD 

C"..1 

711 

N 

0) 

i
 
V
1
 

A
L
L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

R 

0 U 

Z 	c‘.1 	CO 	,..0 	i'l 	Al 	 1•••• 
	r-i 	(,) 	WI 	01 

'r.t-) 
	

..--t 	ri 
44 

- 

 Ce 
. 	

,-,,, 
	 z 	-, 

u,  ce = a te    m  ›.-  m    
CO  	5..   U   

U WI  

0, 

0 	I''' 	IN 	CO 	.-12 	V 	7/ 
i•-• 41 L." 	 i 

< a  0 	
ll 

 
W in 
).- 	02  

ml 

co 
1•• 	ILI 	 Cs") 

Li  44 C

• 

 4  Z 
c‘  <  < 
eX  iu-  rti  
0  cc 
1.) 

o 	I-- 	0-. 	— 	.,-) 	Ln 	rni --4 
I- L,LI U.1  
ce  F. 0 
< <  0 
ILI  a  n m 

0  -a  c0 
ill 	Ln 

0 
< 

>.• 	4 

51 



O 

Cri 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 E

X
P

E
N

S
E

  

0,`")  w 

0  z ce 
IN

T
E

R
E

ST
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
 

NI 



°1 N 

v-s 

01 0  

Z  0 c•- ■-•  
r.„ , .1"; 

1,01 1 
0 0 
M 

1'1 

g3 co 	r-,  

c• 	c:s) 
CN  N 

(0 

R
E

V
O

LV
IN

G
  L

O
A

N
  F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
  A

S
S

E
T

S
 

If) 

CO 	
Ai 

41.  

'-'1 	
:%.", 	 < w 
d a 	c) 	 0 

	

–1 	U..1 
0  < 
Z  z   _i u.. 

z:: 27,, 

cc  5 
0 L  LL 	(...7  F.  

2. 
--,: 

1--• 

	

:.) 	l.,)  

	

LI., 	CO 	
C.1  a 

g 	

• 

 C., 

	

,I to  Z 	-  0 < Lu  < 
0  0.  r 

u.,   11-1  2  '.  d 	E 8 m 
. 

< 5  ce  ce z  tx  z 	c;  LL,  ce 
0  r 	.41  w 1  ft 

CO 

(r, 

CJ 

R
E

S
T

R
IC

TE
D

 

,13 

N 
7r1 
Z  0 

N 
C+1' CY, 

r m 
1.0 	cr 

0  V, 

00 C.,  

CO 

Is] 
q- 	 CO 

(N 
CO 

N 
z 	 Lu 
0 	 U 	 CO 

c,), 

	

..... 	et 
M 	 al 

}--. 
CO 

ce (;) 	10  	144 
41, 

Lu
0 

 (r) 
_1 
,./) 
,.. 

❑ 

0 	r_ 	I— 	
,:,.. 	 0 	t 

z iii 	 x 	 Lrg 

..71 	F- 	-.1 	E  ! 	 ... 

	

7 	 U. 

Li 

L 	w  ,--;  .-J 	Co ' 

	

71  ca  4J
til 	 i.n 

13 	-J 
 

...:. 	.-_:, 
• 4 	AC  ILI  E  

L
,
.-, 	0 	

Z i--i 
Q; : 	.0 	 .J  Fl.,- 

	

... 	 ,.., 	_.1 	 i.-- 	::. 
L11 	 . 	r. 	H- 2: —  0 

(..O 
1---  

C)

• 

	

• 	

''''-: 	

cc 

It'll 	---2-1 

11.? 	4- 	

tii  0 

'_, 	
,:f.] 

- < 
CC 	2: 

0 	0 	
:,Lri.,..1 

4  '':,.. 	 n  — 

J.. 

	ti . 

,1 	t..) 	c11i 	 ':-.:;-) 	L.c'':, -: 	1:--- U 

0 	f.l. 	,..,2 

Z 
,..)  4,-2 	.:.' a; 

ir..: 	i---- 
„ 

‹. 	12.4 	ri.; 
Lu 	i 

K  0 

- [LI 	ji. 

; 7.; 

< 	3  0:: 	f-- 	Z  2:  C 	 0 	'6_ 	Z  z,... a: 

a.)hl 	m 	 rte. 	 t.o t, n 
• 111 	 LAD 

IT, 
,-; 	

:kt.141 	c, 

74 	 Q 
141 to 

1  

0 
(.9 

(1.1 

1:-:  
Cc: 

uy 
Ltl 

 CC 

ILL! 41C 
CC  a: Cf. 	I- 

(-)  z  0 

an 
N) 
–4" 

   

L
I A

B
IL

IT
I E

S
 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

I E
S

 

   

M 0 

Z 0 
N 

O 

Z 
N 

 

C
O

N
S

  

    

  

i..• 	 a] 
Li .  

i-:-.---1 	 ju 	 ..,- 	.-. ■ 

tli 	1i4     	T  ir i  ! 	
E  i..', 1 	-c-9 	< 

,...r, 
:-  

.; 
 

--... 
,-)   

II: 	Ct'71... 	CI g 	;,i  
f  .E; ..n 	H i— 	

■;::-;  Z 
o   

e 	<  u 	z 
li 	...... 

':,

▪ 	

i-: 
	 <1;

1 

	

uk  ,..,71:0 

	3 

	5---:'. 
et t,  8   r 
8 	-_5 	E  C.--, 	 --.-. 	IC  < 	'J 

	

C-, 	•C 



as 

Co 
C) 

o x  o 
o 

Lad! < 

Z 
41-1 

 M 
02 

0 w 41.1 

1,61 
0 

CC 

LIJ 
CC Ce 
0 < 
ax 

VI 

LL1 0.1  
0 /- 
Z  4 
&Li 0 ° 
a• 
X 
ILI 

CO 

Cr, 

0 
Lr) 

s 
r.) 
r-i 

,,C) 

Co 
CO 

v-.1 

r,  ex, 

r., 
M 
Co} 
--I 

•...7) 

OD 

CO 
N 

CO 

-,--i 
in 

--I 
Co 
...--i:  

C7 

u-) 
CD 
CO 

O C 

Ul 
00 

CO 
0-) 

Co 

N 

CO 
rl 
tr) 
,4 

Co 
PO., 

Co 
N. 
,-  i 

C, 

r". 

Ul 
Cl 
CO 
4 

,L) 
01 

Ul 
N 
:'V 

1-1 

IN 	Cr 
, 	:D:D 

r, 
CD 

.-, 	,D 
----; 

M°D 

.--1 
 

CO 
Ch 
‘.1) 

aT 
PO 

CO 
Co 
l',  
-1 

N 

•. .r) 

CO 
in 

!r) 

lD 

M 
Co 

CO 

7 
M. 

r' .-- 
,-H 

71-  

CT) 
7-1 

Co 
N 

Q 
C) 
,-1'  

 kr  

'LSD 

1,1 

N. 
CD 

CO 
N 
Ti 

Cr, 

CO 

rA 

r-I 

o 
7-, 

N 
co 
-H 

4E 

)r) 	 Co 	
Co

Co 
10 	

(Ncr, 	 c),4 	10 	 Co 	 L.r) 
COCO  	 (-4 w  •0 	CO 	 Co 0 	 N 

-I 	 N 	,-I 1,1 

4,C 

0 

r, 
4 	c, CO  CO 

1-1 	T-1 
Co CD 

rq 
00 voi 1-1 

N." ri 

CO 
a. 

6 z 
0-  2 
0 et 

1) 

Z Z 

c4 
Z.  Z. c.isc; 

kz,  
a. 

0 

6 

0 

0 

6 
6 

PS
M

  A
LP

H
A

  ::
SO

U
T

H
 H

O
L

D
 B

A
Y

 (A
IP

 6
7)

  

A
IR

  N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
  G

U
A

R
D

  T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

 

PS
M

  T
ER

M
IN

A
L 

BU
IL

D
IN

G
  E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

  (
A

L
P 

6
2)

  

P.
SM

  T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 EX

PA
N

SI
O

N
  (

A
IP

  6
6

 

 

0
 

O
P

H  
R

YE
  H

A
B

O
R

  D
R

E
D

G
IN

G
 

W
H

E
E

L
  L

O
A

D
ER

  G
R

A
N

T
 

L)P
H  

FU
N

C
T

IO
N

A
L

 R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T-

D
PH

 M
A

I N
 P

IE
R

  R
EH

A
BI

LI
T

A
T

IO
N

 

D
P

H  
H

A
M

PT
O

N
 H

A
R

B
O

R
 D

R
ED

G
IN

 

D
P

H
 P

E
P 

R
EP

A
IR

  A
N

D
  C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 

 

a 

0 



UJ 
C) 
(7) 

LO
U

G
H

LI
N

  M
E.

-M
O

R
IA

L 

of 

LT': 
. 	 I --, 	C.i > 

r- ■ 	 C') 	t 	ID 
---i 

1;: 

...:: 

,... 

, 

C_I 

4., 

1.1.i 

•-1 
.-, 
- 

I 
Z 

1 — 

.- 

.i.' 
0 
.., 

'..,.; L_ , 

, t  

;:. ■ 

-  -i 

,--. 
.--:7:7 

■_.- 

Z Z 

,.., 

4:c a. 

ti.J 

I-- 	 .*, 

Z 	.../ 

R 	..-.;', ........, 

- 	— 
.:, 	 :f  , 

- 	'-',„ .,:c 	._- 
1 
•-• n 	',..,2 

„y... 	_ 

1 

• .., 	 i 

.s...' ,..„,. 

-. 

."-.) 

-.1.- 
-4:- 

a.. 
ti-j i...... 

21'  

 A 

7,  -, 

-...;-:' 
:..', 

0-- 
.-.:1 

r., 
-- 

0 

,  , 	_L I 

-... 	 j 

'  --, 	 .-......".- 

-,7, 	1— 

- 	0 
'  • -, 	W 

,.,,   
 __, 

.., 	 ' 1  

-  •-1 	=S-- 
4,.;, 	 . 	 ! 

,' 
LA..; 

O

1 .1,1 

7  7 

-J 
a 

-4 	C) 	q) 

0-1 

ni 

sib 

CQ 

re; 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 W

O
R

K
 I

N
 P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 --; 

a-) 

r.; 

z
 

S
 
	 ...t -- ;' 	 :
  ■

-
i
 
	 0
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
A

M
E

 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

  A
IR

P
O

R
T

 



N 

'41 	 N. 
CY') m N 

G•1 
N 

N 

E 
g cC 
LLI LLI 
>  > 
—I —I 

0  0 

1J 
T 
t3  U 

B
A

TH
R

O
O

M
  R

E
N

O
V

A
T

IO
N

S
  -

  G
R

IL
L

 28
 

LJ 

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
 

H
P

  D
E

SI
G

N
  J

E
T

  P
R

I N
TE

R
 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
A

M
E 

 

G
O

LF
  C

O
U

R
S

E
 

P
LE

X
IG

LA
S

S
 B

A
R

R
IE

R
S

  &
  P

A
T

IO
  C

O
V

E
R

IN
G

 G
R

IL
L  

28
 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T 



(I) 

0 

a. 
z 
1■4 

0 

z 
0 
1 1:1  

(1) 

0 

Um 

Ct 

z 

(i) 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
  Y

E
A

R
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
 

-.3. Lel 

•••• 

r-1 

r,'") 

CO 

U .) r•-4 0:33) 

N 

,C) N 

= 
CI. 	 z 	 ..1 
CI 	,  3  
,.... 	----■ 

	

1
3  Er 	

I- 
CI r 	-=-) 	 I- 

z 



IN 

 

 

rrlat 

   

  

  

 

< 7

W 
 0 Cr) 	 f,;)1 

0 0 	 C,! 

 

z 
CL 
la  0 

1 

o& 
z z 0 

J 

cr 

L7 el. 

 

  



N
E

T
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 

-1 	I-- 
‘' ■ 
0  LT:I 

 

 

 

t. 

cr 

H 	1).-1 
(f) 

0 
X 

ILJ 
1— 
LIU 
I 
i- 
ce 
0 r•I 
LL 
V) 0 
Z 
0 

M 
z o 

W 	CI. 
ON n  ce 
O 	izti 
u- z 
o I 
Luz 0  

X
( 

 
LLI 0 f/  
i— 1-4  
let 	re  

ILI 0 
cn 0. CL 

frl

y
l 
	

0:) 

VI 	i+.". 	 P 
 t 

ILI 	GU 	 i. ;:l 
.Z 	:II 	 . 	 V) 

Z 	z 	i 	 !II 
j 

w 	w :I 2' 	 ,... 

.2. w 	x 	 t.1.1 
CL 	ILI 	 LL 	 l'..:1 	 I.i ) 

!X 	 ■21 	 ',.. 

Z 	Z !?': 
.. 

 

Z 	 ,?' 

. 
 • 	:-.'  6.1 

Ce 	 , .7 	rt  	 F. ' .  '.   
1.1.r 	'Li 	.-...-, 	::?. ',=, 	

w 	:,,d 	0 CL 	CL 	q 	-.„ „5 .. 	i, 	g O 0 	... 	r.?  ,, 

C,  1 r, 	cr) 
< 	 7

<  g 
V) al  L7 

•,-•  2  

R. 	 C., 4:1 L.) 	0.-)   
z ••••• - ' 	

▪  

• 
••••  . 

7.).  • 	< 

:LS 
r-  (4) 

L: 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 

OC 

. 	 • 

I 

Hai < 
r. H 

< 
CI)  C.,/ 

< 

k 

4, 



N 
N 

N 

 

OD 	 LP) 
(",1 

71-' 
ol 	N 	tl N 

(,) 	M 	 N 

 

N 

N 	N 	r--.1 	CO N 
N 
tel 

0 	win z 
< 	 u2  ‘ 	

E 
Lil  u 	Z 	5 L.) 
> 	u. 	 oulce 

oLucc 	¢  b 	.:t 
0 	 ... 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S

 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

  

M
A

R
K

E
T

IN
G

  A
N

D
  P

R
O

M
O

T
IO

  

RJ
 

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

N
E

T
  O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 IN

C
O

M
E 

A
LL

  O
T

H
E

R
-  

FU
E

L
 

Cu' 
X 
C 

,,1 	L.) 

X  z .  
O -...- 

z  •  z  , 
s 

z 

• 

 g vo itt- 

g 	
cr.  x 
0  w 

144 	Z  0 
C 0 Z 
0 Z < 

z 
Lu—' 	if, 	 0 2 z LC' 	0  2 	I.LI U3 2 	2 uj 

.-.I Z  9 Lu 	s. I- 
U.J 	 z Ur 
0_ 	03 Y 	 i ',74 %,"Z 	E  a' z 

o 
O 

• W

• 	

] N UJ t w to ' 
c--1` 

R1 

1-4 

0 

p 

b LL,  c, V) 
-= 

01 

c.0 	N 	Lr; 
U.) 	 N 

w CD 

1.--  pl 	
ul 

ru g  
!in  1 cn 

I 	(-1 	 a 
..t- 	.-..-q 

-I- 	

i-- )- 
00 .!..:, 
LLi '-- 	

Cr 
..--■ AC)  Ce  r-  S 

< .1': 	 i•--; ill 	ill 	 cn '-I  ;..!_ 

:>-- 	 <  :-.... 	; 	 .•—■ 
gla 

T21 	 ij 	
0 

,-4 

W  0.: 
.1 l'1 	

1-- 	. ■ 	 .,,, 	6  i.t: 	 ..-E. 	 ,..: 

6 	0. 0. 

",- 	cC 	 CC  Z 

m 	 r 
CD 

Z  LL1 	 v•:,  

!!! :, 	
UJ 
--;' 	

Wt. 

	

L  ,, 	:--) 

0 a 

g  	,,,-; <, 
Ul ua > 	 ___1 

til C)  L'n 	 dt 

4C 	 i.  0  y r ,  LD  U. 	 U.1 ...1 >-- 	7,-- >- 



  

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  E
X

P
E

N
SE

S 

u.1 	 LI) 
LI 	> 	 2: 

7...,',..   
,..-  	L.:  q

N  N  ,Tc 	'. 	F.-.5 	0  
- VI]  pj u  z  1  g  g  §  2  F  rd  U.,  .-. 	__1 2._ ..c.: 

 !—,  0  CZ 5 0 
a 1 x  rzt  0 

0  .1: 	7)  CL cf,  17 in_ 
r-  w  —  c4 

CT) 	 N 	4J 

LI) 

CD 	1.,(1 	ft) 
fel 

- ■ 	,C? 	;ID 

LEI 
rid 

9 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

 

Z 
Z 

w  Lai a. z 
9  0 Z 

t-)  
A
. 

z uJ  I 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

  I
N

C
O

M
E

 

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

F.7; 
r.L.; 

1.-. 

._J 

'62.  N 8  .`,.5 	
0 
I--- 

O 

0 

FY
  Y

T
D

  K
W

H
 

5 

s,  0 0 Q) H MN ) 

;ID 
LU. 	1y 

tD 

0 

tPr 

Nrr.' 
ti) C.,  

Q5 
qi 

1— 
Z 
O 

LU 
1— 
LU 

1— 

0 
N 

(i) 
Z  (NI 
1.4  c

• 

 6 

LU 
 

O n  0 0  
u-  z • 1714 

 al 
Z Z  
W LU  0 
E 0 a. 
U1 0 
1— 1-4  
▪ Ce ct 
I— la a 



O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 I
N

C
O

M
E 

N
E

T
  O

P
E

R
A

T
I N

G
 IN

C
O

M
E

 

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

  

CO I 
- 

	H 
<L. LU 	

,L1),7 
In 

,...., <  T 
Ln W  CD 

en 

Rs-  cl 

O 

I 

74", ) 
(N N 

03 
co 	kai 
0 

M 	In 

0 

I 
Immo 

0 r4 
LL• N 
V) 0 
ZN 
0 rH 

g W 

0. 
O n  

U- 
0 11 

&(1)  
LuZ luZ 

E 0 8 
LU 0 , 
/— 1'1  `I' 

12  'I  
LLJ  0 cna W 

Ex)1 (N 
N 1-11 

i":"" 	 CLi H 	 (N 

aE 

Le) 	 N  10)  CL,1 
■-■ 	 I  'I" 	N

CV I' 
(N1 

Mcr, (N 	 Ni
1- 1 

IN 

rn 
	 C`..1 	 LT) 	CO 	

r- 4 	MI 

H 1-  
1-1 

w 0 	 rj: 

i 

 0 
< 	

M 
in IL1 	

6 
F 

lia 	Le.) 	M 	 L.1 	i 
CL 	SU 

{ y 

 • 

g x  5  

▪ 	

a 
LL 	 ILI 	t.I.J Ill 	13 

t,, 	tu 
in 	 p  P 	

• 	

z 
a a  H   z 

C.4 P 	LU 
-z 	z 

14 
 

U ' 2: 

	

n 	 w 

g 	
■-r 

w  ,61 

• 

 z 
i z 

0 Li_ 	
Lu 

O Z  J—   0.4 	1.1.r  :;..: 	21 	u- 	)4 
CL 	tit  § 	

2 •§  R 	 ,  0  Y 
< 

❑ 	
,---, 	ce 
-7, 	et 	Z  

-N 
C 

CO 

0  0  (4) 0  g z  u,   
H  m 	1';  L()' 2 Fi  17.  w  

Z I3o 	z -  S 
L6  aAZ 
	

w 
 U 
0 LLI 	Wk4  "- 

O. 	11 x 
 w  x 

 uj  CI_ _ 
0r 0  IA  a 0  '''• 

(N 
co 

cos 	

▪ 	

cry 

DCI 

Ln 
tom] 

LU 
o9re  g 
• Ljj 
0  CL 
• 0 

0 UT 
.mil 

a. 

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
S

 

S
IM

U
LA

TO
R

 

(N 	LI) 	0) 0  H 

lrr'D 	

iii 
u-) 	

C., 
a) 	 .0') 	cp E- w 1.1J 	 ),-) 	L 	,- 	 (--)1 

LLY ,t.:  g 	 ,- q < ,.., a ., ,  - -   
-,..- 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 



-.. 

r . 

8 

* * 

K
E

Y
 G

O
L

F  
C

O
U

R
S

E
 B

E
N

C
H

M
A

R
K

IN
G

  D
A

T
A

  

N 
o 
fV 
>- 
U. 

fs-4 

CC 

is* 

CJ 

"-,.r 

cr) 
r.! 

r 

CV 

00 

LA ., 

-1- 

;-:i-.  
Cll 
4, 

r,  

1-  

44 

Cl 
Cn 

co 

4-5 

I,  

1-1 ,  
V) 
CO 

Ccc) 

cr, 

.0,1 

e q 

r, 
1---1 
l'-. 

,C) 

' ,4-  

,1.) 
i'',... 

CZ,  
01 

i 
•.,',. 
0'1 

ic-- 

Q0 
01 
4:2) 

, :;',:, 

,C:2 
, 

1..1) 

(..") 
J0 

.-7■T Ì  

CC) 

r 

,r, 

''...5)  

,,,,-....,,: 

C., 1 

 , 

Crl 

CL) 

';7; 

ID 
.--1 

Ul 
un 
co 
.-i 
..A. 

0  

r-4 

N 
21. 

Ltc 

rn 

cy;) 
c.! 

i^1 

c‘ 	 )- 

r::1, 	
gra 
LLJ 

E 
>- 
<

▪ 

 0  i u  —1 

—.I 

P. 	w Z  az Lu a a < z --, 
>-- 	 d = ce  cc  L" 	11.1 

-', 

CY, 	 ,,C.) 	 0 

---.■ 	r. 	C. 	o-, 	A,-, 	 'Kr' 
... 	 .. 	_ 

,.-.. 	c.-.2 	NI 	c. I 	,-.-'i 	 --4 
zi 
ba 

C.',..) 	 '1c 	 C' 	 I'') 	c,....) 	ci-c) 	.--I 	Cc.: 	C 'I 	.  'V 	..1" 	N. 
Cr) 	 In 	'..:7 , 	f-‘) 	8 	 , 

	

-,,- 	 -, , 	-,  ,,,,, 	..- 	..n 
....1 

, .t 
.• 	 WI 

Ce 	C4 	...o>. cy 	LL1 	Ili 
LU m ci:L  cc  Z 

0  W ,17:  • 

	

tet 

I ■ 
;cc 

^L.1 

a z 
ri 

If) 

< 
uj 
(j) 

	

Z 	un 

	

g  S 	..) 

.c 0   

La 

1-; 
:14 
0 et w 

 

. 

Uc) 

C. 

,-- 

.47 

CO 
N  . 

Ct 
ID 

O 
N 
O 
N 

N 
O 
N 
>- 
U. 

h 

LL 

CIL 

W_a  tu 
0 0  a-4  LLI  54 

u.) SE
PT

EM
BE

R
.  

R
O

U
N

D
S

 O
F

 G
O

L
F  

P
L

A
Y

E
D

  (
S

E
A

S
O

N
)  

2
0

2
1

  M
E

M
B

E
R

  j
  N

O
N

M
E

M
B

E
R

  R
O

U
N

D
S

 (
sE

A
so

ri
)  N

O
N

Pl
em

e
ca

  

".; 



O Lu- 
• 41 
cx; 
< 

I !!) 	U.) 	Ul 	,.: 	In 	CD 	U-1 
tID 	,-I 	,JD 	1-fl 	Cr, 	C7.7 	,-1 

*--1 	,- ■ 	In 	—1 	r 	----I 

In 	 'N 	..-., 
Z 	,---1 	',1" 	N 
i --1- 	N 

ft a 	 ..... 4c 1 

0  < • Z  < 

c's1 
tv$ 

It/ cr 

11 In 	 in 	 tr) 
- Lni 

.. 
al 	

VI 	IN 

NI 
7 c4  

A= 

ti.1  
0  ". 

x— ,x 	c..■ 	a- 
rn a. .i a 

= 

	

te 	-.- 	c..-1 	t-ii 

	

LA,  0 	.1- 	.,---■ 	C11 

	

>- "2 	M 	 ^-> tz cg 
= 

fte 

CO 

FE
E

  R
E

V
E

N
U

E
:  

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 F
E

E
S

 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S 

W
H

A
R

F  
/  

D
O

C
K

 

F
U

E
L

 S
A

L
E

S
  

Cs.4
 

in C
V 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

,Y) 

N .  

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

N
E

T
 O

P
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 

IL 	CO 
• —I  7, 
H ¢ 

LU 14 	>, Lpt 

• Z " 

• 

z 
w 	

• 

1— 
w > Z Z > 

w 	w 	LU 

	

0 CC L1Ce 	Ce 

- < 

JN 

0 
0 	

.< 
a 
LA 

A
LL

  O
T

H
E

R
  -

  F
U

EL
  u i'? 	w 

—  z 0  , ›  
<  w 	

._..i 	, <  < L7 	sp  .. 	?ri 	z  z  c.,  P 
-  %II 

 —a 
 1.1 u,, 	5.-  1 	

Z 	Z a z 0  Z to,  Z tn 	__J" 	 `,7 
P— 	I  VI  z_ 2 0Z 

	

—1  :71 	72 
4  Z  g Z 	2 	,..,,. ? Lli  g lz. .tu w  w 	 0 
w >  LU  EL,. 	 ,-, 	 —r IL 5 	Z 

X •7. 0 Ce 0 
0 Ce 0  41 	<4.--'   
4. $1.1  D.  X 

CD  < 
 0 9t tLU S Se_ 

1:1, 4.11 Z. 

• 0 
▪ u 

T

• 	

—.. Z 
z cc 2 a. 'A 

	

0  sr, 	r LU a. E —Jz  g 0 0 • w 
61A  Z 	It-1  

	

OK 	OZX 

	

LU 	❑ Z  lu 



01 	NI 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 IN
C

O
M

E
 

E 
0 
L.) 

z 

z 
ati  

0i 

0  z z D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

-.; 

St) 	 r•-.; 
CO 	‘7* 

0 

Dijj  
g 
ILA  W  

111 LL; 

6  

z 	00 
Z 0  z 	wz 

Z  <  d  Z 4.4 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 IN
C

O
M

E 

' 

1 

u.i 

D0 	u..: 	;,.., 	r 	P.  
7 	..rt 	v-3 	n 

L.,., 	z 	z 	 ,. ; 

...Li 	LL1 	 ..)." 
> 	CL. 	-... 

H 
Ce 
•=r 

	

ii, 	. : ; 
ILI 	NI( 

	

6 
 ,..... 	

,...,... 

z 	E z 

0 	
V. 



T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
  B

A
S

E 

OD1 
r4 MI 

N141 N 

5 
0 

LU 

z 

Lj  

LU 

O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
S

E
S:

  

1.0 

L
O

A
N

  F
U

N
D

  R
E

C
O

N
 

O
P

E
R

A
T

I N
G

 I
N

C
O

M
E  

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

 S
E

R
V

IC
ES

 

D
E

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

 

N
E

T  
O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 

T
O

T
A

L
  O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
  E

X
P

E
N

S
E

S
 

' ' ri 

N 

IC 

U) (X) r 
C7) t'N 

0", 	,J 

G
E

N
E

RA
L  

F
U

N
D

S
 

SE
Q

U
ES

TE
R

ED
  F

U
N

D
S

  

w 

i- 
n 

Z 

o  a 

ri 

C .1 

C" , 





D
E

SI
G

N
A

T
E

D
 

U
N

R
E

ST
R

IC
TE

D
 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E  
F

E
E

 (
C

O
P)

-  N
E

T
 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F  

N
H

-  
P

O
ST

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
 EX

PE
N

S
ES

  

PS
M

 A
IR

PO
R

T
-  

LE
A

SE
S,

  F
U

E
L

 FL
O

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S

 A
N

D
 PA

R
K

IN
G

 

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S-
  N

O
N

-G
R

A
N

T
 (S

E
E

P
A

G
E

S
 #

5
-
#

8
)  

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S-
  G

R
A

N
T 
 (

S
E

E
 P

A
G

E
 #

4)
  

SK
Y

H
A

V
E

N
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 H

A
N

G
A

R
 A

N
D

 F
U

E
L

 R
EV

EN
U

ES
 

M
U

N
IC

PA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 FE
E

 (
C

O
P)

  

R
E

V
O

LV
IN

G
 L

IN
E

 O
F

 C
R

E
D

IT
 (

PR
O

V
ID

E
N

T
 B

A
N

K
)  

S
A

L
E

 O
F

 3
0

 N
H

 A
V

E 

G
O

L
F 

C
O

U
R

S
E

 FE
E 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

SS
IO

N
 R

EV
EN

U
ES

 

T
R

A
D

E
PO

R
T

 T
E

N
A

N
TS

 

G
R

A
N
T

 A
W

A
R

D
S

 (S
E

E
 P

A
G

E
 #

9
)  

U
SE

S
 O

F
 FU

N
D

S
 

Ol 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

01 et en 
11 	CO 

et 
Csr 

111 	'et 	ON 
CO 	I-I 	CM 

N N 

0 

 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
E

D
 C

A
S

H
 A

N
D

 D
E

B
T

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S 

ri 

 

W 

• 

0 
U 
Z 6 

m 

to 

▪  

0 

▪ N 
W 0 

eli 

n 
to 

• 

0 

D
IS

C
U

S
S

IO
N

 

  

   

T
O

T
A

L
  F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S  

    

    

       

(s,000 $) 

O Ltl i0 N O LA 0 0 	 01 O CO CO 
N 	"--1 t.0 	oo rs4 Ill 	N 	 01 M m Lf1 tD 	N 
- 401 	 c:3 	 N 	al 	 t.10 01 NI C,1 

N 	 CO 

VI 
0 
0 
0 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 FL

O
W

 

o
f 

C
L

O
SI

N
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E 

 

  

 

0 

  

   



N 
LA 

O 

  

U) LI1 

N 
Ln 
•.--1 

Lo'.0  
N 

fr4 

O 
co 
N 

to 

fig  

CYI 
er:1 

N. 

WI 

OIz 

gl 

gl 

CON.1
v-i  

O 

T-11 
1.4  

N.41 

1•1]
1-1  

o 	Ln 	LO N 0 	CD LA 0 0 	I 
N 	LA 
.̂-1 	N 	CA 1/40 	V' 	I' 	N 	,-, 	N 
crs 	r.. 	,- 	,-1 	 ,--; 

0 	0 LA 	Lr) 
001 000en 	 N
N M N 

N 	Al lf:) 	I" 
LA 	N LO LA 

	LOA N 	1-1 
LA 	N 	

I 

r■i" 

CO 	 1 

LA 	0 

1/40 	N 	T-4 

I 	CD 

-1 

N 	'-Si 

N cr N 

	

ID 	N LA 	Co 	L11 	LA 	, 

	

01 	Vr) 	N 	LA 	1/40 	N 	,N--1 

	

N 	V' 	Cr 	-I 

	

M 	 I 

	

 01 	V" 0 	1.11 	0 0 	LA ,  

,...1 	N 	M 	
CD 

	

0 NI 0 LA 	LA LA N 	0 1/40 	01 	rn 	en 	Tr 	1/410 	N 	I-4 	CD1 

0 	In 	N 	I'''■ 	0in 	CI1/40 	LA 	CO-1 	I 	0 N 	U) 	N 	.. 	0 1-4 	CON 	en 1-1 	I-4 	 0 

0 	1/40 	Irr 	Tr 	N 	-4 

 CM 	0 N LA 	LA 	0 LA 1/40 N 	.A4  
0 a.% 
...-. 

0 

.-Is 

A.1 to N LA 0 LA IA LA 
N N 	r-I 

N 	1-1 

ris  

01 	7-1 	CD 	CO 00 
CA 	CA CJI LA

0 
 1/40 N 

N 01 	1/40 re/ 
‘:1- 	 a) 

Ln o 	Ln • N 	rn 

I 
N 

1-4 	
N 	 01 

LA.1 
LA 

0 LA CI  

0  N ID 0 , 
`cr 
N 

cr LA 	0 CD I 
N 	 1/41) 

- CO 

CD CD CD 0 CO 
	

.7 
N 	 N 	1/40 

	
P1 

N M 	1/41) 

ei 

al 	Cr% 	tN 
- N 	

CPI N. 
N 
rn 

Ln o 

00 	LA 	CD 
M OI 	CO 
N 	0 	CO 

CD 	1/40 	1.0 

'Cr 	CO 	CO 

CD 	0 	CD 	 0 

N 	01 	01 	 /-1 

1-1 	 Cn 
LC) 	CD 	I 	 N 

cr) 
M 

N 
O 

O 1-41 

V°11 1-1 

Tri] 

Ln 
Ln 

%0 

O 
N 

rlrim  
O 

0 
N 

	

0 CD NILALA LCIOU10 	I 	N 

	

LA OI rn 01 'Cr N N .--, LA 	N 
N ..--1 re) 	 N 	N 

	

,-.1- 	rn 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

S
O

U
R

C
E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

G
R

A
N

T  
A

W
A

R
D

S  
(S

EE
 P

AG
E

 #
9)

  

TR
A

D
E

P
O

R
T

 TE
N

A
N

TS
 

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L 
SE

R
V

IC
E

 FE
E 

G
O

LF
 C

O
U

R
SE

 

2
 

P
O

R
TS

M
O

U
TH

 A
IR

PO
 

P
S

M
 P

A
Y

 F
O

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
  

P
S

M
 FL

O
W

A
G

E 
FE

ES
  

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T 

S
A

LE
 O

F 
30

  N
H

 

E
X

TE
R

N
A

L F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
-  

N
E

T 

(I) 
z 
U. 
U. 
O 

O
P

E
R

A
TI

N
G

 EX
PE

N
S

ES
  

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L  
S

E
R

V
IC

E
  F

E
E 

ST
A
T

E
 O

F  
N

H
-  P

O
S

T 
R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T 

 

N
E
T

 C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 FU
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 



P
E

A
S

E
 B

O
U

L
E

V
A

R
D

-A
R

B
O

R
E

T
U

M
 A

V
E 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 A

P
R

O
N

 D
E

S
IG

N
 (

S
B

G
 9

)  

LU 

a) 

LU ce 

w e 
-1 la 

O re 0 re 
I- a. T

W
 A

 S
O

U
T

H
 H

O
L

D
 B

A
Y

 (
A

IP
 6

7)
  

FR
O

N
T

 E
N

D
 S

N
O

W
 C

O
M

PA
C

T
**

 

SN
O

W
 R

E
M

O
V

A
L

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 

S
K

Y
H

A
V

E
N

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

L
O

W
E

R
Y

 LA
N

E
 PA

V
IN

G
 

et 
111 	in 	.4 	ari 	0 0 in 

N go CON n s  
0 	 m 1-1 

(-NJ 
in 
N 

 

  

C> 	LA 	 in 
IN 	cs.1 	 "zr ..-i 	 .-1 

O 	 c) . 	 0 
LA 	 CV 	 N 

LA 

 

 

 

  

rei 

LA 	LA 0
N 	

CA U) 

0 0 0 Ln 

0 	0 	•-i 	 i 
csl 	N N 

0 
N 

0 
N 

O 
N 

In 

O 

(el 
r-I 

in 
r■I 

0) 

N 

un 

N 

O 
N O 

N 
1-1 

c) LA in 
0 
M 

,-t N 
et 

rsi in 

N  N 

 

0 
0 
0 

        

  

0 

      

         

   

ocI 

     

tn 

O 

c4 

O 
O 

ILA 

Ch 
LLI 

z 
LLI 
0. 
X 
LLI 
1 

0.4 
0. 

  

412  

     

  

Lug1:1 1 

UI 

8 1 

vl 

    

  

a. 

     

     

G
R

A
N

T
 R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
 

   

        

       

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

  A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

     

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
 

 

       

          

          

< 
Z 
< 

ZE ZZ 

(7) 174_ (LI o o 
Z Z Z 
0 0- 0 a u0 

z v  z v  cL 
¢z a z 

0 rte) 

LLI Eu 
Z Z < 

IL71 	171 
Z ce Z Z 

11.1 0 L11 0 
HU F- U a te.  



1-1 
0 
co 

M
IC

R
O

SO
FT

 S
O

FT
W

A
R

E
 U

P
G

R
A

D
E

S 
**

 

N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

 P
R

O
JE

C
TS

 

T
E

C
H

N
O

L
O

G
Y

 

G
O

L
F

 C
O

U
R

S
E

  

PA
Y

C
H

EX
 P

A
Y

R
O

LL
 K

I S
O

SK
S  

**
 

D
U

M
P 

T
R

U
C

K
 W

IT
H

 P
L

O
W

 *
* 

G
E

O
 T

H
E

R
M

A
L

 P
U

M
P S

 **
 

C
L

U
B

H
O

U
SE

 K
IT

C
H

E
N

 E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 **
 

C
O

U
R

SE
 E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T
 **

 

M
A

IN
 S

E
R

V
E

R
 R

E
PL

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

SY
ST

EM
 

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

 E
N

H
A

N
C

E
M

EN
TS

  *
* 

Ln 

mlu. 

OIz 

LA 0 0 LA 
et 

in 
m 

in 

1/11.11000 

Ln 

Lt) 
1-1 

O 
Cr" 
r-4 

UI In 

UI 	 Lf) In 
el- in 

In 
et 

IA 0 

O 

zl 

o WI 

0 
M 
et 

ce ce 
6 
O 
u_ 

(.9 



13
9 

IN
SP

E
C

T
IO

N
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

  S
O

FT
W

A
R

E
 **

 

R
E

PE
A

T
E

R
S 

**
 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 E

X
PA

N
SI

O
N

 

P
O

R
T

S
M

O
U

T
H

 A
IR

P
O

R
T

 

FE
N

C
E

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 **
 

A
IR

FI
E

L
D

 S
IG

N
A

G
E-

  L
E

D
  *

* 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
C

A
R

PE
T

IN
G

 **
 

G
E

N
E

RA
T

O
R

 U
PG

R
A

D
E

 **
 

M
O

B
IL

E
 R

A
D

IO
 U

PG
R

A
D

E
 **

 

0 

0 
I- 

0 IA

▪ 	

in IA 0 0 0 CO 	00 
IA 	r 	et 	I-I 	IA 	N 

nt 	 1.0 

LYI 

zl 

"Lf 	
CD 

Ln 

	
LA 	N 

Ln 
CD 	 1-1 	/-1 

Uuji0 

z 

OI 

00 

O 
O 
to 

O 

Ot 

to 

   

P
E

A
S

E
  D

E
V

E
LO

P
M

E
N

T
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

 

   

   



0 0 0 0 
0 0 N. 

N  
N in in 1/1 IA in 
N N N 0 

rl 0 

0 
401. 

O 

zl 

0 

o 
F-1 

 

0 
0 

0 
h• 

0 
0 
1-1 

0 

0 

in 

Ln 

O 
r1 WI 

8 1 z 

gl 

in 

O ri 

Ln 	0, 

I 	 in  

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
ES

S  
C

O
N

TR
O

L
 **

 

D
O

O
R

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L *
* 

C
C

T
V

 SE
C

U
R

IT
Y

 G
A T

E
S

 **
 

S
E

C
U

R
IT

Y
  S

Y
S

TE
M

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
 **

 

F
U

E
L 

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 C
R

E
D

IT
 C

A
R

D
 **

 

JE
T

 A
 F

U
E

L 
T

A
N

K
 **

 

R
E

R
O

O
F

  T
E

R
M

IN
A

L 
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
  *

* 

S
R

E
  D

O
O

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
 **

 

T
A

X
IW

A
Y

 R
E

LA
M

P
IN

G
  *

* 



in 
Ln 

0 
00 

in 
in 
,-♦ 

0 
Tr 
N 

0 
0 
v-i 

0 
N 
reL 

CI 
01 
.-1 
.-1 

i
cn
o 

 .-4 

0 
ko 
al 

0 
,.-L 
co 

0 
In 

O 
In 

P
E

A
S

E
 D

E
V

E
L

O
PM

E
N

T
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 

0 
0 
0 

Eel 

RI  

iyi0 

0 
z 

1 
R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T 
P

R
O

J
EC

TS
 

T
O

T
A

L
 N

O
N

-G
R

A
N

T
 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 IN
FR

A
S T

R
U

C
T

U
R
E

 **
 

P
A

IN
T

 M
A

C
H

IN
E

 **
 

M
O

W
E

R
 R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

 *
* 

C
R

A
C

K
 S

E
A

L
IN

G
 M

A
C

H
IN

E
 **

 

P
R

O
jE

c
rs

  (C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

)  

N
O

N
-G

R
A

N
T

 R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

 

T
R

A
C

K
 S

K
ID

 M
O

W
E

R
 **

 

JO
H

N
 D

E
E

R
E

 T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 R

E
P

LA
C

EM
EN

T
 **

 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 F
L

E
E

T
 R

EP
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T

 **
 

C
O

R
PO

R
A

T
E

 D
R

IV
E

-  
D

R
A

I N
A

G
E

 **
 

ST
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 (
ID

D
E

)  

T
R

A
D

E
P

O
R

T
 

T
A

N
K

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 **

 

03 
o 
O 
,-1 

in 
CN 

in 
N 

in 

(-4 

IN  

N
0 

0 
.-1 

0 

in 
..-1 
ID 

0 
0 
,--1 

0 
O 
—I 

0 

,-i 

0 
0 
IN 

0 

in 

in 
N 
r∎  

0 
ri 

0 
0 
wl 

N N 
r4 

VI 
N 
N 

I/1 
CO 

Ul 
r*. 

CO 
Tr 

111 
r4 

If) 
Ti 

0 
10 

0 
If) 

111 0 	0 	CO
n  .-4 et In

0 
 co 	c 

..4 	 rfi 

00, 	 111, 
Tr 	 ,--1 in 

,-1 



N 

N 

ocl 

u9 1 

ZI 

N 
r4 
N 

cal 
Ca 

N 	(11 

1-41-44 	

ri 	(0 CO 	IS 	‘0 	01 In 0 
N I-1 

CO  l0 	 CO 
1-1 

O 
(v) 

ei 

<z a z 
eL o c?‹. 2 	m 

v,q W t 	th 

	

-J 	 T--i 
Z Ce Z Ce 	< CF.  

	

Z ce 	Z 0- 
ILI 0 W 0 	n t Tr' 
I-  U I- U 	 Ce ..-.• P

O
R

T
S

M
O

U
T

H
 A

IR
P

O
R

T
 

2 
z 
z 
liJ 

CC 

T
W

 A
 SO

U
T

H
 H

O
L

D
 B

A
Y

 

PE
A

S
E

 B
O

U
LE

V
A

R
D

-  
A

R
B

O
R

ET
U

M
 A

V
E 

R
U

N
W

A
Y

-  
A

IR
 N

A
TI

O
N

A
L

 G
U

A
R

D
 

LO
W

E
R

Y
 L

A
N

E 
PA

V
IN

G
 

T
E

R
M

IN
A

L
 A

PR
O

N
 D

E
SI

G
N

 (
S

B
G

-7
)  



M
A

T
U

R
IT

Y
 

WI 

12
-3

1-
20

22
 

et 
X 

UI 
re 

I-1 
U

N 
0 
r4  

u) 
5 c", u s- uj  

> 
N 

U.  0  
rsi 

z 
0 

0 

0 
z 

z 
ce 

  

 

In 	O 	I 	 If 

cp 	 o 
(73 	 c) 
cp 	 c) 
ui. 	 Lri 

z 

1-1 
> Z 0 < 

ca 

F 
X 

0 
CC 
rW 

ILA a 
-J • O 
Z gg 

O 0 > 

N
O

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 

LL 0 
N rni 
X 

2 
X 	re 
2 5 

0 0 

O 
rl 

U 
N 
0 
N 
6 

6 
0 

0
7
-3

1
-
2

0
2

1
 

0 , 
-J z — 	CLI 0 

< '' in uf 
i N I-N  N 'EL'  1:12 Q- + 

0 	:5 Z g N 	I ,...; 
L., . 	0 	,_ ,-,,,, N 
	 z u a- .--1 	p Y (-7 UJ 

1-1-1  Z Lij 	0 ril V) ("■)  
csi 	D ?!, 'ce'  Z 	E .....0  V) 

Ce 	 w D < 
0 a. 0 	Z u go 
I- 	0 •-■ 

T
E

R
M

 D
A

T
E

 

Vl 
0 

ct 

a. IN
T

E
R

E
ST

 R
A

T
E

 



0 
0 

r•I 
▪ N 
ILI 0 

N 
z o 
5 m 4,  
co 0 

CO ref 
CO 
CO I-I 	

N 	CO 1:1 1 
(NI 

rn NLt1 

▪ U 

2Z50 
w wH -
u 

RMZrow 

12C LIw5 
P 0-rig U rIZ 

 nQOZO 
ZO 

Z Oc.-F uj 
 0 ceLD.cz= 

<0,zenz 
,•001-1ZE 

Q U I6 3ELI Z 
1-14-LuZ0 
niul0Wou 

 p u )- 

E
* 10GeOZ 

r2G1 ?2I FC reP 
 Zqi•-•o> 

0 urs c:,•0 	u  
Lad W N 1L 

)- 
LLI 	 0 
ce u Ozza. 
DzZDOZ 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
D

  U
N

R
E

ST
R

IC
T

E
D

  C
A

SH
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S 

§ 

(s,00 o T
O

T
A

L
  F

U
N

D
  B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S  

U
N

R
E

S
T

R
IC

T
E

D
 F

U
N

D
S  

D
E

SI
G

N
A

T
E

D
  F

U
N

D
S

  

R
E

ST
R

IC
T

E
D

  F
U

N
D

S:
  

H
A

R
B

O
R

  D
R

E
D

G
IN

G
  

lf) LA 00 
CsJ 

CNI 

R
EV

O
L V

IN
G

 LO
A

N
 FU

N
D

 

FO
R

E
IG

N
 T

R
A

D
E

 Z
O

N
E

 

N 

0 vim] 

CO 
C7 
CA 
IN 

N 
CA 
LA 

O 
in 
Cr 

N 
t.0 

4-1 
N 00 

T-I 

l0 CO 0 CO IN 
01 V) CO IN LA 
•-1 M 	 00 

rl 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
 

FU
EL

 S
A

LE
S  

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

EN
TA

L
S 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

SS
IO

N
S 

R
EG

IS
T

R
A

T
IO

N
S

 / 
 W

H
A

R
FA

G
E 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 F
E

E
S 

PA
R

K
IN

G
 F

E
E

S 

U
S

E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
  

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
A

N
D

 B
E

N
E

FI
T

S 

FU
E

L
 P

R
O

C
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 

O
PE

R
A

T
IN

G
  E

X
PE

N
SE

S 

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

  

ST
A

T
E

 O
F 

N
H

-  
P

O
S
T

 R
E

T
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

0 
0 
0 



0 VD VD N 141 0 0 CO N 
CO CA 0 0 M N CO N 
• 1-1 	1-1 	1-1 	 CO CO

O  

CO 

N 
In 

N rfNi 

   

 

I 	 •11- 

O 
N 

O 641 

1 

to 

00 	•L:1-  
N 

Cri 
N 

N 

N 

C171 

.C51 
rel 
1-1 

CO 
N 

O rn 
IA 

  

01 
ri 

 

  

CO In 
N N 

ri 

1-4 

▪ N 
O M 

0 

1-1 

0 
0 
0 
429- 

In 
N 

0 

N M 

zl 

0. 

0 
N 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

PR
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

F
U

E
L

 PR
O

C
U

R
EM

E
N

T
 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
 A

N
D

  F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 

C
A

PI
T

A
L

 E
X

P
EN

D
IT

U
R

E
S

 A
N

D
 O

T
H

E
R

 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 / 
 W

H
A

R
FA

G
E

 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

ST
A

T
E

 O
F 

N
H
-
 P

O
S

T
 R

E
T

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 

M
O

O
R

IN
G

 FE
E

S 

FU
E

L
 S

A
L

E
S  

PA
R

K
IN

G
 F

E
E

S 

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
 R

E
N

T
A

L
S 

A
N

D
 C

O
N

C
E

S
S

IO
N

S
 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

N 
1-1 

M 
N 
1.o 

N 0 	N N 
CO M 	 N 
▪ N d 	IA N 

0) 	Cr 0 Lc) O oo 
In OD 

M 
N 1-1

N 	

• 

0 CO 

	

N 	 7-1 ro 

N 

co Ln co 
vr 

▪ CO 

O N 
In 

co 	

- 

csi 
Ln 

	
N co 

Cn 	 0 0 
LC) 	01 	 Nr.  

,

▪  

-1 

In 0 CM 
'Cr 

▪ 	

N 	N (D1 01 

N 	CT) 	 in 
 Ln 	 N 
0 

In 
-4 

0 0 N 

•Ar 0 0 0 0 
1-1 (,) 1-1 

•Li-  0 0 0 
rn 

VD 0 0 V) 1 

1-1 1-1 

OD 0 0 0 
1-1 1-1 

/-1 O l.CD 0 0 
re) 1-1 3-1 1-1 ri 

7-1 Ln 	c) 
O 	1/410 N 

0 al 	N 0 

O 

O 

U ) 

N 

II) N 
N CO 



<al 

  

N 	 N 

 

   

   

CO 
*-4 

 In 

N 
1-1 

In  

Tri 

00 

00 

00 

N 

. co 

N 

N 0 
in 

N 
If) 

N 

co 

co 

N 

, 

C3 
T-I 

00 

N N 

co 00 N 

oo N 0 N 
I-I 

o 	r...J in 	in Ri 
cr 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
  O

F
  F

U
N

D
S

  

PI
E

R
 U

SA
G

E
 F

E
E

S 

R
E

G
IS

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S 

FU
EL

 F
LO

W
A

G
E

 F
E

E
S  

G
R

A
N

T
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
  

W
E

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S
  

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 SE

R
V

IC
E

S 
A

N
D

 B
E

N
E

FI
T

S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S  
A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S  

G
EN

ER
A

L 
A

N
D

  A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 SE
R

V
IC

ES
 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

- 

N
E

T 
C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

1 
	

1 



.11 ,-, 

WIci 

Z 1 

g 

im 
im 
cr) 

n 
1 

1-■ 
0 
01 

N 
 gl 

N 
N 
N 

it) 
N 

ILI 
N 

In er 
N 

0 

0 
1—I 

O 
1-1 

O 
1-1 

0 

O 
rl 

N-I 

N 

,-4 

,--1 

N 

,—i 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

N 

M 

cr 
1-1 

01 
1-1 

M 
1-1 

V' 

DI 
3—I 

Lil 
N. 

4 

NI 	 N 

N 

N 	 N 	 Tr 

N 	 N 

N 	 N 

4 
ge.1 	1.0 

N 

'I E 

N 
mt 
N 

0 N N 1" 
1-4 	 1-1 

  

     

     

tr) 
021 	in 
I1 
	N 

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

L
O

A
N

 R
E

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

S 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
-L

O
A

N
S 

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 IN

C
O

M
E

-  
F

U
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E 

U
S

E
 O

F 
FU

N
D

S
  

N
E

W
 L

O
A

N
S

 PR
O

J
E

C
T

E
D

 

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

N
D

 A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

C
L

O
S

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

I 



1 

  

IN 
N N 

   

   

, i 

  

N 	 N 

 

    

    

1 

1 

IN 	 IN 

LA, 
Ln 

 

co 

     

=I 

 

IN N 

 

V4 

     

       

       

       

O
P

E
N

IN
G

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

    

PE
R

SO
N

N
E

L
  S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

A
N

D
 B

E
N

E
FI

T
S 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

S 
 A

N
D

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S 

G
EN

ER
A

L 
A

N
D

  A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
 

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

A
L 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
  

 

N
E

T
 C

A
S

H
 F

L
O

W
 

C
L

O
S
IN

G
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E 

SO
U

R
C

E
S

 O
F

 F
U

N
D

S 
 

FA
C

I L
IT

Y
  R

E
N

TA
LS

 

   

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

U
S

E
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 

A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

 

           

0 
	

N 
	

N 

1 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 Internaiona 

	 :1=- £H 0:80 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby 

authorizes the Executive Director to execute any and all necessary documents 

with respect to establishing a PDA business account at the Service Credit 

Union ("SCU"), designate authorized signatories on the account, and adopt 

any required Service Credit Union account resolutions. The following 

appointed official and PDA employees are authorized to endorse all checks, 

drafts, depository agreements, and/or other related bank documents in 

accordance with the powers so authorized and granted: 

Thomas G. Ferrini 	Treasurer 

Paul E. Brean 	Executive Director 

Anthony I. Blenkinsop Deputy Director / General Counsel 

Maria Stowell 	Manager of Engineering 

The authority hereby conferred upon the above named Agents shall be and 

remain in full force and effect until written notice of the revocation is 

presented. 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 Banking Resolution 8-19-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

WWW.p 	s e ev.ora 



00-7- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Date: August 9, 2021 

° To: Paul Brean, Executive Director 44al 

From: Suzy Anzalone, Director of Finance 

Subject: Cash Management — Pease Golf Course 

Pease Golf Course management has been using Cambridge Trust for their daily cash deposits 

until mid-July when the Tradeport branch closed. We currently have an account at Provident 

Bank for golf course credit card deposits, so switching to this bank seemed like a logical move. 

However, the closest branch is on Maplewood Ave in downtown Portsmouth. This branch does 

not have a drive through and metered parking is required. Finding parking spots downtown can 

be difficult, especially during the summer months. 

In order to minimize travel time and metered parking costs, I recommend that we open a 

business account at Service Credit Union, which has a branch at the Tradeport. I understand 

they have partnered with us in the past so this would not only be a convenient transition, but 

would be supportive of a business at the Tradeport. I have spoken with their branch manager, 

Amber Lang, and have the necessary paperwork to open the account. 

I ask that we seek approval at the August, 2021 Pease Development Authority Board of 

Director's meeting to open a business account, designate authorized signatories on the 

account, as well as request an adoption by the Board of any required Service Credit Union 

account resolutions. 

As always, please let me know if you have any questions or need supplemental information. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 60  3.4  3 3.6 088 	Fax 60 3.4 2 7.0  4  3 3 	www.peasedev.org  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
05 International Driv Port.sii:ou 	03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 
FROM: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 
RE: 	Licenses / ROEs / Easements / Rights of Way 
DATE: 	August 9, 2021 
****************************************************************************** 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and Execution of 
License Agreements," PDA entered into the following Right-of-Entry: 

1. Name: 	Veterans Count Event 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	120 Aviation Avenue & 2 Parking lots located at Aviation Avenue & 

Hampton Street 
Purpose: 	Hosting of "On the Tarmac" fundraising event and to utilize the parking 

lots for participant vehicle parking 
Term: 	September 9, 2021 through September 11, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

2. Name: 	DGA Productions & MLB Network 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM) 
Purpose: 	Commercial Shoot 
Term: 	June 21, 2021 through June 23, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

3. Name: 	US Navy 
License: 	Right-of-Entry 
Location: 	Use of North Apron 
Purpose: 	Emergency Vehicle Operating Classes (EVOC) 
Term: 	July 2, 2021 through December 31, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

www.r.;easedev.org  

-co 



4. 	Name: 
License: 
Location: 
Purpose: 

Term:  

Pease Greeters 
Right-of-Entry 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM") 
Enter into certain areas of the terminal building for the purpose of setting 
up and conducting troop flight welcome activities 
July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

5. 	Name: 
License: 
Location: 
Purpose: 
Term: 

PROCON LLC 
Right-of-Entry 
North Apron 
Site Inspection Purposes 
Through December 31, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

6. 	Name: 
License: 
Location: 
Purpose: 
Term: 

PROCON LLC 
Right-of-Entry 
14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227) 
Site Inspection Purposes 
Through December 31, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

7. 	Name: 
License: 
Location: 
Purpose: 
Term: 

Herb Gillen Airshows, LLC 
Right-of-Entry 
South Terminal Overflow Apron 
Air Show Parking 
September 10, 2021 Through September 13, 2021 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

8. 	Name: 
License: 
Location: 
Purpose: 

Term:  

Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. 
Right-of-Entry 
35 Airline Avenue 
Utilizing 3,200 square feet within the Premises at its sole risk, for storage 
of well testing equipment and associated materials 
August 4, 2021 Through January 31, 2022 

Director Fournier was consulted and granted his consent. 

P:\BOARDMTG\2021\License  Report 8-19-2021.docx 



Om-- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

August 10, 2021 

Joseph T. Emmons, Chief Development Officer 
Easter Seals — NH 
555 Auburn Street 
Manchester, NH 03101 

Re: 	Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area located at Intersection of Aviation Avenue 
and Hampton Street and Use of Corporate Apron at 120 Aviation Avenue for the 
"On the Tarmac" Fundraising Event, September 9, 2021 — September 11, 2021 

Dear Mr. Emmons: 

This letter will authorize Veterans Count, Seacoast Chapter, a program of Easter Seals New 
Hampshire, a New Hampshire non-profit corporation ("Veterans Count"), to utilize the Corporate Apron at 
120 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM"), as shown on the attached 
Exhibit A  (the "Premises"), for the purposes of hosting the "On the Tarmac" fundraising event, including 
setup and breakdown of the event. Veterans Count is also authorized to utilize two parking lots located at 
the intersection of Aviation Avenue and Hampton Street for the purpose of vehicle parking for the On the 
Tarmac event participant vehicles, as shown on the attached Exhibit B,  (the "Event Parking"), and is 
authorized to permit pedestrian access between the Event Parking and the Premises in locations approved 
by the PDA (the "Pedestrian Access"). The permitted uses of these areas will be between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on September 9 th, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 1:00 a.m. on September 11 th, and 
between the hours of 9:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on September 11 th . The privileges granted under this Right of 
Entry will expire at the conclusion of use or 7:00 p.m. on September 11, 2021, unless otherwise extended 
by written agreement signed by Veterans Count and the Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). This 
authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. Veterans Count's agreement that all On the Tarmac event planning shall be coordinated 
with PDA Airport Operations Staff, and that all PDA requirements concerning event and Airport security 
shall be followed/implemented. 

2. Veterans Count's agreement herein that any use of the Premises, Event Parking, and 
Pedestrian Access is at its sole risk and that its signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full 
responsibility for any and all risk of loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason 
of or incident to its entry or the entry by any of its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees upon the 
Premises, Event Parking, or Pedestrian Access, as well as any access roads and/or the exercise of any of 
the authorities granted herein. Veterans Count expressly waives all claims against the Pease Development 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone=: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	w•w.peasedev.org  



Page Two 
August 10, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area located at Intersection of Aviation Avenue and 

Hampton Street and Use of Corporate Apron at 120 Aviation Avenue for the "On the 
Tarmac" Fundraising Event, September 9, 2021 — September 11, 2021 

Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of 
the use of the Premises, Event Parking, or Pedestrian Access, or the conduct of activities or the 
performance of responsibilities under this authorization by Veterans Count employees, agents, patrons, or 
invitees. Veterans Count further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the Pease 
Development Authority, its officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, 
claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorney's fees arising out of or related to the 
use of the Premises, Event Parking, or Pedestrian Access, or any activities conducted or undertaken in 
connection with or pursuant to this authorization by Veterans Count, and its employees, agents, patrons, 
or invitees. 

3. Veterans Count understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only 
temporary use of the Premises, Event Parking, and Pedestrian Access; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive 
basis; and (c) may be revoked at will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason 
for any such revocation or termination. The use of the Premises, Event Parking, and Pedestrian Access 
shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance, and shall not cause disruption to other 
Airport activities. 

4. Veterans Count understands that all employees, agents, contractors and/or volunteers are 
subject to a TSA background check prior to the event. Veterans Count shall provide PDA will a complete 
application for every individual who will require airfield access seven (7) days prior to the first day of the 
event. 

5. Veterans Count and, any agent of Veterans Count utilizing the Premises, Event Parking, 
and Pedestrian Access for the On the Tarmac event, providing to the PDA satisfactory evidence of 
comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
per occurrence, naming the Pease Development Authority as an additional insured, and evidence of 
workers compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

The comprehensive general liability policy issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision that 
no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of Veterans Count which would otherwise result in 
forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the 
insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such 
policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to 
Pease Development Authority; (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against 
Pease Development Authority; and (iv) a provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be 
carried shall be primary and non-contributing with respect to any insurance carried by PDA. 

6. Veterans Count's agreement that vehicles and other equipment are not left on the Premises 
or Event Parking in excess of the term limits of this Right of Entry and to assume full responsibility for 
the prompt removal of all vehicle(s) and equipment on the Premises or Event Parking by the end of the 
term of this Right of Entry. 



Page Three 
August 10, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area located at Intersection of Aviation Avenue and 

Hampton Street and Use of Corporate Apron at 120 Aviation Avenue for the "On the 
Tarmac" Fundraising Event, September 9, 2021 — September 11, 2021 

7. Veterans Count's agreement that they will provide volunteers to assist guests in parking 
vehicles, and ensure that all vehicles be parked a minimum of 10 feet away from the Airport perimeter 
fence. 

8. Veterans Count's agreement that vehicle parking is only allowed in the area depicted in 
Exhibit B.  PDA has the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any portion of the Event 
Parking used for vehicle parking as a priority for PDA operations. 

9. Veterans Count's agreement to obtain all permits and/or approvals necessary for the event 
and any work referenced herein. All work referenced herein shall be done accordance with the plans 
submitted to and approved by the PDA. 

10. Veterans Count's agreement that PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or 
injuries to persons which may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of 
the Premises, Event Parking, or Pedestrian Access, or the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to 
the property or injuries to the person of Veterans Count's patrons, officers, agents, servants or employees, 
or others who may be on the Premises, Event Parking, or Pedestrian Access at its invitation. 

11. Veterans Count's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a 
grant of an exclusive interest in the Premises, Event Parking or Pedestrian Access, an option to lease the 
Premises, Event Parking, or Pedestrian Access, or an offer to lease the Premises, Event Parking, or 
Pedestrian Access. 

Please indicate by your signature below Veterans Count's consent and agreement to the terms and 
conditions of this Right of Entry and return the same to me with evidence of insurance. 

Very truly yours, 

Paul E. Brean, 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	 day of 	 , 2021 

Easter Seals - NH 

By: 
Print Name: 	  
Its Duly Authorized: 	  

P:\LICENSES\AirShow\2021\Veterans  Count ROE (Parking Apron).docx 



E
C

E
1 —

 10
:1

4a
m

  

P I 1:1 INCIO NI7.111 	II AC; I &SUNG 

1 43.0 0.3a.  (-3,286 - 	1-11.114:9%%9 2103SE. Kb 1213W...4 13 

2 43.073502013 -7C. 9375.41 2103 41. 01 12137g8.34 

3 43.07414309 -71180777522 21x1121.79 12137:M11 

• 3.07370611 -70.80832 210261. 69 1213657.83 

/13.07392878 -70. 8 0826K7 210312.32 1213603.09 

6 13.O73.3 282 -:0'.80813921 210253.03 1213613.57 

"13.07353.587 -70. 8081770, 210199.55 1213553.83 

4107372281 701. 80674110 210265. 96 1213452.59 
41.07.14,:71h 70. XI I 5 S.V.V.? 710134. 3 

13 41.07.3447f17 710.SflEfir 7101fi5.Rfi 1711'w:17.14 

1 1 43.4377,-X309; -70. XI 177741 t? 70c.1.17(:.7ri 171:17176.73 

12 43.0 fif,..1aSS - 	MU /252/9 21012E1.119 121:i8K.. /2 

4i..0/32 /Y4 - /0.1ai nu-- /4 2.101U i. 2H 121321';.4.S1 

14 43.07333195 -70.8069974) 210128..31 1213952..62 

15 • 3.0733E309 -70.80720701 210135.73 12136113.87 na
m

ae  
H:  

\0
52

80
0 I

X:
14

10
19

1\
e

nh
M

e\
r

—
W

10
—

PC
IN

TS
—

PS
M

—
GE

N—
RA

M
P,

dw
9  

at 
WO IC& 48' 2b.a/' 

1ci070* 42' 27.54" 

WO 70.  42' 27:YP 

W070-  12' 29.1'.1" 

W071Ce 13' 29.77" 

Vtla.70' 18' 29.30" 

W070' 413' 31.47' 

'vV,s1710.  4E' 11 I. FO" 

ki0.7170.  AR' 11.77" 

VR.A:1 1(?" eVi' 2S .Y4' ' 	1, 0Li.e UL' 23. 19 .  

W070.  15' 25.3' 	Nair 0e.' 24.00* 

W071'," 18' 25.9.3" 	N013-  0s' 21.07* 

yV0 -70' 13' 30.52" 

Tar 4S.  ;AL " 

fC?' III 2b.L.1" 

UL' 26.2 

Naar 01. 26.11' 

NO4V 04.' 26:92' 

NO13" 	25.31' 

NO1 3" Ot 26.11" 

NO1 0 ," 25.l1. 

N0'1 3" 01 ' 21.73' 

N043" 04' 25.40* 
N041- 

N043-  Ile) 74.4 I 

NUL4.3".  U'- 24.01 

Page Four 
August 10, 2021 
Re: 	Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area located at Intersection of Aviation Avenue and 

Hampton Street and Use of Corporate Apron at 120 Aviation Avenue for the "On the 
Tarmac" Fundraising Event, September 9, 2021 - September 11, 2021 

EXHIBIT "A" 



Exhibit B - Event Parking 

Page Five 
August 10, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Use of Parking Area located at Intersection of Aviation Avenue and 

Hampton Street and Use of Corporate Apron at 120 Aviation Avenue for the "On the 
Tarmac" Fundraising Event, September 9, 2021 — September 11, 2021 

EXHIBIT "B" 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY S5 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE. PORTSMOUTH, NH 031101 

 



)4kb_ 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAt 

OEVELOYMt N I 

AUTHORITY 

June 15. 2021 

Via Email: criktburbank(dzmail.com  
Eric Burbank. Producer 

DGA Productions 
50 Ilunt Street 

Watertown., MA 02472 

Re: Right of Entry for Use of Filming Commercial Footage in the 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease. Portsmouth, Nil 

Dear Mr. Burbank: 

This Right of Entry will authorize DGA Productions ("DOA"). 50 Hunt Street. Watertown. 

MA. and'or its agents or employees to enter upon certain property within the Airport Terminal 

Building at the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease. in Portsmouth. New Hampshire (the 
"Premises"). only where authorized and escorted by Pease Development Authority Airport staff 

for the purpose of videotaping and audio recording certain scenes in connection with a commercial 
advertisement tentatively titled "Major League BaseballThysol Commercial" (the "Program"). at 

its sole risk, and for no other use without the express written consent of the Pease Development 
Authority ("FDA"). This Right of Entry shall be valid from 8:00 a.m. on June 21. 2021 through 

8:00 p.m. on June 23. 2021. The use and occupation of the Premises shall he: (a) without cost or 
expense to the PDA: (h) subject to the veneral supervision and approval of the PDA: (c) subject to 

such rules and regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time: and (d) permitted only to 

the extent it does not interfere with Airport operations. 

I. 	DGA understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only 

temporary use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis: and (c) may he revoked at 

w ill by the PDA or terminated at will. and that RDA need not state a reason for any such revocation 
or termination. The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient. shall not constitute a 

nuisance, and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities. 

2 	1.)6A •s agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 

signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss 
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the 

entry by any of its employees. agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any 

TAKING YOU THERE 



June 15, 2021 
paL, c, -1 0  

Re: 	Right of Entry for Use of Filming Commercial Footage in the 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, Nil 

of the authorities granted herein. DGA expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, 
damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of DGA's use of the 
Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. 
DGA further agrees to indemnify. save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its officers, board 
members. agents and employees. from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions. liabilities, 
judgements, costs and attorney's fees arising out of DGA's use of the Premises or any activities 
conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

3. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may 
arise from or he attributable or incident to the condition or state of repair of the Premises. or the use 
and occupation thereof. or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of DGA's officers, 
agents. servants or employees. or others who may be on the Premises at their invitation or the 
invitation of any one of them. 

4. DGA. and any agent or contractor of DGA. shall provide PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars 
(S2,000.000). naming the PDA as additional insured. DGA and any agent or contractor of DGA shall 
provide PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile liability insurance coveraee in the amount of 
51,000,000.00. and workers' compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (0 a pros ision that 
no act or omission of any employee. officer or agent of DGA ► hich would otherwise result in 
forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the 
insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained: (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such 
policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to 
PDA: (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the PDA: and (iv) a 
provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-
contributing with respect to anti insurance carried by PDA. 

5. DGA understands and acknowledges that it shall coordinate all activities on the 
Premises pursuant to this Right of Entry w ith the PDA Airport Nianagement Department for its use 
of and access to the Premises to ensure not to impact airport terminal flight activity. Furthermore. 
DGA understands and acknoNN ledges that it andsor its agents may need to undergo security checks in 
order to access some or all areas of the Premises required for activities undertaken pursuant to the 
Right of Entry. and that it shall abide by all requests of the PDA Airport Management Department 
coneemint. its use oldie Premises. 

DGA agrees to provide PDA payment in the amount of Sl.000.00 per day (minimum charge 
regardless of filming hours). for one (I) day of filming. as 'sell as S35,00 per hour for the necessary 
escorting by an Airport Operations Specialist assigned to the task. The S1.000.00 per diem charge 



June 15, 2021 

PagelThree 

Re: 	Right of Entry for Use of Filming Commercial Footage in the 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

shall be due and payable in advance. The hourly charge shall be billed at the conclusion of filming 
and be due and payable NV ith in thirty (30) days. 

6. 	DGA's agreement herein that this Right of Entry does not constitute a grant of an 
exclusive interest in the Premises. an option to lease the Premises, or an offer to lease the Premises. 

7.. 	DGA will at all times during the existence of this Right of Entry. promptly observe 

and comply. at its sole cost and expense. with the provisions of all applicable federal. state and local 

laws, rules, regulations and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the use of the 

Airport facility. 

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the 

consent of the DGA to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me, along with the 
required insurance certificate and per diem payment. before any work under this Right of Entry may 

begin. 

erely. 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this _ day o 

 

t 	2021 

 

   

DGA Productions 
pv, 
L i 

Duly Authorized 	U 
Printed Name:  C 	ti\Iz> '1AC714  

Title:  I ie---aizmP-tr--  

cc: 	Anthony 1. Blenkinsop. Deputy Director General Counsel 

Andrew Pomeroy. Manager, Aviation Planning & Regulatory .  Compliance 

Chasen Congre. es. Manager of Airport Administration 



PI-10560 
Navy Contract No. N40085-2 I -RP-00076 

RIGHT- OF -ENTRY AGREEMENT 

"Su..\ 	THIS RIGHT-OF-ENTRY AGREEMENT is made and entered into this  2*  day of 
021, by and between Pease Development Authority, hereinafter called "PDA", and the 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the Naval Facilities Engineering 
Command Mid-Atlantic, hereinafter called the NAVY, upon the following terms and conditions: 

1. PDA hereby grants to the NAVY the non-exclusive right to enter upon the lands owned by 
PDA at the North Apron of the Pease International Tradeport, more specifically shown on the 
drawing attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit "A," hereinafter described as 
"PREMISES," and consents to officers, employees, and authorized representatives (including 
contractors) of the NAVY entering upon and having periodic and pre-approved access to and 
across said property through December 31, 2021, in order to conduct Emergency Vehicle 
Operating Classes (EVOC) and no other use. 

2. The PREMISES is part of the Airport Security Identification Display Area ("SIDA"). The 
NAVY will be required to obtain security badges and qualify as escorts in order for 
representative, employees and agents to gain access to and remain on the PREMISES. While in 
SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements of the Pease International Airport Security 
Program must be met. 

3. All costs and expenses incurred by the NAVY in connection with its entry upon the 
PREMISES shall be borne by the NAVY, with no cost or expense to PDA. 

4. The NAVY covenants and agrees that at no time during the use of the PREMISES shall any 
training be performed within 200 feet of the area utilized by the National Guard. 

4. Other than provided herein, it is understood and agreed that the NAVY does not acquire title 
to or any other interest in the property of PDA by this grant of permission and consent to enter 
the PREMISES during the term of this right-of-entry or any renewal thereof. 

5. PDA does not warrant the condition of the PREMISES permitted hereunder and the NAVY 
accepts that use of PREMISES is as-is, where-is and this is further documented and represented 
in the Joint Inventory Inspection Report (JIIR) attached hereto and made part hereof as Exhibit 
“ B ” .  

6. The liability of the Government, if any, for damage to property or for death or injury to any 
person that may arise out of, or related to any action taken pursuant to this contract shall be 
determined solely in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 
section 2671, et seq. 

7. Any placement of the equipment or property placed on the PREMISES is subject to the 
approval of PDA, all equipment and other property taken upon or placed upon the PREMISES 

1 



by the NAVY shall remain the property of the NAVY and shall be removed by the NAVY upon 
the expiration of this right-of-entry. 

8. The rights granted herein shall be in effect from the date of execution of this Agreement 
through December 31, 2021, except that all rights granted herein shall automatically terminate 
upon the conveyance or transfer of title to the PREMISES to any party not a part hereof. Upon 
the termination or expiration of this Agreement, the NAVY will remove all its personal property 
from the PREMISES and repair any damages resulting from its activities conducted on the 
PREMISES. 

9. This written permission is given by the undersigned voluntarily without coercion and without 
promises of any kind not provided for herein. 

10. In consideration of mutual aid response, PDA is providing this right of entry for continued 
EVOC training of emergency forces 

11. The NAVY shall comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws, regulations and 
ordinances, including, but not limited to, the handling, storage, treatment, transportation and 
disposal of hazardous substances. 

11. The NAVY shall, at no expense to PDA, provide safety and security measures in connection 
with its use of this right-of-entry that are adequate to protect the safety of all users of the subject 
property or any adjacent property. 

12. The NAVY will notify PDA at least twenty-four (24) hours before entry is made on the 
PREMISES. Authorization shall be granted on a "first come, first serve" basis. Said notice may 
be provided either in writing by certified mail, email or by telephone to PDA as follows: 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease 
Andrew Pomeroy 
36 Airline Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
(603) 766-9231 
a.bomeroy(Zapeasedev.org  

13. PDA reserves the right to revoke or terminate this right of entry at will upon written notice 
to the NAVY. Such written notice shall be provided to the NAVY by certified mail at the 
following address or via email at: 

Attn: Code REBL-DL 
Commanding Officer 
Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Mid — Atlantic 
9324 Virginia Ave. 
Norfolk, Virginia 23511 
deborah.lord@navy.rnil 

2 



Local NAVY Representative: 

Ms. Jackie Johnston 
Tel: (207) 438-4602 
Jackieljohnston@navy.mil  

14. Nothing in this Permit is intended or should be interpreted to require any obligation or 
expenditure of funds in violation of the Anti-Deficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. § 1341. 

15. Delay in the enforcement of any right hereunder by a party shall not result in a waiver of that 
right and any waiver by a party hereunder shall require a written instrument, signed by the party 
to be bound, expressly acknowledging that waiver. The provisions of this right-of-entry may not 
be amended or altered except by a written instrument fully executed by each of the parties 
hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Right-of-Entry 
Agreement as of the date written above. 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 	UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

 

By: 

 

 

  

Date: 

Paul Brean 
PDA Executive Director 

William S. Whitby 
Real Estate Contracting Officer 
NAVFAC Mid-Atlantic 
By direction 

Date: 

3 





JOINT INSPECTION AND INVENTORY REPORT 

Lease Number: N40085-20-RP-00122 

Address of Premises: 
Pease International Tradeport 

Date of Report: 
3/18/21 

Anticipated Date of Possession: 	April 2021 

Description of Premises: 
Use of the North Apron of the Pease International Tradeport 

(approximately +/- 25 acres). 

CONDITION OF LEASED PREMISES 

THE GENERAL CONDITION AND STATE OF REPAIR OF THE DESCRIBED PREMISES SHOULD 
BE NOTED BELOW. IN THE FIRST COLUMN, PROVIDE A DESCRIPTION OF THE ITEM (E.G. 
ENTRY DOOR, CEILING TILE, BATHROOM SINK). IN THE SECOND COLUMN, PUT THE 
APPLICABLE CODE FROM THE LIST BELOW. IN THE THIRD COLUMN, PROVIDE A BRIEF 
DESCRIPTION OF THE CONDITION OF THE ITEM. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, FACILITIES ARE DEEMED TO BE FREE OF DEFECTS OR HAVE 
NO PROBLEMS OF SIGNIFICANCE TO REPORT. 

A. Item contains chips, cracks, holes, stains, wear and tear, water damage, or other 
defects that are noted in the remarks section that require immediate repair by the 
Lessor prior to occupancy. 

B. Item fails to function properly and requires the immediate repair by the Lessor 
prior to occupancy. 

C. Item contains chips, cracks, holes, stains, wear and tear, water damage, or other 
defects that are noted in the remarks section that do not require immediate repair 
by the Lessor, but which must be repaired within 60 days of occupancy. 

D. Item fails to function properly and requires repair by the Lessor within 60 days of 
occupancy. 

E. Item contains chips, cracks, holes, stains, wear and tear, water damage, or other 
defects that are noted in the remarks section that do not require repair by the 
Lessor, but are noted by this report as existing conditions that do not require 
restoration by the Tenant at the end of tenancy. 

F. Item fails to function properly but does not require repair by the Lessor, but is 
noted by this report as an existing condition that does not require restoration by 
the Tenant at the end of tenancy. 

Exhibit "B" 



**Attach photos of facility and of items listed below that contain defects. 

Item Condition Code Remarks 

Pavement E Pavement has visible cracks/holes that do not require 
repair by Lessor and do not require restoration by 
Tenant at end of tenancy. Functions properly. 

Fencing - No visible defects. Functions properly. 

Exhibit "B" 



NAVE 

SIGNATURES. The parties signatures below document the condition of the premises described 
in Exhibit A. 

LICENSEE 

7Z  
Date 

Printed Name 

US NAVY REPRESENTATIVE 

  

3/22/2021 

   

  

Date 

Megan Sawyer 

  

Printed Name 

   

Exhibit "B" 



.J1. 









PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

June 29, 2021 

VIA E-Mail: PGChaira,valloo.com  
Frank Lasorsa, Chairman 
The Pease Greeters Fund, Inc. 
PO Box 1644 
Portsmouth, NH 03802-1644 

Re: 	Right of Entry — Pease Greeters Access to Portsmouth International Airport 
Terminal 

Dear Mr. Lasorsa: 

This Right of Entry will authorize The Pease Greeters Fund, Inc., ("Pease Greeters") a New 
Hampshire non-profit corporation, it's agents and/or volunteers to enter into certain areas of the 
terminal building at Portsmouth International Airport at Pease ("PSM"), Portsmouth, New 
Hampshire (the "Premises") as shown on Exhibit "A"  for the purpose of setting up and conducting 
troop flight welcome activities, at its sole risk, and for no other use without the express written 
consent of the Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). This Right of Entry shall commence on 
July 1, 2021 and terminate on December 31, 2021. 

The use, occupation and maintenance of the Premises shall be: (a) without cost or expense 
to the PDA; (b) subject to the general supervision and approval of the PDA; (c) subject to such 
rules and regulations as the PDA may prescribe from time to time; and (d) permitted to the extent 
activities do not compromise the safety or security of the airport terminal building. 

Pease Greeters understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) is granted on a 
non-exclusive basis; and (b) may be revoked at will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA 
need not state a reason for any such revocation or termination. The use of the Premises shall be 
orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance, and shall not cause disruption to other airport 
activities. 

Pease Greeters understands that some access areas as shown in Exhibit "A" are part of the 
Airport Security Identification Area ("SIDA"), as such the Pease Greeters, its agents and/or 
volunteers shall be required to apply to PDA for all SIDA and/or Public Area Badges (including 
payment of associated application fees) and to attend all required training. All SIDA badge 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  



Frank Lasorsa 
Pease Greeters 
June 29, 2021 
Page 2 

applications will be processed by the Pease Greeters Authorized Signatory. Such badges shall be 
issued in PDA's sole discretion. If a SIDA Badge is lost or stolen, Pease Greeters shall be 
responsible for a lost badge fee of $60.00 and a replacement fee of $60.00. While in the SIDA, 
escort procedures per the requirements of the Portsmouth International Airport Security Program 
must be met. PDA may revoke any such badges at any time in its sole discretion. All badges shall 
be returned to the PDA upon the termination of this Right of Entry. 

All Pease Greeters activity within the Airport terminal shall be coordinated with PSM 
operations staff. Specifically, Pease Greeters activity within the airport terminal will be managed 
by weekly coordination, in person meetings, with Community Liaison Airport Operations 
Specialist, Sandra McDonough, or her designee. Pease Greeters activity will be managed in 
coordination with the daily flight activity at the Airport. Pease Greeters will be provided 
designated areas to perform greets on a daily basis, based on the communications in a weekly 
coordination meeting. Pease Greeters are responsible to provide a point of contact for each flight 
to the on duty Airport Operations Agent, as well as a signed roster of who is in attendance for each 
greet. 

Pease Greeters activity is limited to volunteer customer service and provides no business 
or operational support to aviation activities. Badged Pease Greeter Volunteers will not have direct 
access to SIDA portals or SIDA escorting privileges. Any large scale Pease Greeters event 
expected to go beyond its badged population, will require a special event permit; the application 
for which must be made at least 14 days prior to any planed event. 

FDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons that may arise 
from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or the use and 
occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of Pease Greeters 
officers, agents, servants, or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their invitation, 
or the invitation of any one of them, if such damage is caused by the negligent, intentional, or 
willful acts of Pease Greeters. 

Pease Greeters agrees that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its signature 
below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss or damage 
to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by any 
of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any of the 
authorities granted herein, if such loss, damage or injury is caused by the negligent, intentional, or 
willful acts of Pease Greeters. Pease Greeters expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any 
such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of Pease 
Greeter's use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities 
under this authorization unless such loss, damage, injury or death is caused by the negligence of 
the Pease Development Authority. Pease Greeters further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, 
and defend the PDA, its officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, 
claims, demands or actions, liabilities, judgments, costs and attorney's fees arising out of Pease 



Agreed and accepted this 9 day of  /1)- 	, 2021 

Pease Greeters 

r1-71- 0/4 /40- car--  
Duly Authorized (Print and `sign) 

Its:Clitkrinnitig=k5E- Gpae-t=gS 

Frank Lasorsa 
Pease Greeters 
June 29, 2021 
Page 3 

Greeter's use of the Premises or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or 
pursuant to this authorization, unless caused by the sole negligence of the PDA. 

Pease Greeters shall provide to the Pease Development Authority satisfactory evidence of 
commercial general liability to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per 
occurrence, naming the Pease Development Authority as an additional insured. See Exhibit "B". 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) an agreement 
by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by registered mail to PDA (except in situations involving the non -payment of a premium, 
in which case a 10 day notice will be accepted); (ii) a provision that any liability insurance 
coverage required to be carried by Pease Greeters shall be primary and non -contributory with 
respect to any insurance carried by PDA; and (iii) a waiver of subrogation provision in regards to 
the PDA. 

Pease Greeters agrees to leave the Premises in the same or better condition as existed at the 
time of the commencement of any Greeter activity. 

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the 
consent of Pease Greeters to the terms of this Right of Entry, and return the same to me along with 
proof of required insurance coverages. 

Very truly yours, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Title 

cc: 	Chasen Congreves, Airport Administrator 
Anthony Blenkinsop, Deputy Director / General Counsel 
Sandy McDonough, Operations Specialist / Community Li ason 
Peter Tiews (via e-mail: tiewsclan(a,aol.corn)  



Exhibit Depleting Designated Pease Greeter Areas -PRA Terminal Main Level 0.1.11,0 BY: WA 	 1111E WW1 

►+,1"- PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Si WYGIttl c..l MN, PORTSMOUTH, 1.111115701 

OLUCOCO Or IOW DAM:UM. Exhibit Depleting Designated Pea. Greeter Are. - PSM Terminal Lower Level 

rdINTENt■TP•mt.M12. ■01Vra 111.,11.1.1.401 ,1•• 	PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

SEGEND  

LL.77.2.1 RESTRICTED GADDED CHEERER AREA 

MARX BADCED GREETER AREA 

RESTRICTED AREA 

LEGE= 

EMal RESTRICTED RACCED OREM', AREA 

	  FLOIJC BADOCO GREETER sees 

Frank Lasorsa 
Pease Greeters 
June 29, 2021 
Page 4 

EXHIBIT A 
PREMISES  



Frank Lasorsa 
Pease Greeters 
June 29, 2021 
Page 5 

EXHIBIT B 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 

ACCIRO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE out flascarYEN 

0501.70:2 1 

71111 CERTIFICATE LI ISA urn Al A WAITER Of INFORMATION ONLY AM CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER_ THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY ON kEGATIVELY AMEND. MEND OR AIM( THE COVERAGE arrompeo er THE MUMS 
Elwyn 11115 CERTIFICATE of INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING NE MERE), AUTIIORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR MIRK ER, AND THE CZRTFICATE HOIDER. 
IMPORTANT: I No ciallicito WORN an ADOMONAL INSURED. Me pOWYNN I nun flan ADOITIONAL MOREL) ptcrelUoral or be erwaxsed. 
IT SUBROGATION LI WANED. oubfact Io On tarns Ind ccncIDorn of the policy. Antal roticAN may raquIra 51 arOcraarnent A atztomant co 
NIS °orbitals owe not COMA rlipta to go connate now Al Om Cd suet onaommonitil --=-.... •SOISSCSII 	 ChM W betty .1.B 

DD. Ina wow. 

TS PortinuNITI INA. 

311151 CM 

PartrnouCI 	 N14 C3101 

, . row 	'S0)812-2600 	 1 ::::, - 	1503) 370.1073 t„^..:4.r. .... ,_ 
.„0,.,.. 	CALAN.M:POOISIECrourx.n 

011LnetA5 APKIROMI CCNWuct MAC 0 

..0,.., NautPA intininCt 17370 

INNJIAD 

Pease Odrettrs 

P.O. Box 31iAt i Gtie ct 

PCCW,S1/01 	 NH 5150. 

..,,,,,,, . , OrestA,uxwl Ins. Co. 16631 

wawa. C: 

SWANS O: WAN 

 e: 

SWIMS t: 

COVERAGES 	 CERTIFICATE WIRIER: 	CL2II*)93)1 	 REVISION HJOABER: 
THI3 IIITO WEEPY THO THE POLICES OF POURPACE UMW EELOA *WE SEAN lEALIED 10 YI4E InEAAEO WALED MOUE FOP THE POUcY PERO° 
ACKATEO. PESIVEmAYAPCONINA 1110 	AT.. TIM.' OS CONXT,ON O. AMY OcorMACI all ar1-6110ccuS_Nr7 5051)1 RESPECT To WHICH 1145 
MITIEICATI NV IN HMCo cn A 	PORTAN. TR an,.FRa afFORIM Fr n4 POLICES DEICAWO HEWN 15 EMEJECT TO AU- THE TEAM, 
EXCILEE4S4 APEI CONCAYKSAI OF 5X 5 ROUGE& LMT) 111.3401 OAT Met WEN PECESC433 SY PhEi CIALIE. 

itg tyPC Or SellSOW*C1 
7-...s., 
lit_... m1...2, 

SW. 
POW! MMUS 

11,1.4. 1 LI 1 
SOISI:Wrern 

NU -1 ly 
tissmorrem WWI • 

X conmaC1LLAtala/A4 maw, 

I NHIG5371-12:: DIC.YZCLT 014:1-21121 

MX CCCWAIACI. I 1E00E00 

I CusnaNsor 21 ROOM i•=11....Z7 "  ' ' 	1 II iCal=Cn  

la D OF CR. ....RI ' 5.CC3  
1Caaollll ,..,,,,, 	, 101MD00 

at orLAountaRC Oat ...Nut.; PM 

Fouvr ❑ ...,,, 	NI  Luc 

ovta a 

SWIISSWCICSOWIM , 2,CO3.537 

vEcouc TS, OMROP A. s 2,03N :co 

ISIMISOMILS LAWRY 
.-- 

Ms? SUM 

'""'"' coAc n 
ISMS  ONO' 
HMO 
*Bra OW,  

COS 11/10 
AVM 5 
NcworMID 
ALTOS 0.1: 

, um...." shuts LI so: 
as sss.s.t. 

i  

INSII, 1......7 tn., "ran I 

SSW, w.s.ssreve s■ws I 

rt... rr ON... 
JP.. owohre, 

USSOMSA WS 	 }..._ 
--, 

UUJ) WS 

00055 

CSAMSAWS.• 

tSC I■ OCCWSWC 

ACCOSSCWS 

OLo [ 	I pttLNlp11 
wwW.WrIConeneana 

 
c”ICUUR MP MAUI.?

..,,,.. 

 ■ OftssIsSers Is .1.1 

'■;17:3S SSW Of 	 •S.0WS 

111 fA 

PIKILANAYEAr yawn, 	 TI M  
1 MuTI 1 	1 ' 

t 1 Vs:us...SI 

L I., 01.1/.3. • tA 1.10,7,1 

II 1. DIU./ - MIST Lale S 

meciars and Oltatr, 
EPP:44E250 ma 3.=2 i wan= 

EITIPS/17410 PliC0C6 

DLO 21514 

111X0,003 

;LOWE= 

et ISSMICO1 OS orturnan Juacarican :YOWLS! WY11101111 : 4MOssmil ISslywha SsoslaNs. ors Ils allsolts1 If sass sm. S Isse..4 

*00. rtaalrell by wPMANI COPEAS otKirAne Weir, la Addronal Ins,:mi an a 04a•Ary and nal COMEINEcry CAN and waNr_r of tutAnISCon U ackPed on a 
ge•wy re n:r, coprEUlts, balls. 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER 	 CANCELLATION 

Peale Gettroomervi AancetE 

ig Pmerstfon .4 Ort,e 

NH C31 pertrom 	 10 

IHOULO MIT CS THE ROME MOW° POUCIE II OE CANCELIED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATIOSS DATE TWEASSW, 1•CIT1M11111 SE 00LIS6033 I? 
ACCoA0PACE WITH THE POLICe nichssolaL 

S4JIMOIVIS,  AMOK 1101571W 

IZASYA4ArvagicA. 
O 1568-2015 ACM:. CORPORATION. AA rights ramvecl. 

ACCRD 25 (2016113) 
	

TIM ACORD BMW and loge ma regoitscsa Mina or ACORD 



biht, 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

July 29, 2021 

Paul Roy 
Director of Business Development 
PROCON LLC 
1359 Hooksett Road 
Hooksett, NH 03106 

Re: Right of Entry — North Apron, Portsmouth International Airport, 
Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Roy: 

This letter, when fully executed, will authorize PROCON LLC ("PROCON") and/or its 
agents and contractors to enter the premises at the North Apron of the Portsmouth International Airport 
at Pease, as shown on the attached Exhibit A  (the "Premises") for the period beginning August 1, 2021 
through December 31, 2021, for survey / site inspection purposes. Such inspection may include 
a review of environmental matters, including soils testing, availability/adequacy of utility services, 
general site conditions, and any other similar inspection or evaluation of the Premises you deem 
reasonably necessary. This Right of Entry will expire at the close of business on December 31, 2021, 
unless otherwise extended by written agreement of PROCON and the Pease Development Authority 
("PDA"). 

This Right of Entry is conditioned upon the following: 

1. PROCON providing PDA, upon execution of this letter of authorization or promptly 
upon completion of its inspection, with a copy of any report, letter, plan, or summary with respect to 
conditions found at the Premises; 

2. PROCON's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that 
its signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss 
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry 
by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any of the 
authorities granted herein. PROCON expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, 
damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of PROCON's use of the 
Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. 
PROCON further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its officers, board 
members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, 

TAKING YOU THERE 



Page Two 
July 29, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — North Apron, Portsmouth International Airport, 

Portsmouth, NH 

judgments, costs and attorney's fees arising out of PROCON's use of the Premises or any activities 
conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

3. PROCON and any agent or contractor of PROCON providing PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of Commercial General Liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000), and Environmental Pollution Liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000), both naming the PDA as an additional insured as its interests may 
appear. PROCON and any agent or contractor of PROCON shall provide PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of automobile liability insurance coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) and workers' compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision 
that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA; (ii) a provision that any liability 
insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributory with respect to any 
insurance carried by PDA; and, to the extent obtainable, (iii) an agreement by the insurer that such 
policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail 
to PDA. 

4. PROCON obtaining the prior written consent of the Engineering Department of the 
PDA before conducting any drilling, testpitting, borings, or other soil/ground disturbing 
activities on the Premises, and thereafter complying with all terms and conditions of said 
consent. No geo-technical exploration shall be done on the Site without proper clearance from 
PDA Engineering Department. No trees or vegetation may be cut without written permission from 
the PDA. PDA shall make available information it has related to any existing conditions at the site 
including the location and type of utilities, underground tanks or structures, and any hazardous 
substances. The information is approximate and not guaranteed. PROCON shall have no liability or 
responsibility to the PDA for environmental impacts and damage caused by the prior use of hazardous 
substances on the Premises by the United States of America - Department of the Air Force ("Air 
Force" or "Government"), and/or the PDA. PROCON and PDA acknowledge the potential obligation 
of the Air Force to indemnify PDA and PROCON to the extent required by the provisions of Public 
Law No. 101-511 Section 8056 and/or Public Law 102-484, as amended. PROCON understands that 
the Premises is in an Area of Special Notice ("ASN"), as identified by the U.S. Air Force, EPA and 
NHDES, and that any future construction plans which may be authorized under a potential Lease 
agreement requiring excavation are subject to Air Force approval prior to the excavation(s) being 
initiated, and construction work may also involve Air Force conducted environmental remediation. 

The North Apron is part of the Airport Security Identification Display Area ("SIDA"). 
Designated representatives of PROCON will be required to obtain security badges and qualify as 
escorts in order for representatives, employees and agents of the PROCON to gain access to and 
remain on the Premises. While in the SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements of the Pease 
International Airport Security Program must be met. Prior to accessing the North Apron, all persons 



By: 
Print Nam rEf313-reA s 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 3d  day of 	, 2021. 

PROCON 

Page Three 
July 29, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — North Apron, Portsmouth International Airport, 

Portsmouth, NH 

providing SIDA escort must undergo verification of their criminal history for the past ten (10) years, 
attend a training class that is offered no more than once every two weeks and pay any applicable fees. 
Information regarding escort requirements can be obtained by calling the Airport Management 
Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. No representative, 
employee or agent of PROCON will be allowed in the SIDA without escorts meeting the requirements 
of the Pease International Airport Security Program. 

5. PROCON's agreement to restore said Premises to its condition as the same existed 
prior to the commencement of any work undertaken pursuant to this Right of Entry. 

6. PROCON's agreement herein that this Right of Entry does not constitute a grant of 
an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises, or an offer to lease the 
Premises. PROCON acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no 
legal obligations shall arise with respect to the Premises or lease thereof until a Lease Agreement 
is executed by the parties, subject to the approval of the PDA Board of Directors. 

Please indicate by your signature below PROCON's consent and return the same to me 
with evidence of insurance as required. 

Very truly yours, 

Its Duly thorized:  iVi gwa  

P: \E-Commerce\ProCon \ROE ProCon ROE North 40.docx 



Page Four 
July 29, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — North Apron, Portsmouth International Airport, 

Portsmouth, NH 

EXHIBIT "A" 

PREMISES  

Exhibit Depicting Right of Entry at PSM North Apron DESIGNED BY: MRM 	DATE: Tr f al 	SCALE: NTS 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY SS INTERNATION4L DANE, PORTSMOUTH. NH mai 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive ;  Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

July 29, 2021 

Paul Roy 
Director of Business Development 
PROCON LLC 
1359 Hooksett Road 
Hooksett, NH 03106 

Re: Right of Entry — 14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227), Pease 
International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Roy: 

This letter, when fully executed, will authorize PROCON LLC ("PROCON") and/or its 
agents and contractors to enter the premises at 14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227) as shown on 
the attached Exhibit A  (the "Premises") for the period beginning August 1, 2021 through December 
31, 2021, for survey / site inspection purposes. Such inspection may include a review of 
environmental matters, including soils testing, adequacy of utility services, general site conditions, and 
any other similar inspection or evaluation of the Premises you deem reasonably necessary. This Right 
of Entry will expire at the close of business on December 31, 2021, unless otherwise extended an 
additional thirty (30) days by written agreement of PROCON and the Pease Development Authority 
("PDA"). 

This Right of Entry is conditioned upon the following: 

1. PROCON providing PDA, upon execution of this letter of authorization or promptly 
upon completion of its inspection, with a copy of any report, letter, plan, or summary with respect to 
conditions found at the Premises; 

2. PROCON's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that 
its signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss 
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry 
by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any of the 
authorities granted herein. PROCON expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, 
damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of PROCON's use of the 
Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. 
PROCON further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its officers, board 
members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or actions, liabilities, 

TAKING YOU THERE 



Page Two 
July 29, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — 14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227), Pease International 

Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

judgments, costs and attorney's fees arising out of PROCON's use of the Premises or any activities 
conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

3. PROCON and any agent or contractor of PROCON providing PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of Commercial General Liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000), and Environmental Pollution Liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000), both naming the PDA as an additional insured as its interests may 
appear. PROCON and any agent or contractor of PROCON shall provide PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of automobile liability insurance coverage in the amount of One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) and workers' compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision 
that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA; (ii) a provision that any liability 
insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributory with respect to any 
insurance carried by PDA; and, to the extent obtainable, (iii) an agreement by the insurer that such 
policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail 
to PDA. 

4. PROCON obtaining the prior written consent of the Engineering Department of the 
PDA before conducting any drilling, testpitting, borings, or other soil/ground disturbing 
activities on the Premises, and thereafter complying with all terms and conditions of said 
consent. No geo-technical exploration shall be done on the Site without proper clearance from 
PDA Engineering Department. No trees or vegetation may be cut without written permission from 
the PDA. PDA shall make available information it has related to any existing conditions at the site 
including the location and type of utilities, underground tanks or structures, and any hazardous 
substances. The information is approximate and not guaranteed. PROCON shall have no liability or 
responsibility to the PDA for environmental impacts and damage caused by the prior use of hazardous 
substances on the Premises by the United States of America - Department of the Air Force ("Air 
Force" or "Government"), and/or the PDA. PROCON and PDA acknowledge the potential obligation 
of the Air Force to indemnify PDA and PROCON to the extent required by the provisions of Public 
Law No. 101-511 Section 8056 and/or Public Law 102-484, as amended. PROCON understands that 
the Premises is in an Area of Special Notice ("ASN"), as identified by the U.S. Air Force, EPA and 
NHDES, and that any future construction plans which may be authorized under a potential Lease 
agreement requiring excavation are subject to Air Force approval prior to the excavation(s) being 
initiated, and construction work may also involve Air Force conducted environmental remediation. 

14 Aviation Avenue is part of the Airport Security Identification Display Area ("SIDA"). 
Designated representatives of PROCON will be required to obtain security badges and qualify as 
escorts in order for representatives, employees and agents of the PROCON to gain access to and 
remain on 14 Aviation Avenue. While in the SIDA, escort procedures per the requirements of the 
Pease International Airport Security Program must be met. Prior to accessing 14 Aviation Avenue, 



Page Three 
July 29, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — 14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227), Pease International 

Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

all persons providing SIDA escort must undergo verification of their criminal history for the past ten 
(10) years, attend a training class that is offered no more than once every two weeks and pay any 
applicable fees. Information regarding escort requirements can be obtained by calling the Airport 
Management Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. No 
representative, employee or agent of PROCON will be allowed in the SIDA without escorts meeting 
the requirements of the Pease International Airport Security Program. 

5. PROCON's agreement to restore said Premises to its condition as the same existed 
prior to the commencement of any work undertaken pursuant to this Right of Entry. 

6. PROCON's agreement herein that this Right of Entry does not constitute a grant of 
an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises, or an offer to lease the 
Premises. PROCON acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no 
legal obligations shall arise with respect to the Premises or lease thereof until a Lease Agreement 
is executed by the parties, subject to the approval of the PDA Board of Directors. 

Please indicate by your signature below PROCON's consent and return the same to me 
with evidence of insurance as required. 

Very truly yours, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	day of,\v.t-1 	, 2021. 

PROCON 3,L 

By: 
Print Na  SIEZUry  

Its Duly Authorized:  Mfvv■ZE_(Z- 

PAE-Commcrce\ProCon\ROE\ProCon ROE Hangar 227.docx 



Page Four 
July 29, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry — 14 Aviation Avenue (a/k/a Hangar 227), Pease International 

Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

EXHIBIT "A" 

PREMISES  

PROJECT: 14 Aviation Ave Right of Entry DESIGNED BY: MRIA DATE V23121 	SC.ALE:1".200' 

0►4' PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 *ITERN 4.TION LI DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH. NN 03801 



Ow- 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

August 9, 2021 

Via Email:  
Herb Gillen, President 
Herb Gillen Airshows, LLC 
1953 South Mallway Dr. 
Columbus, OH 43221 

Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Mr. Gillen: 

This Right of Entry ("ROE") will authorize Herb Gillen Airshows, LLC a limited liability 
company registered to conduct business in the State of New Hampshire, ("HGA") to enter upon and 
utilize the designated areas situated on Portsmouth International Airport, Portsmouth, NH, as shown 
on the attached Exhibits (the "Premises") for the period of time from 0800, 10 September through 
1200, 13 September 2021 for the purposes of motor vehicle parking for attendees of the "Thunder 
Over New Hampshire Air Show" held on 11-12 September 2021 and for no other use. The use and 
occupation of the Premises shall be: (a) without cost or expense to the PDA; (b) subject to the general 
supervision and approval of the PDA; (c) subject to such rules and regulations as the PDA may 
prescribe from time to time, and (d) and subject to any required approval of the Federal Aviation 
Administration ("FAA") for non-aeronautical use purposes. 

1. HGA understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry; (a) allows only 
temporary use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at will 
by the PDA or terminated at will, and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or 
termination. The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance, 
and shall cause minimal disruption to other Tradeport and Airport activities. 

2. HGA agrees herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its signature 
below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss or damage to 
property, and injury or death to persons, by reason of or incident to its entry or the entry by any of its 
agencies, patrons, contractors, or invitees upon the Premises, and/or the exercise of any of the 
authorities granted herein. HGA expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such loss, 
damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurs in as a consequence of HGA's and its 
employees, agents, patrons, contractors, or invitees use of the Premises, or the conduct of activities 

TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peaseciev.ora 



Page Two 
August 9, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. HGA further agrees to indemnify, 
save, hold harmless, and defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to the PDA) the PDA, its 
officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or 
actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees (collectively "Claims") arising out of or 
related to HGA's, and its employees, agents, patrons, contractors, or invitees use of the Premises or 
any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. HGA's 
indemnification obligation hereunder shall not extend to Claims caused by the gross negligence or 
willful misconduct of the PDA or its agent, employees, or contractors. 

3. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may 
arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state of repair of the Premises, or the use 
and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of HGA's officers, 
agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their invitation or the 
invitation of any one of them. 

4. HGA, and any agent or contractor of HGA, shall provide PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) per occurrence, naming the PDA as additional insured. HGA and any agent or 
contractor of HGA shall provide PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile liability insurance 
coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00, and workers' compensation coverage to statutory limits. 

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain:  (i) a provision that 
no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of HGA which would otherwise result in 
forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the 
insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such 
policy shall not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to 
PDA; (iii) provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the PDA; and (iv) a 
provision that any liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-
contributory with respect to any insurance carried by PDA. 

5. HGA understands and acknowledges that it shall coordinate all activities on the 
Premises pursuant to this Right of Entry with the PDA Airport Management Department for its use 
of and access to the Premises to ensure not to impact airport terminal flight activity. Furthermore, 
HGA understands and acknowledges that it and/or its agents may need to undergo security checks in 
order to access some or all areas of the Premises required for activities undertaken pursuant to the 
Right of Entry, and that it shall abide by all requests of the PDA Airport Management Department 
concerning its use of the Premises. 

6. HGA's agreement herein that this Right of Entry does not constitute a grant of an 
exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises, or an offer to lease the Premises. 



Page Three 
August 9, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

7. HGA will at all times during the existence of this Right of Entry, promptly observe 
and comply, at its sole cost and expense, with the provisions of all applicable federal, state and local 
laws, rules, regulations and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the use and 
installation of equipment necessary for its operations on the Premises. Any generators used on the 
Premises shall be double-walled and have spill protection. 

8. HGA agrees to work with the Portsmouth Police Department, or other appropriate law 
enforcement, for traffic control measures. HGA further agrees to take such steps as may be required 
to ensure that vehicles and equipment are not left on the Premises in excess of the term limits of this 
ROE and to assume full responsibility for the immediate removal of vehicles and equipment left on 
the Premises. 

9. HGA agrees that the PDA has the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any 
portion of the Premises used as a priority for Pease operations; provided, however, that PDA shall 
use reasonable efforts to relocate HGA's operations on the Premises before effectuating any such 
termination. 

10. HGA agrees that the premises shall be maintained in a neat and orderly condition and 
shall be responsible for trash removal, and that maintenance and management of the Premises shall 
be done at HGA's own costs and expense. All trash receptacles shall be covered and maintained in 
accordance with Airport Wildlife Hazard Management Plan ("WHMP"). 

11. HGA agrees to restore the Premises to the same or better condition existing prior to 
the commencement of this ROE, at the termination of the ROE. 

12. HGA understands and agrees that there will be no financial compensation paid to the 
PDAin exchange for the use of the Premises for the term of this ROE. In consideration for granting 
this ROE, HGA shall provide PDA access to and usage of a shared chalet on land licensed from the 
United States Air Force to the New Hampshire Military Assistance Foundation on the 157 Air 
Refueling Wing ramp, through the provision to the PDA of sixty (60) visitor passes per day on 
September 10, 11, and 12, 2021; visitor passes shall be provided to PDA at least twenty (20) days 
prior to September 10, 2021. HGA understands that charges may be implemented for any future 
Rights-of-Entry beyond the initial term. 

13. HGA agrees that it will make reasonable efforts to protect the Airport's North Fuel 
Farm with temporary barriers allowing ingress and egress for fuel operations and emergency vehicles. 

14. HGA shall ensure that it has an adequate vehicle parking plan in place prior to the Air 
Show. HGA shall provide a final parking plan to PDA for approval at least one (1) month prior to the 
Air Show. HGA's parking plan shall include the utilization of a sufficient number of personnel to 
ensure that only those areas of Pease International Tradeport and Airport which have been authorized 
for parking purposes pursuant to this ROE are used by Air Show patrons. As part of the parking plan, 
HGA shall block off designated PDA controlled property that is off limits to parking. Additionally, 
HGA shall provide adequate security to ensure members of the public do not park in designated no 



Page Four 
August 9, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

parking areas. HGA shall prepare contingency plans to handle the various traffic scenarios that might 
arise, and work in conjunction with local authorities including but not limited to the City of 
Portsmouth, and Towns of Newington and Greenland, NH DOT and NH State Police. 

15. HGA will abide by the approved Transportation Security Administration's ("TSA") 
Airshow Security Plan ("ASP") and the FAA's approved Ground Operations Plan. 

16. HGA personnel will not be released until an inspection is conducted by members of 
PDA's Airport Management Department and they are satisfied with the condition of the apron, 
parking and other areas utilized in connection with the Air Show. 

17. If vendors require vehicle access to any Secured Identification Display Area ("SIDA") 
Areas, they will either be required to be escorted by SIDA badged personnel or undergo requisite 
SIDA and Ground Vehicle Procedure ("GVP") training. 

18. Municipal Services Fee. To the extent applicable, HGA shall also pay to PDA, a 
municipal services fee in accordance with the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the City 
of Portsmouth, the Town of Newington, and the PDA effective July 1, 1998. This fee if for fire, police, 
and roadway services provided by or on behalf of PDA at the Airport and will be subject to increases 
each year only to the extent the cost of providing such services increases. The municipal services fee 
shall be paid prorated quarterly in advance at the times and in the fashion provided for the payment 
of the ROE Fee. To the extent the ROE Premises are subject to municipal taxation and provided such 
municipal taxes include the cost for the provision of fire, police, and roadway services, HGA may 
offset any fee paid to PDA the portion of such municipal taxes. 

Please indicate by your signature or the signature of a duly authorized representative, the 
consent of the HGA to the terms of this Right of Entry and return the same to me, along with the 
required insurance certificate, before any work under this Right of Entry may begin. 

Sincerely, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 



Page Five 
August 9, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

Agreed and accepted this 	day of 	 , 2021 

HERB GILLEN AIRSHOWS, LLC 

By: 	  
Duly Authorized 

Printed Name: 	  

Title: 	  

cc: 	Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director / General Counsel 
Chasen Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration 
Andrew Pomeroy, Manager, Aviation Planning & Regulatory Compliance 

Attachments: 
1. Exhibit 1 — Air Show Parking 
2. Exhibit 2 — Overflow Parking 

PALICENSES1AirShow120211IGA RoE - Air Show Parking.docx 



Page Six 
August 9, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

  

Exhibit 1 

  

     

Exhibit A - Air Show Parking 	 DESIGNED EY: MRS 	DATE: 7123f21 	SCALE: 1 -2,400'. 

1030-  PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
	

S5 INTERNATIONAL ORME, PORTSNOUTN, NM 031101 

•••••••■•• 



0*  PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY SAINT R1161101 IL 11.1.M. Pali, T 111CulThl NM DOOM 

Exhibit B - Overflow Parking 

Page Seven 
August 9, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry for Air Show Parking on South Terminal Overflow Apron at 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease, Portsmouth, NH 

Exhibit 2 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

August 9, 2021 

VIA Email: joe.maloneAwoodple.com  
Kathy Gross 
Project Administrator 
Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. 
511 Congress Street 
Portland, ME 04101 

Re: 	Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue 
Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Ms. Gross: 

This letter will authorize Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. ("WEIC") and/or 
its agents and contractors to continue to use and enter upon the premises located at 35 Airline Avenue 
in Portsmouth, NH, as shown on the attached Exhibit A (the "Premises") for the period on beginning 
August 4, 2021 through January 31, 2022, for the purpose of utilizing 3,200 square feet within the 
Premises at its sole risk, for storage of well testing equipment and associated materials; and for no 
other use without the prior express written consent of Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). This 
Right of Entry may be terminated by PDA at any time with or without cause upon providing one month's 
advance written notice to WEIC. In no event will Right of Entry extend beyond January 31, 2022, unless 
otherwise extended by agreement of WEIC and PDA. 

1. 	WEIC's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss 
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the 
entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the Premises and/or the exercise of any 
of the authorities granted herein. WEIC expressly waives all claims against the PDA for any such 
loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of WEIC's use of 
the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this 

. ■ ) TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.4.33.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www..peasedev.ory 



Page Two 
August 9, 2021 
RE: Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue 

Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

authorization. WEIC further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend the PDA, its 
officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or 
actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney's fees arising out of WEIC's use of the Premises 
or any activities conducted or undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization. 

2. WEIC agrees to pay PDA a total of $350.00 per month, in advance, for the use of 
the Premises for the purpose of utilizing 3,200 square feet for storage of well testing equipment and 
associated materials; and for no other use without the prior express written consent of Pease 
Development Authority ("PDA"). 

3. WEIC and any agent or contractor of WEIC providing PDA with satisfactory 
evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000), naming the PDA as an additional insured as its interests may appear. WEIC 
and any agent or contractor of WEIC providing PDA with satisfactory evidence of automobile 
liability insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000.00 and workers' compensation coverage 
to statutory limits. Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) 
an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior 
written notice by mail to PDA; (ii) with the exception of workers compensation coverage, provide 
that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the PDA; and (iii) a provision that any 
liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributory with 
respect to any insurance carried by PDA. 

4. WEIC understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry; (a) allows only 
temporary use of the facilities; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) may be revoked at 
will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or 
termination. The use of the Premises shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance 
and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities. 

5. WEIC understands and acknowledges that during the Term, WEIC shall coordinate 
its work schedule with the PDA's Engineering Department to ensure that the ongoing operations 
at the Tradeport are not unduly disrupted. 

6. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which 
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or 
the use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of 
WEICs' officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at their 
invitation or the invitation of any one of them. 

7. WEIC and its contractors expressly waive all claims against PDA for any such loss 
damage, bodily injury or death caused by or occurring as a consequence of such possession and/or 



Page Three 
August 9, 2021 
RE: Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue 

Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this 
Right of Entry. 

8. WEIC's agreement herein that WEIC shall be responsible for the cleanup of all 
debris on the Premises resulting from work performed by WEIC and/or its agents and contractors. 

9. WEIC's agreement to maintain the Premises in a neat and orderly manner for the 
duration of this Right of Entry and to leave the Premises in a neat and orderly condition which is 
equal to or better than the condition of the Premises upon the commencement of this Right of 
Entry. 

10. WEIC's agreement herein that that PDA can terminate this Right of Entry with or 
without cause at any time. WEIC further agrees that upon receipt of thirty (30) days written notice 
from PDA it shall vacate the Premises and, at PDA's election, restore said premises to its condition 
prior to the commencement of any work. 

11. No ground disturbing activities may occur without written approval from PDA 
Engineering through a PDA Dig Permit. 

12. WEIC's agreement that it is responsible for snow removal/treatment on the shared 
driveway as shown on Exhibit A to access the Premises from Airline Avenue. 

Any term of this Right of Entry beyond January 31, 2022 is subject to the approval of the 
PDA Board of Directors. 

- Truly Yours, 4 
0  

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

cc: 	Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy Director / General Counsel 
Jared Sheehan, Environmental Compliance Coordinator 

,-k_ C. R________. 



Page Four 
August 9, 2021 
RE: 	Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue 

Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

Agreed and accepted this  09  

 

day of  August 

 

2021. 

   

Wood Environmental & Infrastructure 
Solutions, Inc. 

B y:  Joe Malone 

Duly Authorized 
(Sign and Print) 

I ts:  Real Estate Manager 

p\roe\wood group (aka AMEC)\ROE — 35 Airline Avenue (2021) 



35 Airline Avenue Right of Entry DESIGNED ET: SINN 	DATE 62121 	SCALE' f=200•2. 

02.'T  PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY S5 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801 

,gror JP 	e-.7 	 I.,07 

III II I 	ii 

'7'7" 	 i7Pa'a krt-i! 
to 	1 fir, 

PRIVATE DRIVEWAY 
(NO ADC=) 

PORTSMOUTH 
IfTWINATIONAL 

AmPart AT 
IMF 

I 

Page Five 
August 9, 2021 
RE: Right of Entry - 35 Airline Avenue 

Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH 03801 

EXHIBIT "A" 
PREMISES   



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of and consents to issuing a Right of Entry ("ROE") to the United 

States Coast Guard ("USCG") for long term parking at 14 Aviation Avenue 

for the purpose of utilizing 75 ± designated motor vehicle parking spaces 

from August 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022; all substantially in 

accordance with the draft Right of Entry dated August 4, 2021, attached 

hereto. 

N \ RESOLVES \ 2021 USCG - ROE 08-19-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

p 	• d ev.org  



OP- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 international Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

August 4, 2021 

VIA E-Mail: Becky.M.delossantosl-c6,uscg.mil  (907-738-4774) 
Becky M. Delossantos 
USCG 
SFLC Norfolk 
300 E Main Street - Suite 600 
NORFOLK, VA 23510 

Re: Right of Entry 
75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 

Dear Ms. Delossantos: 

This letter will authorize the United States Coast Guard, ("USCG"), with an address of 300 East 
Main Street – Suite 600, Norfolk, VA, to enter upon and utilize 75 +/- designated motor vehicle 
parking spaces at 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, as shown on the attached 
Exhibit A (the "Premises") for the period commencing August 1, 2021 through September 30, 
2022 (the "Term") for the purposes of the long-term parking of USCG member vehicles while 
stationed at the Portsmouth Naval Shipyard. USCG is also granted an option to extend the ROE 
through September 30, 2023 subject to the written approval of the Executive Director of 
Pease Development Authority ("PDA"). The privileges granted under this Right of Entry will 
expire on September 30, 2022, unless extended by the exercise and approval of the option. 

This authorization is conditioned upon the following: 

1. 	USCG's agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its 
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of 
loss or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry 
or the entry by any of its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees upon the Premises and/or the 
exercise of any of the authorities granted herein. USCG expressly waives all claims against 
the Pease Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by 
or occurring as a consequence of USCG's and its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of 
the Premises or the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this 
authorization. This assumption of liability by USCG is coextensive with and in accordance with 
the liability of the Federal Government under the Federal Tort Claims Act. Claims for tort 
damages shall be submitted and adjudicated in accordance with the procedures of the Federal 
Tort Claim Act and applicable state and federal law. 

\`\'‘ TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 60 3.4 33.6(388 	Fax: 60 3.4 2 7.04 3 3 	www.peasedev rg 



Page Two 
August 4, 2021 
Re: 	Right of Entry 

75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 

2. USCG understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only temporary 
use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (c) permits the PDA to relocate 
the parking spaces provided to another PDA property at the Pease International Tradeport at any 
time subject to a 7-day advanced notice requirement. The use of the Premises shall be orderly and 
efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to other Airport activities. 

3. USCG is self-insured and is liable for tort claims under the provisions of the Federal Tort 
Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 2671 et seq. 

USCG's agreement to use its best efforts to ensure that vehicles are not left on the Premises 
in excess of the term limit of this Right of Entry and to assume full responsibility for the immediate 
removal of vehicle(s) left on the Premises, time being of the essence. Any vehicles left on the 
Premises following termination of this Right of Entry may be removed by the PDA at the owner's 
expense. 

5. USCG agrees the vehicles may be parked in the areas depicted in Exhibit A. PDA has the 
right, in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any portion of the Premises used for vehicle 
parking as a priority for PDA operations, and to relocate the USCG to an equivalent number of 
spaces on other PDA property. Any vehicles left on the Premises following such termination and 
relocation may be removed by the PDA at the owner's expense. 

6. USCG may provide snow removal and salting, as necessary, for the Premises during the 
periods of use provided for under the terms of this Right of Entry. USCG or any contractor of 
USCG shall also obtain certification by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental 
Services as a Commercial Salt Applicator. Certification includes the successful completion of the 
Green SnoPro training program. All personnel employed in snow removal operations shall be 
familiar with salt reduction measures. 

7. USCG shall coordinate the initial snow removal with the PDA Maintenance Department. 
All snow removal, sanding, and salting shall be at USCG's own cost and expense. 

8. PDA shall not be responsible for damages to property or injuries to persons which may 
arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition or state or repair of the Premises, or the 
use and occupation thereof, or for damages to the property or injuries to the person of USCG's 
patrons, officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who may be on the Premises at its 
invitation. 

9. USCG's agreement that USCG's maintenance and management of the Premises shall be 
clone at its own costs and expense. 



Page Three 
August 4, 2021 
Re: Right of Entry 

75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NH 

10. Prior to termination of the Right of Entry, USCG agrees to restore the Premises to the same 
or better conditions than the Premises were in before its use pursuant to this Right of Entry. 

11. USCG's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant of an 
exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises, or an offer to lease the Premises. 

12. USCG's agreement to pay PDA a $0.35/square foot fee for each space per year for the 
period of use under this Right of Entry: 

Lot 1 	14 Aviation Ave. 	0.62 acres 	$9,452.52/yr. 

This annual rent shall be payable in advance in monthly installments and pro-rated for any partial 
periods. Payment shall be delivered to the PDA, 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH, 03801. 

13. Municipal Services Fee. In addition to the Fee required to be paid under the terms of this 
ROE, USCG shall also pay to PDA, as additional rent, a municipal services fee in accordance with 
the Municipal Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of 
Newington and the PDA effective July 1, 1998. This fee is for fire, police and roadway services 
provided by or on behalf of PDA at the Airport and will be subject to increases each year only to 
the extent the cost of providing such services increases. The municipal services fee shall be paid 
quarterly pursuant to an invoice issued by the PDA. To the extent the ROE Premises are subject 
to municipal taxation, and provided such municipal taxes include the costs of the provision of fire, 
police and roadway services, USCG may offset against any fee paid to PDA the portion of such 
municipal taxes as are attributable to fire, police and roadway services, and PDA shall have no 
further obligation to provide such services. For so long as municipal taxes are imposed against 
the ROE Premises, or on USCG for all three of fire, police and roadway services and PDA either 
has no obligation to provide such services (or ceases to provide such services), the municipal 
services fee required to be paid under this ROE shall terminate. 

In the event the ROE Premises, or any portion thereof, are removed from the Airport District, 
USCG shall make payments in lieu of taxes to the appropriate municipality in accordance with the 
provisions of RSA 12-G:14, II (or any successor statute) regarding taxation by a municipality of 
property that is within the boundaries of Pease, but outside the Airport District. 

14. USCG's agreement that it may not pave any portion of the parking lots which it has been 
granted the use of pursuant to this ROE. 



Page Four 
August 4, 2021 
Re: 	Right of Entry 

75 Parking Spaces — 14 Aviation Avenue, Portsmouth, NI-I 

Please indicate by your signature below USCG's consent to the terms and conditions of this Right 
of Entry and return the same to me with evidence of insurance and payment of fee as required. 

Very truly yours, 

Paul E. Brean 
Executive Director 

Agreed and accepted this 	day of 	, 2021 

The United States Coast Guard 

By: 	  
Print Name/Title 	  

Duly Authorized 

P:\ROE\US  Coast Guard\USCG RoE - 14 Aviation Ave (75 spaces) (8-1-2021 through 9-30-2022).docx 



Potential Pa rkIno Aroa for USCG DESIUNED BY: KIR111 	DATE 111011 B 	SCALE: t"=190'! 

EXHIBIT A 
PREMISES 

$ PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTF.RHATIONA L DRIVE, PORTSMOUT11, Mi CHOI 

   



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 International Drive, Portsmouth NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 
FROM: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 
RE: 	Lease Reports 
DATE: 	August 10, 2021 

***************************************************************************** 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-Sublease 
Agreements" PDA approved the following lease with: 

A. 	Tenant: 	Optris Infrared Sensing, LLC 
Space: 	7,143 square feet at 200 International Drive (Suite #130) 
Use: 	General office use. 
Term: 	Five (5) Years Commencing June 15, 2021 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements also 
requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director Lamson 
was consulted and granted her consent. 

P:\BOARDMTG\2021\Lease  Report 8-19-21.docx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 nrn li nal Drive Forismou" NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 
From: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 	--cti3 
Date: 	June 30, 2021 
Re: 	Sublease between 200 International Limited Partnership and Optris Infrared 

Sensing, LLC 

In accordance with the "Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements" adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA 
has approved a sublease at 200 International Drive between 200 International Limited Partnership 
("TIG") for the following tenants: 

A. Tenant: 	Optris Infrared Sensing, LLC 
Space: 	7,143 square feet (Suite 130) 
Use: 	General Office Use and Related Uses 

	

Term: 	Effective June 15, 2021 for a term of five (5) years 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that: 

"A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to, 
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met: 

1. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted 
under the original sublease; 

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original 
Lease; 

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to 
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original 
Lease; and 

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible. 

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on TIG's 
continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/TIG 
Lease. 

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements 
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director 
Lamson was consulted and granted her consent. 

P:\TWOINTL\200  International1Board ■Board memo re-Optris Infrared Sensing 08-19-21.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

esedev.oH: 



NOTICE OF CONSENT 

This NOTICE OF CONSENT ("Notice") is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY ("Lessor") to 200 International Limited Partnership ("Lessee"). Lessor and Lessee 
may be referred to jointly as the "Parties." 

RECITALS  

A. 	The Parties entered into a Lease for 200 International Drive at Pease International 
Tradeport on April 5, 2001, as amended (the "Lease"). 

B. 	Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its 
consent to sublease if: 

1. the use of the Leased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted 
under the original Lease; 

2. the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original 
Lease; 

3. the original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to 
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original 
Lease; and 

4. the proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible. 

C. 	Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 7,143  square feet of 
the Leased Premises at 200 International Drive (Suite #130) to Optris Infrared Sensing, LLC 
("Sublessee"), a New Hampshire limited liability company authorized to do business in New 
Hampshire. 

D. 	The proposed sublease to Optris Infrared Sensing, LLC is for general office use 
consistent with the applicable zoning, and for no other uses without Sublessor's and PDA's prior 
written consent. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, with Optris Infrared Sensing, LLC for approximately 7,143  square feet within the Leased 
Premises. 

2. Upon execution of the sublease with Optris Infrared Sensing, LLC, Lessee shall 
provide Lessor with a copy of the executed sublease, copies of all required insurance certificates, 
and a certificate of good standing from the State of New Hampshire for Optris Infrared Sensing, 
LLC. 



3. Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate 
of Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 315.03(a). 

4. Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to 
pay rent and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease. 

This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this  jD.-  day of 	 , 2021 
by the Pease Development Authority, and conditioned upon the acceptanc b the Lessee as noted 
by the signature below. 

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

By: 
Its: 	Executive Director 

AGREED AND ACCEPTED BY:  

200 INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP 

// V/2 I 	 By: 
Date 	 Its: 

 

 

  

IL 200 Irqc:rwitionakConsents\NOC - Optris Infrared Scnsing..docx 

2 



EXHIBIT A 

SUBLEASED PREMISES 

3 



SUBLEASE 

BETWEEN 

200 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 

AS 
"SUBLESSOR" 

AND 

OPTRIS INFRARED SENSING, LLC 

AS 
"SUBLESSEE" 

200 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE 

SUITE #130 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03801 

DATED AS OF APRIL , 202 I 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 in i,t,irr '0 	 POrt,SITIO 	1, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 
FROM: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 
RE: 	Contract Reports 
DATE: 	August 9, 2021 
******************************************************* ********************** 

In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, I am pleased to report the following: 

1. Project Name: 	Terminal Project - USI Insurance Services, LLC 
PDA Obligation: 	$5,087.00 
Board Authority: 	Prior authorization to obtain Builders Risk coverage for terminal 

project 
Summary: 	Extension of Builders Risk Insurance Policy due to project not yet 

being complete 

2. Project Name: 	Golf Course — Request to Purchase Double Deck Convection Oven 
PDA Obligation: 	$6,191.48 
Board Authority: 	Director Ferrini 
Summary: 	Replacement of 2010 Convection Oven 

PABOARDMTG\2021\Contract Report 8-19-2021.docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

WWW.pez,'sedev.org 



06/17/21 06/17/21 
to 

12/17/21 

Aspen American Insurance Company 
Policy No. IM00CWH19 
*Renewal - Builders Risk 5,087.00 

Invoice Number: 3757828 	Amount Due: 5,087.00 

USI Insurance Services LLC 

PO Box 62937 * Virginia Beach, VA 23466 

INVOICE 

Pease Development Authority 
	

Invoice Date 06/17/21 
55 International Drive 
	

Invoice No. 	3757828 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
	

Bill-To Code PEASEDEV 
Client Code 
	

PEASEDEV 
Inv Order No. 800*6271135 

Named Insured: Pease Development Authority 
	

Payment Due 
Amount Remitted: $ 

Please return this portion with your payment. 

Make checks payable to: USI Insurance Services LLC 

Effective Date 	Policy Period 
	

Coverage Description 
	

Transaction Amount 

*Premiums Due and Payable on Effective Date 

NZRCA Page: 1 
	

ORIGINAL INVOICE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 !i5 International Drive, Portsmouth NI -I 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 
To: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director 

From: 	Scott DeVito, PGA General Manager ,,pD 
Date: 	August 3, 2021 

Subject: 	Request to Purchase Double-Deck Convection Oven 

This is a request to purchase a Southbend double-deck convection oven for the Grill 28 food and 
beverage operation from Independent Restaurant Supply, 927 US Route 1 Bypass, Portsmouth, N.H., 
03801. The current convection oven was purchased in 2010. There have been a number of repairs 
made since that time in an effort to keep the existing oven in operation; and further repairs would not 
be considered cost effective given the age of the oven. The funds to purchase a new oven have been 
reserved in the FY2022 Golf Course capital plan. The purchase price of a new convection over is 
under $10,000, so three (3) separate quotes have been obtained to determine lowest pricing. 

• Independent Restaurant Supply — Southbend Oven - $6,128.48 delivered 

• Restaurant Supply.Com  — Krowne Oven - $6,191.04 delivered 

• Supplies On the Fly — Southbend Oven - $7,492.67 delivered and set in place 

Golf Course Maintenance and Pease Tradeport Maintenance employees will work collectively to 
assemble, install, and connect the new oven to the existing propane line. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

P: \BOARDMTG \2021 \Golf - Convection Oven Memo 8-19-2021.docx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

Phone: 603.433.6088 	Fax: 603.427.0433 	www.peasedev.org  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 5 5 Inlernational D e Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

  

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves of and 

authorizes the Executive Director to finalize and execute a service agreement with 

OAG Aviation Worldwide LLC ("OAG") in a total amount not to exceed $5,659.50 

for one year retroactive to August 1, 2021, through July 31, 2022, with two (2) 

one (1) year options to be exercised at the Executive Director's discretion, for the 

annual hosting of a Flight Information Display System (FIDS) at Portsmouth 

International Airport; all in accordance with the memorandum of Kurt Miller, dated 

August 11, 2021, attached hereto. 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 1 2-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the 

waiver of the RFP requirement based on the following reasons: 

1. OAG has direct authorized access to Allegiant Airline's Flight Information 

Network; 

2. Having direct access to Allegiant Flight Information Network and 900 

other airlines will provide direct communications between OAG and the 

airlines resulting in enhanced and valuable real time information for 

airlines and airport passengers; and 

3. OAG's direct access will provide real time flight information as well as 

local radar and flight information. 

NOTE: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes. 

N:\RESOLVES  \2021 \PSM - OAG 8-12-2,021-:docxT A K I N G 
	YOU 	THERE 

wviv;:yeasedev,orq 



■•-• 

PEASE 
AIRPORT 

MANAGEMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	Paul Brean, C.M., Executive Director ----c,-(5 
From: Kurt Miller, Landside Operations Specialist 140.N 

CC: Chasen Congreves, Manager of Airport Administration 

Re: OAG Aviation Worldwide, LLC - License Agreement 

Date: August 11, 2021 

Since 2017, Pease Development Authority ("PDA") has maintained a subscription with the OAG 
Aviation Worldwide, LLC ("OAG"). OAG is an air travel intelligence company that provides 
accurate, timely and actionable digital information / applications to the world's airlines, airports, 
government agencies and travel-related service companies. Some of the information shared 
consists of schedules, flight status, connection times and industry referenced codes such as 
airline identifiers and airport codes. OAG provides invaluable real time information to our 
guests awaiting travel to and from Portsmouth International Airport ("PSM"). 

The cost structure of implementing OAG is as follows: 

Product 
	

Period of Performance 	 Annual Price (USD) 

Flightview- 
Arrival/Departure 	8/1/2021-7/31/2022 	 $2,887.50 
Web Components 

Flightview-FIDS 
Display Content 
	

8/1/2021-7/31/2022 	 $2,772.00 

Total 	 $5,659.50 

The above quote includes two 1-year options, increasing at 5% year-over-year: 
Option Year 1: $5,942.48 per year 
Option Year 2: $6,239.60 per year 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 



With the continued growth of Allegiant Airlines and the prospect of additional service providers 
always on the agenda, PSM would benefit with the continued subscription of the OAG. 

In an effort to keep PSM's momentum moving forward, please request approval from the PDA 
Board at its August Board meeting to finalize and execute a service agreement with OAG at the 
above quoted rates and terms to commence retroactively from August 1, 2021 through July 31, 
2022, with the two (2) one (1) year options to be exercised at the Executive Director's discretion. 
In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, this is to request that the Board waive the 
RFP requirement based on the following reasons: 

1. OAG has direct authorized access to Allegiant Airline's Flight Information Network; 

2. Having direct access to Allegiant Flight Information Network and 900 other airlines 
will provide direct communications between OAG and the airlines resulting in 
enhanced and valuable real time information for airlines and airport passengers; and 

3. OAG's direct access will provide real time flight information as well as local radar and 
flight information. 

PABOARDMTG \2021 \Official Airport Guide Memo 8-19-2021.docx 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Parker: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves of and 

authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with Bobcat of 

New Hampshire in a total amount not to exceed $79,801 M0 for the purchase 

of a Tracked Skid Steer Loader with attachments for use at Portsmouth 

International Airport at Pease ("PSM"); all in accordance with the memorandum 

of KC Conley, Fleet Manager, dated August 3, 2021, attached hereto. 

N ,RESOLVES 2021 \Airport - Tracked Skid Steer 8-19-2021,docx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev.orti 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
iii 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

Memorandum 
To: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive DirectoV6 

From: 	Ken Conley - Fleet Manager 	 Ken Conley ia..4f4i4.-ti aavilez, 

Date: 	8/9/2021 

Subj: 	Tracked Skid Steer Loader with Attachments 

This is a request to purchase a Tracked Skid Steer Loader with attachments, identified in our FY22 
Capital Budget for replacement, from Bobcat of New Hampshire, 9 Dover Road Chichester, NH, for a 
price not to exceed $79,801.00. The primary use of this vehicle will be snow removal in or around the 

airport terminal pay parking lots, line grinding of painted markings on the airport, concrete asphalt 
grinding on the airport, heavy grass cutting and bush whacking, brush handling and non-paved surface 
prep, with additional forklift and materials handling duties as well. This unit will serve as a primary 
replacement to a 2000 model with over 12,000 hours. 

A request for bid was advertised in July with the bid openings taking place July 27, 2021. The 
Tracked Skid Steer Loader is funded in the FY2022 Portsmouth International Airport capital schedule. 

A total of one (1) bid was received and it met the minimum specifications: 

	

Bobcat of New Hampshire, Dover Road NH 	$79,801.00 

Based on Bobcat of New Hampshire submitting the lowest qualified bid, please request 
authorization from the PDA Board of Directors to enter into an agreement to purchase a Tracked Skid 
Steer Loader with attachments from Bobcat of New Hampshire, for a price not to exceed $79,801.00. 

Preferred New Hampshire state approved vendors were made aware of the RFP, including E&E 
Equipment and Chadwick Baross. The vendors contacted stated they would not submit a bid in response 

to the request due to the inability to compete with Bobcat's municipal rebate programs (which were 
applied in the price quoted by Bobcat). 

P:\BOARDMTG\2021\Tracked  Skid Steer Loader Memo 8-19-2021 docx 

TAKING YOU THERE 

1-'1. 1 6013:: o 0 	-1 3 3, 	(.1 8 8 	f-+.. . 603 - 	7.0 4 3 3 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 internationei Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY MEMORANDUM 

To: 	 Paul Brean, Executive Director 	Zit/ 

From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager 	1k3, 

Date: 	August 02, 2021 

Subject: 	Sign Revision Report: Global Seafood Alliance at 85 New Hampshire Ave. 

In accordance with your authority under the "Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and 

Approval of Minor Revisions to Existing Signs" adopted by the Board on June 20, 2005, I am 

reporting the following: 

A tenant at 85 New Hampshire Avenue wishes to permanently modify the signage on their building. 

The new sign will reflect the company name change from "Global Aquaculture Alliance" to "Global 

Seafood Alliance" in the same area on the building façade. Global Seafood Alliance has contracted 

a sign vendor to fabricate and install the new sign. The total sign area falls within the 200 square 

foot maximum. 

This sign revision meets the all of the following conditions: 

1. Revision to sign graphics to reflect a new name or logo for an existing tenant. 

2. No substantive change in size or style of the sign. 

3. Consistent with the terms and conditions of the original sign approval. 

4. All other conditions of the PDA Land Use Controls are satisfied. 

Director Fournier has reviewed the sign revisions and has given his approval. At this month's 

Board meeting, please report the revisions to the Global Seafood Alliance signage. 

01 00i,_, TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev,cirp 



111■11111111111111W- 

11 I Ell 1111 • 11111 
1 1111 

Direct Mount 

..11111■ 
Outs& tura Minus 

REvisioN §- 7-2019 

34832 

all±121.  Ar...12.71,11CJW- M462/t2C,  

16" 	11.6" 

nAolic--7,_,Jacmcm vuire &1171Enc© 
.3  1  3.6-  

Measurements on this artistic rendering may vary 
slightly from the actual "AS BUILT" upon final engineering. 

Coior and Resolution in proof are not representative of 
final project due to Indivkluel monitor settings. 

This drawing protected by U.S. copyright laws. Any use, reproduction, copying or exhibiting this drawing without the express written consent of Classic Signs is 



rn 

N- 
cr) 

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

:  
6-

21
-2

02
1  

al
 Se

af
oo

d 
M

im
ic

  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 55 international Drive Porttimouti, NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Levesque: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors hereby 

approves of the proposed new sign for Galvion, tenant of 160 Corporate, 

LLC, located at 160 Corporate Drive; all in accordance with the 

memorandum of Maria). Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager, dated _July 13, 

2021, attached hereto. 

RESOLVE. 	 :orporate LI, .7 	 .)cx 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	
55 internationai Drive Poil ,irriouzrii, 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM. 

0 
To: 	Paul Brean, Executive DirectoA 
From: 	Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager 
Date: 	July 13, 2021 
Subject: 	Signage at 160 Corporate Drive 

Galvion, the sub-tenant at 160 Corporate Drive has submitted a request to erect a ground sign at 
their location. The permanent ground sign shows the building address and identifies Galvion as 
the tenant. The building owner and leasee, 160 Corporate, LLC, approves the proposed sign. 

PDA staff has reviewed the zoning ordinance as it relates to signage and we believe the proposal 
is in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the ordinance. At next month's board 
meeting, please ask the Board of Directors to approve the sign proposal for 160 Corporate, LLC. 



Zi 

    

    

  

D
ou

bl
e 
 s

id
e

d,
  3

/4
"
 P

V
C

 

• • 

 

  

    

ZL 	 

0 
0 

E 

O m 
_ 8 g 
at 2 

	

> 	F.' 
2 "a 

'Es 
R 

u 0 
• o 

CdJ c E 
C) C.7

u  

CO 0. M  
1,1  V, 

	

I/1 LS 	c C ' 07 
r0 

. 0 
t- 0 
0 U 

111 
CL 

w "Fo: g ro 

(.75 
z u , , 	> 

	

Ce — 	0.1 0 
a  

16-,w 2  a al C
CO W E a- _0 

— o  
.§ 

c
Y° ° 	113  
W C  

2 'eT3 	c o. 	o 
To 06 Z" 
.E — 
	u 

>• 	'17-." .E a).  -0 
_c > 	cz 

(-) 

E c _c 6 	— -.2 
LL in • 0 
t.- 	• C CO 
W _0 4) — 
'0 0 ".." • 

7:3  

OC 	C 0:  _c 0 
O :E 	"Z •-• p :6 >. 
E 

o c 4-4 
0 N

w `5)  
c •-• — = 

.0  

E 
8 cr 

6, 0 
In I 

tO 

 o 
E fin 
t 0 
o a. 

S
IG

N
A

TU
R

E
:  

0 CC  
0. 
-o 
C ra 

W 
0. 
E 0 

V
S

C
- P

SM
- Q

N
A

P
11

9 o
cu

rn
en

is
T

li
en

ts
IG

IG
a i

v i
on

1F
le

x i
 



E 
P L  c 

- a■ 
d o ,,, 
to 	0 

0
c 

-. — LI  
tn 	ID tia''..7, .0 -p_ 
0 > 0_ ■.;_- 
0 -0 0 0 
E c *-', a 

`.'  r. Cu , an  

0 1+ 4., tu  
CL 0 ra , 

@.) c  E ,;in, 
a  , V  U a 	40 4,-.-_-  a) 
V C • - C • •■ 	• 	(..., 
2 	a., ... 
cu 	ra CL (13 

	

■._ 	, 	,,, 
Cl -0-0 6 Cl , • C ,..i, 

D CO 1,  
/- ° , E  
0 .5 ' ° w 0  
La 	,._ 75 ..,-• 

Z CL  u .... 

0  To—  E 2 
t7) , o , 

cu tA , 
Z cy, c ,.E > 
ce — (--) a, o Q _ >  

	

= 0,1 '0 	a
/- `.- CU ID 

7 	
CL La -0 , C cr, 

	

re C 	to N  
n' 1)  E :E ,... _0  
a) — 0 
2 7= 4— p 
o 3 ,0-,  "- 

. -,- c c , .1-,  . 
0 0 -,,, -0  

0 a, 0  
u  3 (-> 

-o 'E' .a) ,%' 
o •- 5 , (13 w 

0
a 

CL CL I-  

713  ao T. 

	

!-1 	kJ 

	

ZZ: 	

c_, 

›' ,. .7 C a, 
0.,  • - ,_ -0  _0  > to  

■.i.= 
4,  -2   
.D_ a, g., I, 

CL., 

4..,Z 
(0 	7 -0 ,_ -0 CI) 

C , — '- 0 4 7 L'' 7-- ca. 

	

_  c 	a, ,L 	V) 

);.. 

	

.-E 	;:,' 

	

0 0 	E 't'' c „ 
0 c ..• 

	

Z.; 0 '', 	La ? 
3 7.,  -0 

	

2-' -ct itl, 
	8 

-0 -.... 

	

.. ..- rc, 	 C 1.7 

	

0 ~L 	
to C 

	

= -0 al 	g.,' 2 

	

-g -2  -5- 	7 . 3.,), 

	

;  i 	To .E 

	

o . 	8-  
N Lro c . . an ni O.. 'II 0C 

	

Z 47 'n  . S'7' 	
W 8' to — -o 'Cr 	.2 F-  , c 

L.) c > 132 .t,  0 •-• Ei 
= 0 _ > z E. c  

VI Cr.' 2 11. ,, 03 .A.  
0 ,,  

> 1:' 12 7..- c,_< to  -0 
w 2, c ' 6 La, 14 . ■?t: E. 

	

re Tr . t"  ' Zi' 	VI . a' 	7 Q. 5  

A° 
ro 

C -cs 

QJ 
a) 

E 
0 
H 

0 
cu _c 
C 

 >- a) 
aJ C M 

a  0 
0 

ao 

_c 

0 

0 
4- 
0 

-) 

e 0  #, 
a 0 

O 

> 

8 

O 

, 
8 

O 

ac Ms 
C 

0) 7 
-CI 0 
7,c  

m 
< C° o_ 

0 

I- 
D 
0 

0 , o_ 
)- co 'c 
cn-  4-1 
I-4 co 
9 2 

0 (.7 

>- 
a_ 
0 
C.) 4_, v, 
C) 	v.) 

0)  

tA 0 

1- 
z 
0 
2 

N 
ce 
0 

    

IIP
SC

-P
S

M
4

N
A

P
1 t

D
oc

um
en

ts
1C

lie
n t

s I
G

IG
a l

v i
on

tF
le

x
i 

48
x 3

6 P
VC

 s
ig

n_
re

n d
en

ng
is

  



INSURANCE 

UPDATE 



Anthony, 

We have continued to see a hardening insurance market in 2021. Below is a write-up that we have been 

using internally to explain what we are seeing in each line of business. 

Casualty  

The casualty marketplace remains hard as a result of many factors including liberal class actions, a highly 

organized and heavily funded plaintiffs' bar that utilizes third party litigation funding, juries desensitized 

to monetary values and reduction in umbrella/excess capacity. In addition to reduced capacity due to 

claims, carrier consolidation has assisted in this. Loss severity continues to increase with some of worst 

verdicts hitting multi-million dollars. Capacity in the marketplace continues to be reduced with carriers 

reducing lead umbrella and excess layers. That being said, incumbent carriers are sensitive to the 

market and have been fairly fluid with renewal rates in order to secure their book. Insureds with large 

auto fleets continue seeing large increases as losses on this line continue to deteriorate. There doesn't 

seem to be any light at the end of the tunnel for auto either as frequency and severity continue to be an 
issue as a result of distracted driving, rising medical expenses, driver shortages, legal climate, and 

decaying public infrastructure. 

General Liability 

Automobile Liability 

Worker's Compensation 

Umbrella Liability (High Haz) 
Umbrella Liab (Low-Med Haz) 

Excess (High Haz) 

Excess (Low-Med Haz) 

7.5% to 15% 

8% to 15% 
Flat to 4% 

50% or more 

30% or more 
100% or more 

50% or more 

Property 

Property pricing actually shows signs of easing but rate continues to rise for the time being — in 
particular on high hazard occupancies. Given the rate increase carriers were able to obtain through 

2018 — 2020 there is perception that they've achieved rate adequacy, mainly on low hazard 

occupancies. It appears carrier goals are around reducing volatility but the line continues to be plagued 

by natural disaster and COVID litigation with social unrest, wildfires, winter storm, and increasing 
hurricanes as a result of climate change. In 2020, there were 22 separate billion-dollar property events. 

Low to Medium Hazard Occupancy 
	

5% to 15% 
High Hazard Occupancy 

	
20% or more 

Cyber Risk 

Data breaches drive the cyber insurance market. Ransomware and phishing attacks are at an all-time 

high and cyber criminals are becoming more sophisticated on how to breach various controls. The 

glaring story around cyber is C.N.A. — they paid a $40M ransom to get their systems back. If a carrier 
whom is supposed to be an expert in cyber security can get breached, anyone can. Cyber criminals are 

going after all industries. Human behavior continues to be the main cause of a cyber loss. The average 

cost of a cyber incident in 2020 was $8.19 million. Carrier, Cyber Experts and Risk Managers agree that 

the average total cost of a data breach would be around 40%. Underwriting scrutiny has increased 

significantly overnight. Carrier are quickly discovering that this line was under priced and coverage was 

very broad. They are quickly adjusting terms and limits being offered. 



Cyber Risk 	50% or more 

Executive Liability 

These lines continue in their hard market due to financial uncertainty as a result of COVID. Although 

rate increases have decelerated a bit, carriers are still wary of COVID related claims. Now that the 

vaccine is here, an employer's position on whether employees get the vaccine is the concern. The main 

driver of rate beyond standard underwriting information (financials) is industry. We continue to see 

sizable increases in rates and retentions with reduction of limits. Social movements across the country 

continues to impact EPL litigation with over 2,000 EPL complaints filed so far this year. The main driver 

on crime rate is social engineering and cyber related criminal acts. Rate hikes tend to be on the lower 

side and mainly exposure driven but carriers aren't shy about getting increase on this line thinking it'll 

be ignored due to higher increases on paired lines. 

Public/Large Private D&O 	10% to 40% 

Private/Non-Profit D&0 	5% to 45% 

Employment Practices 	20% to 40% 

Crime 	 5% to 15% 

Fiduciary 

Plan Assets up to $50M 	5% to 15% 

Plan Assets $50M to $500M 20% to 50% 

Plan Assets above $500M 	25% to 70% 

If you have any additional questions, please let me know. 

Thanks, 

CROSS 
N S i n A IA c F 

D ve B 	n g :1VJ, CMS 
Vice President 

Cross Insurance Portsmouth 

mobile: q73 -53A-6133 
plitone; 603-812-2626  
exr4ail: david.branningOcrossagency.com   
address: 75 Portsmouth Blvd, Suite 100, Portsmouth, NI-I 03801 

    

,4tinka.iii:1 

Please note we are expanding our e-mail capabilities. As of April 

2021, my e-mail address will be david.branning@crossagency.com  



AOPA 
your freedom to .gy 

F 
	

Bookmark 

Created by AssuredPartners Aerospace Ei WORM 0R 

February 12, 2021 	By Jason Wissmiller 

While we are happy to see 2020 end...we have to wonder what's in 
store for 2021? 



The aviation insurance market in 2020 will be remembered for lack of underwriter flexibility and 

insurance company competition, the likes of which we have not seen in multiple decades. 

Premiums were up significantly, and underwriters returned to more traditional underwriting of 

pilots and overall risk, 

The question now is - what will the aviation insurance market look like in 2021? Unfortunately, 

more of the same, While it is tempting to blame the market on greedy underwriting, 2020 was 

not a good year for the aviation underwriters. Even with the premium increases obtained, there 

were several market forces that left the underwriters with poor financial results: 

1. January 2020 - S-76 crashes into a hillside in Southern California, killing nine people, 

including Kobe Bryant, 

2. February and March 2020 - Tornadoes hit airports in Tennessee, Arkansas, and Louisiana. 

3. Fallout from the Boeing 737MAX losses continue to have an impact on our market. The 

overall losses associated with the Boeing 737MAX is looking to be $2 billion, which is 

significant considering the worldwide aviation insurance premium is estimated to be less 

than $2 billion. 

4. The Coronavirus Impact - March 2020 saw the onset of the pandemic and extreme 

slowdown in commercial aviation, especially the airlines, causing a significant shortfall in 

premiums. 

The aviation insurance companies purchase reinsurance to protect themselves from large 

losses. As the large losses continue to hit the reinsurance market, the reinsurers will be passing 

along increased reinsurance premium to the aviation insurance companies - potentially a 50% 

to 100% increase when their reinsurance renewals come due. No doubt that a portion of these 

increases will be passed along to insureds. 

As aviation insurance brokers, the most frustrating aspects of the market in 2020 were the 

overall lack of competition among the carriers and the return to more restrictive underwriting. 

The lack of options was made worse by the underwriters returning to more traditional 

underwriting. Flexible pilot warranties were replaced by annual make and model specific pilot 

training requirements. Pilot age was again a hot topic for underwriters. The use of deductibles to 

lessen underwriter exposure was also back in play so just when we needed options, we din' Tht 

have any. 

This leaves many wondering what can be done to alleviate the issues associated with the 

current market. There has never been a better time to sell yourself and your operation: 



• Talk about what you are doing to go above and beyond for recurrent training. 

• If you have losses, explain the steps you have taken to mitigate the exposures. 

• Provide any requested renewal information to your aviation insurance broker; that 

information helps your broker sell you to the underwriters. 



12/9/2020 	 Insurance Marketplace Realities 2021 — Aerospace - Willis Towers Watson 

WillisTowersWatson 111 1 1'111 

Insurance Marketplace Realities 2021- Aerospace 

November 18, 2020 

Insurers continue to seek financial recovery and long-term profitability. 

Rate predictions 

Trend 	 Range 

Airlines 

Aircraft lessors/banks 

Product manufacturers and service providers 

Airports 

General aviation 

Space 

Rate predictions: Aerospace 

+25% to +40% 

+5% to +15% 

+20% to +35% 

+20% to +25% 

Minimum +25% 

Rates have stabilized at higher levels (percentage range not applicable) 

Akit„ 

Atk 

Aftk 

Key takeaway 
After years of soft-market rates depleting premiums to an unsustainable level combined with an unprecedented decline in air 
travel, insurers continue to seek financial recovery and long-term profitability. 

The growing use of analytics represents a rare bright spot in this sector. 

• In a market with unpredictable catastrophic loss frequency, an analytical approach can create a more reliable foundation on 
which to build renewal expectations and construct an appropriate strategy. 

• With more and more underwriters leaning on their actuaries to set minimum premiums, analytical models that present 
meaningful counter arguments help set the stage for more balanced and informed renewal discussions, and can provide 
underwriters with internal justifications for writing the business. 

Airlines 

2020 was another loss-making year for insurers, due largely to premium reductions implemented as COVID-19 relief. 

• Global airline premiums have been insufficient to cover losses over the last five years, and 2020 will be no exception. 

• Insurers made strong gains in hitting their premium volume goals in 2019 only to return most of that profit in 2020. 

• Insurers will seek to protect their premium base despite heavily reduced exposure, leading to potential rate inflation. 

• Anticipate minimum premiums and deposit premiums being implemented going forward. 

• Profitability remains a key metric for insurers; however, premium income levels are of the utmost importance. 

• Each insured can expect to be underwritten based on claims and profitability ratios as insurers aim to better correlate rates to 

results, which we expect will ultimately lead to more insurer consolidation. 

Aircraft lessors/banks 

https://www.willistowerswatson.com/en-US/Insights/2020/11/insurance-marketplace-realities-2021-aerospace 	 1/3 



12/9/2020 	 Insurance Marketplace Realities 2021 – Aerospace - Willis Towers Watson 

Steady rate increases remain a trend as hard market conditions continue to impact this sector. 

• While rates are increasing, capacity remains sufficient, especially for those profitable insureds with a growing fleet. 

• Anticipate current market conditions to remain through 2021 and likely beyond, with rate increases in this segment continuing 
to be impacted by a trickle-down effect from the more unprofitable segments. 

• Upper management oversight continues to push for the reduction or elimination of soft market enhancements, e.g„ credit 
opportunities, non-aviation coverage endorsements and/or expense limits. 

Aircraft products manufacturers and service providers 

Although this segment remains relatively stable for non-critical manufacturers and for those buyers with loss-free programs, rate 

increases are still expected. 

• Large loss reserves and recent aircraft groundings continue to impact this sector's overall profitability, causing insurers to look 

for financial recovery through premium growth and possible coverage restrictions. 

• While insurers maintain that accounts are being underwritten on a case-by-case basis, most buyers will still receive premium 

increases as the entire aviation market continues to harden — despite COVID-19 impacting insured revenues and operations. 

• Following insurers are looking to close the rate differential from the lead insurer, with pricing above lead terms now common 
and expected. 

Airports and municipalities 

While passenger movement remains significantly lower than in years past, this sector is still reeling from a handful of shock-

losses, as well as overall market unprofitability. 

Multiyear terms are no longer available. 

Losses large and small continue to be scrutinized by line underwriters, with a large focus on certain coverages, limits and 
enhancements, e.g., excess auto liability, excess employer's liability and even incidental medical malpractice. 

• Though renewals expiring on a 100% placement may continue as before, vertically structured placements are becoming more 

common, especially if limits exceed S250M 

Excess layers over working layers are becoming more popular as a way to build capacity. 

• Marketing will be necessary if municipal boards want to benefit from competitive options — if any can be found. 

General aviation 

This segment continues to experience higher rate increases due to consistent loss activity, higher aircraft costs and high-profile 

losses, especially in the rotor wing sector. 

Insurers' upper management continues to enforce strict underwriting guidelines, closely reviewing and restricting sublimits, 

extra expense coverages and premium credit opportunities, as these have cost insurers considerably over the years. 

• Rotor wing operators can anticipate reductions in viable capacity, both domestically and overseas, with limits decreasing and 

the cost of higher limits exponentially increasing. They may also be declined altogether. 

Insurers are looking to implement minimum premium levels. 

• Pilot specifications continue to be closely scrutinized, with broad policy provisions now a thing of the past as more insurers 
lessen their single-pilot book of business and require all pilots to undergo simulator-based training. 

Space 

After a period of sharp premium rate increases in late 2019 and early 2020, this sector has stabilized at a new higher pricing 
level. 

• The original market hardening in late 2019 was due to poor underwriting results and poor combined loss ratios dating back to 

2013. 

• The market's new aim is to achieve $750M in annual premium income — up from an average of $500M the past six years. 

• The market has adopted a more conservative and strict underwriting approach. 

Insurers are focused on limit requirements as well as technology-based risk differentiators. 

• Some reduced pricing is available for lower limits, as well as for straightforward risks with known industry clout. 

• New insurers have come into the market to replace some departed capacity. 

Disclaimer 

Willis Towers Watson hopes you found the general information provided in this publication informative and helpful. The 

information contained herein is not intended to constitute legal or other professional advice and should not be relied upon in lieu 

of consultation with your own legal advisors. In the event you would like more information regarding your insurance coverage, 

https://www.willistowerswatson.com/en-US/Insights/2020/11/insurance-marketplace-realities-2021-aerospace 	 2/3 



12/9/2020 	 Insurance Marketplace Realities 2021 — Aerospace - Willis Towers Watson 

please do not hesitate to reach out to us. In North America, Willis Towers Watson offers insurance products through licensed 

subsidiaries of Willis North America Inc., including Willis Towers Watson Northeast Inc. (in the United States) and Willis Canada, 
Inc. 

Contact 

Jason Saunders 

Senior Director 

Willis Towers Watson Aerospace 

North America 

Email (mailto:jason.saunders@willistowerswatson.com)  +1 404 224 5054 (tel.+1 404 224 5054) 

Copyright © 2020 Willis Towers Watson. All rights reserved. 

https://www.willistowerswatson.comten-US/Insights/2020/11/insurance-marketplace-realities-2021-aerospace 	 3/3 



READ AIN'S 2021 EBACE CONVENTION NEWS COVERAGE  

BUSINESS AVIATION 

Hard Insurance Market Not Entirely Due to Pandemic 
by Kim Rosenlof 

June 1, 2021, 9:00 AM 

Tornado damage in Monroe, Louisiana, caused extensive damage to aircraft, part of the reason insurance rates have climbed. 

While the continuing global pandemic has certainly contributed to the ever-hardening aviation insurance market, the seemingly 

exponential rise in rates in the late 2020 and early 2021 renewal seasons can be further attributed to other factors. Among them: 

the rise in reinsurance market rates due to underwriters' decreased appetite for high-risk, high-liability operations; and the need 

for the market to replenish coffers after several years of catastrophic claims, both within and outside aviation. 

With the number of aircraft and flight hours flown significantly reduced because of the pandemic, one might have surmised that 

2020 would have been a profitable year for the aviation insurance industry. But several factors turned 2020 into another loss for 

the business as claims from weather events, ground collisions, and previous accidents outstripped the reduced premiums 

collected as most of the airline fleet remained grounded. 

According to data published by travel data analyst Cirium in December 2020, the global airline industry flew about half as many 

flights in 2020 (16.8 million) as in 2019 (33.2 million). The reduced airline activity brought about by the global pandemic had a 

twofold impact on aviation insurance. First, since airline premiums are generally assessed according to hours flown, the global 

aviation premiums collected were down by an estimated 25 percent compared with 2019 numbers. Covid-related business 

closures have reduced the aviation premium base even further. 



Second, while aircraft and crews were sitting, claims continued to occur from weather and ground collision damage. In addition to 

individual incidents of hail and wind damage to sitting aircraft, airports in five U.S. states suffered direct tornado hits in spring 

2020, causing upwards of $125 million in insured damage. A marked increase in hangar rash and other ground incidents as 

crews returned to work after a long hiatus generated millions of dollars in repair claims as the price of parts and labor rose during 

the pandemic. 

Also, though there were fewer flights in 2020, more fatal airline losses occurred in that year (eight accidents resulting in 315 

fatalities) than in 2019 (21 accidents resulting in 257 fatalities), according to the Flight Safety Foundation. High-profile accidents 

such as the January 2020 helicopter crash that killed nine people including basketball star Kobe Bryant and the midair collision of 

two small aircraft that killed eight people in July 2020 added to the loss record. 

The year also saw the fallout from the Boeing 737 Max accidents, as claims from the loss of two airline hulls and hundreds of 

lives, plus worldwide grounding of the airframe by governmental bodies, have reportedly topped $2 billion. The annual worldwide 

aviation collected premium in 2019 was just under $2 billion, meaning the 737 Max crashes will likely wipe out an entire year's 

worth of worldwide aviation premiums over time as claims are paid. 

REINSURANCE WOES 

Due to high hull values and high liability limits associated with aviation insurance policies, most insurance carriers must 

themselves purchase insurance (called reinsurance) to help spread the risk, preventing any one claim from bankrupting a 

company. The reinsurance market, which also covers property and casualty insurance, life and health, worker's compensation, 

and other industries, took a beating during 2020 due to natural catastrophes such as Hurricane Laura, which itself caused an 

estimated $10 billion insured loss. 

According to "Willis Re 1st View: The Perils of Unmodeled," a reinsurance report published April 1, insured natural catastrophe 

losses totaled $78 billion in 2020, up $25 billion from 2019 and 17 percent above the average annual loss over the last 10 years. 

A January 2021 report from reinsurer Aon reported an estimated $97 billion in insured losses due to natural catastrophes, or 40 

percent above the 21st-century average. 

S&P Global Ratings' Global Reinsurance Highlights 2020, published in May 2020, indicated that Covid-19 losses eroded the 

buffer of many reinsurers and predicted: "If 2020 catastrophe losses reach the level reinsurers have budgeted for, we expect at 

least eight of them to suffer a capital event." A chart published in that report indicated an industry loss of $75 billion-plus Covid-19 

losses would result in the catastrophe budget and prospective earnings being insufficient to cover the total loss, affecting as 

many as 15 reinsurers. 



The tragic crash that killed Kobe Bryant, his daughter, and seven others in January 2020 was one of several losses that contributed to 
recent insurance rate increases. 

REINSURANCE EFFECT ON AVIATION 
In an attempt to refill empty coffers, reinsurers increased their rates in 2020. While worldwide reinsurance rate increases in the 

property and casualty markets ranged between 5 and 30 percent, aerospace reinsurance rates increased a minimum of 25 

percent for insureds who were loss-free and as much as 250 percent for certain insureds who had previous loss history, 

according to various sources. 

The higher cost of reinsurance meant insurance carriers were forced to increase their rates as well, and underwriters began 

tightening up liability limits, reducing coverages, and scrutinizing operations. 

For existing policies, there's a much stronger mindset of driving toward an adequate rate for the risk class, as well as managing 

the exposure," said Wesley Collier, senior vice president and light aircraft product line manager for Old Republic Insurance 

Group. "Each risk is evaluated based on its own individual risk factors. While make and model flight experience probably remains 

'king' among all factors for getting an underwriter comfortable with a pilot, many other factors weigh in on the decision to accept a 

risk, and ultimately the rate generated...Obviously, clean accounts with fewer elevated risk factors will have more options in the 

marketplace." 

The worst hit may be small single-ship and single-pilot aircraft operators; the ones who made it through the pandemic squeeze 

are now finding themselves in an insurance conundrum where rate increases can reduce profitability to the point of nonexistence. 

The "USI 2020-2021 Commercial Property & Casualty Market Outlook" noted that for owner-flown aircraft higher liability limits are 

scarce, pilot age and training are being scrutinized more heavily, and premium increases are in the high double digits— between 

50 and 100 percent. Single-pilot charter operations are under intense underwriting scrutiny and limits have been drastically 



reduced. Rotorcraft operators have been particularly hard hit with rate increases of 50 to 150 percent, depending on loss history. 

Large fleets of both fixed- and rotary-winged aircraft with a history of losses are requiring layered insurance programs where 

multiple insurers each assume a portion of the risk, 

David Merker, region manager of aerospace in North America for Willis Towers Watson, says that pilots and operators can 

improve their rate situation through various safety-related initiatives, including participating in the FAA Wings program, increasing 

make and model time, and engaging in simulator-based training. "Anything you can do to improve your proficiency as a pilot, 

especially relative to the aircraft you're insured in, will factor favorably into your rates," Merker said. "There are a lot of programs 

offered through the insurers themselves, or they provide preferred vendor access to upset prevention and recovery training or 

safety management system assistance. Attaining a higher pilot rating is also always favorable. It shows your dedication to the 

aircraft platform and your proficiency in flying that aircraft." 

https://www.ainonline.com/aviation-news/business-aviation/2021-06-01/hard-insurance-market-not-entirely-due-pandemic  



.0 ...- , 
° T, 0 
° t f' 

! 
Ig 2 t 

 II  g 2 

l' - g 1 ii 
46 --u-,, 
t a 
a v "3 
gill 

0 	
m m .4 
2 i :4 l'2 

1 
 .  

Z 	§I. 'a  
!.... ■ 

D 	O. 7ti  i 

E -0  < 7811 

cn [..13 	

Cd "I-rei 1 e 

w 

Z 	
: 

(7, 
m 	

.6 c 8 

—.„ ... 	' 

D  

a> 

£"V9- 

 '&.: 15)  

• t 
, -, 41 
E I! E 

- -0 LL 
Cl) a) 
4-1  L) 

+*.1 
 CY) 0 . 

I— 2 
a 15 

r— 5 E 

D
-Y

E
A

R
 U

p
da

te
  

11 
U)  



C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 

M
a

rk
e

t  
U

p
d

a
te

  a
n

d
 R

a
te

  F
o
re

c
a
s

t  

.62 
(0 

0 

(1) 
0 
0 

U 
CD 

w In
te

rn
a

ti
on

&
_-1

1 

0 

CD 

E
nv

iro
n

m
e

nt
a

l 

In
du

st
ry

  U
p

da
te

s  

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n  

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n  

Pu
b

lic
  E

n
ti

ty
/H

ig
he

r  
E

du
ca

ti
on

  

0) 

7 

0-) 

Li
fe

  S
c

ie
n

c
e
s  



v .-• 	SC 	 cj! 

	

v 	SO 
----2L, 	 ..- 	v 	 -• 	s., 	, •="-., 7,1 	7..!  

tar:, 	 0. 	v J r; 	.... — ,_ 	
0 v -=-, 0,  ..„. 	3 	 • 

	 ''• 	 6r..H.- :. 
,-,-1 ,...-- 	,-.: 	, 	7'.. 	 •41; 	2 	0 	0 	. 	;-• 	 -;_., .,, 	,, 	

4-4 
0 -.--, 6 

. 	.- 

	

(^..1 	, 	Ci 	r 	 ,',.... 	, -•.-. 	,-,,' 	C 	;-:: .7=-- ,- 	r, 	, 	,,..,„ 	 -.1 	.,,, 	 , 	C 
6 

V 	,., 	 •' __,..'" 	, 	'''' 	..... 	 0 	 .,,,i 	C 	6 	j-, 	, • 
......, ,,-, 	,- 	5- 	..". 	 • C7-1 70 '6 	- +-; - " 	$ .. ■ 	, , 7 , ,.., .. 	r 	

_, 	,__, 	,_, 	„_, 
6 	e-' 	C-) r•- ■ 	'-- -..-.•■ 	0 	b.0 7C 

4.-, 	r 	,,L._, .., 	 ::.., 	,.., r--, 	 ,- 	■ 	 ,,_, 	,., 	,-'.1 	 r., , 5 .  ', 	."= 	- '" 	'.-.) '.::,.--. 	ifY„, 0 	6 	6 	 u 	:-.., 	-, . -- ■ 	> ,... .-- 
- 	,... 	. = 	":". 	,.--73 	..„, 	'.. 	 • -, 

- 

	

, -0 	 0 	u  ...... 	.-. 	v 	C7,' 	
, 	Lad 	 ,-, 	,,,- 	 •-, ,..., 	 cLi 	0, 	U —,_, .-..., 	•;,) 	r . - , r 	. 7 	> 	1-; 	U 	r - r . 	 J.-7; 	, 	,__, 	rli 	,..... 	r 	.... 	....• 	r r 0 	.:..... 	___, 	r 	.,-.... ,-":'-' 0 	'-' ,-•• 	-,- 	.-, 	# 	Ei 	 ,--,  r< 	 -5-5 	,-., •—• 

	

_0 	
,-' 	!_, 	v ! ••• !--' 7--"' c--1 .„.. 	,... 	,!-- ,..,-- 	v 	g ,.....„ 	0 	,.;-=',) 	0 .7 	c,,! 	• ' 	:'-' 	47" 	U 

,-, 	,-. 	7 'r-I--• 
,1.., 	--, 	• ,. ) 	C.,) 	

. ,_, 	,, ,,-----, 	-, 	,-•-•, 	1_., 	7.,' 	0 e-, 	.1,_, 	'••,..i 	r I' ') 	, 	`.../ "I •-• 
U "30 0 

0 	', 	t-11".  7-. 	,•,'i 	'',-2. 	F3 ct  , 	;.j ....- 	._, 

	

U 	
' ."-' tr-' 5-'2 . 	. 57-: 5f1 	 0 :.: 	 ' 	-7--, 	 .   

_,__. ,..-- 	0 	5 	' 	!  .  !--' " 7  --'. 	 v 	- ' - 	-',.,'-'' 
.„ 	,....., 4.-• 	, 	0 	.__, 	 17" 

	

..,,. 	. 	•-• 	 r-'•-• 	Lj 	
v 

' - ' - 	 .) 0 	,t,'"- 	,-. • -'-'-' 
',..--1 .0-- 	r-.L.  . 57', 	'•-) -57_)•  

,_. 	,-- 	. - 	.4-• 

	

.,_.• 	/7. 	. •-• 	" 
, 	 " 	,•-• 	'-'• 	" 	,,• 0 , .."  v 	 U 	C.-, 	r7.1 	7,r   7" 	"I 

	

..3 	'-', 	L) 3 	
v 

,_, 	.-..- 	<.1 —,.. , 	o 	--' 1.. = 	t:, U 	c.,,, v) 	
, 	 .... 	,, 

1'-- 	- 	-.Lt. 	 • ....,. 	',2 	.5 	'7' 	,-' 	... 	, 	- 
r-, 	_l 	,-, 	`--, 

%--. 	 `,) 	..'-, 	J 	77i 	 ..r, ',-= 	
'- ' ' ' - -2 ■ .= 1 	20 	' -;_ , 	- ' 5 	 ,.. 	t 	''.5- :  ,., L2 , ,--,: 	- 	0 	L-, 	,_., 	,,, 	: ,,- 	.,..73 	,s 	,', 	_,__,- 	, 

	

,.-. 	. 	._.,,  

	

c, 	,  	.F,_, 	c) 	,,,- 	, 	,,__, 	.,-,, 	,,,,, 	q, r-72, 	'- 	, i 	- b- 	:,L,-- 	L.., 	,.7._ , .„-, _ „,•:, - •_, , ,., ,-,, , 	7,:l. ,-,,,, 	-1-• 	Cl" 	 ,.."'. 	L---' 	r.- 	..,, • '• 
> 	r.--•-■ 	0 	...." 

•T' . = ,-, 	
0 .0 '5" 	U 	' 	'- 	

?) 

	

>,.. 
c" • 

, I , 	 ....' ^ 	 ■555. 0 -- ,--. 	'5 	
5-5t, ,.-,-, 	S--I 	,-. 	

, 	■.r 	:::  — 	r,.L, ..-:: 	..1-4: 	• " 	(L., ,_,....,,,, 	,.. ,-• 	0 	""1.) 	;.,.„ 	
7:::  	 LI' 	'.■") 7,-).  1- 	7)  

',---1. 	,....., 	r" 	",5 •-= 
ZA 	 •--• 	 .• 	';-1 7'  

r•J '3'0  74-•-■ > 
>5. .'7.1 • ;7_.' - ,7-•,, 	0  -,„_,  --..; 	. 	...) 5:5 r-C. 5  --=:'  • J-7.. 	e5r 

0 . =5 	0 ,-.„ 	•,-, 	
■ '5.5  .,‘1...' 	..--,P 	0 	'''' -'' 	sC ' ,-, 	•-, 	,- ,-,- ■ 	;:r" 	v 	'I) 	1, 	'•=,' 	o 

	

0 	 r 
' 	

0 

. 

„.)  „ z. 4-,  
1.1'1 	V0 _2.5 	. ■ 	 '" 1,;< 	Z,•• 	

7--. 	5: 	r._,   ' ,:j 	, b 7-_,-,  _,-z, 	0 	,-, 6 
n.-J    

(..„, 	,., • ,-- 	, 	t, 	=014; 	-;°.,..r.j,-; 	77-t 	',.".: 	c.., 	- 7-= 	''') r 	,--7 r-=-1 	 • 	--• 	-, 	,--• '6 	''''' n----  73. 	;"-2' 	
ell 	 , 

	

- 	';-- 	J ,._. 
C) 

- 1-] 

  

t.1 	r•,,r, 	:::::•, 	72, ,...„.... 	,-,% 	,r--, 	,•-• .1-• 7"..1 	rj, 	C. 	0 	..--• 	r_ 	c.,.. 

	

....r• r; ,-- -0 	--• 
r', 	•-• -c• .=--- 	r...• 

• -. 7  0- r r 0 -- 

	

r -. 	. ;•:-.' 	,.,...' 	r-1  • 	4-:-..'  .i- 
__,1" i '...1•2,:r 	_,.  7-1 1.'  I'  

••-• 	, 

	

._, 	r„." 	'7.1 	•Z 	1.1 	CL., 	0 	:.7./ 	5", 	-. 
, 	0. v _,,  

	

- 	_, ) 

	

— 	,..... 
■-, 	f:.- 	- r, 	 2, 	 "74 	.L.', 	 ■-. r-, 0 

• - 	r.", 	tr,, 	 r ',=' 	, 	,.,.., -C-' 	0 LT. ' „..--... , _ 	... -,-, 	 ,, J ...7,.'- ■ 	 ,,.'-' 	0,-' 	-C 	0 -,r, 	C 	0 	> . '; -- 2 	U 
111 	 ..,-;-' 17 	-■ 	 6 	.-■-■ 

,-,,, <1 ''-...- Z. 

0 ,--) a7'. 	-..-- 	'f■ 	 ,--, 

C7) 

 P C., 

	

7:1 •-___.." r•-• . r.--• 	13 	 :. 	> 	.;-.• 	, 	.7', 	0 (...) 

-1 	 ,r, 	, 	,Z1.) 	c.,  ' 	r" 	t' 
, 	,•-• 	 •,:., 	•.1) e 	' .P- r 	U •1) 0 :v 	.- J ,_, 	, ;.... 	,--,.. 	,--, 	-,t.-- .' 	,--_, 	c,-;.' 	76_,, 	3 	,- 	r- 	'-' v .--, 	= 	V 	,c- 	...., 	...-‘ 	...., 	- 	0 	 ' 

	

...H 	• -. .-  	v 0 	 ,- 	L O U 
, 	'.7_.! 	,....• 	• ,- 

•dr../ 	 •-•! 	,  
...., 	•-•-• 	''' 	'J  .:0" 	, 	 ,..) 

...-/ 
-■*--' 	',,,.---1 	__„,.,-,-- 	•:9 ,,, r., 	0 ,-, 	 2,- >. r"-." 0, 

Le :rt-  V -0 
,..5 	,.... 	a: V 	 LT; V 	 •. 4  ...-, ..., 

• . 	,,, 	V .....2 	,_-_,_ , 
• ,- '- -, 

P.,  

	

- - -, 	,:: 	'-'EL, ''.r; 	:," 	,,,,,-, 
,_ 	- 	Pr3  7---' 	*."3 	2-■ 	 '.4 	,..., 	;---- t'''' '1) 	

6 	n 	••-- 	hp.C, ^.7.) 
fL.. 	.6 ..1 	0 . 	L- 	0 	••...., 	:, 	...,.. — 	,---1 	 3 	- 	,b,_,2 -,,,=).' 	V- 	-- 	r--) 	.7... 

_,.." 	;--4 	•:--; „.= 	.,.-;  
-•-,..., 	,r, 	, 	4-, 	 ,-,... 	v • r_l.• 	c...--;  ,•-•,2, 	y 	;.i, 

, n 
 v ›.-. 	r,,  L-- 	0 	 v-7 7.:J 	 -..-: ,-- 

• •■• 	
...., Ft 

,--. 
. , 	,,,', ,--, 	 ,..' 	bk. 

_ < 
, 

	

0 	.,„ 	..,J ..,.Q ' 

< r, 
OJ 	 C44 	.4 	 -‘-' 	.C.7`.. 	g 	.,--. 	C,.,...7' ^,- 4 ,  	0 	, 	:--. 	;.7. 	- — 	,-- 	...., 

--,--, 	7, 	...1, 	, 	,,, 	. 	7.0 r$  
,••=-. .,2,1 	u 	el • - 	vi 	-,, 	-0 	-,•'-- 	 0 	a.) 	7;2, J 	 ':'_- ■ --- 	,,,,, 	- C: 	„:-:,- 	 - 	:7; 	. 	 -=, 	,--' 	;.z • - - 	I) 

,...) 	_„-_,-- 	„:2, , 	_-,f2, ,, .:.... y 	7.7.-, 70 	-   
	..., 

0' 3 7-. v - 

	

,,,,, 	C6 	.-'-' 	,, 	c...) 	;,,_, 	,,..3 	.,f. 	v 	--.' 	._, ,-. 
„---..., 	:!-i 	-----......cl!t .:_, 	-,,,, -   

, 	
'•-• . FT,' 11 U 0 E, 	c-_,'' 	E:-:- .15 :?:, L 	,..., 0  ...... 

	

,, , ,, 	 — 	 , 	 , 	 ,...... 	 6 	7.'■ 	 , .f.., 
..--. 	...,.. 

”' 
. 

,-_," • ,-.- 	0 	,,,, 	, 

t•-• 
r.," 7.) 	 7_1 , 

	

,-, 	 • 	 - ''  r,'-.) 	'1) 	- 	' 	 ,-7., 6 ,._, 	C..., 	-,-- 

	

' a . / ..7.1 	f„) 	,, 	"...., 	-'-' -7 -7.5 	, 	Tr.  -•, 	 r- 

	

C?, LT' 	- _ .,-. ,_. 	0.-, '-' 	'r4 	.--- 	,--, 	.5-75 	...5 
?, 	r• .-3 F r>  3 

<'• 	 --5 	 0 	> 	Cot 	I..,  -5." 

	

,... 	 r, 	0 	0 	•-- 	L) .rr, -- 	...-• 

	

,••-•.-. ••• 	

-1,•
,,, 

. 	 .3, ,:.., 	 1..., 	 •Ll 	 >, , 	 5', 	° 	•-• 
,-, 0 	 rt 	.•,^.• 0 -,-.1 —. 0 	

;7_,• 0 '7_, 2 v 	0  ,,!. 	';'=) 	'7.1 	-• 	_2, 	,,, ^C 	,' 	,...• 
-; ..._ 	--0 	,-... 	v 

,,, 	— 	-.) 	,-.. 	' .-- 	- 	'' 	':',  
tr) 	0 . 	,....„.,, 

', 
,- 	....L., L---„, ; 	0 	.,- 	, 	,-J ....' 	(1.)  	:.--1  

	

r -',---, 	,-' 13  

U 
 r;5-. 

 ..., 	 T-' 	
'1) 	 ° .2:.' 	 7,.' .'-.7) ,T., 	P 	'-:' 	0 	= F:-.-. 	L.) 	p 	:v 

.„.., 
..,...,  

.,-;  

	

,,,, 	0 	--7.7. 	.,7, 	- v 	,.., 	....) . 	, 	,_ 	„., 	,.., 	,-- 	p..■ 9,- 9 -,-. ci U    -7' 	'' 	:,-) 	:.;-> -7-, 	 7-1  -=-4  c.,= 	7-1 	''''' 	 -F. 	•,,, 	 .t_. 	r r  
(-.. , 2- - i• '' 	7 	, 	C: 	C 	, 	̂-' 	 t , 	

>, '-' 	 ,-T, 	
,7; 	 'I'. 	 '-,' 	 C':::;■ 	 '- 	 ,--.1 	, 

, ,• 	v 

	

Ct., r -. 	t./3 __"-2, 	'...i 	,r1 	0 
r,  0 	,t,  

	

.-. 	6 u 	r 
4-1 	• 	r..'  r:.2_,"  

„-, 	d 	1../ 	' 	 ...i 	2" 	er:•■ 	 ;.* 	J '-':-..) 	 5-.1'',  :=5 	 rt 	 4 -4 	bc >, 	■ • -. 	-, 	-,,---, .= ,-,.. 
> _L-,- 	..-- 	;---, 	 - 	- 	tz.■ -4 	, 	-',-, 	'• .-7_,' 	, 	H 	,...,_, 	.,--! 	- I 

	

.:-.7.7 	• :_, 	
,-,  

	

,- 	r- > • -. -,- r--, 	0 • .... 	 .__, .-, 	6 .  4--., 	 ,D 	
^ 	r 	/ 

 .2.4 

.1-, 	E 	4 = 	4-..• 	/-•,....,„ ..,_., 
1.1 	/-- ,.1•4 	,.-;, 	

0 	° 	•'-. 	 ■-: 	.7 	.g• 
,•-•., 	 r•-, 	•-, CD 	V 	r 	' 	 , 4-, 	, 	 r,,,o ,t., 	 4....: 

Le 	'-' 	p 	-..-, 	- 	7 .—, 	0 	5,__, 	. . ,-; 	...5 	, 	,--. 	-.7, 
r ) v -,0 ---' 	' 	G.) v .) v 	 .., 	v> ,L)..1 

	

.■-, 	,.., 
I.,) .-• 	, 	, 

r." 	.77 N  tor) r
^

+ 
''Tr 
	

2 ''-', 	, Z.,  1.5'  t 	, 	,_," •-, 	." 
"..., ..,...., V 	HC:"--." " 7 7:  	. r. 4  " 7  

	

..a." 	',"7 	 • " 	, 	> 	".",, 

,  
"r7  

0 ' ,7:, 

...... , C 
, • '' 

J:a2 	.....07 	 . _0 .."'" "-• 
" 	;.,, 	/7:3 • " 	..I7' 	" 	 f" -7.1 	• 	,t 	- 	'.1-, :1 	`-' 	r 	,...i • 	.1,2, 	4-, ,_ 	, "1-_, 	 6 • r 71 

r..,„ 	. 	, 	-. 	,..t. 	, 	6 	•,,' 
-i--,  7' 	11... 

	

7,,  	:-...4 	,..., 	.....1 	,-.■ 
•-•-• 	• -, 	,,L., 	(.7),  

7, 	:',.• ^70 , •-• 7-• 

•-•-• 	C-2. 	.•,••_) 	CJ 	 r-P 	C7 	••-• 	tf 	0 . ■,..: 	f-, 	P 	;3 	-,7,, 	0 	
,__, 	>,,,,l, 	,,...,..y ,..,,,,,..7i  

0 	̀ ' -. 	r 	r 	-• 	'r,-, 	',.7 	7.,  •••• 	,__, 

	

:-.". 	'..-.) 	f•--1-.. (.21.. 	7-; 	t,,:.' 	 ...1--■ 	 ...., 	 '-•- •:,■ 	 .., .1-, 	(L., ---`5 	-6 , J.._ l.., 	 0 ..,'-' ■ 	" 
'''' 	" 	0. 	F.-  ' ' •• 

77.5 tjp ••- . ,..„_, 	C".■ 	 ti.r., 70 	,., , 	"17 	
';"': 	".• 	U t"'• 	"',.,' 	E 	k., :..".? 	, 	-..-, ..., 

. 

'J .1..-. 	,C: 	1,• 	0 	,_•11) 	
C,..) ,-. 	,- 	- 

. = = -,, 
,-. 	,- 	--, 	j...., 

1,.r) 	r, 	.1,, 	"" 	••• 
CL, 	 (7 	0 • " 	.0-4 " 	' 	"" 	'7 	"2-' 	":/' 

	'''. 	•,7-• 	"," 	 r". 	:-.' ' -'2, 	',..'" .r.•,,, 	, 	" 	
t 	'7. "'' • 'L''  ' „.,,:j 	EI 

" 	 .._, •-• 	 ,• •-6 _Z- , 0 2 0 	7■77-ri " U tai C,I 	 " 	 CI 	1-• ''7'  
C: 	, • " ■". . " " • (7J 	0 	, 7", . " .-..-,. 	• 	.' 

••-•• 	.._, 	," 	U 	7-7  
r ' 	'r.. 	U 	;.--, 	,-. 	.-- .--,-...-_. 	;•••• 	7 	c-.:,.., 	:;„ l•-■ 	 .:7'.. 	4-.■ ,, 	, 	 ..../ 	...-2, F' 	..-  7: 	, 	.--' -., 	-7- 	.... 	,71 	,..... 	r,:,_, .2:„- 	 -, 	,•-■ 

.., 
V ,-  .,_. ei t 	1: 15, 	 ,-7, e.7.-; 	 $1.4  • ''' -76' 	

0 	, 	 -!",' 	 -, 	 -, C..1 ' -1-, 	6 • t--■ >-.. 	,_-0 r..■ 	E 12-:•7  -C 	— ,,,,. 6 
0 	t 	, 	r 	, 	r•-•:,_,  •--7Dr 	 -) 	„•-• 	,-.  .--,..• 	r 	7_5 _c_,-'• 	,-  

0 	r 	 •7;' '-'••■ 	"9,--,  • ". ' 	r- 

	

,..., 	-,-, --,--, 	..7..„ 	L., 	CZ 	c. 	, 	',..,, 	-, 	
p 
7-.' 	 ,,- 	r-■ 	 ...- 	, 	, 	* 

-I--• 	-.1r- 	,••• 	r-.._:,..., 	 •.7'. ...Q, 	1.., 	r. 	— ',.., P 	
' 

::•-• ;S:'• v •.:: 	
,- P v - 	r

, 	. 
fa-, 	 -,..■ 	 •••' 	'•-• 	."`• ''' 	5:)  	E5 	'. 	C 	2 	 _ 4•._-.,   -Er, 	 ,L, 	..„.7 ...... 	,.,.... 	,•;3 

	

 CJ 	1., 	i:  '"'" y' 
 „.....,-  fi  	..., 	,.., 	CZ. 	,-, 	, 	

L 	':;r!., 	v 	t 	, 	J ''',2! 	;'-'n 	
r7:,,) 	,--. 	0 -,,, 2 	.:.L,) o -F., 	,-, 	,75 	 ;..,-, 	 ., 	-.' 	V 	,-,c 

	

(--. 	bo 	,t 	F. 1=' 	E., -•:.r., 2,-z! 
iF 	5,•.,•1,1 0 - 1-2, 	.-, 	, 	rl ,..a -z._,- 	,.. 	,-: 	C.,' 	t,r, .17 	,i. 	• 	,7.-,,  

,1.) 	--, 	,.._, 	_. 

> • • • . 7 	>" ' 	E 	• , • -••'' . > - - ' 

• ••^' 	=L.. '"' 	U 	ft 	'-' 	=:' 	 7•• 	•, 	,-...., 	 ..-.., 	J.. 	r. 	.--' 	^-.'• 	 •••,4 	A  
VI 	1, 	•,,•-•.; 

	
✓ 	 .,- 	;:---.. 	...., - 	_ 771 	'1., 	0 	.... 

r 
r %_)".. 	,-. 	, ..., 	0 	

6  „, ,..-U =-.' 	, 	0 	C-,_., 	,•-■ ID 4-.
,y.) .- 	..;.• 	=.1, .■,.,),_ .t.'”, 

..,,, • .. 	, 	..-- 	n 	 r, ..,== 	r -,-- 	̂- 	.-) r 	r-,_ _,z1C.■ 	„,.., 	'',5 	1:„.„-' 
•-: 	2 	,-_-,., 	,...=, ---,-- r_.■ . 	.— - rr.• 	5:5. 	tIA 3. 	.-- 	• '-' 	•.-5 	5t. -r--.5 	° 	'.-555  

	

t...')/D .7..-r.,  ," '1' 	r 	0 	i•="r, F_. 	'7, 	 . ; - _ rE 	= 	,.. 	? 	';:-,:,' 
Le. 0 	v - 	 7- ' 'ci> 	7-7,' 	'",• v 2 ,-, 7" ,-, 

,  . 7_ ; 70 . F.'  0 

- .. 	, - ■ 	 , -... > 	.._ , , '11 
C.'. , 7.1 ':1 C. 'L-)  

	

 CT: 	a, 	,_, 	-..,.. 	•.:-4 	6' 75 
, 	-.2E' -7... •:5', 	-"'I 	-5-=. 	

: 	1,   . ; - - .- ' 	: 	 0 -5  L ' 5 	, 5,  	 . 	•.-1-' 	0 	... 
c_5.,_,  t-' 	0 	'51) I-  I 	GA 	I, • , 	 :;,:, 	rj: 	'f, 73 "2.n. 	'''.-- 

C: 	1-. 	7.- 	- 	,:-_-. 	, 
G. 	v 	..e.7, 	 , 	U ,̀- ' :,--., _,_.  r-' 	:_'• 	,----: 	'-, 

,,, 	-, 	 - ',.-' , , t C4;. ,.7", ---: 
r 1 0 -'2„  , ê ,  7....• . C 45, ',.... 	 4--' 	,-- 	•.-- 	'3 	..--. 	' 

„,  	J-7, 

■ 	 ■ 	 ■ 	

06r, 
 __,- • - - ,-- ., 	_ - 	-- -6-',„ 	..-4 	„tip 	- • • 	":"-' ,..3' s", 	.(:.; - rr.., 	.--- 	-7-,  '73 	••-r 	0 	5:._, 	 r.../ 	,-, 	, 	.,' 	'1',  

2:.., ..71 ._,7.,, 	7,7 	t. 	7,' 	,21.,„„ „1-  ,-...2.--  

...., 	,,, 	- 	• ,•-• 	.....ri 	.,-..,... . , 	?,,0 ,...,_.,3 	. 2 . __E, 	 ,--, 	...- 	1., 	,.,, 	- 	.-• 	-- 

..._., 7:3  ..,„.. ..-• 

. • 	..) 	• '"-- 	.1-.) 	,•,.., 	T--:, 

4-. 

	

fr,' 	7i 	 ‘" t 	•713 -1-,  ::', '-' 	t) 
.--■ 	 ,...., 	,.., „...., 	, 	.: 	, L'-'  ''' 	-1. 	e- 	,--,.. • r 	n - 	.-,._, 	

.. = 	, 	7,-..' 	'-/' 	4 _', 7, 
r,  v . = V ' •  

6-, 	• ,..- 	'-,-, 	, 	,_, 	....,-; ,, J. 	el 	..o 	',..-, 	 7-!', 	 :2. -`-,---1 	 ., 	„..---:' 	- 	- 	,..-- 	,...., _0 	..7.- ---:, "' 	0' 	....0 	= 	,,,,t !.--i- , ,7... ••-g 	•„- 	7.; 	,-1... 	. 	,---: 	:1, 	-'' 	',.• 	•-• 	e---, 	,..,...t--, 2 La'• 	i---.,_„ 	a '7-.4,  
❑ 	'-' 	P . :=/-"' 	''2 	P 	-• PL 	7-7, 	..., 	0. 	

,.....,,...,, ..4 4 7_,,, 	,.‘,_,T.,5,  _ .7)....5,,  

3... 	,_.. 	....-5 	, , 	:__, 	,_, C,....) 	2.5., 	r- 	, 
- .,_ 8  

3  " 	I.?, 77-3 	 _'-i .E-:-  
_,,,,,, 	...7.,,, -r..,'  

	

. ,.., 	•_-2; 

	

..it 	.4 	r.; 	

C:.■ 	 ..7-. 	•-) 	:---- 	c-,-, '.--. ,r• 	--' -0 . = --r-% 

II 	 • 



I 

0 

U
p  

1
0
%

 t
o
  3

5
%

 

Fl
at

  t
o

  u
p
  5

%
**

 

U
p  

5
%

 t
o

  2
5%

**
* 

U
p  

5%
 t

o 
 1

0
%

 *A
  

U
p  

5
%

 t
o
  1

0
%

 *A
 

U
p  

2
0

%
 t

o
  3

0%
 +

  A
  

D
o

w
n

  1
0

%
 t

o
  u

p
  5

%
**

 

U
p  

2
5

%
 t

o
  5

0%
 +

*
**

 

U
p  

1
0

%
 t

o
  6

0
%

 

U
p  

1
0

%
 t

o
  5

0
%

 

U
p  

1
0
%

 t
o
  5

0
%

 

u
p
  t

o
  7

5
%

 fo
r  

la
rg

er
  f

ir
m

s)
  

U
p  

5%
 t

o
  7

5
%

 o
v

e
ra

ll 
(5

%
 t

o 
 2

5
%

 fo
r  

sm
a

ll
er

  f
ir

  

a 

-T
ea

r  
O

A
 

N
W

IR
11

11
74

 

U
p  

1
0

%
 t

o
  1

5
%

 

U
p  

5
%

 t
o

  1
0

%
 

U
p  

1
0

%
 t

o 
 2

0
%

 

C
A

T
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
  w

/
M

in
im

a
l L

os
s  

H
is

to
ry

  

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
  N

o
n

-C
at

a
s
tr

o
p

hi
c  

w
/G

o
o

d 
L

o
ss

  H
is

to
ry

  

C
A

T
 o

r  
N

o
n
-C

A
T 
 P

ro
p

er
ty

  w
/P

o
o
r  

L
os

s  
H

is
to

ry
  

Y
E

A
R

-O
V

E
R

-Y
E

A
R  

(
Y

O
Y

)  

M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 M
A

R
K

E
T

  U
P

D
A

T
E

  A
N

D
 R

A
T
E

 F
O

R
E

C
A

S
T  

U
p  

5
%

 t
o

  2
5

%
 

E
xc

es
s  

A
u

to
  B

u
ff

e
rs

  

W
o

rk
e

rs
'
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n
  G

u
ar

an
te

e
d 

C
os

t  

W
o

rk
er

s
' C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

  L
os

s  
S

e
n
si

ti
v

e  

U
m

b
re

ll
a  

&
 E

x
ce

ss
  L

ia
b

il
it

y 
 (

M
id

d
le

  M
ar

ke
t)

  

U
m

b
re

ll
a  

&
 E

xc
es

s  
L

ia
bi

li
ty

  (
R

is
k

 M
an

ag
em

en
t)

  

U 

U 

L

76 
2 
(a 

a; 

P
u

bl
ic

  C
o

m
p

an
y

  D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

  &
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

  

P
ri

va
te

  C
o

m
p

a
ny

  a
n

d 
N

o
t-

F
or

-P
ro

fi
t  

(N
FP

)  
D

ir
ec

to
rs

  &
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

  

E
m

p
lo

y
m

en
t  

P
ra

ct
ic

es
  L

ia
bi

li
ty

  (
EP

L)
  

L T 
2 0- 
,6 

o • 0 

O 0 
O 0 

	

I *IC 	C.6  
0 
0 

	

f.1 	TV 
C C 
(13 

	

-C 	_C 

	

to 	N 

	

VT 	V') 

	

CD 	CD 
• —I 
4-) 

CI3 

	

CU 	as 

	

LL 	u- 

›^. 

	

4, 	.1.,  

.7E 

	

.0 	-0 
ra 

:.71 
O 0 

< 
• >.^ 

3.. 
(C3 

E E 



M
ID

-Y
E

A
R

 M
A

R
K

E
T

  U
P

D
A

T
E

  A
N

D
  

R
A

T
E

  F
O

R
E

C
A

S
T 

Y
E

A
R

-O
V

E
R

-Y
E

A
R

 (
Y

O
Y

)  
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 

-81
51.

1r
aT

itt
ee

 I 

CU 

4-0  

0 

I. 

U
p  

1
5

%
 t

o
  6

0%
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a

l L
ia

bi
li

ty
/

E
rr

o
rs

  &
 O

m
is

si
o
n
s  

1
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

  t
o

  f
la

t  

Fl
at

  t
o

  i
n

fl
a
ti

o
n
ar

y
  i

n
cr

ea
se

s  

E
nv

ir
o
n

m
en

ta
l C

on
tr

a
ct

o
rs

' P
o

ll
u
ti

o
n
  

2  2 E ° -.= 
(13  ... 
OD  
(V 	,-■ ! 73 --i 	■-' a, c  0 
c 	.E un ,c, :P 
O _ C - co 

"-- 0 0.0  '-. 
..P 	>, — C 
= ,-- 
= = o aj 4-- 
O -; 0- 	u_ ,--• (1., , 

Iv 
 

4, 	 Z Gv  
C 	-E' 

• 

0 ", s--  
C1.7 	--- 
E 	

<V , 0 0 
a) Q.)  LE 

C 	t'n  -° E 0- O ,- 
L... 	6 63  2 

ci 	td) • 7., a, __c_ 0 
t.L3 47"-c a* *I: t:D  

                                   

   

. r: 

E 
■ 
et. 
0 

a) 

8 

0 

0 

     

U
p  

5
%

 t
o

  1
0

%
  

                  

U
p  

1
5
%

 t
o
  3

0
%

  

 

NV
I  ;

_±
  M

  A
  

  

1
5

%
 t

o
  2

5
%

 

                                       

                                     

                                     

                          

In
te

rn
a
ti

o
n
a
l
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
,  

N
o
n

-C
A

T
 E

xp
o

su
re

  

          

                      

In
te

rn
a
ti

o
n
a

l 
P

ro
p

er
ty

,  C
A

T
 E

xp
o

su
re

  

             

 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
  &

 P
ri

va
cy

  (
C

y
b
e

r)
  

                                 

    

T
ec

h
n
o

lo
g

y  
E

rr
o

rs
  &

 O
m

is
si

o
n

s  

                             

                                 

                                 

              

U
ti

lt
u

ra
ir

cz
yl

li
 

 

In
te

rn
a
ti

o
n

a
l L

ia
bi

li
ty

  

                

           

K
id

n
ap

  &
 R

an
so

m
  

                   

        

R
ep

re
se

n
ta

ti
o
n
  

                     

                         

0 

   

                             

                             

                                    

                                       

                                        

                                        



U
p  

5
%

 t
o 

 1
0

%
 

M
id

-Y
ea

r  
20

21
 (

Y
O

Y
)  

P
ro

p
er

ty
  N

o
n-

C
at

as
tr

o
p

hi
c  

w
/G

oo
d 

L
os

s  
H

is
to

ry
  

P
r o

du
ct

  L
in

e  

C
A

T
 o

r  N
o

n-
C

A
T

 P
ro

p
er

ty
  w

/P
o
o
r  

L
os

s  
H

is
to

ry
  

C
A
T

 P
ro

p
er

ty
  w

/M
in

im
a
l L

os
s  

H
is

to
ry

  

•  R
  •

  P
E

R
T

  A
  

i+, ,0 "7- 
	

— 0 	s- 	
r.-. 

	

„ 	
CO

_. --,, 	--,--,- 	U 	 ...... 

::-. .7, .7 ,. 	 ,r,--- -,- 7,-- ••=1 ,7. , 7-, 	- 2  „:,--- 	 .,-,,-..-: 	
U 

 
: r .  

u 	 ,- 

r-t, 	 • 	
.,.. 	 ,-- 	 t-, 	, •.,=,' 	0  

	

7, •,-'-, "0 U -- u .:- 	 77--., t? 
U , 	'J 7., 	• :-. 	.. 	i , 

	

.2 • _, 2  u Erd 	-,-, C 

	

-,-, 	:---' 	;•,--,,. 	.'..-' 	
..., 

, '-:,.", 	,.....,--- 	,-7-,_, '--=•''' --,-.,_, 777 	rj. 	.:_,,.7.-  .27 	

.... 
. , 

P 	, 	
,-• 	r-. 	

,--, 	,.....' ' 	,,,•,, 

1-' 	J'772, 
' 3  

	

-L 	 •-,--r 	

-,-• 	 '-.,  

.__r1-•  •Z .7,(:) .-/'.7•U  -07 -5  75'  
='' 

,..., 	, 	••••■• .•,.. 	U 	' 	..,0 , 	
I • 

 
;-,-,. ,-  

L.> 0 	 - 

	

 

-, 0 	

=,. 

1-) 	̂-, 

	

i-7 	CLI 

	

L 	 - 	,,,,, 

	

,- , 71 	r ^ - . - . ., 2 	 ■T 	-7.5.,  
,.. 	,7,. 	

.■■■■ 

$---. 
.--; „,-, .-„, 	,,,_, 	s 	— r, 	

---, 
'- 	, 	, 	 - 	,....s 	r-.,  ..ZZ .„ 	 ,--__ 	0 

0 	7-,E, 	*.' 	rs7•4 	s_.., 	
Zs 	•,s -- ,--,  

	

" 	-.-;= 	rp 	,., 	-..., 	 '.." 3'3 	- 	,- ._ 

	

`-- -.1 "; r:•-. , c --,= -r'' '-' 7 	2  P 7  '-'z' to — -c, -7-,  

	

:- 	...,.; 	,_ 	• 	,,, 

:_i•-•_•: 	,-,' 	--.,,,, • - 	 , 	r, :_. „.--_:, 	, ___ 	, 	- 	0_ •-• 	-- 	.---. 	,...) -0 .:,_-_) 

s. 	l 72,  r, 	 T' 	,› 	,= '-'-0 	

-_-_ 

_c 	,-. 

--' 

	

t 	''1--  r - 

•-. 	...-_-.. 	,4_,_ •,_-7_: 	'7.,--.. 

0 	, 	bO r.•.:: 	s,:•-•"'  

... 	
,„ L, 

0_ 0 

	

..-, 	ci 	

-r= 	-' 	'') (-1 	'-'  

C. 

'.-, 	•-'2. 	-- 

	

',=-, 	'....-s 	= '•----, 	r._, 	0_ r=, 	„.7 
,--  

0.7_, -•'-' .,  

•-•.> 	r 	,.:, ,- - 

	

.- 	,-;,,s 	- 	• } „ 	,_,  , 

•--) 	-,--, 	'-' 

	

,0-- ;z 	-, 75 

	

,--;' 	r 	77-  D- • -2 	'1) 	,_.,- 	,c, ,= 	,_ 
' -..=1 .1:7),E,  1, 1-:  ° f; :' 

--• 	,7, 	r,i 	-;•-• 	,d, 	:•-, ---,' 

•-- 1'2 —. 	•-:' 	- 	...,= 	,-, 	',•:- 

._.., , _, . _ . , , L.  __C: d 	, _ 	:: 

= 	,C7,-- .C•-: 	7- 	-,..!:•=1 	.N 

,-- r 

rts , 
, 	

. 

s- 	z 	„ 	:-.' 	 -Z. ,...rtz'd  .22,• 	.._. 	,..„,, 	, 	,_ 
u 

	

,- 	,,;? 	,-2,-, >,., 
,,,, _" , -, J . r,  ,,_,,,,E 	, ..' ,', , 	, _` --) 	E , • • ''.1:. 	u „C■ ,°:11  

U , 4,:f 	̀, 
j 	 0 C, 	

, , 

	

'..*'' 	'' 	'n 	••• 	0 	P 	5 	.:',-' 	
,-, • "" 

	

4-, 	
r•-• 

.6'3-  • '-' .07r 	• 	C-j- 

ra_ ,•,_, _ 	,-,.. ,-. 	 r.•.■ 	•- 
0 - ,,,, 	- ,-• 

	

 -L-d; 	, 	1-- 	c: 	,,, 	4-, 

L 	• ,---1 ,.̂.., 

 

0 	, 	,, • ,-, 

	

CL, . ,C.. C0 	 r" 	 .•;.' 

F2,  '--7  7-. 	c-,,•, 	C'-` ',.-.) 
tip  ' 7'  n) 	'L) ;"-:: 	

7_  C 	

. 	> 	o7d7'  '.-7._,, 
 

U 	'1.r 	'-' 

	

L., 	r•-.. 	
,0 	;5. 	„,;_;.0 	F:, 	•;,,,,, .„,.;_,:., 	

--,  
-' 

-4.) r r 	 . 

,DID . 7 	. 

	

_0 > - 	 ,__ , . 	' ' ''" 7r- ,:-A,  0 	-, 	-7  P IL- F- -A? u - 
7--  '-(:', 	A:: ,:-_' 	--,, 	,--_,,_, r.>.. 	':t u ct, 

7:. 

	

,Dr,,, 	. 
 

---_, 	;,- 	„,--; 	_. J,-: 	, -- 
 

-7-_-; 	---. 	 ,_. 	-_, 	,L, 
u 

-_, 	-„ 	----) 	..-: 	,--, 	11-' 

 

..-C ' f0. 	,,,..:. ■,., 	
0 '-' 	I-• 	 '..-' 	:',..") 	

• 

' 	.• 	
J

.40 	r-2 	'E. 	
■■-' 	(-. 	 , 

...,5 	 0 

	

pj  : 	 0 r.)  

	

.--, 	
. . '.- ' 	.5: 	', • f:75, • - -2, 	0 	, 	

'''' 	''' 	7.., 	:2  

	

f, 	'" 	.:,r) 

- 	

,=--• 	0 	
f-. , 

.Z. 

 

U 	.., 	
.,--■ 	 l- ' 	 = 	''.-, 

 

	

 
*- 	- 	"1, 	:-■ 	 ;7_, • ■;-7.. 	0 	;:',2., 	".., 	 . ',7- 	c,_., 	

„ 

.71 : e-- :  

	

..-". ,,.., 	,1., 	C•J .2,,' 	, 	0 	
L  • 	,":, 	0 	,.__,• •-• 	 • 

	

r---■ ...0' 	
0 	r-,-t ,-; 	•__, 

	

> 	
0 	ba) -7-1 	

:-..., 	J

..-- 
C.1 	7 	-...',,, 	',',, , ::_> 	r-, 	, 

	

._, - - 	i.) 	I)  

	

',...) 	'...)  	'-' 	 :) 

-'-' 	'''' 	. rn --'-- 	0 	, 	,d-' y 	, 	_:__, 	 r-' 	4.-■-■ 
> --'7., 	'-. 74 	U '-':__, 	,-, 	 >,,, p 

_., 	
0 

, ' 	
✓

72: 	 7:, 	'" 	,,., 	C---: 	 7'. 	

IA 

, 	L- 	:••.^. 	,, 
 

	

';', 	,,• 	, 	C"'  

	

e--' 	
...r 

_ 	7,.., 
 

	

-0 „.j 	 C-, 
 

_C 

--, 	.- 	,.., 	z.,-•  
- 	! 	'') "7", • - 	u 	,-_,, 

r 	„s..., 	 J 

	-'=,.

._ 	 CD.... 
s' „  

r. 	,,-'4 	
cr-s 

 

■••-,, r--, 	0 , , ,_. 	

..C.  •-, 

s-,•-> ,,_. 	> 	.,_., 	.._ 	,„ 	,... 	
_4_, ,, 	.„ 	., 	,,,,. 

,----s- •-•-=' 	,...r., 	(L) ,,,I.) -,--, 	_ 	-',-;•-dr) .2 	E 	E• 	-,--'• 	2-) 	 >-. 2 	 >, 

.,--.... — 	,_ - r4 , :::-., 	,-_-_,) 	„:2, 	,-- 	r-1 	, ,>-, 	---s 	,,,.., 	
-,•7' 	

4-, 

4_, * „ 	,..., 	
,=, 	,•22. 	

sn 

	

.----•• 0 0 , 	, • ,-; 0, 	 0 -7-,  P g  ' 	E ",,,--',,- 	 D 

'-' 	----' z7., ..,:-• 	- ._,E.. ,:-..2, 	,._..,0 

U--' 	' - 	
'-••-) 'T 	;J . -- 	e>, 	;=-..-- ;.., 	 ;." 	f,: 	,.,./ ,_c, - - 	,--- 	(3 

U, 	P 	,.:.:; 	,-,, 	-,--, 	_- _ 
' 	,- 	0 	,--, 	 .3 •-=! 	c: 	- 	

. 
 

	

..7', 	, 	i 	.:7...:. 	u  	-0 	 'D 	-)  

,•-! , , -72, (2_, 	, --.7; 	"---, 

	

r '-'=; ::--- •-!-' 	C.: 77: --i-,-  -,;-: 	 0 

'''E.: 	-•-• 	Z 	,$) 	0.7., • 

'i

•71 	.0- 	s." 	_,-, 	-_. 	to .7,, 	;4,4,,  r.: 
.7...::),'"o  ,...1 	75 	jp._ 	,,i., 	8 	H,..-:: 

	

.,.= c'.  -..= rd 	 -::: 	--', c- 

	

-  	
,_ C 

	

7) 	2 	-4-) 

	

— 	J c 	, ..-,,_ 	,:;:, 	c 	-I-, 	0 	, 	r.,.., 	r 	,• 	U 

'- 	5 •.' 	
:-'T. %),-..) '4, L3 	

7.3 	13 
= 0 

'..- ,,__, 	L 	i-2. 	, 	 .-_, 	 > C.',  

	

' ` - ' 	0 	
0 	C r.--., 	 r.`•• 	7  r' 	 ,,,' 	 'DT:, 2, 

4   

	

o r,7,., 	

4 e, 

'' 	1) 0 
Cj 	.,0 '•'' • 	U ,, 	

ca.. , U ,,• ..2, 
',.? 	U 	•• 	, 	,.-7; 

'  	'"-:4-d') 	2-,  — 	,-,; 	.1_, 	-- 
---'-' 7_1 ,?".- - , ' -:( 	

du ,- - 	.-, ,- 

	

---' 	• '-' 	r- ,-'7, 	,.-'_, 	-- 	'- 
,,_, 	— — 	- 	r., 	_.. 	c„,  ,-. 1  

	

- , -_, ,     T ' ' ' ' ' )1 1-1-'_ Tri:, ,c-,'',r: j  :,.i.:  :_---'-'2 	
, , 

 „   . ,,,. 	-, ., . 	,:, _ ._  ,   
''''  

t 	.C:  - E.  ->9 >:'>:> .L> '.,) 	
0 -ro ■77".-  :,, 

'-' 	,>„) 	
''' 	br '---- 

	

Lr 	

^ " .-1, .^,, r 
'.2■1.) . -..j  

> 	7' 	'r.j r_ ,•...— 	— 	---- 	,•,, — 	— 	
u 	— 	, 	P 	_  r.,:-_, 

. T:. 	,.., 	
, • 
 @ 	,7'.., 	

'.,) .--C 

rs) 	 ''4-■ - . ri..T. 	d ,71-' 	■::.)" 	P, 	
,-- 	r_. 	,_, 	_ ..7:, 	,c)- ,•., _0-  -7_,,, 	

, 	r_ 

	

,-- 	,-, 	 ''• 	- 	',7:: 	',"=:: 	. - E 	i':: 	,: _ 	u -,-__, 

	

.74' 	-,__I 	'-' 	'-' 	,--.' 	■-.7'd 	..."' i 	FE 	. .y...... 



as
se

ss
m

e
n

t  
an

d
 di

ff
e

re
n
ti

a
te

d
 r

is
k 

p
ro

fi
le

  

U
S

I S
o

lu
ti

o
ns

  t
o
  M

a
rk

e t
  C

ha
lle

ng
es

  

C
ar

ri
er

  F
oc

u
s  

A
cc

u
ra

te
  u

n
d

er
w

ri
ti

ng
  d

a
ta

/v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s  

C 

4, 
2  

O 

t7; 
a P

an
d

em
ic

  e
x

c
lu

si
o

n
s  

C
iv

il
 u

n
re

s
t  

an
d
 w

il
df

ir
e  

ex
p

o
s
u

re
s  O 

DO 
to 

O 

E 
-0 
C) 

U
S

I  S
o

lu
ti

o
n  

S
u

b
m

is
s

io
n
  o

v
er

lo
a

d  

a 

0 
0.0 

M
o

d
e

li
ng

  t
o

o
ls

  a
n

d
 e

x
p

o
su

re
  a

n
a

ly
si

s  

R
is

k
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
co

st
/
b

e
n

e
fi

t  
an

a
ly

si
s  

P
a

ra
m

e
tr

ic
  c

o
v

er
ag

e  
o

p
ti

o
n
s  

V
ar

io
u

s  
an

a
ly
ti

ca
l 

an
d
 v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n  

to
o

ls
  

1 

A
lt

er
n

a
ti

ve
  c

ap
ac

it
y
  d

ev
e

lo
p

m
en

t  

D
ri

v
in

g 
 O

u
tc

o
m

es
  

>>
  Ho

w
  U

SI
 C

an
  H

e
lp

  

r---- 	 r 
u 

u 
;.-:)_, 	- 	r.:". 	, • -- 

,-- -,-- 	.,..„ 	,__ 	U 	-) 	?:,- 	5  > u , 	 ^ ..> 	.  
i-: 	,.._, 	.C.7, 7.7j u 	r.,3 ._, 	--   

r--,' 	-, 	r, 	,-, - ':1' ---,7 77  

4,2r 	
r-' 	'-' 	>--, 

-, u 	 ,,  
C) 0 	0 0 -C 'ii br., 

,74 	,-, 	r- 	,'-' 	'..,..■ 	',"=, - , u 5' et ,. 

	

-I-, 	-,--, 
1J 'DC 0 bl..) 0 7.3.    .., 

...t,  0 
v- J 0 ' r 0 

C., , -, 
4 - -, -7-3, , : ) • : - .  - = 7,., 	= 	r,,,  0,  	- 7, .. t- 	y, 

,--, 	J 	. 	..._, 	, 	t. 	t 	..-' 4_,  
0 C te 0 ,H4 
r 0 0_ . Le

" 	0 C -• C 

a' U , 
.'1.) •- 	C-..,: 	 8  o-.  H 0 

;'-' 	7-' 	''' 	> 	;-.... 	U 

.' 	U' , ,3 - 
o 	- 	,-.,-2, 	.i.) 	,... 	'..) , 'D  

9 	0 	',---,- -=1-' --- > - -,') '_' 2 U ,7,' 

, 	

, , I) b.°  
,77.. 	:::,-. ' 	-•   ;-_-_,: 1-3  .7  

< 	
,.., 	..., 

..D u ,  
7; 4-,  -. 	u ,- 	-d , 	_,_., 

' T- 	-,-, 	• 	- ^- 
0 br, bc r; , ....)   u 	).,) ,,-,. ._, 	, 

 Y  77; 	'il 4, t) T.,  ,.,-.. :''' 
1-' =-,' 	e 	1,4 	C . I . I ,_,,,,, 	,,_, ,..vs,  ,,.. 

a - ,- , -. ,..,  -  
0 0 

re 	 • 	0 	C-1..., 
, r '77.-. 	, @ •--e 7 0 u ,' ' - - 

H  '0 Z.," -7,- 0 -7-J "-"" H '--fe 
.,__, 	..--  

0- > r 7--,' 0 0 ,--C 0 - -- .,_-•  
- ••-"' " ...- c..., 17  -C ,-: U' ...., 	 ,..... 	 e•-■ 	 H 	 2'  u, 	 ,... , 	.7_, 0 >-. 	

0 ,-, 	 4-,  	,,, 	 r-' 	 4-.7; 	 4, -.'' 	 -:,-1-: -.4 	br., y, 	 ,r.
U• C; 	 '1) .-E-i 	.1) 	7) 	1) 	'il 

C7'.. p- 	__= 7-) ,- C. - 
,---. 	r., 	,..-. 	 •-,- 	̀.' -.' ' --ri ? ,--' :, U7: 0 r- 

0: 	 •P 	u 	 cc .--' , 	 P 	 u 	c_. 	-,-. -- 
co 0, 	_„_:,, 	S 	;I/ 	ni 	u 'I)  
tr., -H 	 r-r 	 , 	 , 	 -I) 	 '' 	77,  ,?, 

j_"•-, H '0 	 0 	 0 	 0 	,_,0 	0', 0 	 0 
, 	 r 

V ,-,-,r- 	 ,-,) 	 .1 	i__, 	 r 

c) ,I, 
	 ';- 

U 	
> , - 

r.: 	„1_,  
u 

4-. - U 	 ..,-; 	 U ,,, 
,,,,„  

r 

	

c:' 	 U 
H Cl) 

 

(L.   0 	 "0 	 0 t.    
r 

	

., H., 	
--Z 

,c2,_, 	. .--r 	 0 	 biD  la 0 l'-' 
>--- 	,'-'. . 	-,5' 	tO 	 ■-..' 	 ,_,,,, 	,C1_, 	' 7:: 

'- >,, - ',' ,::_:: 171 	r 	 71 
.4+ 	r-, 	-■ 	 77J 	 4-, 	 ;'-' 	 •-'' 	 '--0 
H ■-' , 	 0 	 r- 	tr., 	, 	'.:-1 -d 
U 3 - -,13 	u 	.,--,.; 	, 	 :, 

	

 1-', 	,-.17. 
0 	o'--• 0 . ',--r. 	u ,... 	v) 	-,_. 	H 	 4.-• 	5., 

0-■ 	 • , 
:-■ 1-. 	 , 	 .- 	 3.--', 

:.%) 	 ,0 	 CL) 	 c..! 	, -4-■  C 

6 - •,:...„. 	c-2., r 	--. 

--,-. 	. 	 0 	 =5 	 r 	 r 	,,, ,_ 	r 
rEl, -o 1-2 	 ,....,• 	- 	r' U., 

ET, 	 , 	 H ,  
0 	 7:1.) 	 ;-7-i ' 0 ' , 	 v, 
 4-, 

.-) 	
, 

U -Cs 	,-.7' -7,:, 	'....) 
cc: 	 , ,,,,L„̂ 	. -

;" 	C.) 	V 
U j 	 , 	 0/.3 	 r 	.., 

:n, . -• 	,-,... 	 0 	 9..) 	cc 	'7,7c' . •'=•' 
U .-, u_. ›, u 	r•-• H 	..__, 	 u 	 u 

rc.-:o 	u 	,. 	r." 	, , 	,---, 	, 	 --,--. 
Ed Ff:, 	

.  
t.0 	tr.) 	> 	0 ,1r, 	--et r -6, 1-+-, 	c" 	•-_, 	.-C, 	, 	 7.1 	 ..., 	 . --. 

• H 4_, 	 0 @ 	0 	 '...e 	 0 t 	 '..-• 7: 	,•,) 	 .- 	 >-- 	 e..-, 	.-., 
4,5' 	@ 	0 	,2L,'• 	,., 	•".1.T 

H 	,-,-- ■ Cl 	 r- 	 'r'L', 	r-1 	 :11 	i 	'T.+ 
,.., 	'-',.., 	''), 	U r-r 	- ---1 	-r--, 	 71 -- 

7---'1  
ri  

c2,, ,,,i_L; 	, ,- 	 , 0  
0 -0 	 ;DO '1' 	U , 	Z; 	 6 

,•-• , -- 	 , 	 C.-.) 'O'1-, 
bo 

b, U 	0 0 	 .7'.., 	 , r.• 	 t 
ce-, • r 	r ,-,,j, 	77, H 	H >. 

	

r > 	
. .. 

--c2, ,Y., - > 	- ,_ 7J 6 0 , 	;-,_ y., 	 , 
(1.., 	6 :- 	 • H  

(-' 	7,' 	 :- 	 -4.., 	bC,  ■2'-, 	-4, . H 
(2,.., ,..= 	0 	 7'.) 	CO 	V"'' 	, 

'-- 	• 7-, 	i'''. 	...) 	t,..0 L.) 
	btu (..., 	 'if.) ^CI 	 H-  

	5 7-:  - .4-_,-  - 	, 	b.r., ,-, 	 0  o 	,7.1 of:, 	 cc. . H 	. :lc 7., 	cr.. Ha 	 H 
-,,...... H 	u 	 ' ", 	,.., 	• :=. 	4-,

c 
' 	

, 
.) _ : z  

U V , 	,-, 	> 77n, 	 C.) =1 	,., -6 	_. o u 
- -1-, 	CLI 4--■ 	C'./ 	(-.. 	 17-1 	/'-' 	F-4" 	..=.•-■ 	0 U 
	U

H 73 r ;,..--_ fz, 	,- 	,-.. 	D 	;,_-'1 	,-,..,_, 	,, ;:q , 	r-‘2, .0..t  .„,.. 	rj 0-, 
o 	,.,, 

< .:_, c_-,_ ,_, 	• 	• 	• 	• 	 • 



V
A

L
T

  

Pr
o

du
ct

  L
in

e  

C) 

J 

C) 

aJ 

a) 

Pr
im

ar
y

  A
u

to
  L

ia
bi

li
ty

  w
/F

ie
e
t  

L
es

s  
T

ha
n  

2
0
0
  &

 G
oo

d
 Lo

ss
  H

is
to

ry
  

Pr
im

a
ry

  A
u

to
  L

ia
bi

li
ty

  w
/F

le
e
t  

L
e

ss
  T

h
an

  2
0
0
 &

 P
oo

r  
L

os
s  

H
is

to
ry

  

C) 
0 

0 

t.r) 
a) 

t_u 

a) 

O 
7_1 

CO 

E 

Ex
ce

ss
  A

u
to

  B
u

ff
er

s  

W
o

rk
er

s
' C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

  G
u
ar

an
te

e
d
 C

os
t  

(-I ,., 	;-----, 	.7.; ,.... --, 
,__,  ,•) , ,-,_-_ 	•,,,,  

CO 

P 	. 7-.' 
bij 	C7.: 

1, 

4--,  

7_, 

,-, 

✓ 
-T- 

--" 

1- 
cl" 

u_ 

a) 
C) 

iC 
a) 

2 

E 
. c 
C) 
O 

8 C) 

O. 

6 .E 

• .E5 
F) 	4,1 7-7 
	O. 

U C  
E 

7.3 

E 
° E O  Or 

;!), 

bq E 
an 

O

- 
'rr) 0 
E (a 

o_ 
„ a, ,Z? 
„ -0 _ 

o 
c 

a, 
a) 7= 

-C3 	0_ C co a, 
0- o 

V 0 
x 	l7 G

e n
er

a
l/

Pr
o

du
ct

  L
ia

bi
lit

y,
  W

o
rk

er
s'

 C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
on

  a
n

d 
U

m
br

e
lla

/E
xc

es
s  

:, ,)1, 	 r -- 	 r  , 	7-] 	■"-:, 	, 	„. 
...... 	C, 	1 .., 	 ■ ■, 	',.% 

L- 	.',' 	.:F., ':',1ti 	' 	''L' 	1 	..■ 	 ■■■•• 

' 	.7::;::1 	' P;:, Aff: J.:).) ■:'=: 	' 7', C 	7 
-,- , 

,3r._, !.L: 	t-t, .C-' 	=-• 
, 	.1..) ---_, 	 , ,,- 

J. 	, 	•_. 	-,.., 	,-, 	.,-) J ..-, 	, 

	

,-, 	,7P, 	,- 	.L: 	
..'-' 	 ':-_,-. -: -,-_, , 
, 

Ti I " 	 — - C) 
_0' ,,,, 	 - > J  ,-. 	...). 	 -. 	,',..,,,  

	

> -0 	 ..--4 - 	•./..7 	- 70 ---.7 CJ 
'._, 	c, 	:7; 	0 	

.-....■ 	r.__ 	,_,,.., 	r-• 
"-. 	.--. 	,_. 
-2. 	,_ 	....: 

"J , 	,-.' ' ." -7 r, 0 	 __ 

..., t..,0 	 0 	̂ 	0 	.- 	7., 	'0 
.-'.' j  

E, :-).., b--  ' 
 

C: 	--' -0 FJ 
F- 	',=-' 	J 

R.' t 7.. 	— 	.,J 	.._, 	
_.-- .:..2,..0-• .,___--?, 	c;_- 
,ir,  •E-' -----1  = 	

77—.., 	^ 

.--) 	 t 	-- 
.- 

	

17:, Cr) 	.=.-. 	I-,  

	

C.' 	
r C_, r- 	 -_, - r- 

a., u 	-,- "L.-  O r  

	

t. 	tr.) .c, 	';- 	,=. 	/-., 	c.  
■ _, 	) 

	

U-- , 	u t 

	

--, 	 .-,±--' .c,' 	0 	.,:;4, 	J,- 
 ,.._. 	.T.' 	,-..• 	--,,, 	,,,_:_' 

,-, 	
C'..' 	0 	4--■ "1-3 

72, 	.- 	 , 	 ;= 	..,----. 	 . 	.c,_, 	 ,7.., 	
..- 

.,.'2,-,.=,..7:.  
-.. 

.. 
4,- 
•... 

	

..--, I U 	_ , 	 J , --, r 
r 	,_., 	,_, 	7-, .-■ 	 0 	,._ --, 	C.) 	 -I—, 	,- .t 	, 

1— 	',D 
1,, 	,:—■ 	C: 	0 	 —' ----' '—Le :  —7--, 	 bri 

r- . 	J  
'... "0 7... 	.. , - - 	 :7-7  •_. , 

--'2, 	:--i- 	 .- 	.,-■ 	 1.' 	..._- 	r- 	".•-, 
,-- ,a.) 	 .c.- 	i5 ",-, 	I, 

•,.= . ;-.., 	.c.-  _L-,. 	
,1) 	J , .., 

u .:,,:-P_  
,.-L,' -:  -7- u 

- ..;. 

	

— •Z 	' : :. — , 	 .— 0 ,t5 4 '1, 	 CL, 
'1., 	,—,  

	

',13:, '.1, 	, 2:17 	

J 
 : 	:,',, r,  ■ g — El:A  

:1., 	 , 

..,.." 	,--, 	•• — 

,—..  ;'::,' 

'7.5 	 =_, 	':`- !.:(3 .̀-7, 	 .1.,  
• ,- ;,-, 	:-- -7_,. 	-- r r C.) 

.1, 	-,---, -..7., 	
S..r.;".-.7 I, 	.,7._ 	r 

-0 ,- 	 ,  
-7. 	1.2 	'-' 	- 	. • 

-,..., 	, 	7-'7'., 	:_-_.' 	" 	.n- 
CL) 	 r 	C."-t. 	. 

	

r, f-, 	, -. C.) 	_0 0 -0 :.--  
-,7... 	r: 	0 	7-..' 	,.,•,, 	. - 	•- 	1)  

	

r 0 	r -, 	■ 	 r — 1-_, C.,  
-0 	:._, 	'.,: 	.7-,  

cc, C) :11 1_, C,J 1..,  C.) ,  •'-'  ..--, 4-.. VI, 2- ..- 	 ,-2, 	 d -- 
N 0 2 '' '',T)  ' E  ,'„) u 

 _c 
--' M Ln

_CD / EL, .,_., ,-f;  
U _C =_, , t t ,-",. 	C: _c. .5".. 

"73 -!-• 
... 	

c 

, 	— 
-- " c.,.. Q.) 	:.- 	0 

0 ,-. 	, 	
_,_,.:„ 	, ,  

c.) 	.■-, '''' 	..., -c  
-_L--, 	'> 	, 	,-, 	c: 	,-; 	0 --, 	 ..-.• 

q) - ,-, 1") 2-7 	 co 
D cz .t: 	 - ,- 	,,:,, 	,-- • ^ 	..--, 	'..) 	',.) 	.._. 	 73 = , 	 0 	— -,-, _. 

	

r—L r_7', 	 U  — -,, 	 ,,-) 	.::: 	,...., 
„L, ,.- 	

, 	. ,_,  

U ,72, Co .,-. 	, 	■,_) 
C),--. 	rj 	..--, 	 .--.!.- 	'■:: 	'e 

'—. 	4—, 	.--• 	ri 

V 

',L." 	r-  7::,---' 	
■C" 	7 	.?J  

	

'4 ,L=.1 	..' 	,-. 

	

-,-, 	7!, 0 	1 	, 	0 	">. , r 

	

0 	r , c_, 	, ,-,_._, - P , 	, 	.,_, 	•,__, 	 .7) 	j-J- ...-, 	■- ■ 	 ,C7,_. 	'.-) 	...-r-% 

	

0 	r'-.' ...-", 	.- 	J 	, .- 

	

, 	:.'-' -..., 	E-, 	o 
-_, 	o 	:...) 	-.,77  G.,  „.„ 

,._., 	H 	',1 	•-.4- 	,a., 	 rt 	(„_, 	,..... 	, 	, 

I, ,-,. 	
-=, 	;:-.■ 	,- 

=-,' ',E 	c: 	
.__. 

-7.: 
,r,'  0 0 	 .... cj 	

: 

__■ _,__, 

	:..,p0- 	,>C0 ,L-3   ' 	C.) "1.,   

 
; ,--, 	,---, , 	CL) 	a 

M
id

-Y
ea

r  
20

21
 (

YO
Y)

  

U
p  

1
0

%
 t

o
  2

0%
  

U
p  

2
0%

  t
o
  3

0
%

+
" 

Fl
at

  t
o
  u

p
  5

%
*

'' 

U
p  

2
5

%
 t

o 
 5

0%
 +

*
 ̀ *

 

U
p  

10
%

 t
o 
 3

5%
 



41.1 
,••••'• 

r 
0 

re-re 

. = 

7 	'--4-■ 
C.) 	, 

„rz 	e7, 	'0 -0 

0 	--C 

0 	. 

, 	, 

;L' 

. ,,•-z_.,_, 	..„ 	,r,  
r 	>... 
J • ,--. 	

r-, 	r. . 

a., 
-,-, 

' 

	

"----71) 	.,__,  

0 	7.-'-- 	•_72 	;I, 	:,,, 
,=0 ,':: 	r7., 	•__," 	0 
r 	. "--•' 	, 	e-, 

r — d 
E"1 

c-: 	 411 

	

Ur., 	, 

, 

r 
/a0 

r 

, 0 
CO 
L., 

ra , 
v "--,-. P ,.,. - , ,--, 

, 

rj ...., 

, U . -4 

	

-, :<:: 	
r<I ,,,, 

• .- 	,...,.., :-•,'• —' 	--T• 	, 	- 
-,- ',=. 	,- 	0 	- , 	r.1 2 -... 

4-, 	0..) 	, 	4, 	 4r4:: 	 '' •-4 	 2 
.L., 
0 __, 	,- ,z 	(.7; 	,,, ,- 	:7' . 7.,  

, - ,-, ,,,-. 0 	:-,  

	

p-, > -,.:- 0 ,-", 	.- - --• -7, .s ._:_-.., ,:---:, 0 	- 	o- 'R c7, 	0_, :.._. 	-, ..,..-, 	- 	.,.. , 	T ;1..) 	- 	....-.. --0 	Q-' 
tr, ---1-4 	,....2„ 	 a 	0 	;71- P,,  C'-' 

SrJ -`-' ,.•J =-L,  

0 	 ,... 
..-+ 

:?..-,. -7, 	',„;., 0 	•- 	• r 	:-. 72, 	 P.  

0 v. 

 

r 	 „_, „ c---1, 0  7--  ''' blp  r 1_, r 

	

r" 	 4.--■ 	 , n..= ,,", 	,,,,n 	0--4. 	 .,-, 	44 	c...,,  ;72, 

4-, 	,-. 	.-. 	(... 	• .-. '-a , 	.- 	..., 
L,._..... "-, 

	

.,_, 	, 	.,__, 	,t. 	,L, 	, 	,.: c-•, 1 ----, 	,-.. 	 •-_, 	, . 	) 	'I, 
, 	.''' . ' 47 	 0 •-•: 7 r''' . "= 	 7,. , „ 0  -0 p 

,..., 	.r. 	c-_,._ 	u p 
 

1., to . _ 
S ., „., - to --, P .-; ... 	,.,- 

 ._; 	F 	..-.., 
..-, 	 , 	...., 	'. 	- 	2 	2 	- 	c.-.-., 	0 -7-4, cf.; 	1,  "7-,. 

	• 
4_, 	--- • -.- 	cl.) 	,•-■ 

	

/-, 	r 	, • 	0., r, 	to .1,7; 	 r 	-- 	,-, 	•...... 
L., 

,•..) 7,  .0- 0 0 7, r 

-7-:  >, ,7_, "a  . _. 	 • 	.7 L, J 
1-.(j 	0 	-_,-7 L'") 	

,.-. 	.-J • 7- 	, ...," br ' 
7 	0  	 7-.;.; 	,...„- -7, 	, 	.- 	•,...., "--, 	- ••• 

•-' r 
> 	.7i 	

':.„, 	r. 
= 	.-:•-• ''' 	'--. 	'- 

,•:., (i) . 	,...e • -- r 0 	 r 	 r, 	0 	✓ _L- 

„,, 
-64  

,--4-■ 	,,_,,  
'-' 	-,4 	 .7., -,, ,--"4-e?. 	.,..i. 7 ,. 7, 	, _L :.-1. 	F: 	-r••• 	5-_,' ?-f) .',,'- 	''' 

•_, 
,_, ., i -• c. c-, —,..„. 0 - 	0 	 , ,__, 

	

,,•-• 	,- 	,,,,i 	••,-: 	-:-..-/-., 	'7,', 	,--• 	 0 

	

0 	= _:._•-- ..2-z, 	,r, • ,77•,, 

..D.rc, ,-•  r•• 	0 • = ,--, --, 	u '-- ,,-• ''' 	t'- '° > ..:-_,• 	,--:, 	0 :-.• 
-c-•-• 	o -"=.- 	1-7 	,-.'-' t,--,  . CZ  . -::'' 

— ---, 

. -.., C br, = , 
, 	,__l ,...-4 	

l" 

	

4-, 	
17 4.., W.)  

. _ 
,..T., 	_,.., 	-, -- _ 0 	-, 	,.._-• 	-,  , r r ail

. 

	

_L., " „ 	
4_, , „,.. CL.1 	, b-'r, C--  0 	 -; 	'-' 

 

,-. 	, , -0 
.il r ,--• -L., 	73 	,.... 	 7, 77. 	:,-:', 	P 	6 

-_, ,..,.., 

	

 
?, r7 
	-0 ,r_ ,  r • 	 ;,,L,  

77, 	 (1) .ilL•4' 	0 
,',•^, r 

7-• 0 - ; 	6 	...; — 
_.., 	,- , , ,2•_„,., 	•-• .•_-__- 	Y. 	•,---: 	0' 

,--• 0 	 ca.., 	0 	0 	r_-_,' r-•-•1 	0 	,.-.,0 
— 0 0 

	

,-, 	
,7•,' 	_,,,, 0 	'1) f-.1 70 H 	 '1. -/ 	'.1) 	r 	,arj .7'.. 	t.,,,,0 , 4., 	in, f 	• — '-',.Z 	 ,20.. 	...) 	(..._ 	, 

I-.  

,..-14 	r•--. 

• r 	,.... •-•':" 	r. 	7 	
'DO 

P 	
, - -S" 	7 	

. ,L•• .,,,,, 	,3 	,,,-, 	,---.. 

	

,
...... 	,.:. 

, 
, 4-, 

,..t 	-..., 	C.-:, 	:11 •-•- ■ 	 C 	 '1.! 	 .- 	 4-, 	br) ,4,) 	,, 	
0 	r-' 	r--, 	, 	, 	'11 	-,--' 	':1-1 ' 	e- 	,,,r; 	, ... 	, 	50 0 

C 	',-,_,r) 	4..... 	, 	0 	, 	'-'" 	L-. 	0 	e-,"-- 	 ' '-' 	,R. 3-  7--:e 	J
'',), 	'̂ Je 	'-' 	

: 
,.., , , 	 .,_, 	F 

,.4 	 „.,,, 7,7..1 	 I, 	 0..,  ,....., 	, 	. .■ 

C..,  —' 
 ....., 	,,,. 	, 	'." 

r" 	• 
".0  

e-4 	..-' 
,--, 	';','., 	■,:2L, 	'-, 

7.; 	>, 	".--, 	 , 	'-' 	'.' 	Cl 	■.7; . , 	-.L. ■ ,..,1 , ,L,- --, ,-- 1,0 -r=,__, 	0 - 	r- 
>. 

-1-... 
0 	'...) 	CU 	CL) 	

4-..; 

 o 

0 	',.••• 
0 d 

.._,,..5„: 	1„,, 	• -7-r 2-_.: 
, 	

0 	•,.-,:,., e"---', 	
•.'.., 	'0 	'e.0 r 	r, 	--- 	. ' 	r.. 

,--. ,--.. 	,..4.■ 	
.t,"2, 	. '.-7. 	 4-44 

, p 

b.rJ p 

" 	-,--•  

U 
	— 1/ 	

, 	 r•-; 	-4 	41.1 

	

4., 	
-, L., 	0 

	
'-=', 

.--- 
., 

 
61,)  "? ,„ ,- 	„ 7.-' r 	 „ r 

	

el; 	ea_ . „ 

0 	
. 

	

,... 	
Q..) 

	

,... 	,-- 	, 
.., 	r 	(.7, 	-,, -, 

0 -7--i  
d , 

r 	..e.-e 	•-„... 

, 	

, 	4 , 	 1- 	, 	, 

	

, 	-..-e 	er,, 	:..., 	CL) 	C 	4-' -0 	',--.- 	C 	-,-e■ 	e- 	t: 	'-Z j  I=  

.7;e:; -. c -7, 70 s„.. 	 ,....0 7: r 
co to 
	 r ,...,,- 	ji--2-  , - „, > , 

J 
_ ,_2..., 	-- 	,----. 5 	, 	-- 	:„ 

	

...., 	-11 !f'.  
C,  , .,-, 	•,., 	r 	L., 	, 	.--- 	.,,.. 	 r r 	'1) 70 	-- 	r., CD 

> 	...... 	C./ 	--' 

	

:-' 	L 	r,  ., 	,-• 	'3 	,-1 

	

r 	 2 
,./. 	. ';_'. 	7.---. 	,t, 	to. 	

_,_,  
„„, -•-• 	0 	,-„„ 	„.-:„. 

	

>, . - ,.._., 	 R 	,:). 	:-.-- •;..; 2.z 	r V 	,....4 	 - 	,., — 
• •- 	4..D 

., ,_,41) 	 • -- 

	

--4 	 "Ts, 
 '7 :3  

.-:, 	
r 	•,-....„, 7 	7  

	

r ,-, 	:=', 	,-. ■ 
-7.-5  

, 

H
o w

  U
SI

  C
a

n  
H

e
lp

:  W
o

rk
er

s '
  C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

on
  

7u 	0 

r r 
,71 
rier) 

r.---■ 	, 	_0 

• -, 	r 	,-, 

.., 

.-■--• 	,t) 	„„ 	
"" 	2, 

„.., 

•IS: 	.Z...• 	'1.1 	ts 	4 
0 	- - 	>.. 	'••-• 
;L.̂ 	" 	r 	4:7-: 	,C,' r 	re 	r-  

f:,-• 	,: 

0 0 

, 

0 	, 	, 	• 7' 	 r 	2-, I) 	. 

::>-', 	 '41 	--'-.) 	< 	
,"G 	 > 	'',..■ 

1:1-, 	- 	C.) 	r 	;-= 	`--) 	
, 	a., 	„ 	•-) 

.7-■ 	 0 	r 	L-, 	„ 	:-.-: 	 7; 	r 	, 	 -0 

e--,f) 	 —0 	—"--_, 
r., 0 0 0 

0 '-e--■ .,- 

.•---• 	
0 	> 	

:-.-• 	:._, 	0 	„.; 	cz: 	77, 	el.,) 	:-...3 	-7,,, 

• '-' 	, 0 	,.›.. 	,•,” 

. 
7 

	

,... 	-■ 	.,,, 	r 	7) 

•_... 	, ,- 	, 	, 	 0 	V_ 	: , 

	

--G 	(L) 	7. 	'.J, 

	

7 	.10 	d 	,•:`, 	 7 	-"Z 

	

r.. 	0, 	d 	0 	_ 	.-0_, 	•,:j 	0 	;7_,• 	to 'LL, 

•,--, 	,, 	,.", 	'il 	7 	7 	 4:= 

	

-'4, 	7 	•', 	
r 	"..) 	r 	0 	,-, 

	

, 	• 	• 	 c.r., 	'.--' 	t-- 	0 	c 

7= C:, 
,•  

-0 	-'-' 	' 	,,, `. L. / 	'CI, 	0 

0 7 .7 

	

r.-' 	■-• 	•-•1., 	'.- 	'-'4- 	r” 	''''''' 
0 

, 	.... 
41) 

	., _ 	_ _ ,_, 
5 	- 	•,; _L-L, 	.,..._, 

rir 

, 

	

> 	, 	 .C, 	7-, 	,-,,, 	,-, 	 ,--• 	° 

:',.■ 	— 	,,, 	, 	r 	4 	'_:_,' 	4'4  
-'-•--, 	7:j 	'-' 	'''-,' 	 -4--, 	4:74., 	'•--.' 

	

- 	, 	__, 	■-,.... 	•J 	;72 	, 	--' 

	

, 	,,, 	--7-i 	,__, 	„., 	
'r'? 	t•O 

	

-7_, 	....- 	 0 	"- 	■ j 	,..,..) 	
• r 	,,,./ 	- , 	,.,./3 

	

, 	,--' 	 . '''.--. 	rCl.' --'0. 	./.'"''''' 	
, 	'-'•-, 	1- 	C.) 

	

,,,, 	-, 	'7. 	‘.-.-...) 	1. ) 	o 	• ,,.71-, 	F,...7i 	0 	'.. ...-.-_,' 	— 	> 	. „ 	,— 	•--, • ca.. 	,...., 

:..." 

. , 	 -r---.. 	 /..■ 	
r:j_., 	. 	0 	0 	p 

	

0 	_L,,,, 	, 	„, 	__O 	7 	.-,-, 	r 	-7, 	:-, 	,1-_•' 	,,-.: 	,-■ 	 L., 
-", 	• 	,. 	!DO 	' ' 	0 	--,-, 	0 	d 

•-' 	0 	--- 	0 
-,:•-: 	0 	0 	„c 	,-_,.) 	

,-.-_; 	,;-.7'•: 

	

0 	̀L) 	.-;-' 	 ,_, 	•__, 	, 	0 	-, 	 - 	0 j_,-- 	.„.,„ 	'-C; 	.2) 	• • ,: 	 o 

.,.; 	, 	„" •—•'-' 	
-7) 	 , 

	

d 	-, 	• r 	70 	0 72, 	, 	-4 	-,-' 7:-- -7 	C-1- 
, 	0 	ca, 	c." 	•,..7 	, 	C.) 	..7,- 	r 	77_, 

-I-,  , 	 0 	0 ,-,-.) 	 0 	...— 
— r ' 
2 	 r .4_, r 

. .., 	%-''• • • , - r._-) 
. , 

 
tr.1 '4 

0 ,- 
•'_ ,) 	c,,-; 

 ..,_, 

 ., 	,-..; 

- 

e..,--,   
.,,_- 

,., , -0 0 

, 	!...., 	, 
•---J 	-'., 	0 

In
d

u
s
tr

y  
In

s
i g

h
t s

 

.....,
 

':•-) 
, H 

	 4
, 	 4_
1 

•

-,
 

-•-
-- 

.1.)
 

tLC
) r , 

bi
j 

L.-.
 

. .-e
 

0 ,
 4-- ,  

L-,
 

`...-.
 

r - 

 -.
 

,--
I 

, 0
 

•

,:--
- 

70 
-,,, 
	 :_. 	 ,-
• _,_, 	 ,-• 	 ,•-, 	

,-
, 

,--
- 

-.L.,
 

C , ... '
 

.:-/:
.• 
	 '....

.) 

0 	 c.,
 

, , r ---' •—
' 0 

U
 
	 r 
r ...,
 

t,r)
 

r °
 0 



,_- 

0 

u -, 	 ,, _,, 	 , , 	
.51., O 0 	 5,, 	) • •=--• 	,1 , .1-51  U 0 

0 	0 br,  '. 1' 
, rt '- ,,,,, 	r 	..,  

• :r2.  

	

 r.J Ci 	 r• 	,••-.1 	0 '_•_.  
0 	

0  E 	
4,-, r 	_ 

7-' 	 - 	,.__. 	, 
O - 

	

t_ 	 -7. 	 ,....) 	 - -,- .-  .. 	 c 	-• - - 	:7--•  

	

9.--. 	 •_, 	 , - 	 — - ._.-- 

	

02, 	 t•-5., 	
0 / 	,_, 

0 . CC'  

. 0 	
.27. 
O 

-,-, 
r ,, -',;', 	• P 	

,. 
,-, 	 , 	-i- 	 --- 	 . 	.--. 

 	-0. 
..-' 

	

, 	 . 5. 	 u 	77, e,  	5 	 , • . - •_' : • ._ rt  	, -.5.. 	•-• u _- 	.7.5 	
0 	•---- 	> 9 51-,. 

•.77, 	_0, 	. _ 
> 5 	 .,... 	 •-_, 	,, 	,---, 	u 

• 	

',--' -r2. -,,, 	;L

- 	

..' 	• ") 	u 	0 	.- 	, 	 ,--5. 	 --0  _c u 	.7, 5 ,-=,. 	 7,: , ._, 
-- 	- 	

• 	

•;:, 	 , 	 __. -• " 	
I 

(, 

▪  

.9 _- -7-,  ▪ r-
Cr., 	,z, ,., 	r" 	 4---, 	 o.--, 	 0 	 , 	4_, 	 ,_ 	., 

''r: 	̀

• 	

,.--- 	,•1) 	,-, 	-, 	," 	

▪ 	

0 
' 7: 	7C,  51 	0 • 

2  0 -,,_.. r,--• 

. '0  
1,1 U 

;I) 
b.°  Er) 	̀,--- J 
	• r __L,- r 0 J-E., r 1 .- 4 0 .7_.  

. . 
to 

	

 7- 	0 -T---' 	72 	Cr 	.1) 	C 	,::_, 	tr.0 ,--, 	 7 	,='--. 

• - 	r- 	,-7:. 

.. c. - 	----- 
• P. 	',--.: 	C  tA 	0 ,..., 

_ 	:.... 	.,-..! 
• :_) - -•., - c  • 0, 	< __,-.2, 	,;_-_,_ .3 	 __ 

N 

-C 
0-) vi  
C 

„,, 	 >-, 
1) 	 ,-• 

	

4-• 	 r 	 ....., 	•-,, 	 4--,  

•,, 	1) 	ri 	r 	 --:_,' 	 r,' 	.--, 	 (i) 
__, 	, 	 0 	 1.• 	1, 	 D ' -,_, 	 Cr 5- 	->., 5-4 	0 	,, _. 	0 	0 	 r 	r. 	-, 	 -0 O .-. 5-1 	 .-7- 	 .... 	 /-.. 

	 /-, -0 	 I....  

	

--I 	 0 	 C 
.--2 	 . 	 ,-.5 	 - 	-, 	:-.. 	r, 	r 	. ';',_,•' 	r-•,' 	•_. ,---..• 	'r., 	r 

	

r 	
4-• 	 _ 

-, -• 	',..- 	 -0 	 r 
•_.• ,__, 	 -'• 	-' 	r 	tj 	 ' i 	',:"- 	'C--  •--- ■ 	 , r--•-, 	r , -• 	- -7 (--.) 5 u 	-5 	7...., 	 0 .- 0 	 -• 
0 •C ,„:,,0 '-' --.0 . 0. 	0-• 	

• 	

,_, ,_ 	0 	
- -,-, 	-1-, 	 0 , 

, ' - 	
.E, - b

▪ 	

'--,.--,',o  •,,,' 	. ',=: 	c2. 	7 	0 
,-.., -0 	;---: 	7_, 	--) 

 J 
,- 
,  

-'' 

• 	

.-'..' 
, 	...-., 	• - 
J , , 

' J 	•-

▪  

• 	

'7; 
■-.

- 

: 
"..., 

y{ 'irJ . ' ' br, 	 C -'-' ,  O 1,, 	 r 
E 	 - 7  - 0 P 

-7, 	•-. 	, 	0 	' 	c,=.)  ‘ .c. 
, 9 	- 	

,- 	u 
- 

	, --,-. 
0 	--: -'-'-' 	,,:.„ 	, 

	

.,_. 	
,,:-,_ 

,•_:,_ 	,,,,r_2, 
, , -

,:: ,, ,- 	- u J , 	-, ..., ,--.. .-L. 	0 	-,-:.; 	.f 	r.„ 	, 	,.... 	, O 
, __,_ — 	-,:.., 
6- .-, 	

0 
• , -;-: `:'-r' -' '--- 	7-1) 	

r .- 
...7.' 

J 

 • - 

	

r •'-',_ ' 	r 	 •-•'' Ti 	o  ,- 	_._. 
J

,-- 	 -.J 	,Df-J 	 ,D.r) 
C 	o  2 ' ,7_,' --' ' 

✓ r, 0- 	
0 •,-, 	,, 

_c-, 	
5 =0 	.J -,,, tr-' 
72,  	.3 :::: 	

-.7., 	- 	- 

	

- 	-:, 
-- 	0_, ,,,, `-',. 	:,.--- ',--' 	r::-) 	

9 	 0 	• ,-. 	__. 
,..,,, 	 , ..-0 9 	_ --.: 	 — 	 -7:, 

c, 0 	-  
0 5 0  0 

.-.. 

= 	 , 	 4  
D'  17, .-- ,  

	

..--. 	 '-' 	'''' 	 (J 
..-. 

, .--,-j 	,-; 

▪ 	

■+- 	, 	7Z■ 	 r-_,' 	 7::: 	 CJ 	 , 
 

131) 	 ° , 	 '-, 	
-- 
:.-.. 	 '-, 	..-'. 	--' 	..:'-■ 	

■-. , 

▪ 	

".

• 	

..) .--, 
.C, 

O 51...... 
.. 4_, 

  
...--. - 	 0 --, 	,1-1 - 0 _ 	-, ,__. 	,,,_, , 	,--.,   

EL
2 	1.„,,  , __-_,- ^' ,--, -7; _-,” r_-_,_ -,--_, 	r 	 .4: 	1) 	_ 	•-■ _,), 	,.., 	.4- 	 r 	 •-•--,:-:': 	r Z--• 

...... 	7"-) -0 -7 	-,--: 	r, ,---, 	0 	'7,,i-J 	•---7 	-0 	 ,".l "-) 	y., 	.., 	U 	 , 	 ' E.  

	

' ''17  '--9. 	'11 	 • .--, 	 ' 

• 	

, 

0 

	

:

- 	

.--,2 	0 	,1 • 7

▪ 	

■ :-.' %::. 	*, 

• 

'11 Q 	- 

▪ 	

, 	r 	. 1'.), 	'J  El ''  •,_,, 	Q 
,,  ,- 	''':-- ▪ Q --, 

0 	 , - 

ii r.   
=. ., 

i 	rc 0 • 5  (-- *-., 	-7' ,-, -5 0  u .,, 	,-_, 	-- 	Er; 	

_ _.' ,,,-; : 	, _ , ,,•7_. 

▪ 	

. , 
..-. 	 -I-. 	 11 

 

-.1 

r  

▪ 	

7. 	.1  
.Z_,.-  

	

0 	L-; 	

..J 
,--, 	r-- 

--0 	!..) '7" 	-,-.. --' 	'-' 	■ 	-; 	 '.-1 	rj 	 ,-;  
7 	

u 	 u

--- 
"-) 

r 	,r_•, 
.,-, 	, 	,.. • Z.,' 	rt. 

▪ 	

%-; 	'7'. 	r-) 	,L: 	7 	

• 	

__. 	-__. 	::, 	' _1 	=,, 	.,r. 	''_41 	r 	
'I- r", 

4 - .T., 	-7, 	..," '-'-'4, 	0 	 •••": 	L., 	•••-■ = 
C 	 Q 	'_, -1- 	.- 	•••_, 

....:' 	,7,' 	 .--- 	,-, 	
Q 	„.- 	,.., 	0 	 '-.4.' 	-,' .4'," -T• 	,.ar.) 	r_., 	;--- 	tr.,- 	7. 	7-2,_t 	..±,,,- 

(V 	 0 o 

U 
. 

, _, 0_

▪ 

	'  — 

• 

-..-J 	 ' 	:''' 	' 3 	 ;'2 	■". 	,-7.; ,--. 	

• 	

.'1) 	,, '-',-:' 	r.7)'  .9  ^• 	' , 	'- 	 ' .' 	, 	, 	• ,_:' 	"--. 
'-, 	.'"('') 	) 	'-'.;■'. 	-' 	1-' 	I-' 	1._., 	, 	.. 	' 	J'-'   17 	 '7; ■-■ 

:.., 	'', 	 r :̂ 
•-• --, 

 
'7, 	 ''' ' -'23 

 

:.., 	7, 	WI, '-' 	• 1-: 	 ".. 	 ., „...--r,  zr,  

„. 	,_ 	,__ 	-0 	.,,.‘ ,c .,....r., 	, 
0 	< 	.., -_, 	-_-_ 	0-  	C-N. -, 	-

_, 
▪ __ :,,- 	 .,,,,,r, .- ■-• 

, - — . - . _  
..,. _)" 

0   , 
0 	

' --=.: 	E ---... 	 rri: 	,1) _,- 	, _.„, 	 ...-. 	-, +4 	 -' 	0 5- 	 ,--,' ,.-2, 	-, -0 	 3 0  7--. 	.0 
 4, 	 ....... 
,„.. 	, 	_._ 	ca._.' 	t-  

/ 

-,-:• 	"--, 	.5 	' -', 

- 	

.---. 	U 	"-., -'il 	--, 	0 	

, 	, 	- 	' 	,- 

RI  
, u , 	• 	• 	 • 

,:-., 

'•-.7.', 

,,--, 
1,

▪  

., 
17' 

0 
0 
O 

0 

t-or., Cr 
.---..• 	u 

z 	-,., 

if c- 

, J , .c,_, 

7_-,' 
• - 

, 

co 

tr., 	-: 	-,o 

'3 
C '0 

C.

▪ 

 --0 

tr.') 6-",-, 
J 

,---, 
, 
r r 
1-1 
.riff 

 

, :1) 

:1) _ ,44  

tf., =-,7• 

0 , 
✓ u 

• r ,j 

■.-. 	 /0 

1.....1 	 ..._, 

bri r 
,C-" J

,-, --' 

,--:. ,--, 

.0 

, r 
9- 	- 

'5 	7.

▪ 	

- 	..--• 
, 

▪ 	

-0 	0- 

 'J r 
 9 	 '7'.■ 	 , 

.111 	74• 

	

-r 0 	• - 	r  
u .,...,) ,_._..,, 	 ,j_....,  :-_, 	0 	r, 

:_, 	,-", 	C.:0 _. 	-0, 	0 	_,-_-_• • - 

	

,:-.,-- 	, 	u ,.) • .= 	

• 	

E; r 

• - 	.•,_. 	, 
..._, 	 v 

, 	‘,.., 
• • 

- 

,-. 	r 

• 	

'1) „0 	 u 0  

0
-  

.,-, 	 0 	0 0 	5-

- 

 . 
.

• 	

C.: -7-_, 	 ':,..1 	2:: 	0 ,-,_=, 	,, • 	•_-_,-,_ ,f),  

Q 
Q , :.^. 

-...., 	
.rte-' 	, 

• CL --- 	r0 

• 	

> , 	= 	-0, =-' 
0 	'''' 	r, 	,,,,,, 	:_i_. 	,E. 	r r-: 

•- 1-... 

'Dr) 

r 

--.. 

• r 

r r 
■-• 

0 

:. ,2_,  
, 	''..---: 	 0 	•—, 	.0" 

, 0 	0, 	 , 	• 	'7, u 

.:L.,-- 	 4_, 	to 

'DID 	r:..17., lr., 
C) r 

Efp '•_ 

--.,.., 

 

0 	r•L". 	*- 	5 	_ 	>., 
'.:-." 	 P 	, 	'1) ', 	 - 	r 	U':'-' 	r 

.,_-_,,, 	 ,y, 	0 	•,-, 	7,C, 
r, 	 0 	r 	r 	- 	r- 
0 	

0 	• - 	'1., 

= 'Dr) 	 ,., 	_22_4' ,-. or . s_.  
>,..  
0 ', ,z;  . 1-, 	,LIT, 	 — 	, 	7'7'7, 	I., 	r •,= 	0 	 -0 	,- 	0 	■-• 	0 

'•-•'" (-••1 	C'-' 

... 	5.--, 	.= 

r 	,-• 00 

7,1 r 	C 	P r, 
--, 	0  

, 	3 
0 --: 

•;_--_,_ 	•,-_,' 

0 r ,... 

,f 	'._, 

0 	',.,- ., 
I, 

'.2.1 	"- 
- 	- 

,;_-_,• 

.0 
0' 

 . 1_, 

-,-,. 

,..,,,, ,- - 
.C; • ,T,  ▪ ...... — ,--• 	.-7 r, 

U r- — 0 	..., u ,,,>, 0 .0. , 



H
o

w
  U

S
I C

an
  H

e
lp

:  C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l A

u
to

m
o

bi
le

  L
ia

bi
lit

y  

C.0 
r.2 

0 1--• 	 0 4-,  >., 7•7. -_, 	 -, 	 r 0 	H „, _0 — 	 r -0 	 , 
r 0 H 	 re 	 0 H 	 0 --- 	 0 . 

H ,,;..., 	 , _ 	'4,- 	H.: 	 H 	0 	 0 	 •7C H 	 4-, 	 , .7C . "U.- 	r 	 r‘  ,_._I 	,,,, 	 .C. -..r.; (1., 	
. 

CL, 	 '--C 	. E: 	C.' 	C.,  

	

'T-:, 	'-- 	 P 	'... 	 0 

0 

0 	 C 	 , 	 r :--: ' -,•Z .... 	 -,...■ „--r' 	, 	r ,..., 
,.., „, 	cj 

$•.-4 	 r 	 s.., 	 , 	 -•■ ,...1 	 r.: 	 . -_;-j rj 	 , 	,:.--, . .-. 	 , 	 C....,   -,-, 	3-,   7.: -r:  q..) 	 7 	 r 	1.., 	 1; 	1-.4 	,-7; 	,7, 	 .--.' 	'-., 	 4-, 
.--C 	 • .--d 	 , V) QL) 	 4-, 	 <.r. 	 (-' 	r” 	 `,..) 	j." 

.:',- 	
r 	7.. 

1..) 77: 	 r 	:-2 C.   
4_, 	 r•-,' 	 17: 	 r 	 H .4.,  

a 	•_, _ 1..  ,---• ;-• 	
, ,_= 	,-..,_, 

	

, 	:__, 	_, 	._, 	•z., 	
..-. 

t.-4-J 	 ,- 	,, 	7.= 	 -•-- > .4.-• 	r 
• ,- 	s•-•

r 	0 u 

	

. 1.) 	c., 	r 	 .. r 	 r• 	, 	 '1.) • .4-• 	 •...., 	. ..  

	

 
U 7-, > 0 	 u r■ 	 _C -,-. 

	

U 
	

U 
	r. 	 4_.., 	..-+ 

.-0 
 .0 	'...> 	4.-,  ,),1 ,7.. 

 
.,  

0 -r_i 	H. 	 , 0 k 	 tAC _, •7.; 	 z, 4-,  
, 	 7, 

0 	 )7) 	Cr: 	r-' 	 :-.; 	•:-. 	
CA.) 	 CL., 	̀.., 	1, 

	

4_, •-■-0 	V; 	 ;7-: 	?:: 	 . a: 	'1 	 :74: 	4  
.  

0 	'-` 	
,--, 	 C2.) 	0 J , 	> 	7; 	,--,. 	,,'3 	 , - 4 	"_`.1. )  

...4 	 .-.' 	....el 
, , 

, 	C-2, 	
-fl 'J L' R 	 .C1 C r 	 C 	 04 	

-  
0 	0 	 0 . U 	 0 0 

U 	 R >-, 	 0 r  • 	 C '0 C 	 C . - 	 - -4 C-:, .---• r 	— ,-; 	.  

	

7'. C.) '-- ' 0 	P '- 	ca, ■ 4...., 	,,.., •.> 	,--2,_, -0. 	., 	'-'-i . -, 	,-,--■'' 	,..., 	 ..,... 	. 7' 	0 r 
> 	 u-7 ' 	, 

• •-■ 	 ,-"" _a  
5--5 	,-- 	 E 75' - 	 )-5 	 8 '73 	:35- -- 

Y 	.7 — 	-. -■ 	 P 	 . 	 ' 	," 	r 	-' 	 r 	4-4 	.o... 4-,  :n ‘4,--•  .-, 	• '-. 	C1 	..' 	 U4.7, 	 U`-•'' V) 	 1 4  tf,  
0 „7; 	.17,0 

, M"' 7; , 9 ' 	 0 '-' 	• 	,r--i ,-,73.  
'-'-‘-; 	 0 	..V., 	t:13 ., 	)., 	, ..--4 	Q.) 	j 	

4-,  ■■ • ,-, 	QJ ._, 	-6 =.4 	-
r 	

, j o c_,, c-, > 	.., • - 	„.., 	 -, 	> 	 .-1 	
2 

/ 
:::,-. ■ -7:: 	;,. 	, 

	

> ' . 	0 . ,-. 	 ■ - ., 	 :::•-■ .' -. 	0 17_,' 	L.) > 	> - 	- 	.. 	 ,j_. ,-- 	 >, .„. 4-, 
Id am.' 	s-. 	 Y. 	 C.,  j^, 	 re=1  P  >-..  	'7';' 	r 	- 	0 

, 	 44- 	 P ,...._. 	r 	, 	, U 	r''' -7j 	 0 	 ■ (0 	e, 1-, 	5..,- 	•,...- " r .0 	 _ 1-J• .__. 	t , 	5-1 	 tr.) 	 r-: 	':•:1 	.,-, 	7., 	 , 	0-, 	TA, -- r 	 ,:i 	 C./ , r- Zi 	 , 	 t-. 	'-1 	 ..., 	c 
• .... 	.4.-.■ 
c,-  '-' 0 , '7' --14 	-,--• 	,  	•-•-•  

	

'-' 	0 ,--- 
0 	.;.:., 	f;14■ 	r--e 	̂ 	0 	-4_, 	_ 	„ 	,,;„, 
', 4..-• 	 r 	C H 	 H 	r 	...., , 

, r 	
R rr, r 	 C 	 4-1 

r" 	 CO CI 
.I-- 	(C) 	

-1-. r7, r- • 7 , 
-,..... 	4__. 	t-.. 	,--. 

 

C- , < J7 u 

	

-,..=! ' t 	'1) 	

.,-- 	1...• 	4....,, 	.'' 	1-1,.... 	. ,...,>. 	0 
-.-  

- ,•— 	 , 	,. n  ,._ 	-, ,,,c) ,, 	.,. .c_.- „ 	..., , 	... * 	• _ 	, ,. 

	

 
4-, 	

.„  

	

, ,... 	 ,, 0 ., 	: 
_ ,,..— 0 --. ._ . ,., = ._„., 	r„ - 	- 	(.,,, , 	 ,,-,. '--C 	I—. ,...1 

	-.•-• -4- 	0 
0 -0 4.7' 	 H ,, 4-,  :.- . , J 

:-.,.;i 	..,--. ,,, 	..-...-, 	- 	 ,,,- 	L.,.: 	cd  r 	 , 	-:_... 	, 	,J,  
,.,• 	r, 0 

..-. 	r., 	 bl") ,-,'. 	0 	• 7' 0 -re 

-7,-,!-j  Ti" 
.„ ,CO,,,,.... 	, 	, 	_.,,,, 	, 	0 	,71 	:r 	U 	r

'r.L., 	 '' p.s. f.) 	.... ,,,,, 	:-.,.,. 	L., 	....-- 	..., 	._ : 0 - - --.0 

	

.L-- 	'DO 7- 	 r 	 0 	,:., r 	r 	,., 	 r - 
.!--4,4  ..,1., 	. •-• 	, 	 , 	'-' .--7., 	, 	, 	- 	 C.1., 
Cl 	C'  .0 -7- 0 0 

	4-, 
 -' C;  0 	J r • -• CZ r r  H r 	

,-  

'4 ' • 	; 74 	 4-, 	,..... 	,--, 	 , 

.:r.) 	4.....,  

,_-) cl 	• 	a 	• 	• 	 • 	• 	• 

In
d

u
s
tr

y
  I

n
si

g
h

ts
  



U
p  

10
%

 t
o 
 5

0
%

 

U
p  

10
%

 t
o 
 6

0
%

 

U
p  

1
0

%
 t

o
  5

0%
 

E 
Ti 
Ti  

0  

0 

E 
Ti 

U 

E 

O 

03 

 0 

•ag 

> 
0 

0 

U
p  

1
5

%
 t

o 
 6

0%
 

25
%

 t
o 
 5

0
%

 fo
r  

o
p
ti

m
a

l r
is

ks
;  

50
%

 t
o 
 1

0
0
%

  f
o
r  

le
ss

  o
p
ti

rn
a

l r
is

ks
  

U
p  

5
%

 t
o 
 1

0%
 

a) 
a 

Pu
b

lic
  C

o
m

p
a

ny
  D

ir
ec

to
rs

  &
 O

ff
ic

er
s  

(J 

0 

O 

OZ5 

4-,  

QJ 

0 
C._ 

O 

Ti 

w 

0 

>- 
C 

E 
O 

3 1-ir) 
• E.: 
0_ E

m
p

lo
y

m
en

t  
P

ra
ct

ic
es

  L
ia

bi
li

ty
  (

E
PL

)  

I 	! 	I 

N
et

w
o
rk

 S
ec

u
ri

ty
  &

 P
ri

va
cy

  (
C

y
b

e
r)

  

a
lF

-1
1

2:
T

e1
1
4
*

1
1

4
Z

T
A

M
A

M
M

Ik
lq

V
ii

t 
 

	 

Pu
bl

ic
  C

o
m

p
an

y  
D

ir
ec

to
rs

  &
  O

ff
ic

e
rs

  (
D

&
O

)  



.2.4 	,'7J r-'''' 	U - 

- 	, ,...„  

u 	-.. 
0 	 — su., 	,7.-.- 

V - ,7.., 	. 	.-. 

 V 	 V '2" 	.,..., 

7'., • F- 	-=-: .---;  
C a 	 ...,„ 

J r 	J U 

-;,,.... 

— 
,- ,,,,--, 	-...0  

-_, 

	

u 	 .- 

,---... 

u 

-7,,• 

	

(--,1 	 ,:.-.. 

....:,.‘ 	 r -..., 	 7; 	t 

	

7., 	:- ,- 
'-:-/: 	

0 
 

';.--./ 
-7-'.., 	1_, 	.--  
u 	 -, 	,,,,• 	-,, 	,- ..... 	-O. 	,,,i 	"/-, 	•_. 	-p. 	0- 	0 

,. 	a.,'-' 	'-, --;r)  E3 	5_,-:,  U   
> 	-, 	,-- 	r: 	,--. 

 0 	 t ,..., 	 ;=:. 
77', , 

Li 	,-,   7_ 0, 5 

	

 - 	.-, 0 -,-, 	
0 CZ' _, 	:-„, ___, 	,4_, . - - 

0_ 	..-: 7' 	,  
,-, 	t 2--  _ :__. 	;L.  -r= 	_-,•,' U 	, 

Fit/ 	---., 'I', 	. _ • - 	
0 r V •,.., 
, 

•-• 	 J  u ___, 	2 	:;:', 	.0 	„F. 	I-7, 

	

r 	 : .., r 	 V 	 5 r 	 -, V V 
C., 	

( _ L. 	
2 , 

--r-J 
	

0 

u 	 ,--;  
.I.., 
	

':-:'-: -.:',

:: :,;:4,.. - - 	: 

	

' 	 .--: 

	

__,_._) 	 _ 
V 	u 

	
. , 0 ra 	

t., ;:-.) 	
, J7

- 	u 
, . r; ) 	!DO = F 	u 	-,  r -' 	-,- v ;7: > C ri 7,  0 	-- 	..,- u . 	, n __ 	-0 0.:z;  

• • P
o
te

n
ti

a
l  S

ta
bi

liz
er

s  

U 
U 
O 

C 

4-, 
a) 

0 

>44. 

4-,  

Q.; 

C 

0, : 7  

U J  
U 

C 
0 

  

co
re

  r
e

te
n

ti
oi

  
ac

q
ui

si
ti

on
s  

(.1) 
0 N _.,. - , - 

,...._, 
. --, 

	

,-7.. 	t 	2 	 ,--... 	u 
.1-, 
,7, 	 -,,-. 	E 	7u -0 	 c 
,  :,.,-, 	 _ 	u 	-_, .,-_- 	J 

 

	

F ,-..) 	, ,'-', 	 V 
.--r-' -_,...  .,_.  C 	 0  >-, 4-, 

',.., 	- 	F._. 	•E:,.,  .,... 	 F 
U ,...4 	V  -1-._■ 	 ■ , 	--7--, 	 . r 	 (Th 0 

-...../ 
 0 	 ......, 	•„,_, 	 , 	 '7,_. 7- 	7./73 	 u 	,_, 	,•:,'r., , c.-., 

, -I- 0 	 ,..'  :u. u 7,4) 	
..„-, •-_. 	- 	 ._ 

,„....... 
= 	

- 
,•., , 	 u ---4 	V,  t ' 

0 	a_.. 	, 	-, -7..,' V 

	

' -70 8 	
V 	',..., 
-7, 	," 	= 	,- 4--, 	 r  - 

/4,   

	

V 	 t- In' t 	E 	z 	.r.) 	0 ;. 	 -, J 	̀,7 	-:: 
,-; 	 4 	• 	,- 	_ 	,-• 	', 	. 	••:: 	-'O. 	.:•, 	c.,.. .-1--• 	E, 	-, u 	,-,i 	-:-.; 	.5. 	 k 	3_7-_-.' tk u 	

) 	 u 
 . 2 	:--) 	 -  

, 	 c.3 	u ,---• 	 ' 	 ,-- 	, _ 	
u 14, 	 c ,- 37_ 	to  

7 	 u 
. 0 , 0 	u ›..„ 

-0, 	0 	-72; 	• 	 .._- 

	

 
..:-. • ,-- 	

71 
,- - ._-, 	,-• 	:,...,,, 

''-:' 	IL] 	0 	-..., 	."_o: 	2.' 	32 	,-..3,-, 	, 	C 	u 	,3„, 
7- 90 	 =. '.'! -J ,- 	 .' 	)- 	,7; 	.  

. _ , v  - 
>7  ',  ,_ 	v 	. , 	 u 	= 	,--- 	-7....: ,t 	::,..: 	•.-, 	,- 7.7_, 

. /7, 	, 7. .7  
0 	4--■ 	 .7 	

, 
; 	 0 721 	:-5 	7' 

-, 
0 '--1-,  

(..)  u 0 := 	:7 7,7 -0-,  
7 	t c„, 	= 	

- 
J .  I..,    J t 

	

7 	t •„7., 	. _ 	;_ ,.._, 
n 

7  , 
C, 	 0 	 u 	r , 	7  •:', ;-_-,,_ 	c: 	,--• u = 	 u - , 	 :=•-.. 	T., ..,

u 	
..- 	,- , 	,t -7-_,  

1., 	 ,-- 	u 	._ 	> 	 o > 	,--.5 	o 	•  u 	.-_, 	L-', 	,- 
0 7 70,  7  , 0  7- su .,,,, 	---- 

	

u 	-0, , 	,__. 
,,- 	u -- 	0 	u 	0 N 	-7; ;"_,-; 	-ID 70 	 ,  

by U U u 
u 	

c4- 	0 	3,, 	c 	..... 	;LI_ ,L7-, 	___., 	F_,-• o 
ti' rn 	, 

	

:.1 - 	J.----- 	':,=-] 	--7-,. t 	:J ,--- 	_ 	- 2, 
_ U 

(7, 	
, 
u , 

	

C '1"-_,'  77i 	',0 	, 	•__, 	„ 	:__, 	-- 	•--.  , V 
::, 	H 	, 	!:,, 	.7-, 	........ 

u r 	
,= 

0 0 r 0 

	

-:•;',..": 	' ) 	;:-- 	5  tO 	(0 	..2) . E 	U =', 	_- 	< - 	- „.., 	•-..., 	- 	..__z r.r-. 	-C 
• • 	• 	• 	• 	• 	a 	• o 

G 0 , 

CJ 

	

-7  j: 	 00, 	 ..„, 	 u 	 , C  74 ,  * 

	

, , '- '''') (1 L',-, '.° 	 -7: ....., 	 r J , 	 ■.7.; 'e--1  
o 	,-- 	 u > 	,- c.-2. 	• 	tr., 	 -,-. :.- 0  ,-,... u u. 0 	 u ,-,... 	0  ..., ,-. 

r 	t ' .'-rL' •=7.  ' 
. '-_:::. 	■ - . / 	, . . .• : C 	, _ ,̂ 	,. ,, , 	. ,?, . 

D0 

,--, ,--1 
r 	 (7 V ...) , 	 . r 	 , 	rt :--2, 	 rt ,----, 	> 	 .1,-.0 	4--, 	 - ■.,- -r- 	'". 	-' 	 r 

J. E; 

I—I 	 . --■ 
, rLQ 	 -4-, 	 ■;..,,,` 	 -7.' 

 
, 

	

,_ 	0 	. , ....., 	 0 _ET ••••:_-,. 	r. 	u 	.- 	,..„ ,_.,, 	 u 	u 	> 7:3 	'',.. 	_,__, 	 ,..._.. 	,,.,,,, , , 	- 	4_, _..„. 	 , ___. 	0 	,L, 	.3-4, 	,...,.. 	 • - 	,7, 	u 4-, 	,--■ 
. * 	 . -,--. 	 7-, 	 --'3 	, .--.. 	0 	bp -,,-_ 	 ,-.) 	7 • •-•-.4. -',,--- 	u 	,• 	u 
r 	7. 	 >,,.....,  

(- ) 
(7  • .X '-a  

	

 '. 	>, '1' 	5 	 u 	-H• 	:,17i '-'. 	';--1 • --=' 	,'''' ,..,3 	lag 	_ -7;: 77  • - 	 ■ - ,,_.■  
H iv  L., bo 	r 

V ,) 
,--J 

	

, 	r^' 	.-41'- 	. 73 	--. ,-_,. -r 	-r:.. '7  7, 	,./.) u 	:1-... 	t F3,5 	,_., _..„ (---5 	. 	_   

	

  J 	, 
, 	. 	. = :-..,5„ 5_. , ,..--.5 	r.5, 	-...._.  	_ 	. 	k 	- 	2 	=>  „, , 	 ,%- -6 -a '7,  :--, 	 :a,  o J  o -, u , - 

	

„_,..., 	.,„ ...v.., — ._ 

	

- 	 c .1-/ 	, ,,...„ 
-1.--■ 

1-, 	
rt 	 '.:■0 •-:' 	, 	'.'-, 	''' 	>•.. 	 , 	''.3. 	't 	, -"'-' 	, • ,-) 1--■ .-7.._,' 	• 	0, .7-' 	'"' 	.,., 	 4-, 	:--i 70 	 LI 	 7, , '-' 0 ' 77.• 77  

	

r--, 	 rj , 
tf..) r 

	

> - r -r :--, 	- , , 	-7.; in 	
0  _. V r. C u 	 F 1) '-t) 0 b ,.„,-• -c--" ,---, 

_o r ',.: '-.1 u • - • - - -.. 
 

J 	'f--7-  ..;),„ 	0 	cif,  .;_-_, 	 .1) 	, ...c., _.0 • - 	,,,,i 	 u 	•,-, 
u 	,_

0  
> .. ''.■ 

,.., 
''..' 	' , 7.• ..;----, 	0 	',.;--, „.„'-' 	 u 	'-' 	, 	0 	"----• - 	'' 	,-4.,,,  _ 	 ..., 	-1-., U 	:--c 	 ' ,---, 	ci, ';' 	, 	:•;t: 	''; . 	 7, 	,--, -„, 	-1,-■ 	 ', j 	7_7 	,..;::: 	,„ 	....., ;,,,_Li 	 (-, 	 fa 	 :-.-.. 	,..,-■ 	 ,._..■ 	 ._. 	 r.- 	

0 	(1..) 	'n:.' 	:e7!, 	"7._,' 	,' 
1.).  . 	 .., 

, 
/--, 	■-1 	,..■ .7-",_, 	2 	u 	;,): 	,.., 	,.  

--d 	u 	u 	 - 0 1- .-- =, --7-• 

	

„.„5 ,73 	„2 .),-__ • -, 	 _ -,-, 	--- u ,....._4, 
..., 	, 	,..„ 

,- to  .7_, 	' ;74 	.7...- 	>-.. 	 C-1 	- to  c ,...= --0  

	

, 	 . - 	:-,•_, 	E - ,71 	u .2 	'.-.!-) 	',:-.", • - 	 .,., ,-- 	i--, 	_LT., 	0 	 r•-• 

, 

to 

	

. .g. ,?;J: 7; ' --E 	0 v 	,=--- 	o L-  , • 	u ---. ,t, 
.- 	u ........- 	 ',-- 	0 	,, -,, 	, -= .-' -,,,- 

	

,-, 	_. 	4_,.., 	,-, 	
0 	,.■ 

y) 

0 	a.) 
-1.-, 	

,-4.--, 
r` ....., 	 0 	 , 	> ., 	›,. (-, 	 0 0, :1) 	, 	-, 	r ,CL 	;L.  , 	al 

4-.., 	r.,) 	 1,-, 	 -, 	 -c 	;_-' 7 	5. 	:-.3 	 k 
Q., 	'-- 	 ,-- 	773 C _0 0 - - ''--. 

 

	

L.• 	,7.3 ,= 	I, 	 u 	 L.-3, 	,.... 	 c.-:, 

	

-,,,,, 0 	,•,...„ 	. ,,,, 	,_, , .., 
 ..., 

72,  • -: 	 , 
	,-, -r-^ 

	1- 	ti.) -Es' t 
.... 

	

u 	(.., o '--) 
A , ,■-' .:--Z 2 7f,  

r 0 	r 

	

.).-J 	
6 

.i.., 	,,j 	o 	::1 
-1--, 	 . --, 	 , .0 

e,,......,tz'' .4_.:-. 	 2::-..,0 -":„.,„: 	j 

T 	7',,,, -_-: 	, 	a.:: 	$_., 	to o 	,:. 	,- 	-...., 	 c 	,,,,,, r., 	,.,2 — 	o 
— 

- 
  

	

: u 	 a 

,  
 

7-: 

	

> 	 'T3 . = t.0 , 
r 7;  = t ,....- 

7-,   

to 	 . 	

- 	

.•,....., 	.,, ._,,,, 	la.  ..,, 	7.37' 

	

,E--, •'-' 	 , „u  _ — 	 0 	 u 

	

,, 	5 	,.- - 4....■ 	V --', , 

	

,7; 7-- 	 "a 	'...4. 
r 

V ,74 	13 t 	Siu 	;•,, 	 t, . 7  0, 	:"'...- 'V 
C44,) 

C j  .-:4' 	'73 	t,'1=r) '-'-'- ' 	''-'• 	7:' 	
n.4 	 .." 	'7'. 

-a c.a., ... 	 0-- 
	<L.+ 0 	,•.  

 
-73 	u 	 t..) 	•_ .1 	..,) 

',.... ..n 	'" .--- ■ 

C 	
CJ 

	

.., 	,,5 .,.. 	" 
-,1,.....,  

	

Ct'j  '. 	

1) 	 ;.' ■-,-■ 	 J 	CT; 
■-■ 	 CI, 	.f .-.  

... 
1.)  

(1., 	t.3.0 	. 	...6: 	rt 	• 	,'-, 	W-.-)  

	

;_:: 0 _C • 7  - '---- .n. ;._--, -  U 	 r :'-) 	
,--- ,-.0 	'7, 	- 7 	7, 

u 	 r- 	o 	,•,-,:,_ -'" - 	 ,--• 	•.,--; 	'-' -`-- 	'-' 	,-' 	 o..., 	-•;-- 	F.. 	u 	- 	•....., 	- 	1--, 	
..,     

, 	,.._, 	-, 	I-' 	■-' 	' .r.7 	17-1. 
I. 

	
4.4 	,-,', 	' . • .2, 

t.--' 	U 	,111 	U 	'1.4 -7-i 	1)) 	--2 	z, 	-7., .7•;6 	z.,..I, ',-• i 
t,  0 

1 t,  71 t C-.) 	• 	• 	• 	 --, -.0 	,__,-,' 	r 	,...„ 	.., -- 



„' 	 , 	 ._...., 
..:L: 	 v 	 :- .- 	 u 	.-.. - 

e-. 	r ,., 4--, 	 • r 	•:_) 	 r•• 
t--, 	 '•-) 	:L 	?-•■ 	2 	 CIT 
0 	

V 
7 	r_ 	0 ,,_.„ 	,...., 	._, 	r ,-2 	'', 	 C.) 	U -73 

,-, 	.c-, 	..:--- 	 r 	••-••■-. e-• 	'.--' 	.7. 	t; 	 , L„ r. 	 ,C,_,• , L 	 '''''' 	:••••1 	._-_' 	0 	„.,., 	0  
.,71 	1) 	, 	.-- 	 -.1.-  C 	 ..) ,C,' 	 i '--' 	r 	

, • * ' ' ' '  

0 	
, __. 	, 	'....) 	:x. , 	 0 	• -t! 	'.L., 	;:-. 	;."'' 	tr., 	 7.; •,') C2, 	.0 	'7).; 	 '-:: 

	

.L-1' ,r) 	,_-',. 	 i.:. • :- 	-'',7', 	•).) '75 	- 

	

r 	 F) 	''''-') 	-..7% 	'Dr,  P 	 , > 	•.) 	 , 0 CD 	u 0 
r 	•,=, ' ”, 	'',"'' --=',' 	 p_, 	'-. 	:77) 	r 	 C._) r  , f-') 	 0 	 --• 	-' 	 ,=.Z. 

o •-• :I', 	-.L.) 	.., 	 '-) 	 .__, 	::- 	 '-• 	'DO = 	:-) 	, 
•1) 	•-:-) 	 rr ' ,- 	•_, ° 	-.L., 	 , r , 	:-, .r 	77i U 	 r 	•---, 	 .,-' 

" 
r 4-' 	0 •--;' 	 .20' t , JC-,, 	 •U >7. 

	
'. 

1,.,) 	,Dr.., 

	

> ---7 	
. > 	Jcr" 	J",.",".„ 

	rr, 	 ,--,, 	 _., 

	

- h, 	u ,c,_   

	

.. 	,_. 	. 	, 	C" • , 	,.-7., 	, 
..--. 	;,' 

 

	

, 	,L,1 	.1--. 	. 	r- ' 

	

'...1-j 	-.1'; 	 "11 	 " 	•DIT.) :2 	'F'-'■-• 	" 	u  :T. 
0-  t, 	0 ,_  -- 

 ._ 	, ,  

	

u 	 „ — , 

	

-7_, __. 	..2. 	 1..) 	-L) 	r 	,...,, 	
J 

	,I, 	 J ■ 	 r 0_,  r 	•2.) 	'......, 	 , 	 E 	";..3 	r, ,1)--- 	"0 "." 	 'DI, 
r • - 	 2-2, ,  

	

E 	 — r.,,, 	, _,E 	..,- 	,,,r-: 	5 	- 	=----, 	,',   ,.., --,_  -  

	

- 	, 	- , 	- , 	,-- 	.., 	r- 	 ." • 

	

C.) 	'  

	

., -0 	:=1 	,/,' 

	 h

r 'S' 	r 	r 	■_., 	. :2-2 F-  C 	 _) 	 0 	- 	
,-- 

',---:. 	.:5 	
..,2„._. 

	

.,... 	u 

	

-:.: 	
•

''.--..] 	'',=.•' 	u .=2". 	.7.-.Q.. 	 _ 	h" I  

	

1..., 	 ..±- 	C.)   

	

,z2, t).r., 	— 	 T.; IF,,0--C , C 	 7 - - 1-■ CLI 	 , 7, 

■__./ -,-, 

	

P 	
7.7 	.-- 	, 	 -73 	.-, 	 4- • ;-' 	, 	.-, . 7 	' 	''L:j  •-j.-1 	p 	,- 	,-,". _Le 	

,=. 	.3,-' 
cd 

, 

	

p ,_.; 	 -,-. 	, 	p 	 od 	 ,- 	, 	- ,, , 	 o_, .-. .2. - to 	,-- U 'f (1.) 	 'Li 	L., 	 r 	-7_-) 
. -- 	 .0 	bi-:, 	 ._., 	,." 	- 	..,., 	 h 	h., 

 

	

,., 	
(1.■ 	

r.,T' 	7.: 	0 	 ....- 	(L., -0 	'7_-_,.. 	2:, 	:7,..: 	E 	'6' 2 "E 	0 -P 	 el: 
■ 	, 	- 	, 	0 	- 	- 	 0 ;.-- 0 7' "-- 	 ,-, 	 • • 0 	 ( j 

	

'1.) -.C. 	 r '--' 	:': --. • -7 	 C_, 	C,.) 	CI) 	13,0 '.11 	 -r..-i 	-' 

	

-7-, 	 ...-■ 	,il 	 ,, 	r, 	 , 	.2_-„,  .,.___, 	 s'—' .__ 

	

(-‘1 	 0 	 ■ 	0 	, C 4.-■ 	 . 	 "--• 	 ,, 	.-, 	. 	(.,) ,,,-/ 	,__, 	•--, 	•,_. s•-, 	r 
-_-_,_.  

.W- -:-_,' • ..,,, 	WO P 	

ca, bo L-- 	-,„, • ,•,, 
,----, 	,-, 	, 	,,,,, 	s- 	 ,---' 	-,-■ 	 4.-■ 	 ' '•=7 

	

._.) "7.--"-. 	 ,•7!, 	r 	CO -,.t.' -7, 	CO 	, 

	

' 0 	 .- 	

tr.) .-0-  • - ir-  T.; ,_ 

,---- 	, 1 	•,...■ 	
r 	,-,,,-'• 
;..._. 	

, 
. •47...• 	 -.= '•-.C, 

r 	 r,L,„ 	..._, 	......, 	 C., 	 • ^ 	'-',..> 

	

■,_) 	--, '-`,_) 	
--n 

,I, 	' 	'DO 	V 	•.--, 	 '11 • ,-- 	-Z.  

	

> 	,,__: 	, 	.r    	r. , 	 , . . . 	
. • „ ,,,_,,,, ,--- 	77% 	,-.,72 	_, 

, 	 r- 	4-' 	...-1 	 F,r_, ".. 	',.-; 	1--_,,' 	-- 	 '-', 	,-_, 

	

cz 	C) 	C.., 	 r 	0 	
.0 	r < . 	

b
..-2,-. r 	'L.) Cc.) 

rc ,---/-c,  

0- —• 	',RI -'7"; 
C" E:

c.,  

	

L.) 	C.) 

..... ,:,_, 	•7..• 	,- 

	

--.5- 	•-• F 0 

	

tr., 	0  
--r. 

C)
'  
-..)  r• 0 ..: 	, 	

,-J 7  ., , .). 	, . . . , 	, 
'J 	

IT 

	

.. 	to 'T-_, :', 	r 	;'-' — , 

	

:":'. . T7 	
. -■ 77)  
r 	.-) 	 ,„ . 	±), .... 	J!  7; 
.1  

	

., 	. - - 	.;,- ._, 
,>-■ 	 '- u 	11 ,-, -.)  

C.' 	CZ. 	
•--T_T, 	_,p 

	

'1, 	(Li 	 -,..... — 	,_, 	r 	Ji 	
...„ 

.... 	, 	 (-= 	-0 	 '-- 	C 	.....) 	C
,
-, 	---r 	' .Z 	:7-,' 	'''-) 	''',;; 	,-, 	•_,  

	

1) 	,-. 	 . -) 	 V, 	 ...) 	,-- 	 a) 	br)  

7-1 	a) ,--1,-- ra ■ 
	_c-c,' _cu „...c= 1.1 	.---, 	7 	0 2";:;,. 	--co 	..: 	.:.--. 	r._-_, 	• -;=.' 

. 	
Z 0 • , 7 	 ... 

	

;--. 	r.) 	 ,•••• 	0 ,-, 	 ,--, 

	

_.... 	;... ,..L, T. 4- (7; in 	od -73 '' 	,-- t '-• 	,3d-, _0 	'27" 
	,72, 	b 

ft -'-' 	 ''' 	'•11  -r-i V 	r• 
;-: f ,"1" 	

' 

	

E3 	'•::J 	V 	 _-'-_ ''-' 	rj 	. 7..., 7--', • ,c-, r 	r 	V •- ■ 

	

0 •+-■ 	 ,__, :•- ■ P E") 7', 	o , , , ._, - 	" ,_;_.: 	.-, 	, 
, , 0 	 0 	, ,::;...., 	.,..... 	 ..._ 

	

7 -C. 	;.-7-; 	 ,._i..___, 	...1,- 
■ 	 r 	■ 	III 	■ 	■ 	 ■ 	 ,.../ 	.c... 	 (-.■ 	C.c.)  . '.-, 	r c..---' ,._./ ...—... 	 o 

... ■E. 

o • _ 

C 

>-, 
u- 

0 	 4-,  

	

777. . ', 	 4-0 	1.) 	 ,  
.c 	 ,--, ., 	 -a 	 D 

1 
r ' 	 0 

•7 	'1.) 	±7.-: 	 7., U-., 	 -i-,  

	

,..) 	
-2:3 

	

:I/ 	 C) 	 .1) 	 0 C 

	

C...) 	 77)  	
., , ;,-„.  ,- 

	

' 7- 	c., 	 7. 	■-. --; u 

	

12 	4__. 

	

,-.: 	_ 

	

- -:= 	 7-1 	•=7,-.. 	 .(:," ri 	, , 	 _, 	e-' 
. - .") 	l•-' 	• 	 0 	i9,- 	r  

	

c-c,4,. 	 .J ,LD , -2 	.  - - , 	cu  
,-, 	 -E g'-, 	0 ;-= 0 

	

_ - 	< 	
" 	- 

	

0 	o 
.. 	- 

- 

F:3 0    
	 › 	'n 	0  C-, 	■-■ 	 '.,..., 	Cf. 	 '-' 	'.1.1 	' -,2 	r 	 C., 	r., 

	

C.: 	 C.) 	F, 	,,,-, 	 -75 	 7 	'.--..) _ t'.0 	c.., 

	

10 	• F_-- 	-,--1 
- ''d _:. 	 CI -.7i 	 . - . 'ar) 7' '-, 	- 

•.-4•. 	..... 	 , 4-c 	 -12-, 	 CJ 
• :-• 	,41 	0 	 .1.-• 	0_, 	 , 	, 	 '7, 	> 	 , 	:-, , , 	 0 	.:•': 

1., 	di 	— 	.:,__:, 
. j,,, 	, 	 :;--- 	0 	:,-,- 	,, 	72, — 	— 	 J 

	

,.7-, 	 oo — 	 , ,-, -_, 	 0 	.:-.,. 

	

, - 	
2 , 	

„ -.0-  0 

,-- 

	

D 	0 	8 
-_, 

:D----.o ,-,, 	: 	

,... 
z r  - -',‘ . ,' 	 • I , 	r  . . 	, i I 

	

./:. 1 , 	 , ■ 1 	i 	, 	0 

ft'   
-7) 

	

,-' 	>. 	r ),., 	 -IT: 	`1) 	if-) ,'-• 	r 

	

0 	0 	0 rj 	
t■O 

.=   _, ..:_-, -,..7. 	■.1...) 	, 	--,-.; 

	

-.3 	 u 	 . 
r--• 	.-, 	, 	0 

:I) 

	

, 	
-,-, 	r.f. 	r- ,...,_, 	f:-1 	17:,, 	.::-1 	p 	-7:.1 '-r-", 	7: 	• 

	

5 	. „ 
• 7.7:, -0 	

. - , 

	

.■_., 	,.,,. ,... •-,-, 

	

a_. ,•-, 	 ,., 	,.,.., 	u 	 h 	u 

	

,- 	c 	-,.... -,:' 	, 	f•-) 	C.) 	0 	 9 	."."., 	n 	 L., 	0.. 	C..) 	r-,--• •_, 
,...., 	 .,  

	

r, 	 --, 
ra •_,_, 	, 	LL ,t 	, 	-' 	u 	cr' 3-- 	

,-,-,, „.5 	 -, 	s,,-: 	'-" 	
, 	,I.)  

u -,-- 	, 	•:.).,. 	'',=•-•!- D 	.- 	..,., 

	

.-- 	C.) 

	

tr.) ;7_,- 	 r 	Z 
0 

	

'.=.:' 	 " 	0  
^_, 	r>.  : 
a 	r, ) 	 ,:.:-, f., ,,,,7 	 0 _,, 	::..) 	. '"..:f ,c...., 	•-'4  

,- 	;=:,-) •...• 
•_, ':'•.. 

	

.4, 	

-7.) 	o

, 

, 	\ -0 
77.: 

-,.., 
0 

:1) 	J 
 , 	0 	0 

	

'-' 	
Ct r., 

	

.) ,-,1 	
c.:,. 	0 ...„ -..,... 	,... 	-.._, 	,-,,,2 	4- 

	

r- 	u 	
*a 

-. U 0 
-... -C., 	 ,-,-- 	D ,r. 	> 

	

,-- 	-,-. 
E , • - 0 2  . , . . , 	.,., , , 0 .__, 	.t..0 ri--- 	0  

	

,_,., 	

Z 

b..° 	- 0 	- - 	0 .0  
':', 	r 	

',..'-', 	0_ 	
-,:j 	, '.-.) 	L-. 

	

t 	' D -7; 	7.; 	7;., 	. 	a) 	-. 	'':,.i 	,7,' 	
,-. 	 - 	,--; 

	

'1.'0 ",•-3 	7.-  	 ":17; 	=7,-; 4 	...., 

	

..-:,. 	 ,--. _._. 	. . 
-- 

2 - , 
, 

(.,--7, ,-,:_, 	Lt ',.,i--j 
. :3  .--- 

	

_. 	...) 0 ,,-.) 

	

;-= — 	_,_, -7:: 

0 	.--, ,-, ...---' --- 	u 
_ 

, .- 
,--- '

.. ,1 -.T., 
-,,=.• 

	

...., , 	
— 0  
3 e-,  
u c.) 

,-.: 	'-';'.9 '-', 

,-- 	....., 	,,-,, 

__. 
7.; ,- 

Z 

4 

	

0 	
r, --, 

....', 
4,.. 
1.; 
?-- 

CL  	, 	.- 

J 	', 

	

,-. 	 u 	,-.J 	 0 C .----. 	.r_ri 	'..., - --: 	 r 	 I.) 	 ....... 

	

--.': •F, 2 -, 	 0 	, 	 , - ,0 	;,-- 	 , 

	

..„_,- 	-2 	> 	, 	.,-2, ,, 	. 	, O 	F-: 	;-=, ---,--: 	8 	-.) 	- 	 ,,,_, .,_, 	,_, 

	

>,,,...., 	,-, 	'Il C 	;>-. 

4-,  ' r ':',1:1 

	

0 : -7  . "r:-!, .---.C:" 	.r-  -.' 	:6 L- , 	,- 	...1.., 	7 	
.77, 	1,:i 
u - 

.,.. ca..  

	

, ...., 	0  

	

---2S 	F.:::: 	
..._. 	..,:, 

	

I- 	L.,  
, (:)--, 7r: 	

7) 

	

i--. 	 C  0 	 a) 

o '...) 
co 

■ 	C.:, 	'7 	 j Li ''t cj T:, 'L.L 	
rr 4-4j  , 	

(ti 

	

a  C.5 	
".7., 	:,7.1 .C., •-• 

	

tl 	 ., 	
° 	I, 	I.-  

0 	:cc: 

	

,i 	
,7-, 	 >'• 	Li4  

	

U ,---- 	- ,-, 

	

..... 	,-. 	, 	
- 

. 	 br, _bi-., .----, 	r 	E  ❑ 

 

	

..,„ 	0 	. P 7E. 	0 •'"7.,̀   '..:'_ 	77) 	!".:),O 	. 	r -,-,- 
-.:..) 	•-=' 

,Df,) 	-- 2-4, 	•„._, 

	

',,,,, 	C.) 

	

, 	,.... . _ 	
t o 	.7-1 • ^ -7-, 

	

CG

U 
 0 4) 	

Ct 
D 	

u 	u ,-- 
td,'--. 	,c,_ r.:_-, 	 ..: 	bi-) -73 	,'-'-• 	-,-. 	 --, 	CCf. ,  	E., 	 1-• C-/::,.) 	,•,-.,  

, 0 

 
, 

	

-  U 	..-,  , 	acj  4- ' 	c  • . 

,0_,  . 2 	0 	.'.:7-'  . E 	
'-:' 	„. 	, 	,-,--• 

, 	4,  
OW  

•''' 	.,7".-  ,.', 	‘.,- 	C- 	u 	u 	:3- 	,-T.,  t' 	',', 	C-'3 -LC 	'..) 	C3 	u 	7 	'' 	,--..: 	','_,J 	ns cu 	2 	.= 
7 7 ' 

'.77.  
! 	

, T.* 

•,,7 0 	 .- 

A 	D 	• 	• 	 • 	• 	• 	 CL L.) 	..-,- .-- 	ul 



t-4 
("7-t 

(-^ 
(-^ 
0 
U 

tpr) 

0 

C  

U 
ci 

• 1-1 
,r-r) 

• 

C.) 

0 

C 

,rt 

0 

0 

C7i U 

Jri 
r-, 

 7,1 

U 

,•-r) 

0 

C 
0 
U 

DO 

ti 

C.) 

0 

C.••S 

IM
P

O
R

TA
N

T 

0 

V 

-7-_, ,--• 

7-.". 

t)0 

• P 
, 
s-•:,• 
0 

, 

— 	 ,1.1 
r, 	-0 

U A 
0 	•],-, , 	• -, 

V7 	 , 
,-1  

	

-1-1 	.--4  
U 	 ,t '7,7, 	:-.-- 	..... 

	

U 	 ,z 	v; , 	u 	c,-__ , 
.,:.:...-: 	r 	 •-.C, 	r-s 	r- ML-' 

ej 	
r 

	

G 	,...,- 
ccl 	 0 

, 	 r- ,e , 

, 
C.., vi 

 

,- 	 -., 	Ci-) 	 ...) 
-r,  

C.) 	 , ,  r  
, 	 tl) 

. 7; 	 , 	 _, n■ 	 , 	 n 	cz: 	 "2, ni 

-", 	 ..- 	 ci 	 ,.=,  

1..)  fa.4 ..L4:,  ,...... 
0 	.--■ 
■-■ 	 , 	 ..,,, 	 '.t 	. ■--:1 -,--, 	1.) 	• -, 	 •...) 	 -, r_;, 	.,_, 	 0 4--, 	 ,-1--: 0 f_a_. 	 U ' 	CI, 	 , 

.= 1 _a el.) 	 r" 

, 	'.-■ 

 , , , .___ 	.. 	j. 	U , 

,. -, 
 ,,, 

Es 

J ,_, 

L.() •J 
r'-' 

,-• 	's..r. 
'-s7,,c, ,__.) 

-,- , 
V 
tr.) 
7.; 

 "3 
.-ss- 
 0, 

C.) ,-7,,  

v-) 

-0 

_.,4  
`'`',  

-I-■ 	 ,-, 

'' 	,--,--. 
Cr.  0 
tr.) 	sll 
.:•: 	.2-4 

. X• '..-j rZ  
,.... 

d 	,ZL.'" 	''') 	,-, 	1.1 	7) 	0 	'-'-' 	,_. ,.. 	, , 	 0 	r.j,  >, 	-I--• 	%-■ . a 	,--. U 	 0 ,, 
„.0 	-,-- 0 G, 

t' 	
V 

-0 '----. ...>: 	0 G 	r 	 • -, :-. 
V  ✓ 

-,...■ ,..., 	
73 	, ,•C" ._,.,'j 

Ce 	 J r P ,E-;' 	(,) ,--, o 	.C7',- 	?,-, 	'--.;- 	c..) 	,.. .._,, 	$- 	 c,.., 
 ,-- 	:4 ,__ 	0 a , , 	,..., :-', 	:__, 

.._-: 	7.-, 	0 'J 	 .1-, 	
t. 	, 	0 	 ,...■ 	u 	-0 	'1' 	0 

 —C.3 	':: 	--, -6-,  

-I-,  
r 

.. 
.":"2. 

G 

i.  
01) 	

Li 
(-' 
CI 
C..1 . 
0 ,--) .0 	

.7:, +.,, >, 

47,  t;2, P 
2 ,b_ t; 
,-- c.., .-." 	

_b 
o 

 , 
— ,c_.• 

J - .7s 

o..., 	,--. , 	
, 
z.,)  f,  Oto  

c.." 0 
C.7 \ 

,...:1 	 ,, r: :7_),..,  

,-- -7.1 ,..., 
rd 	,-- 	 ,22, 	,.,.;  , 	 0 

	

V ■,..„U 	r.,' -4... ....,
'')  u v',  , 	 -7..-A 	,7„. C..) ..,,_., 

-I -, 
ti 0 
,3 -I-■ , 	. 	*.) 	b), , -7-...; 	

tC '1,--)  ,--,--. 	r 	, .,„-1_, 

-12' U 	• r r 	 0 Z 7 	 C.) 
...-. 	G.) 	,t,r) 	_,,,  

0...  _,, r_ 	o-, q.) r- 0 	r1.:,., 	,-. 	4--'. 	'4' 	c., 	r., 	 'L.>  
U 	r , k 	r-' 0 .... 

,--■ 	 ',...../ 	0.) 	CC) 	...̀. 	--e. 	t 	f G--+ r--.Cr: 	v) ■-71 	c7.1 	U 

• 

 TO  J 

0 	(1.) ;,-, rj >,,, 	 6 u 	u 	— .  ...L.::, --7,-. ■--. 	 ,._,= -,-„,,-,  
, 	-;.-- 	u 	 ,u---  e-, 	-, 

 
(,, 	c.) 	s 	,--,` ,_. c„, 	 D., a. ,-- - - 	r- ,- 00 	,-. 

< 	.1) 	rt 	,-•,, 	,..) 	,_, 	....., 	 -- 

,z; 	C,-, ■-' 	17:: 	 0 
... 	›- rj 

- 	7.! ---- 	
(-, 
ct 	, ,.. 	,.---, 

1., 	C.) =, r7  .,. 	 ,7... ..- , 

.%, 
,-, tr.) 	

u :,.._ 0 ,- .n..) 	c., ,,c, r,c..) 	— 7.:-..— ■.:: 	,:..) 	—, — 	• 	>-.. 	c_.■ . — — 1-■ 
Er..) 	 ,- 	1.5 .,) 	r_ 	 ,..) 	, 	, , 	0 	 , 0 r -,  

V V 	 V , ,-_2, 	 -6-,  0 
ai3 ,__, 	U ''') ,..1 	,-, 

t- 	
,--■ 	 .-■-t 

— 
; 

t-, 	.,,t, 

7: bi 	'z.,-  ,-) ci - 	 L=.! I) bi-) 	 1.) '7  
-L 	J:-.. 	 > ., 	,-;,, 	0 	).:., 	-.. 7 	 b0  ,. 	 I) 
'J ,‘,:i > L 0 .Z.L' 0 '

, 7 
7_,,, 1J 	r 0  

0 r. , 	1..)
- 
	 • -, to „..., !+-: -F"., G. 	---.! 	,..) . 

 
0 	

,_, 
. r- 	 ■,_,--' 

 
C 	,,,) 	':2; ,...) 	 --a 	r  G , 	 V G 

, G 	. ■....) --r: 	:., 0  'V , 	, 	V c.,'_ V f,, ,. 
r. 	G 	„74  	.., ,,_j,4 	V 4, 

0 ,--, J ,* 
r 0._.- ' 	7:,,,  L. 	,-• 	•.,7, 	' 	 ,t --^-e,,.., <-.-. 	• -  z -

✓ 	 7 b 	 ,)-I 1) 70 ..;:t,
• 	 r--,_, —, c_-_,! L., z 

o.., 	v'; 	.r1„, 
-. -7, -7;  ;-- 

,.-1 .-, o 	5 o P .,-) . -' 	, --,  -, 	c..,  ,   
ta)  ,,,, ...., 	...- 	,, 	. _ D -D 

-,) , U .:5, 7:.; ,;-'-'  
r_l r V 	..., r '., , 	 r 

, . 

 
0  0 r .--, r .,.., 	V 	G ..../ 	,,-; 	,-... 	7-, 	V 

,r, 	

ccl 
-,7J 

MI 
Z.:  ■''' ci-i ' 

I '..C' 	C:tj 	e - ■'- 7' 	% ..,3 	'' 2"  

6.. 	r,-P 	•-• 	U 	C 

- C.) P 

..., 0 z - 
,- — Z = 
---- 	,--.. MI 

.,_,_,...,„ 	,0 ,..„. 	 ._. .._ 	r' 	-l-, 	7-1 	, 	r". ,.. 
< 0 	 .-, 	— 	,, • -= 

:I, 	1.., 	 .7..:) 	17,, 	--• '• 	,-, s 	., 	.s... 	.- r.,. . --■ 

b.° ...," 	 -' , ,--, 
7:5 	."2"," 	 ' 	(.._/ -fli 
"..r: 	.'-' 	:7) 	C' 	 ''•-•;: 	 f'.I-D- 

..) 

.... 	, 
I&  - 

)
t)
  H

o
w

  U
SI

  C
an

  H
e

lp
  



J c 

al 	
, 
0 
L 

0' 	7>,  - . 1 
 

t'd° 7)0 . 7-d 	.0.7  
,d-d 	J r  
0 .); 

..) , 	
. './7._,  -7.::  

2  

7  
.-' .;.) , 	.7. 	 , 	 2,../ 	,__. 

„- 
r-d , 

-0 	-75 	,--. 	 L., 	 77. 	
-L 	 0 	777  ., -., 	7--, 	 L 	---.' 

.Y., 	 • L 	 --,_a 	a.)
•

1--- 	- 
'...1 	:....7” 	, 	.Y7-,-. 	' --' U 

7.7.01-4 	'..-, 	70 . . , 
, ., 	- -7: 

, 	7- 7-.  
'_ 	:-P7., 	

2 	•,;.:5, _ 7,,  ., 	J0  •._) 	0 
„,_-• ,-, 	-• 	 0 	0 	 , ,-- 	, 	 P •-7; '- — •-=:; ',--,,- •--, -'

,0_ 	
, 	 0 0 	 0  :..1.4  .... _ 	, 	-0 -2,- 	,-) 	•__ 	 --;.,• 	0_, 	. — 9 9 9 	 , ,-_-• _ , 9.' 	..-:_•-:. 	 4_, 	, 	0 .,2, 	 ,) .__, 	...., 	0 17„,j 	 r- 	0 	'-. 777-: 7-- 	 .-' 	V 77. 7 	 , 	 ... .„ .._. 	...,.; 	 ... 	 '... 	C 	 7.-.. 	..- 	- 	 9 	,, 	9 ,,, ,‘„ 	
- 
	 ,,, .72, 	---7_7) 0 	 P 

.4=” 	.::.,  . 

a) ,21.7 	,...3 	-4--r 	,..J.  ....-7. 
L, 	

d,7r.) 	L .4-, 	_, 
-1) 	"d17 	51 

0 d 	 , 0 7,4,1 	, 	5., _.) 	 . 	;15: 	7,..1-1 	, 
L 	a) 	a, __„,7''' 	al 	0 0,  a,  73 , 	2,  . 	 ' 0  .— -0  tip 	 , 	L..) 	u 	.- 	 „ _.:  	.  -, , r - 	- • • 	, 7' 	, r  . . . ,  ,.:, 	9 	 •-. 	,•-, 

-). 	al 	„.  , 7  
7.1.1 	. '7, 	

L 	"U 
J , 	--E 	, 	'73 	--- 	7a, , 	 . - ,„ 

_,-._.,-,   , 
'.,-j  

+,:-■ 	0 	 .■ 	,, 	',E 	• 	0 	tr.) :=',  0 	 0 E 	, 	• - L C., 	 a.)  .... 	,  tri 

-•_1-' 	F' 
-I--, 	 I-• 4-• 	'::,, '.,,,,, 	7- 	7-7  0, ar, 	E, 1 L9 0  u_ ,9 	,- c , 

._-_,, r•-) 	.0 	.2 	9 	c-) 	>.,_ -,--, 	-.,.'  /.,  

,...., 

- 

- , 

,---, > 
9 0  ,:-,F, 

...., 

c 

,,, , 
c 	9 ,

• ,..., 

, c 

-„,--. 

c 

,-, 

- - - 
- -, 

, 	..., .= 577p 
 E .2 a

;-. 
 ' '',.' 

,.7 

, 60 	

0  ___0 c 

' 	. 40 	. ';L•-'  13,0 C: 
-I, 	 f a_ 	 j ,_:,, 	 7:: 	0 • 	 -, 	- 	-_, .1 	CO 

I-•' 	'"' 	ca_.,  . III' 	I... 	.., I..... 	, 	0 	;>,... 	 ■-• 	, 	....I 
Q. 	

. 	I, 	 I. 	 1, 	 ■■• 	CC:   ■-. 	... 	,I, . -,_-I 	Cr-' 	f." 	, 	II 	, 	.;:i' P—C7' 7: 
u L' 

-0 	
0 

 
_.7 	, 	. -- 

a Ct. , 	..) 	7.- 
	u 	C' • ..L-1 	'-' - . 	, 20-■ 	 ''.- 

 
,.. 	rd 	0 	 -1-, 	.--4 

, 0 	 ,_01 	0 0 ,,, 	+C)  0 0 E 	, 	t '12/ 
•.,_. 
0  — • , 

..--■ 	, 	
U 	, 	ei 	r- .,_, 	r-, , 	

':..0 ,_, , 	(--1 	7 • 7, 	• -7 ._ .L.t.' 	0 
— , u , 	, 	 ••.•-;, 9 	 , , , 	 , •-- - , ,,•..> 	, 	 9 .-", 	 , 	.- .--. 

u 	9 ru 	 P-1-' 4--' 	 0 	 ,__C 	,.,„, -7' 	5 	e-HU .-4., • .-.4'''  
.+ 	 0 	P.    • .- 	-!--,  

r7.: 	 C7: 	- 	1-• 
0 	.-77 	U 	l-1-- ' --, 	,` 	,7, 	0 • " +'''' 	--. 	 ,-, 	C" 	.,- ''''', 0 	 0 7 	 , 	,.---. 	0, ,- --, •- ,- 0 	 -  0 	 u -  

,,• 	0 	to 	 - ....., „-• 	 ,„ 7_, c-7 ,,, > 	0 77. -0 , 	0 J-• 

-0 	-• r 0  1 
7 . 3 

J 	

, 

7.1.) 
U 
, 

u 

..- 

9 9 

u 
, 

,•-.: 

,,,•, ca_ 

-,-, 9 

.- 
;-,-.-.• 
, 
9 
)- 

9 •_,-,-_, 

.r•-_-) 

0 

..., 

7 

r.3 , 9 

	

, 	

' P• , 
, , 
9 
, — to 
, 

--.: 	......773 	.--: :0 1 

'-., 	r-. 
... 

■-■ r- 	. -H''' 	',.r._,'-'  ---H-.) 
.7.1 	

...._ 	,, 	,.., 
-, — 7.  

_,,.. 	
— 	,,., 	9 --,7 	....2 • ,.7-, 	'..7-7,,',  

' - V 7 -7' 

, 

7-  
777.; 	..„,-7 

.- 

- - , ..7' 
.".-) 

	

-..-.; 	'.." H H. ---, 	 ,, 
	E 	

5 -■-, 	 0 	..--, , 	, 	7 -Le ar , 0  J0 ,,,)  L t..... 	'.-) 	n ,../ 	U 	 -0 	 to 7.> ,,,,,,, 	•-:,:: 	to ,.--•- 	-,..-■ 
0 	•7-• 	 t•r:, 	 9 	, 	,_,•- 9 . , •. 	9 

0 0 0... 	
--, , -r-_, 75 ,,., •- - - 

=,--• e  ,-, 	:- 	,,,, 	- 	747:-• 	, 	 , 	 .- 	 ci;_. 	-f-,'• ,_,-_,7, 	C. 7 > 	• ,.-: , 	, -1-,  
 -'' •- -C 	'', 	. ,--- r.: 

U 	9 .77 7: r73 0 	9 	9  	,, 	77 .9 	.... 	, 	dr; 
.. 	cr,' 

	

.,-. 	7.E U 	 , > * 	- 	- , f-, -, 	:' 	 ,.,"(' -"' 	o.,2: 	-': 	,: 	R 	i-' 	
..̀i.0 	,- , 	:- 	 v_..)    u u 7.    H, 	, 	 2.1...- 	, 	 „-...) -._„, , 	p, .~r„ , 	. 	 I 	(„_) , 	 [--, 	r ';>. 	 L0 -=,' 

rl 	 . 	 9 _•-•,_7; ._:::, 	;!.., 	'-' 	''') -7.) • ;_---j 73.--' 
 .--.1, 

0 	, r ,  
V 	9 . -. 	1.... 	■ 	 ■ 	■ 	■ 	■ 	17.•.' 	.5 	5.1 	C.% < 4. 	..-' '2.) t --L.- 	1-) . 17■ 	..., '`•---% ., 

.Dr., L.- 
7-0 ,,: 	 0 	......._ • . 	 •   , 	- ,,, 	 , 

Q.) 	-----, ,•-. ^72 

_., 	z. ..,__,
r  < 	 ,- c- o 	-. (---, :c,-, -;72, 	 r 	r--' .t, 	-' 0 ,- 0 , 	,_, 	, ..., 

0 	, 	.-,-. ■—, -777.... -.'-' 	:-.1 
`di-. 	

: 

	

.>, 	 9  > ) r- 	 1-d . 0..., 	 2 	---• ,., .- 7 7 	- 	, --- ■ u -,-- 

,----,.- 'el---';--  9:'.  7 	
, , ,,t- , s „ .4_, 	 Q., ,D „ - , 	„-_-,  , _, 	,-;-) „.„ •. , 	 , ._ ._, . 	, 7- 	 , 	

. 

,_,-7 

5 
	-  _,) 	..a. _, _0-  

' Ds) --., e-  7'4, '-',`-: 7,     :: ,,   
.„:, „ 	 , 0 	” 

--, 	:2 	- , 	 .] Q., , 

	

, , _ 	, ,,, , 	u 	 .._ 
z.. 	, - ,1) , 

	

 , 	. o . ..,., - _ , , , !_.):,. _,.., ._ 	.„ „ 	„ 0 - , 	-, ,,, „ , ,,,,- 	-„, Q., „... 	_.     „...„  	, 	„ . 0 

: - . E '.:-'? 

0 
71. 	.7, 	. 	 O 	0 	, ,'-'7,-,,  . - 	7-  +.7---.1 	 y• 	0 	+--' 0 

-"' 
2 4-, 

i 	"j 	
CL.1 

	

S--, 
	 ✓° 1)-1 	C''  ' 'I.-2' 	1. 5: 	'7) 	

L   .--,,,,.. 	, ------, 

,•:: --7--z  
,-,,•,• 	, 	, — 	 .- 	' 	 9 ,-, 	•,,' 	, 	,.; 	,,,,• 

f':'  .,,,- 

	

,--C 	 0 	 -, 	° 'F'.., -C  '-.*:+d 	5 	0 	 ,-.■7:1 	n  CT) 
-1-..• 

, 	,..... .--, 	
0 r•-■ ,-,-, 	 :-. -,-,  • ■-• 	> 	 ■--' 	 . :.--: 	++0 	0 , +,7).  l CD 	 ',-) E, ": -6 '72; • , - - -- ,.'),.; 	 , 	 0 9. , c) u 0  ,, ._.  ,-,, 	..,,,, c, 	:n 	

r̂, • "11 -7-'-) -F'• 0 • 	9 	• 7 	." 	3-r: 	> 	9 4-.. 	r'-. 	V.:'  CL) 	 2, 	L' 	P 	.".' 
 

...-G 

	

■-,'-' 	C.7, ca, 	, 	0 0 	 ..-7■ 9 -, 	 0 	 ."7: 7; 0 7 -J-1. 9 	v --, " - 7 .7 '.■ • ..., 	
, 	-_; 	. 	r 	..., 	• ,-, 

,7,-.: 	V __C 	V 	 5•-, 	:,:") ■-_, 	 --' 	,f,  
U -,--• 	

r-T'd ;',,7). 	0 	.._... 	, 	0 	 0 	,. 	,_ 
,.... 	..,- 	,a.) 	 '.17 	■---` 	 :;-_,- -, 	, 	, ,--, 	 --'-'.■ 	,-7r, 	7 	-,.;.:, 	C 	. :Z.: 	' 	

,--,
.a.--) 

T V , 
V 

	, ■ ..     0 	 ., 	 C.., 	 '::-.I 	I.-. 	I.. 	 . '-' 	:,' --• 	>, C7., 	 4-7' ' 	
U 	

.',' .4.-2 	 r u c 
u• - 	--_, , -.- 	, — 	.7..; _- 	,.; 	 , 	9 	rd 	 r- ' 7" 	.'- 	 ....-1.L-■ 	C 	,- 	'7"  -. V .0. 	7_'', 	f , 	: 	...-, 	 . , 	;■-■ 	,,, 	.  C 	

0 .,,,, ...-2 	, 	:::: 	'' 	■-.. 	')17.) •,72- Sr) 	9 	,-. 	, ..) 
--,- L')  _•_'7,  t 0 	 u 

,•-p • - ',--' , 	-,_: , , ,-. 	,--. ---. 	 ,-- 	, 	■-- 	- 	.^.:., 	.-- 	,- rT:i 	:>, 
0 	li ' -'-' 	- 	- 	,_, 	,,,, 	- 	 -1-• 4_-■ 	 '''.. "7: t•:„.  ‘j-,,  ..t.: 0 	''''''' 	 -t-/, U 	,-,. , 0 	, 	, 22 .-->' 	,_, 	•,_,„ 	„ • - 	, 	0 •,---• 	 "it---• 	, 	,..,.• 	, - 	• 7 	s_, .-, 	z, 	u 	0 	9 	,..7, 	,-;_, 

	

'V 	 .--, • 7 — 	 .,-- _ri,.. 	0- :7 br, --6 '.---' 9 _73 ' 	0 , - — 	 0 4.,-.  '' ;---, C' '-'• ° '''' 
0 7. 
,; -..---■ 	 7 .=, 	'-.J 	 tr., '7-=',  ...) 	

rd. 	L "-) 	,9)  -.) 1) U , 	L 0 a, Eif: 	 r'_ tr., 	+- >,... 0 •  F:. .. 	F;_; 	 .) 	') 5.. 
■.-■ 	..--, 	̀,-) 	 ;,,' 	,j 	' ' ,,,,,. 	, , 	-----.. 	.) 	. ,-„, 	-,-- .-. 	 E,, 	',2. 	 CG  ;--' ct - - 0 	 2-- 	, .'r:' 	,_,, 	0 	'' -•--, 	''''' 	 _C 	, 1-. 	a_ 	 --, .,_ --,-, 	-1_, 	 7 7.-, 	9 	: 	4-, 	• 0 	,,,,l; 	..,...?., 	.-': 	 , 	, 	'-.  s, 	,- 	-,-, - Tr:, 	•-•i 	too ,,•) 	.-_,' 	.::: 	> 	;•--; '-• 	 ,u F, 	a!, a) r- 77,, 0 a.) C 	....... ' F, 	-. 7- 77; 0 	.7 _. 7-,  -0 0  F 	 .... 	7 	.t. 0 7- > ,. -.. 

	

., 	.3; .71 0 1." F.; 	.---- 	 rd. 7, 	, .j=  r21 	....; , -; 	;77' _7 77: ..7).  0 u 7_ ,7)  :...,_. , 	,. 	..5 	 ,... 	 , 	___, 	 ..-.1 I.-. 	 E ' ' ' 7, 	9 	̀,.--.=. 	 = ..r; 	,.,1„, 	 - 	'  r u -j 	 , r 5--, 	 u 
••■••■ 	0 	r=4 	 ',.., 

	

7 	
. Z. 	

, 
0 	'.:;'  

`j 
 

	

;;:: 	

-1-, 

	

; 	■I').., 
.?". .—i , , 	

r- 

, 0 
	tj ,"r. 	 5 -7; ;-=,-- 

ru  , • 	< 	 , 4-`-' '-' 	•7; 

'-': .. r-3 7) s-.. 2  j> 	

, -) riZI 	1-.) r--i 
(-.' 	',;.,, 	7, 	 ,-..1 	::, 	 ,- 	., 	,:,,,. 	-, 0,-, 	9 	, 	.il 	„....., 	-,-; 	V 

	.-d; 	0 .'-- 

	

br., 	.......; 	9 ,r,_ 	,,-.- 	g, 	, , 	:8 	 : „::::, 	,, 	u 	2 	,-.17,, ' :.;-.3 - .7-! .,-: 	P 	' 	,J  cz_ ..._, 	,c_,_, 0 	2 	 < 	tr ...., ._, 	P 	E 	: 	:..) 	'it '..L: 	,---7., --,:: 	, z--.. 	,) E
m

p
lo

y
m

en
t  

P
ra

ct
ic

es
  L

ia
bi

li
ty

  (
E

PL
)  



,,_ 
0 , 

u 	t.-_,' t,.c, 	,, d 	c,_ v, 8 
U ,g 
0 .r,  
1_, .7, 
...:,.. 0 

4-, 	
0 __, 	 , -• 

. - 	 a) 	--.; 	-,- , 	o 	._. 	r- E t).0  7-1 	 0 * e4,. 
0-4  , 	4_, 	.) 

a-,  A 
.7j 

,-71 	P ^,:-, ,-, ^7..• 
0 	.1-- 	›, ".P t-.= 
0 	,7a. 	0. 	,-:3,  . L7., 
,•-> 	_c •-_-, 	_,_, 	-7,_, 6 4 

P C  •-i, V 	'••• . 
,--, 	.__, 	= ..'-' 

,71 	rd 	I- 
, 	u 	, ., u 
> 	u 	,,-_,, 	._,- .-,_. 

u 0 0 , 	'TO u 	> ,_C  ,-, = 	, 	-Et "7-j ';---■ :7 	 .7'.) 
b.r)  

'4, 	.7,' F:.' , ,__, 
c," 0 , 

-72, 	F., 	-,-' u > 	._, 
0 	..--, 	,,,, 	a  
0 	,,,.., 	u 
u br) 	 u  •- — 	, , __0 -,-4  4i..-  , 	_0 	- .:__, u, 

> > • 4  
u > 	' 7,  "",) 	

, , __,:. 
u. 4- 

0 	 "r-, ----r  h-,2-P ,... 	, ' .44 	.4_ 	 '-' 	, 	,_, 0 .-_-3 	—. 0 	, , ,44, 
'4-7 	0 	,.. 	'',?.„ 	..., 	'—' 	L' , 0 '. 

'I) d 	,,j  U ,J br) 	-'=-•' 	,,•; 	'3 -0 , , 	,--,O , 	L.,  .u, .,,- > 
brJ '' 	t, r_,-2, 	t.4 	',F)t t-' , ._ . _ , li 

0 

t.c., -7, 	•,P ',P .-•e, 

	

,..' 	,- 	•,7,,i 	 , r- ,- , 
:-; 	.1>" 	-7-= -ri 	;-, 

	

,, -, 	
-, r_ 	E -,:, 71; 

	

> ,-, 	6 , 	:1, , ,.., 
:_;2; 	-,-7,-; 	x -,-' 	;24 	,- , 	0 

• 

In
d
u
st

ry
  I

ns
ig

ht
s  I

  U
SI

 

• 

xc
lu

si
on

s  
to

  
en

  t
ra

n
si

ti
on

in
g  

H
o

w
  U

SI
 C

an
  H

e
lp

:  

• • 	 • 



C 

0 

Fi
du

ci
ar

y  
Li

a
bi

lit
y  



7-.
C/C  J.' 	 _...., 	 P 

e 17) 	 , 
.0. 	 0 •--,-  

r 	 r 	 = 	 0 p 

C) 	
C.) 
0 	 11) 	

.-= .77, :-, P 	,-1:, 

71 	
0 2 0 

er 	(-) 
-C-./ r0^ 

.. .73 	 C) 	 • -1 	:A 
2.- 	

CI_ r  
..--. 
, 

U-0 ..--, 4--, 	zi.; 	 4,--,  
, 	> '--, 	0 	,., 4, ..--, 	cr.) c5,, 	,, .6 	,, .., 

0 	,7. 	 '' 	'''' 
..._, 	,,.., 	t0 	 cc; 	R-.. ,-, , 
L.) 	 , Lr 

, 	4.- • 	
:1,1 
, 7 to ,-,4  , . ,-, 	 - 	,- ."_-_1 	 4-, 

r 	 . ;-7d-. 	 C 	L., 	C.:, 
0 

, 

0 	 0 t,1 	
.--• 	, -p 	 . 0, 	 7-0 	

r) '1)  
r 	 Cr:e -7'' 	0 	r „11 t• 	
.0 

-1-+ 
C., 	

',...,, 	':- 
t).0 , 

L 

'" 	C 	-0 
, 	 C.) 	 ,,i 	

, L 
,1 	 1-! 77,,  

L 	 73 , 

 

CO 	6  
, 	 . , • r 

/..", C-) 	 (4.  0 	. ,  ,....1 	 "--. 	 '1.) 

'Z 	 -7-I 
	, :473 	.00  

0 0 r 	
J:II) 	 er rd 	 ' r 1,•': 

= 	 -7.-•-■ 	0 0 = 71 
,L , 

 , 	 , r 	 u 
, 

a 	 - 	 L" -- 1, - 
.- 	._  

ce: 
	,...,__, 

_r_-_, 
	

• •- 	/,30 	' >,. -',71 
, 

r 	 • = a-3 	"> 	,---7-,;  = 	r r0 0 
i "7-',  R-.‘ 

r 	 = -1  
. --• 	 , 	•--e--, 	CO•—. . U 	.,, 	0 
0 	 71 -4'..., 	1•• 	U •-,i•••  "0 

, 	
r 	 er 	, 	0 	= , .-•-• 

0 	 . 0 0 	
0 ••.7.; 	r 	.-0 Ci . 	 ••=, 

.-•--• 	 ,--. 	 er 	,-._„ 	0 . p; 
0 	,1) 	727 	:.-■ 	 .=.1 • 7, ..-. - , --, 	,2 	..., . , 	;..• 

:,-; ,- • 	 — .... 	c.... 
o 	• 

C 
13 	 s-,  
0 
 . .,__, 	 0 ..:-■ 	0 	r., 	,c 	4-, ,-- ■ 	r-0 	r" 	, 	---1 

	

7,' 	:-. 	,,,, 	..0 	 r  

	

....-. 	0 a j 	.-- U 	0,  (1.) '.i.T. 	> ..., 	--, 	b•O 8 CU 
-,-, .-•7.1 	

'-.) 77:) r 

> , u  -;..".:. -,7-_,, 	0 O`' 	,Z 	t.,C -,, 	r, 	,L, 	Is 
,-, .- 	2  , 	..._, , .- 
, 	,.., 	 ,__,   

	

--0 	 0 r'_1, 	 . - . , --,, , 

	

, 	 > , ,--1 Y 
	 . 	 . 	 . 	,>. ....7.... , 

0 
• 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l  L
ia

bi
lit

y/
E

rr
o

rs
  &

  O
m

is
si

on
s  

( E
&

O
)  

6' t_o  
'L., 	,c) ...-, 

,;.......- 	. 	 2 
0 	 ....E C.) 

r 	::..-." 

	

7--) • ,,,-, 	

0 

	

•• 	 0 
C.) 0 0.  Q)  

. r 	

,J  0 . 0 	, 
, 	 r 	r 
r 	-. 	 -=•=. 	i'e? . e7", 	,..." 	 L.) r 	0 	 'r 	

..-..• ..--. 	0 
re' '-.-• 	 r 
.1,21 	-1-f 	 • '.... 	 .., 	...T.: 	 .. 	 ".7-, 	•-.'" 

. 1E' 
2  0 

er 0 	 a v 	0_, ...r..: • a, 
• •,=, 	- 	ci •-- 	 •,,,: v 	 te, 	,--• 
"0 	,----' 	,-- 	, 	

C 	,`--•'. 	Fj 
.C.j 7' 	 , , 2-  0 	, — F 

 -, 	- 	o 0 _P -P 	c,-.1 , ,, 

	

,.., 	 u  , •  ,--, -,-. 	.,.. 	, .v. o 	'---) -- 

	

',=.' P u g 	, e.--, 
. D 

,- ,._ 	•-■ 	, 	:.,-,. o 	• 

,_■ r 	 r -0 0  '-' _ r ,1.) _C 	 -  
-a -,...., 	 = _,.." 	,-,--' ' 7•1  >_,  
r 	,..., 	'_,.•.,..,- 	

U 
. 	— 	• - r -, 

	

r 	----- 0 , 	, 
= 	,ct. 	-I-,   >. , ,....) 	u P ----'• 	.- o. u 0 

	

--, 	U 

	

.171 	0 	.7.1 	.=•-•  J = 4:, 	 k 0 	 0 
r 	 r 	..,, 	0 	0 	›,.. 	.r..) s•-• 

	

r 	4_, 	 r! 0 c,.• GO r u • 	-0 	u 1.-. 	•-. -• u •1) 	'-' > 7) ,t• 	J_ ,__, -• 	..... 	 r 
,_-_i 	,-r.• 	.•`_;_„ 	,;....? -1-• > .7 

, -73 ,1-: 	- .. , \ ''''' 	. --' 	0 	:-:'4■ 	= 

	

. ,-, 	 ', 	0 	C., 1 	• •-' ._c_,,• 	v 	 .'-•-= 	,t-r% 	, r 
-7j 

• p 0 	 , r 	 10. 	,...; +1  

	

,) 0 	0 tejsj 0 • = = 0 .7:-..-, 	:5 -7_,-  --.. ..-. 	 2 	, r ... 
C.) 	:•-•, 	 ..7 	,,, 

	

',Z.," ...)4 	0 	r 	4-.• ..--. ,T••-• 	 r v 
, . -•-• 	 . = . ,-... r 0 	, = r. 

j 
U 	0 0 , 

	

't-.... 	 ' .1)  > 	4--,  , --, ,, 	 4-■ 

_C., 	, 	 . .-■ 	 r-C -0  .1, 

	

C) 	
■C ,=.). d L 
(0 	:-- 	;.,-  

, 	 • "-. j  r.■ 0 	C 0 .° 1-, , 	7..• , 	-4., 'J 	 - r r-1 	
C) 2, - , 

r 

	

bID •-' v,° 	
4-, -0 '7). I) 0 	, 	•••• 

	,,,j 	.74' -.`=, 	....) 	 •-, f 	, a. 	 c-,_, . - r..., 	 -, 	 c71 '-' rj ..-... 	. ii 	0 	2•• 	.-Q›- 	 0 
br.) , 1-• 0 ..--•  6 	• 	I :.. tr, 	, ." 	,.%., 	, ,,, 

,,, 	C.1 'Z. 	'.1.) 	,1) 
C) 	

'-.., ,;_, 
r 	r 

0 

	

U 	"AI r. 	,:,- 	,C) ,11 C, 	C)
CC 1+,  . 	5 ._-_,) • - =, 	•.„ 	:„ .,__, L) 
c_1...e.0 	 i,.t 	r . ;... 	... 	 er ,_8 	 -- 	 _li, 	, Q.) r,,-, J 	:s.]-_,) 	r , 

	

,_ 	— , 
,-__,'-' . E.: 	,'-' 	5 	

--a ,-.- > __. 	> 	,-,_-_;_, 	 < 	u 

■ 	 ■ 	 ■ 

CTS 

CJ 

p 

>>
  Ho

w
  U

S
I C

an
  H

e
lp

  

In
d

u
st

ry
  I

n
s

ig
h

ts
  

How 
 U
S
I Can 

 
He
lp 
 

5411 

>-. 
C) 	 r.. 

0 U 'c   0 
	Z.',  

7•J 	 2) 	
,-,
rJ 

L.) •—■ 	 "a 
...-, 	= 	 .7.,  --7. '1  .,„. 	• --, 

(") 
0 C 	 r C.,-)  
v, r, 	 • r •-•• 0 
I-` ,-' L 
...1 	 '''' • ,.._,'L L  : H-,-7 _0 , t 	 r 	0 
rto __C 	 ,1-.  U  .   
•- o 	 , 

"7.,  
- I) . 	-0 	_, _,, 0 ,._= 	u 	,..,,- .... , 	 ,_, —. , --• 	 -", 

,Dr., — 	
_.0 O ::-.,, ",_ 

P -".:. 	u .-'.2. 0 

20 	 rt 	 p 
,._, 	,, ,-;-•.: 	,,-•., 	,-,•• 
1.., 	,,-,. 	> 

-0 

	

	•...., 	,ri 	E 
, 	

, 	.,:- 
U 	J J r , r- 	' ' 
0 	-7-2J, - 

G 0 
"1 	

C.20 d '- 
,, 	, 	.0 	,,,., 	'.._- 	2 -0 F, 	.1-- 

3 V)  ..17-: 	.-r--1  

'■• 	b_ 	 :::,, 	0 = •-• 

0 r 

:2: 	
e7„,_, •,72, .77, 0 
1; 	7,, 

•.-1 	 0 	 ,..„.• 	..,...  ,_.0 	1.. 
0 '..' 	 •-:: C.) 0 

C., 	,..4 	11 ^0 to, 	
0 = 

r ..r. r 
,..,_ 	 •-,,i 	Ei 'J, 0   

4-■ 	 0 	
, 	r  
7.3 	

•'-' 	, 	 '-!-•-• 0 --. 	0 U 	E _ _ • 'L. 	 - • . 	.7.1 J 	 , 	_ ;.- 0  - u ^,-. 
tf.7. .---, , 	„.--> , _0 
,-• 	,_ 	,_ 	Cl) 	--„.... • - 

, 	.- 0 0 	CID 	r - , 
7,7 ° 0., 

0 0 0 

r 	'-' 7:-.1 '75 

... 
	- -. 

=1 	 0 C:'•  2 
■-'?- 'T.) 

•-■ 	1L-..- C-0 	:-/7, 	2.• 	Ll 	171 •.-. 
VD 

• • C
ri

m
e/

Fi
d

e
lit

y  
B

on
ds

  

,....■ 

• ,.7.: 	 u 	 r r 7_, P 

	

tr.) C 	 r 	 -...:. 	J
J 	.;.-.. 	r ,;=1_, 

,, 	 ..'-:,' 	r 	;.-1 	7. 
r 	.,_, 

	

.... — 	 ,•., -, 	 , 2., 	= • = 	r __. • 	7 8 
0 	u,-.-.-_ 	✓ .„. 	 0 U 	 ,;.-2, 0 ,- 0 , 

^6.-  ---%  
.-F, 	cj,i) ,J 	.-..- 	 ,..-■ 	, 	 L:.--■ 	 1:-_,' 	-■c0,  . - 0 ,r 

	

.1) C 	 1..) 	,,,, c--.'. 6 , 	='>, ,, 	cu 	 r- 0-• 	: ' 7-4, 	 u 

	

-•-• 0  _ •,_ 	-C i  
•.--. 	,—. 	....., r" 	. .... 0 r 	

. -,--• r 	.  

	

r r , 0 	:-. ., 	 r 6 	, .7.-.) :, 	, , 1.... •.,-_., 
-- .- 	.--, 

 >
.,.--' 

= 

	

k 	,,, 	rja, 	 u ---,.._. 	•-■ 	,-. 	t•., . - 2 p 	. 
,-. 	,t,.< 	Q.) 	,.,.., 	,-, 	 -ri 	0 	re: 	• ; -1 	r 	 ....., 	C, 

. P- 	.--, 	 C-1. 	rr: 	, 	- 

	

.,_, 	(3 	. - 	,-, 	., 	-. .  

	

bi-) 	 „_, 	.L 	0-. ,-) 	
, 
	-I-■ 

	

r 	, 	 '-:, ..-. 	, >-.., 	, 
'-f-) 	'', '....-fp 	 , 	'.1., 	 .--.■ 	 CO 	0 

	

t e-r.-j 	 r, 	..- 	-•-• 	,..... 	, 	C.,, 

( 
	 , 7..i 	

E' 	,t 	L. 	...., 	rj  . :•,7. 	,c-.' 	0 
,--- __ 	• 0 , 

0t_-; 	o..) 	
r- c:, 	 , --, — 

.- 	."., 	, „.•/-s, , •„_,•,, 

	

s- 	 •... 

	

r.; 	u u 

	

-75
1 
 , P 	4-■ 

, , ,J :n•-• 	 C.! 	 C3 kf,, 	
t 

-,...■ 	 • r • .„._, 	,D.0 	 %el 	c 	C-. 	(e. %) '.-2..  ._-_, '-e, 	,..,--.. 	0 
.- 	0' 	....., „ 7,..  F3 	)- 	.. 	> 

	

. 	,... 	ray,>..., ,--, 	c.) 	"..J p ,------, ".", 	• t 	..- 	>-, 	 pi 	F.-.; -.-•=,' 	P 	
,
u 

:,:C:! 	7.3 	0 	,-.: 	,7, 
1-) 

	0... `,, 	u r) 	 . 0
.   ,71

-  ?WC) 	.,_, 	'-J.. ,-- ,  
,.,.■ 	 1../-) 	, 	7-I 	 '-, 	 > 

'1..) ;,2 	' ' 	, 	 r,- 	 •_, 	r ,, 	V 	'''. f-3 
!:-.74 r..••• -7-.1.1, 	. .* _,E,  , . • 2  ,,,5  , - 0,4  2 .-1 	6, 	0,, 	- 	7,... 	 a.•, 	7 	- 	:_.. 

• ._ 	, 	;:-. 	 - 	EA 	:-... 	,1.) 

• -, 	

0 

 ...__, 7_,-  

±) 	
. 	

0 -!...; 	e.,...., ,___, 
•-■ 	,-e 	 ,_, 	 3 	j 	 1-■ 	 ■-■ .---. 	_1 ._, 	 1  

	

, 	 C ---' 	= 	 r 	L., 	;1'1 
> -. . 	:. . /. ' 	 0 	

= 
',---; 	,,,) 	7, 	,;, 	 • 'J. 	 •••. 	

0 

	

brj 	 . t•-• : 	7 : 	'  ,.-2  	... 	.....„ .- 	,.. 	:._,      
.,,r_, 	-:,-2, ,, 	,., 	 , . 	0 

1-. 0 r 	 0 0 	, CO 	TZI 	-'7' t.-,i:.) 	6 6   

	

7.-;  u .,,, 0 	 ■-■ 0 = 	 sol 	 0 •'''  ,_, 	_, 	'1,' 	' -= 
ca, • - - . 

r.-.' 	 ■ -I 	74 	 C , 0 	--'-1 	 , • V 

	

:n 	CC 	V11 	•_.. 	.,,,C3 

	

', ,f 	uiC ..= , ''V 	;> • ".. 

	

P.5. 	0  
	••)  

	

 
;.1, 0 e•-• , 	 0 . _. .--. , -1-• 	1.) 	L 	 rj 

. ,_, 	.I-, 	. .7.; 	, 	 ..-= 	̂a 	..ii 	 0 	--'- E • ••=• 	, 	'...---) 
u -  - ,,  

• -, 	,• 	-14 	 ›.--.. 
 r 	
, .-0,7_,  s-, 

	

„, 	 • • 	;".• 	c...) 	 , 
r 	0... r 	 V, .-7.5 	0,  	,- 	

,.., 	1.,  __•_, 

	

a ,,,J 	11J - .-_.,-• 	- 	4-...., -- 	, 6 - 	. _ 	... 	- 	--- 	:1..) 	•-••. 

0

r. 

, _ 0 7, 	-,....,--- d  7,9 	
..; Cr., ,.,-. ,_., 	,-, 	, 	:,r• -7- 	

- 
'1J C 

	

.: 	0 	.f:L't:11”  ,_,'77•  	-.1-2-", 	. 0 . . .'-'-'2    	:- -: :> ' 

	

.., 	--  

	

 
•7 -t-1 	,,z,  I-1--, .',..) 	r 

tt 	 r 	...7.' 	V.`. 	,:_i 	tr...,., 	 , 	, 

	

> 	,,,,, 
.1... 	 0 	..--.  

	

.= 	..-., 	Z —' Ti 	1. 	-)CO ...., --,-. 	■-' 	 1.J 	CS. 	Co. 	, 	 — ',El 	0 	'...-=,' 
, , -- 0  ,_ .,....-. 	. -, 	r r Ci 	-64 

r 	
LI ^-7-J • 	„. 	U 	,...0 

,, -, 	
C---1 	Fa-) 	02. 	t.) 	,1 

I.-7: 	r!, 	'..> -7..- 	.,-.! 	,L) •=. ,-.) 7.-i 	.... 	• 	• 



,-- 
v 

__, 	>•-. i... ,- 	v 	0-, ''' , 
 - -7 - 7. , 

	

, ,- 	.._, 

	

o 	CI '-' 

'--) c • :--, 	7-  C 
7 	

7. v 
..... 7- 	r, 

	

-L--,r.,. 	 7.: 

C7 0 	0 ,_, 	', 7T-1 ,
ca„
'n--' 	- 	'...) 	(-2, 

---t 	,,..- 	.._, ., 0  -- 	■_) 	r_,. 

= 	3  ,sj 	0,J-  • 6-'''
) 	

.7-' '  ' 	.--' 
---' 	r-  72 ')  ,-(- 	.1.7-• 	0 	0 

, , 	 ,--, 
,,,. 	c•-1 co 0 > 0 .- 

,,,  

.77,• 	-, 	,-- 

	

,•:.) 	,-, 	1-, 	.- 	• 	--' 
v (:•, -1--,  __, 3  , 	, 	r-," 	... 	0 	•-y, 

	

. , 	= "-r7J. 	', / 	■"), 	1-i  0 -7J 4-, 

771 	-71) 	
,77'.) 	.-7-■ 	.-..„ 	'41 	r. 

0 0 , 
0 b,0 0 ,--: 	4-,  

0 	-; 	0 	.i:;._. _r_. . _4 	--. -:-. ■ 	 0 
.:ifir E., 	0 	'r,..j 	7--) 44  
,', 4-' 70 > 	',5  
,- r, , 	. 0  
f_, 	,- 	',7., 	u 	U 	'.747_,  

, 	_,_, ,--. 

to 0  

r-- 

L. 

-4, 

N
on

-F
in

an
c

ia
l 

In
st

it
u

ti
o

ns
:  

C"
 

'1,
 

	 ;--
' 
	

- ■ - ■
 

c. ,. .. , 	 „, 	 •,:-_, 	 ,_ '7 	 , 	 _, 	 ,--1-- ■ 	 7-.
 

	 ' 	 t
 

	 '-' 	 -.:.
' 

,  ,To
 	 , 

'
pl• -•  . =

 

 -7
,: 	 ,--,  , 	 >
 	 "
 

r - •  .- 173
 	 0
 	 0
 

	 ,-.,
' 	 b
' 

	 IT:
 

	 0 1 -• ,,
„1 .- 
	 '''.-

-' 
	 ,  ';

' -' 	 (-.;
 	 I '- ` 7- 3
 . r=
 

0
  , 

	

'••• • 1
 

	 '-'•
 

	 i
 

	 7 
-

7- • 	 '•••
) 

	

‘....
1 

	 ,--
• 

•

17 ,
 

 -
 7

72
, 	 c..
.. " 

 0
 e a 	 r- 	 ri

 

 0
 

	 r - 
	 n

 
	 .;_-.

. '..)
 

	 .7,
 
	 -'7.

, 

"0
 

_. ■ 	 .  - 	 -- 

in
cr

ea
s

es
  o

r 1
5%

  u
p  

to
  6

09
6,  

ov
er

-
ye

ar
).  

E
&

O
 i

ns
ur

er
s  

ar
e  

•-, 	
-- 	 0 

0 	
, 	 -.--. 

0 0 ,:  
,  

--.7 	 r- 	 C 	• = 	 ,... ,-..! 4- - 	> , 
 

:..-. 	..4., 
, 	 7-3 	 , 	 -, 	-C  

.....,  
	 :_l .4-.,  .72 	 "i'J ° 77, 	

" tr' 	 0 

l■ 	 r. J 	 0 	, 	',=, 	0 	, ,— 	__ 	,--, 	7.7. 	7-.1 	,_.., 	 -' 	''' 

M 	-7- '.--, 	 0 	0 	&' '3'r 	 -7-, 
5 	

3-', 1 

t/1 	
v 	__!-_- ,,!, ___, 	.;_-,, 	0 	.. , • 7., 07  

C 	=' I 
 ••••' ' i---I-' 	V••■ ,..- ' 

: 

C--." 	 .... 	 7-'.•-• 	 • 'r•Z 	
,--, 	

V 	 c:  

-'°. 	 .-■.! 
I.-. 	 • 7-.. 
V CZ  

(' '-'•;, '-'0 	 .0--■ ■ '2 ,--.. 	: - ..-_-_- 	,-_ , , 	, J ,__ .- 	.7_ 
c 	..-T.., 	'.: .., 	J- • 	. 

N 
	 .„,-; 

7.- 	4--• 	-1, > ,...) 
 

-.,: 	c — 	..-u 	,-, 	...-:. -c, 	7_, 	.,.., _c 

	

,.., 	2 t:j 	,..-- ,_ 
, — 

	

,_- 	 ._ 	,..., 

U ,-f- 
..., 	 ,_!-- 	 C 	, — 	c 	_ >,.. 	,,,,, 	_, -,. 	..__.  

...., 	 ca 	±1.., 	,L.--7 	F._, 	:‘-.3 	,L) 	L,, 	, 	.r 
 

,- 	 1... 	
,f; 	.:LAT) , = 	 -C 	::: 	 ,--, .--,- 

..-, 	, 	, 	,,_= 	,..., 	r-, 	 . 7-,' 

-73  	 .4.7 	 r 	r 	C41 	
-1---• 	 cr •-•) 

•:-; 71 E  L. .-,,- 
0 

, -, ._,. r.,,, , 4  0 

. , ,  CZ  7
,:AC., 0 oj ,..,_. i•-, —, 7' 0 -'--" 0 0 . 0 .2: '' .....f". 

, ,......, 	J
r.,  

,-;  

.,._.,,) 	=- C.  , ,, :1., 	,ei 
rf 0 

0 
.r-., 	,, 

 

	

,-. 	
'''• 	._: 	'J 	„,-7,  

-.... 	 til 	 v 	., 	
J

_ 
, 	...-,,. 	v 	v r•-•-•, 	0 	E_-", ti-_, _. 	•:.., 	H 

,   • -10 	 7,, 	 C 	
_C Z: 	 r7.-; 	- 	 •7' 	0  l••• 	 r`. 	 . 

U 

7,- 	----. .-.-; 	
, '7  0 "4 :7? 	..- > .4.) ., 	0 

.Z.,- 	, 	•  
`2. 	, 0 (-- 0 % 	

--rI , 

	

,-. 	s._, 	.-. '''.. 
,--- 	c, 	.---; 	,- 	,... 	_ 	0 	tr., 

- 	. 0 	 .47. 	 r•-,  ,•-• 	 ' C-e:" 	
'-, t )0 	 0 •—• 0 	' 

IL) 

• 7 	 C..) 	
LI 	> 	 .1. ..,:.> 

 
, .- r-, 	 ._.= ••:.I 7  0  '7.., 

:7- 

V, 	 'D ' 	, __, ;77; 	- r• 	.-'-' i 1-) 	N0 	0 „.., ' F. 	, 

.? 
  

:4., , 	 0   >',, ;1'1, '7,-1 	' 	. '-' 	
,...., 

 

	

, 	
•-• 4--• 	....• 

".1.1 	 ca_, 	 ..••• 	, 	 .•--73 	 .-,-7.•.,  
CD 	 in 	 -1-•• 	 r--• 	 7' 	 ^ 	 •-,  

. 

0 . 

,--. 	9 	e- 	 -7--.5 	W 	 '.›. 	, 	 -1-, 	,., 	• .--1 	1) 	
1., 	 :1 

,› 	,--,• 	I-. 	, , 
r-,  

a) 	
0 0 

. 7.'7_  j  C.:- , 	:(', 0  :80 r.  , , .. , 7, . • . ...-' 4 -'0:.f) 	. - ' - ',.- - 'P. 	' ' - 3;:;=  :e7IrT  1 	,--• 

 
,-, -1--, 	•-■ 	

1) 	0 7.:' 	, . 	Lfr 

	

Q 	,,, 	,-. 	- 	
, c.:: 	ce 	,D 

-., - 	
0  - , 0 f.7,-., 	,._, „.3 	 t 	0 	 , 

	

a) 	 , 	L ',2, 	-,--,_,-- 	,-.„ 	. 	..,_ 	.., 	._, 

	

0 , ---,- 	_ r-• .) 
 

. 
e-.• 	----Z, 

,... 	,.__, 	 t-, 	 ' 7.77 '-'-' 	.0 	 T 3 

	

1 	
0 V 	 f--•  0 •D rJ 	0 ,--• 	, bi-., 	>lh 	

, (•••-' 1 	 -,{2, 
(••••‘ 	 7,1' 	

--. , 	
73. 	 'ti 	 . .7_.• 	.r., 

	

" ::-.-■ - ,-•on e ,- 0 	r_, 
, 	 ,__ 0. 

•-,, 	' 	0 
_, 	,-_-_-,, 	 . 0 	h. , 	•,._-_,.■ 	 ,. ,,-. 	.77.• 	., 	.- 	 •,:., 	. _ 

	

C 	•.:., 	c=". 	''.;•,' 	0 	Er., '-,--:-. 	.1.) ' E 	v 	 ,.., 	v 	 :.•-) 	,e 	,(1-• Yr' 	,•," 	r•-r, 	57- 

r,= 	 .•:., 	,-. 	 , --C 	:::, 	,,', 	"-, 	r 	v--, 	.,7.: ,fz:, 	
.. 	'..... 	t.di 	,E-"-. 	',-) 

	

rti 	
--■ 	--,;..- 	,- 	.---) 	c'!-- 	7,0  	,> -, ..0 1--, 	- 	u 	-- 	 .--1--, ,-- 	,..... 	,-■ 	 _.---.., 	ct , 

- - u -7. 	•_,F,L' 	-0 	0 . 0 ;_:,' 0 	
u 

, 	
.._., 0 _ 	0 st-' ---': 

,1., 	'-', 	, 	r-, 	,5 	 .--, 	
, .-.--• .> 	 0 	 , 

P. 	 , 	
V 	 4.,., 	 ?..' ';■•• 	 .Z-.; 

	

U 	 -.--, 
, 

N ■ .-. 	
, p -,--, 	7-3 	-77,' 	

7.0 73 	7-i 2 	ic 	,-,-: r_.) .--:-_;- o 	_ •-_.. 	c ,- 	,2 	t) • 	
0 
,- 	n 	

o 	.; 	 , 
 J , 	, .-.7. 

,-, v 	!1!!! 	u 	,- 

	

f - . - 0 • .! - 7;.! 	.---t_ 	
t) J 
v 0 

0 	 .1., 

0 U 
0 

' 	.-F--'. 	
,--• 	. 72: 	

'-t-, 
f-' r•-■ 	

r- 	0 	...47 	''') 

	

_c-, 	,  

 0 	
..a. 	v 	...... 	-.5 	---, 	.....1 '4,- 	 r-'  

.7j 

4-. 	r.2,.„ 	 1-7 	
7', ..7' 	Cr,' 	' . . -7.-7" 

 ., 

	

At 	/-1 	■7.7, (-7.- 	t-a  't 	,--.., 	w 0  	2 	. < ,.„ , 	...-z- ,-_--, - , „..., 	0,, 	,-, 	.. ,,.  ,.> 	b 
+ 

-, 	r, ,-• 0 	,...; v ,4 
	

e .7 

	

IS 	• 	• 	• 	• 	 ......... 
17■ Ce 

''-f-,  rff'-■ 	
C 	1;-1., 	c)' 	'.-.) 

_0 v 

I.) 
I j - 	,..) 	--,.':4 	;IT :..-... 	„C'''A 

'.'-iil 

_L-_. 	.1, 	F,.. 	c: 

- 	 7. ._„:„ 	 (7; 	•,-.' 

	

- 	 CD b0 ,ti 

,--, 
	 r-' 

-0 	 ' a 	'-il 	 I-.  

0 	 ::-':'  
, 	- 	...., 

, 	-
- 

- 	 -7.- .;-=:. 	7 	',-, 	 ,,, 
,--- 	

tr., , 	 ti,t 	 70, 

U .=. 
 :=-2. 	'  

9 . - J ...E4' .vj 	 '`" -Er, , 	 , 

, 	

--L'  4-,  
., 	tr., ,.., 	.7:, '73 	 " 	

- 
7.; 	.4;' - 	r", ,I--  

	

, 	 ..... 	7 ...--,, 

,  •  - 	,_r_,-.. 	i- 	,.., 	 2, 	ir -j 	'77: ' 4-, 	0 	S-■ 	

7., 	

' 	
;-I-. 

J 
, 0 r- r- 	 4, 

1J ...--. ,—, a , 	 • -, r- , , 	, > 
C., ,-- ''' 

	

.. 0 	
':-.--, 

c-,. 	, 	'. , 	.7.; 	. - ■ 	 0 	° `..,----' 
, , 

0 
0 , 	--,- 	 ..„, 0 , :---.  , ,--,j 	 , 0 	 .-=-0' -,; 	-.7, 	:._ 

J), 	. 	 - 	-,,.7-,.: 	 ,I.., 	0 
' 	'1.) E 	 5- 	 ..''' 	, 	, T-1-, 

.,, 	,__, 	0 	'1) 	7f '.,■-! 	'I.,  • ,'=:, 	 >, :1 	,--!, 	7-, 	P 	' 
.7'. 

J--, 	 ,_, .-■, 

°0 	 l•-• 	 .cL• 	
(-. 	 V , E 	 r•-• 	 V 

'.-:. 7-0 	 Cr; 	 •- 	 ' , 	 ....., 	 c_. 

D- 

rZ 	-1--■ 	 0 ,--, 	, 	___3.1 	0.., 	.., 	 ,.-7,'  '''''' 	 -1.7--, 	0 	, , 

- v 
, J 4-, 

v 

. _ .rL) 
 

77:, 	r--' 	• 	7-2) 	r-r .-- 	r., 

	

> 7-, ,--L" 	 r, . = ,72J , 	 -LI: 
V) ,=', 	, 	rid 	r- 	 ';,41:' r- 

	-., -- a._, .
r0  , 	 rt 	 _  

_r_- ;  , ,S• 	 0 7 	-9 v  0 , 	 0 	̀.? -,  
, :L.-  u ,-- 	P. 	" ,...... 	..v 

	

r • 	, 	 ,1) 0 
0 0 

• .  /  -7  . - . '  •  .  -7  . 	 7.' 	 :.: 	, 	
. 7 7_7 	 7:: `'2• 	 t •-• 

Q.) 	Z: 	.7 	.;--• 	 -4-• 	 -7..; 	.C.' 	
.: 	 .../ 	 r. 	7.-. 

	

,..-2 	.4... 	4-2 I., 	
tr. 
...., 	

' 	0 	, r 	0 	7 T...I 	r: 	....,. 	,- .73 	0 • E; 

0 	',7-.' 	• 	j 	,-- 	r- 	, 	 "'-' 	-'7"  '--  

■=--. I) 	,L1 	'1,_•_,)  C.,-,6 	

J 
	

r-, 	,_ 

.-_,'• 	, 	t- 	0 	
• 

-,•,•4 	
•0-• 	 ••-• 	 ••.:_, 	0 	 ";::. 	 • •-•7'• 

li ,  :•'-' 	0 	 -10 • 	7. 	 , , , , 	
,' 	 ■C•-• •..7_.• 

	
0 

• I •■ 	 0- 	 •L 

• , 

11 	, 	;-- 	 ". 	

••: 	 ',., 7-7 j 	0 
.--• ,_f_,-• 	, 	

DI) 

	

r-  , 	 •-0  
,•, -. 9 	"r7 	7-3' 	E."7/.7 

0 r-1 
 

	

".-, 	
> 0 

, , -. 0 	 :0 
0 ,_772,  	7  

rt, 0 	 07 77-, 	 0 !: .Z,' '._-_? 	 - 

.„---, 	,.„. 	...., 
 

0 	c..  , 	..._; 

--t, 	
5 

,,- 	
E, 

--' 	,,  

	

--. 	.... 	, 	 0 
.....  

C.: 	7', 	 • = 	 0 	 •_) 
•••. 	, 

In
d

u
st

ry
  I

n
s

ig
h

ts
  



›d
  H

o
w

  U
SI

 C
an

  H
e

lp
:  

•.>-•, 

• a 
-a  

774 	 biD '3.0   --■■. ._° t.,0 	 r 	C. D r) 	 c.,7 .  C.) , , ..t4 	el) 	(-1 	, 	'1.1 	r--■ 	 4-, 	,.., 
-,--] 	b..0 ■-, 	1.-. 	'.., 	rt 	c, ,.., 	.1-.., 	, 	H--, 

 • 
 c 

 ,,, 	o 	__, 	,- 	,...• 

	

J - 	
s,- 
....■ 	Q) 	 •:t 	c_. , ',7".J 	 .1-, 	(-' 	, 

73  7-C ,--t 	 C .0., 	 .7d 

...■ 	 ,t, 	0J 	 , •;:j 	, 	 ,.... 	0 ... k 	 a , 
C't u ,-.; 	 -73 	 P 

T . 
	= , 	, 	C , 	,-- vi ,z, 	11 o- ,-t,  E) o  ,-7,, 	r-' 

:•-■ , 0 
• .7--  ni 	 . .-. 	, 	br, -4--, 

u- -,-. -- 	t3 f, ,-. 

	

,- 	,-, 	, --:- c.r) 	c 	, 	(„I 	,--■ ..-E2 
 ., 	 ,.., 

 _c -I-a 
772, 	G;" 	 . ,-..-', 	•-2', 	7-..1 	!DO --, , 

■-"‘ 	4-, , , 

,.= 	0 • •-•,-.. 	-=, 	•,,< 	',!:: 	,-, 	,c-L-• .2..4 	 0 	, 	-'-, 
- 	u 	---- 	.--• 	Q., 	--'- 	4__. 	,L, 	.-.. 
(1., 	,.I.)  • - - 74 -a 	,?)., 	-,-,...' 	0 	3: 	> 	0„ 
j  -,., ._g 	, ..-L, •  

-- , • , 4-, r,-...-, 	(..) 	, ',7). '-6  "I 	, 0 1.-)  
- 7. .  •-■ ,,,72, 0 	 ' 	aa I, 	-aG 	0 

0 a; r.) 	 ,_C 0 _a 	,.... — 	 ,-.1--■ 4-, (4.) 
_. 	__,  

N 	:n' ' 	t-,r) CL”. .t)r) 	
c....., ..;,-} 
- 	7 ..,... 	-- 	,., 

 
.r., X

r... 	c,.° .-z, 	c., 	-773 	
b 

.:I-1-  0 r.0 _C '.7 	 c•-_, 0 , 	
a 1 	a , 

0 	bf.' '''' 	. 	 ..7-1 	:a 	'3 	0 ^r-• 	:-. 
''' 	•,.., 	0 	— 	-  '.., 	.c., 

	

 ._,. 	- 	,-. 	,-, 
s . 77. .__, 	

T, 	r... 	,- _L- 0  ,7, -• . -- 	o 	0...) 	c-,  
c2, -• :_-:: ,..A 	, 	..; r-' 	

:u0 7.3 D- 	0 '" 0 
.'-'.. ±,  

, •—.; 

' 	

1.>  
'I) 	',--': - 	t.i.D %.r4 	 ,  

—. 

4-,  

, 

= 

,,-... 	t--4 	'' 	, 	,,,, .e 

u 174 o 
,  

.-, 
4-, (4,  

-, 	..-1 "7"' 	.'-3 	'r--'  
, 

,r: '47, 

-.,.0 

° o'  

P'  
J Co . --, 	5,,, 

,., 
(,) C7.,' , ■,,, -' 	-7,  17-, 7-ir  ' 

- 	r- .72. 

0 	,.‘., 	„-' 

0 	,:. . ±.") 	C 	0 	0 	%.'7; 	r.... 	,./, 	'-' 	s--. -, 
,I., 	...) 	.,,, 	-= 	0 • '23   

,:---7: 	, .-, • --. 	,  
L., 	 ••,..„ 	 r7 	CL-1 	tO 

Z:2 75 c-, U 	tir.) _ , 	0 0 ''-' ,--• ••••• 	, 	- 	, 
I)  

..., 

,2.)e  4-, 

CI 
'JD — 
„ ,, - - U ,:, ,,, 

•_, , ' Y 	-,S 	.C-1- 
t6 *:::; r.
ft , -, 	.,„,, „,., 	,•-j-' „C 

22.) 	E 	C..L, U 
 !"_•,•0 • ,7_,' •-,„, 

„ , a • .; 	-= p,::a-  e'-•'')  

, 	a . 
'0 	

.7; 	 -,,,,.. S-- 

 

7•'.. 	r l• 	,..' 	a  

,,..,  

D  • 	• 	• 



tr 
'a) 

0 	S-4, 
- ---, 	ri 4-,  

3-4 	'' 
0 l-,  

r4-  

-I--+ 	(`-, 

M 0 CL) 	CZ) 
C.--i 

'..-4  r
(71 

4'.  0 
t." 
e-' 0 

0 ,C-1-,  

CL-1 	-1--,  

'-- 	,./) 

•=3: 
o 	,..,,,c-r) • - 	r---, 	:_- -1--; 	.-, 

r-,  L.) 	__: 
• '-' 	■--■ 	trJ 
--,--- 0 -■-, .,_, 	r 

0 
CD ;:_-4 .4_, 	_ 	-•-', 

..--1 	• •--1 
0 

.-1 '''''' (7 '.. 

0 00 

--, ...Z1 	r•-) 

'--7:i 
7.; 	^' 

'•,. 	II 
& > >-■ 
n-, 	■•-, 	0 : J 	, . 

•a.) 

.--, ■-' 	,--, 	Ci.) 
J '■.) 

- 	1..) 	,-) 
---.. 

• .-■ 	4-, 	O.) 
0 	c_.) 	:...) • ,-, 	,-., 

■-•■• 
',.., r.'  4-' 	CL) 

r0 " 
U 

C1)-  
'-G u 	_.) 

,-4 	-1- + 
 (7:--,  

Q.) U 
_.,  
f+i 	r-' 	,-..) 

4-, 	(-' 
-4-4 	.-4 
C4 

0 

 U 

02 

0 

0 

4_4 

0 

C 
0 

0) 

rJ

r-,  

LT) 	0 

• 

?-_-,0 
r u 	 :-, 

,, 	0 
0

rJ 

,.,.., 
47, 	 -al„ 	1) 	 U 	,-, 	,1) -7--.,J 	 ;1.)  

1--, ^,-, r- , 	.-., 	•,--, 	,,, .-.0 	 . KT,  
, 	 ^V ' 

U 	.... 	 . 	 0 
^5 	• - 7t, •.,7, ✓ 	 0 
GO 	 -7--) ", 	 , ,,-,-, • 'L1 r 0  

:'," 	 , 
, P F.)  , ,-•  0 	 0 r 	 -7-, --' ' 4 ,  0 0  

> 	 , -  
2-  '727 	 4,-, ..---,, 	 '-' 	0 	0 r-, 	 -1-.■ 	. -- 

-,--■ 

, 
''-' 	 '11 	 ---. C."-' 	 ''' 	 0 ./.-•'',_, 	 '73 

-■-■ 	 0 P 	 r- 	 >. 
, 	

r,r, 

, 
,„ 1-) r.,). 	.= 

'.7.1 	 -0 Cr) 	 , 	'" 	r_TJ 
,.._..... 	 1- 	, 	,,,,  

c".. 	0   
0 	

_, 
rf, 

 , 
r‘72  7, 	 r 	 , 	— 

_ d 0 	 0 	0 -7,f 	-,--- • ---' r Gr4 --,=,  
" 	t :.,.) by 	 .- ■ 	r 	 , 	ca_ 

.. 	-7--. 	'Dr.) p. 	c_-_ •5 , 

r-'-' , 	, 	(_, 	--, --,-.... -,=', • - 
0 u 	 FL , '7:e. 0  

	

0 	 ? 	, 	:- 	,,4, 
 

•- 	 , 	 14 	r., 	0  
4--. 	 , '---.„ 	, 	1:"-, 	 '1) 	. -7 	 > -0 ..--, 	■-■ 	 CL) 

, 	 , 	0 	 • :7-■ 	
t--, 	 r... 	 4-, 	■,... 	 ,..-, 

,.. 

4.0 	4-, , 	• 4-, 	 r_, r 	 , 	 -4-, 	,:f.)-' 	CO 	 ■-■ 	 --,, 
 

-I--■ 	, 	f. ,  
 

-4 
 

J r. t. () 1.) 

ni 	''-) .-. 	._. ...., 	r-. 	

:4) 
= 

= 	

1..■ 

0   	-, 

:•-• 

•-••• 	,:, 	il 
r 

H 

,, j 
5., 	,_ 

	

0 	

0.) 
,_, 
r 
1)  

4-,  

0 	3 

1.., 

'-..: 	''' 

:-.■ 

	

0 	 -1-.. 	F 
,J  0 

0 -, 	-0 
0  
4.4 

12, --= 

r • 

, 	 , 
tip 5 7-•-:,,Tz  r,.., U 

1.1 	, 	■-' 0 

:=.,. 

=7 
, 
0 

.̂..1  
U 

 
',:., 	,t,0 	■••.■ 	 U 	r77'.. 	1,a_ 

	

4-, 	C' 	 1.) 	
(...-- 	 in:I'd)  _L, 	 r-  

	

0 	 r  
CO 42 	 GO - J 

	 0 	 0 	r 	r '-._. 	0 	 0 0 ,- 	; 	-I--■ 

0 0 b 

0_,  
4.4 	-,,,,,  

r 0 ,-, 	
'-7---.) 4-, 	 '1., 	 ■''...- 

	

7-; 	 rj,  
(L) 	0 	. 4., 	..--, 	,t 	7 	r, 	_, 7 	.1, 	.) 	, 	,... , p ,_._. 	-, , 

	

c., 	73 	1) 
." 	

-4 
,-- 

	

-, 	
0 -.0 
1) 0 	

r bo 
,--.1 -715 •-• 	j 

:-. 	• 	:.--7' •-,9 	'-"J 	by r 	1) 	 ,7,-., 	,a7) 	,,- 60 ,-_, ,,-_,,0 	r 	 i 	,49 
-, 	,, 	 r 	 . -4 	! 	 3,,-- 	--) 	7-', 	r  1-,  0 	0 	0 	 0 •-■ ,-- 

G , 	7.:: 	, -0 

	

,...-■ 	:,::,. 	ra, 	c_-_,,_  

	

r 	 .) . ,17' 	o o 	c.) 	- = •,--. 	.--„, 	.>-.. 	0 	 C., 	0 	 ...,..„:', 	,i..,),.0 	S-. 
:-. 
U 	

...-, 

	

0 	7-i 	U 

,---•_ - „.,_, 	 v 	r 	--, 	U 	0 	,r, 	 0 -,:_-, -0 r  L" 	,-L 	E. r., 7..,,L1 	
'1., 

 

S. 	CL) 
:•'-' '7'' 	0 	-..'t . ,° - : ,'7 	..7' 	

C.t 	 J S-  
-', 

7.1 	o'-' 	• ,-. 
, .,_ 	• - 	

';'• 	5.L.) 	1 	 I 	 I 	I 	 ,c, bo ■ _,.,' 	_6_, 	+--, 	
. 

..A 

r, 	C; 	"1."., 

/-=.1 0, 	<t-L! 	• 

.1, 

T-j1 	 , 	 ' 
-0 	 , 	 -0 	 -0 

E 	c , 	 -,- 't 	 ,- 
'-' 	 '-'l 	E:  r•-•"-, 	..1- 	 en 	 .1 	.4 

-C ,2, 	 -• .., - 

••-n- ,_,,,-) 	 J 	0 	, 

J 	 j 	 r 
GO 	 , 	r 5; 	

r 
3 	 ...., 	C 	 ,..' 	r". 	 0 J ■._ 	.-_,,E 

N   .., 	, -, 	 r 	,--..  
, s- 	 0 -CI 	p 7c,  ,--., F_, 	 , 	-' 	 r 	CI = 	 7  

 U 	 ,_.) 2, 	- 	0 	,7.,, 	., 	--... 	.•-) i..) 	, - 	 _ 	., 	- 	.,, C 	= 	 by 6 ‘-'   
.--• --e- : 	

--- o 	_ 
-rC 	

- 
._,_, 

. 	
0 	- 

.0 	 -7.5 	r ,. , 	 , 	
r 
2 

 r 
r 

0 	
J '-' ) ,_,,-: _c_: 	_, 	 -7,  0 

	..--, 

V) 	 r 	r 	 r 	
r 0 

,- 	 r. 
CD 	Ln 	7J 	 en ,-----. .--' 	 '-' 	 r-• 

•-• 	 0 	
,•-• 

..■  .1,-• 	__C,' 	 ''-- C 	 ■-• 
V  C 	c 

r- 
-,11  4:7-',' 	'-:2-+' 	 0 	 ,-. 	 7 

- 

.-• 	 ., 	
. 

• a) 	7., 	 il 	r. 	J 	
.--, 
A 	- 	 , 

0 C 	c:, 
, 

 
0 0 	- - 	 - ,L- 

,L4, 	 __ 	,- a_ 	= _ — 	_ 	, 
ar, ,_:-__-' _ 

, 	 -0 	
-, ._,- 

) 

, - 	

- 
, 	

- 
- 
- 	

, 
., 

J 	

r' 
r r 

,

r 

 - 	- 
5 • .._ 	 C  -Y 	 -, -;=' 	 0 - 	 ,-,_ 	0 	 0 

41  a.) 	 -• 

J 	

- 	 .- , 	 0 
r GI) -- 	

r E 	r, 	0  ._, 	..., - - 0_  tv 	.7.; 	0 	 ._, 	_ 	- ---.= 	.• 	.--, 	,-, .-„,• 	..,- 	- - 
4 	 ,) 	 -.--. 	 1-. 	 "', 	

5 
-■ ,-, 7-:0 00 	-r 	) =  ti 	'-. J 	.-' 	 J 

	

74 	J 	 0 	 , 
,,,, 	-, _ 4  . 

o a;  (..) 	r 1 r 
- 	--. 	Ci,'  

, •-, ,- 0 
r-• 	- 	

-- 
, 	Fi ' 

-, - ,....) 
V 	r-- 	3 	--2 	0 	.3 	 p - 	, C,- 	 , C2,  

-, 

L CS3 	r p 

...4 	
r 

._:;  , 	r 	.r• -c; 	- 	- 

r' 	 0 	
r 

_,_. 	 7.... 	F_:, 	-1 	, 	,. 	_ 	._• 	,. 1 	.- 
E 	-,-, 	 + -- 	1-- , 	) 	+ 	+ .c._ IV II) 	...., 	, 	_ .--) 	p 	, 	r -,---, 	--- ,__, 	, 	-  

-CI  -Ct 	-=', y• 	< < 	D 	e- 0. 	I 	I 	_ 

>1 	..) 	..-4 	c) 1... 
U  U>1  cc, _-,-_  • • • • 	) 0 5 	r, ,--, 	• 	 • 

■ 	 ■ 

p 

r•-• 

O 
U 

U 
 

p 

U 

:••-• 

.-C 
4-,  
4-,  

0 

E.3 

4-,  

0.) 
0 

,a) 

Vter: 



t.40 
a 

0 
V 

0 'V 
-F. C 

-.7:- 
L) 

brs, *E5 

= L- 
•-y , 
1.$ :1 4. --„i  .-- .- 

._-:: • - „: ,- 
--,.., 
0 -,-_, 
c_-_,_ ..-,. 

v r 
V 	■-t, 
r 	.i--∎  

V 
_,_, 
,,,,r,  
0 , 
'-'r,J • 
,t , 

, 	,..., 	v, 

CA 	' '-' - - — V ,-0 5 cc) 
: 	,-  

t., 
tt: 	c•-) 	a, L•'.' e,,, . 	,. 	•,_„ 
e■ 

el , 	:-'? 
!t 	V  to s-:: ,-- 

75 	
•. 
r 	'V '-'  

r  
4.... 	r 0 . 0 'DO 
V 	 r 

Ji.  r v-• V 75 
0 

' 	'J V _0 V 
s 	v > 	ti V 0 , 1.1 	r 
, 
Z 	

0 C1 V r ' , 
0 , 	•,... 	- 

,.... 	N 	r •,,1  

V 	n 
 

C U , •  4-, 
 f...■   

...o e;:c o 0 .r. M
.-.. .-  

C....) 	
0 IY: r; 0 

r 

ti 
4-, 

 r-t 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

st
it

u
ti

o
n
s  

a 

J J  

(7; 

, 

)
)
  H

o
w

  U
S

I C
a

n  
H

e
lp

:  

Li 

4-,  
• 'TZ 

.7- 
V 

TJ 

0 

ra
Li 

Li 

0 

Li 

3' 

0  

       

a 

• 

4--, 
r 	, 

1.) 	V 
...,1  

U ,---.... 
0 

r-0 
-a 	r 	 CJ 

'1,-- 	0 	-.., 
:-. to 	r7c 	,==- 

to 
4-,  
,.,-,' 	 0 	 ..-■ 

r., 	
. 

.--,. 

4-, 
, 

V 	 "V 	V > 
r 	r 	77, . - 

n J 	V 
V 

-0 	(....)  
V 

,-, 	 V 
Ci 	 ,CL  

, 
1---4-. 	 V 	 k 

r ,...,-, 	 ri) 
,7C 
r 

0 , 0 
4-,  

-C 	 -r--1 V 	 U  -, 
r 

r 	 V , 	 V 
V 
k :L.) 	, 	 F.." 

	

,-1--," 	
0 
U 	, 

>..  n 	 V 
, 	n ,-,-■ 
,c,...  

V 

,-; :-7,:,  
,v a 	v ,-.  
:-.' 	',.,l'Ll 	.„ 

V 0 	0 	f 1.) 	 -1-• ..., 	■:1, 	U -0 
s t.,  
V 'el•- 	

V 
•, 	,r_.  ,- _, ,  

C.! 	 r 
rti 

C'J 	 0 

	

'''' 	■-4 
V -°,... 	V  , v en, 	_r_.,̂ 	r r: 	,.., 	 , 

) V V  

, . -" 
V 	 b .0 
tO 

	

0 	, 2.7 
,77.., 	, 	-75 	'-'-' 	•V 
i•C1 0- 	.7G , 	> 

	

,S 	.4 .,...-: 	,_ 

• • 

r 	 , r 	 , . --, 	 v 
v 	 0 	 -..„ V 	 , j_-',, 

0 	0 	 U v.,  
') 

, 
k. ,. 	 1.1 	,,-, 	-., 

, 	:J  
;>. 	 :I, 	C0 	 _ 	 u , •-"_. 	 to 	 la, . , 	 V 	 0 	 V  	 0 

, 	 :.-■ 	 $-■ 	 C.. ) 
4-, 	 7.: 	 ■ P 	, , 	 > 	V •—• 	 r 	 4-+ c1. 

›.... 	 r 	
V 	cd 	 V 	r -0 	r 
4- 	 t./.0 '•-.' 	 , 	, 

c,i 	
, 	

r:I 	 ,. V 	 0 
 

> 
0 	 7:.- 	 • 	4-, 	 0 	r' 	.■., 	 .., 

,-...' 	 , 	 .." 	i CL., 	 0--, • •- ■ 	 r 	 "0- 	V . 	 0 	 V 	0 	 0 	...., 	 C., —. 	 V 
'-' 	'-' 	=;"--N 

 .•__• V 	V v 	 --c-i 	0 

, 
V  
•-• 	 2. 	 01 	 2 0-. 	 rt 	r 	 . a 	

L 

, 	 0 	V :•< 	 , , V 	 V 
,- 	 4 	 .- 	 0 C 	 -F., v 	 ,--, .- 	 4-, 	 0.) 	> 	0 	 >-.. ,--/ 	 , 

..., 	 V 
 

, , 	U 

	 a  V 	 V 	 -, 	 , 	r -,...„ r 	 V 	'-0 !D.° 	 bk, 	-,'-'73 v 	 ,0 	 , 	V 2 	 _..,-- 
_.o 	.,.., 	,-, 	 0 ✓

0  7,- ,-.;:', 	 ,- ._z.:  to to 	 0...) 	4__:. 	 __ r r 	 ,-----.. Lt  to 	 .,_. 	c-,_, 	,t  , 	 .--,-,' 	 , 	, , ,:- 	 0 	 0 
0 	 r- 	 b.f.) 	V V 	 V 	, --Z, 

, 	 t rJ , CO 	 r 	 ,-,--.• 	r v 	 0 	 • 01 	0 r 	 v 	 V 	r (1.) 
, 	., 	r-- 	 ' 473  . 7:1 r 	 , 	 , 	C‘.., 	 V 	V 	 r 

0 	 .. 	 5 	 ,-` 0 	 V 	 , 	 • 7-  ' ..- 
. , 	 N 	 V 	,_, ,.., 	 ,--,' 	-0 	> 	 7-1 	 ' 

U 

,__,  ..4, 	 V 	. , 	 „ 	0  
, 	-7:, 	 :- 	r, ,  . 	 ,4--. 	 tip 	a 

'--0 	 1..) 	75 	>,.. 	, . 	.,-■ 	 , 	 V „ 
:7. 	• • 	 ..,-_, 	. „ 	. „ 	 , 	.2:: 	.,... •ID 	 0 r . 	 V ,--- 	-. 	, 	•,-,-_,. 	. - 	 ,--' 	-, 

'A 	
r , 	V 	0 , 	0 • •-' ••., 	t,:z_" 	0 	V 	 , 

M .' 	 ..0„ 	✓ r v 	
71, r,  
> 	 ,.-' 	?7.47) '•;.'d 

U. 	,--, v 	'-_, , , 	°  
I) 0 	' ■=,

' - 

WI. 	0 0 
> 	

,....... - 
C 	 >  	,' 	‘,., 	',1 	 cl, 

r 	--,,0 
 c.,, 	> r. 	̀, 	0 	. - 	 e t7713`.--,t: es 	,,L, 	 > „,- 	r $-, - 	0 	'--- 	.4-, 	1-*-.  a 	 "-d  C...) = 	0 't 	 0' 	 , ,I., 	0 ''r 	 E. 

::) 	, 	̂,..) 	 rtp 
0 	 0 	V 	 c`,., 

Lo) 	U 	'..) 	 C4..., 
ti...) 	

'', 	--, 
, 
	-1. 	

,,- 	..,,, 

-• 	0 	, 	,.; 	•7:-.., 	_o 	,-.  
, 	 •-t 	 t.-,,, 	',-.., 	, 	 ,-!--, 

= 	r: 0 	r.; 	,1) 	C.) 	, 	: 	..—■ r 	 . -.- 

'V 0 	c_-_,_, , - r 	. - 	. 	V ';,•'' 	0 	:1-, 	
:- 

0 P 4 
4 -,--• 	

. _ 	> 
4-, 	0 ..--. 

, 	

1- 
. - CD,  

'77;' U 
 

,_0  '2, 	r . ' , "-r 	V -.0 	> 	V 	> 	--7-j 	"1 ) 	'-. 	 > 	 ,-,..., er 
1 	! 	 cul 

sv 
G .-+ 	0 n 	 n J n 	r, -2_, ,..-., 	• 	• 	• 	• 	7-, 	• 	• 	 a 	 • .--, 

In
d
u

st
ry

  I
n

s
ig

h
ts

  



w 

O 
0_ 

4-,  

ro 	2 

is 	(0 
C 

00 

CO 	OS 
C C 

0) 	0.)  

M
id

-Y
ea

r  
20

21
 (

Y
O

Y
)  

Pr
o

du
ct

  L
in

e  

O 

01
11

:1
0/

11
1  

,- 	...„5 	1..., 	vi 	 C-., 	-7.1 E..) H---.

J 	 J 
----. 	..., 	 s--, 	- 	 0 '1) • 	 0 	H ' ,,-.) 0 	 0 	 7' 	7 0 ,- 7 1-: , 0 	 0 H 	C. 	- '.° _0 , 	 '7:,  7))  H..' 0 	 -I-.' 

(-: 
— 	(-. 

P 	vs 	(-) • - 	'-' 	(-) - 	a, '7 	4' 	',---- 	. 
7.1 

.- 
7.. 

	

■Dr) 	, , 
> J 
0 	

' - ,/ 
0 0  0 

4 ..-.. 

	

u 0..,  .  _  _l ,__, r, V 	 v V I ,-, _T_J  . ,...„) --,- , j_.  j _C 	0. 	• r 

7 

 .'.-7- >, 	 CZ 	 0 7, 	 ,-, • ) 7 	 , 

"' ^.)  2 

	

> 	 C 0 ' 777., 	 0 ': 

7i 	

-, 	,:- 	,7_,'-'7'  

 , , , 7  
- co 	. C 

-.... _,, 	e,,,...... 

	

P 	. 	. 	'' 7-7, 1... 	J ,-.L..  

	

2 2 	
_._,-. 

	

;._- 	=, 	:,:_-,_, 	72 	,.....) 	 r_ __ 	...... 	72. 
 ✓ 
	_-, 	,...; 	- 	,-::  f.) 	 -, _ ,- 	 --7; 	.,:.., 	,-._, 	,,,-_.- 	:n r- ,... 	'0,_ 	r'-' 	-1-... 	..."' 

	

0 '.'" 	 e-' 	C__,_. bi=1 7,- 	._., ' -.-+ 	':.) 

	

,..1-- 	 J.-, 	r r..) 	 '' 	; ' 	',-: 	3 
t-',. 	C , 	..:._,  ,- - _  _ 0 •- >„. 	 r_j_.  ,_,C -  ,-, 	V 	' V 	r 	

L.., 	•,..,„ 	,-, 	,--, ) 
,...40 a, ,-- 	,-, ,'=', 	::::.■ 	:= 	, 	 , 

trj 0  r " , - :- '8  

	

0 0 -.-_, — -L.- 	CI) 0 	,.,.)  
0 0 . =73 	7---' 0 0 	 0 	0  .3.0 co 	 ..7_,' _C 	. 	. J. - .= tr.) 	:7--  --r; 	 r_. .... , 

, 	 , 
_7:: 	,--, 5 , 	 ,- 2-,    

F., 	. ';"-, 	'...; 	---' 	',-.-2,-" ,-74 	c'" 	,—. ■-c., 
— 	 •.-1" :',-) 	v ,_ ;73  ,: ...) .‘.::2), 	_ 

?•-• 	J C  
,-•• 	-. : d 	. '--•") 	' -, f_ ," 	. = ,' 	P 	 cd 	- ...... 	..-- 	".= 	7'.. 3 	--, 	'-', 	- 	:7:-; 	 ■-' 	''.1 	,- 	0 	'' 	, 	c-c.. .-,,,1 	-3-, 	". 	 7,, 	,-.7'' 	7_, 	-1--,   • 0 	He 	E.3 4-, 	;,) 	-, 	0 

U 	,  

	

c 4...., 	 0 	i 7 	-- 

	

.. 	

. _ ,. . _ _4,, 	LH 	c,  . i ,7_,,,c, 	,l_.i'D r.-3 

r:-.7   

U )1) 	,—, 
, 'J. ,_2 ,.?.. 	c  

	

7 	, • ,-' 4-,  

	

',--■:', 	 , 	y.,,.- 	,1., 	C,) 
0 '■,. 	 0  ' -'-' 

(..) 
',..) - ■ 	

0 
__, 0  

,

' 
r- • ' 	

0 
'''" '-"-, 	

• r,:.:. 	,_,,,,, :__1 . 	..c.,i,,,' 	,_,,,_ 3, 

_L_, 	7 	bo  ,,,•,), 
P,  0 :H'' C) "' 	r0'  2 	

-, 7 
'0 .C,' bre) 	Fi ::-P :'3)f) 

	
+1':') 	, 0 't > H 	C 	 c 0 ,-.. 	77), 	 H:: 	, 	; ''' 	- 	0 	S-, 	1.) 

) a .0 	v :-, r- 7H V 

	

-,-, 	 (-.) -73 	"'-)  ,=; 	CO 	7,..:,; ..":2 	't 	u 	 , 
1--, 	 ,. 

-70 > L.3 	
7--, 	,11 

	

 
v 	

,..) 	-'  

	

`- ', 	
, 

,

., , 
'-- 7C 73 -77'_, . 7.: 	Lfi 	C-1-. L..■ 	., -1-' r.w..1 

77. 0 	'...?, 	 • .:..... 	• 	 • 

.7.; .... 
..- 	 . 

	

. , .--I 	 ,_ ..0 	. 	
,„... r-  -. r.---- ,--p-, 	0 	- 	 — H 	 Ha : -'  

0 

	

- 	Of.s c, 	
7 	 , 	el) ,-.-• 	,.., 	 . !Dr) 

-7)- 7  C 7 	 0. 	 •,.. r, --, , J
.... 	-1, ._,C, 	,"7,.,' 	r1.," 	, 	

0 	 7-, '.-3 	..-• 	'7.-: 	,_. 	, 
0 	. 	-/---. :D. 	, 	 ' 	----. 

	

.-= 	7--jr... 	;-1:. --: 	"7. 	,J 	. 	" 	r.  

0 ,:-,--._ 	,- 	-I--, 	V; ›...... 	Ti 	U • - 	1-.. 	, u r::•, V pl _7_,,  . ,--4 	 -. •- ■ ,_+'_,• 0 0 tfj 0 
bIJ 	' -4.- 0 

' --- ' , ■._„, 	0 	r.; 	i--:' 	0 	, 	„ 	,-. ■ 	 0 	v 7) -L:1  -,I-r 	-.•  ,__ 	 r „,, .--. 	 ,7; 	 Il 	D --■ 
■ 	r __, V -,-,  

7--1 	
,  
'77.1 	■--' 	r,,,  7,7, 	VAJ .^ 	 ,--.. .--■ 

i--, 	v 	• 	, 	C-■ 	'''''', 	.0  ' F 
,I) .:- 	■-• 

7.,  1..) 	 0^,  7-_, eD • 7-4 C. ^a '—' 	 , -cs 7-1 .2-7. 	--, 	„,.., 	 fi• . _ , , 	0 

	

.._d •-• 	0 	,:..- 	
, • - --' 	,.-, -C 	> 	.-, 	--. .. v 	,.._, __,,-, 	_,r-- 	■''' 	.c.; 	, 4,r; 	 f7.,' 	, 	511 	u 	, 	cd 

	

r 	, ...)  	0 .-'-.- ___, 	,,,, V. 	• '^ 	-,--, 	,_,,-, 	
, 

, ," 	,. 	< .1 	'7",:, .. , 	 , , 	• ' 0..) ; , ,na 	 —, 7-1 	y_77 	> ' 	 7-.1-,  .7, 	J, - •- ..-> 	t3.0 	—' 	• " 	(3) 	',---: 	1-' ., 	:',.r,  7 
  

r r" 
^0 r 	17, 	. 7'. , 0-1 FL' P u ;-=•-' 	c., — „-7.,' >. u r-,  u > 

.-, 
,.._ 	•;.>.., , „_. .,,,, 

	

_,•-• - 	-72, 	,; ,-. 0 U C) ---' 	, 
:••,1 	. •-' 	c :7,-:-, 77 	7 	 ,_,_,. H 	.•-• 	;-1 '—' 	D • . 7 	C., ,•.-r  -,-, ,s.:;. > , -- 	1.) ,2 	,-1 a v 

	•- 

u 0  , 	'5 • =. 	8 	72. 7Z-:. r
,22. 	',‘.,...).) 	:,-,. t"' Hi 	H . :7 	e" • H 	0 	' 	H-) •■•••, 	7-: 	a 	i•-7 	• 	-- 	__,-,- 	0 	:::: 

....,, 	• 	'Cr', 	1---L  ' , 	CO 	'-') y., 	..j 	4- 	s., 	,--■ 	0 	__.'-' 	'.- 	r" 	rt . C: 	, -0 7--r, 	;_, 	..... 	,_,,, ......, 	„I; --, , j 0  (3-.7 	, 	el) 	_, 	:_, 	H 	'',,,, 	,:-.) .--, 	,7-:: 	'V 	r-' 	...,-; 	76) 	,0L, ' 	.... 	0 	r-• 

	

r-, 

0 0 	

f_-_,- 
_ 	',, 	0 • - 	'r-, 	 'Lli r, 	,C,-. r'.---,' 	-_-: 	 •rr 7,-, 	,C72, 	"7, 	r-, 	F.-; 	

;"1-', 	0  
,,,* 	 '7"  >e, 	

0 :7  0 t: • •:-H1  , 	 -HE":-. 

•z),,..:  

• -• 

	

7, 	• 

	

...:, 	_,.•-' 	a0 ...:' 	o 	,L t 
 

,1 	3--, 
2773 	';?2, '', 	E, ... 	, 	- 

- 
,-1 	...! 7_.- 	br, 	6 	> 	r,......„ 	0 	,,,.., 	_, 	0 	„, .__x,..,, br, 	

a 
:,...) . •:.::' 	'0 	,) . -,--, c':' •---" 	:-.) 	.e), 	7 	7 	7 	0 Hrj 	br, 

	

'   	.... 	0  C-■ 0 H,' 	:::: .-.. 7 ,_,. --_, ,-. , , _., 
. p-ctrj  :::0'  :;" .H,7:_ '2":2 7ti_•-2,  '-, '._,,i .;,:,t4' -1 ... 

 0 	.--- 

	

---, ,-.. 	
,  , :__,  

	

.--. 	.-  ?.... 	.., 
.7.; EC.1"J _,. P br.s, t': ,--) .1.5 1 ',, 	 77) 

C ,r7) . ',7: :7  0 o 	0" '-70:  "7  ‘:"7 :7.L:-'  '7  ts, ,-. 	..--■ 	, 	" 	.-_, 	r ,._, :-') 

> 7 	 0 4-,  ;:,,,,, 72, 	_,...,.. 	,, Z4 	. 7, 	, . 	„,_. ,....., 	•,.... ,-,) 	. -, 	..,„7 	„ 	• -• 	,,,,, 	 , U. 0 i--, 0 0 ,=•-'' ''''' ,5, ■ 	" ,-. , CL, " 	r
u 

 .= c.,.,  -,-, .--, 	0 	J-f) 
 

rt 	 c. "Td 	..7:: rn , 	 ,' D 1.) 	. 	- ,... ro • - 	- .2  • ,z-2,  
,-, 

0 	

• 7. 	,... u r  
:=--., 	E, 

N •...-, —, 	u 	> 	.7... 	'..{' --c 	-2 	7-1  '-' -. 	cd (-•‘. 	.., 	.., 	, 	- 	b.!) • - - - 	H2 	" ,-; , ' , - " . 7  : , ' , 	, .1 , 	' 	I . - 	c  - , _ , e:) 	0 
1. j 0 :=: 0 " 	 r_;),  

...., 	cj 	,   	H., ,r ••., 	, 	0 	,a, Ca)  -_,_ 	> ,._,_, 	7.., -I-■ 

4+ 	-,,,, 
.J r ' 1 :Z., 	±:-■• -.=-'-' '}-: ,--C 	a- ^", 	'i 	'-' 	-1.:-• 	-,-.. 	0 

-C 

C 

N 
0 



LO 
IN 

v --I 	V 	v 	 4--,  

. 7-1 	g,',) 	V' 	 -,7';'  

---, 

	

	
'.. ,..- 

tr., 	 1'3.0 

	

77,; 	0 	V 	'7; 	 . -, 	 0 	 7j 
, __i 	r 	 tr., 	, 	r 	 r'''''  

	

4-/ 	r, 	 r-. 	 C7; 

	

I" 	 (-' 

	

> 	0 	U 	. 8 	 }-, 	 0  

	

r", 	77:i 	 , 24' - 	 C.1  

	

V 	v 	 , 	 vd 

✓ 0 	V 

	

0 	71 	,T' 	E7 	 ,7,./  

•,_, 	- 	r 	-0 	 r 	 ..;:71 	
, 	,-; 

In
d

u
st

ry
  I

n
si

g
h

ts
  

, 	rte'.
, 	

,-, 	.... 

71 	0  

, 0 _ 

V4 

 

, 	 r , 	V . --I 	r 	V 	V 	 r 	v 	;-.,-; 

;-.
,; 

V
 

'-'.
 

	 U
 

r* 	 ,
 

,
 

r-'
 
	 ,
 

...7-e ' 	 CI)
 

V
 
	 v
  

r0
 
	 ,
 

V V
 

O
 

>
 

-
 

7 7 7
,
 

to
 

F. -  ,
 
	 -1-• 	 ,
 ,--

7. 5
 	 • .--, 	 ,t
 

	 ,7 1
 

	 '''
' 

0
 	 e-. 	 ..-

 

U
 
	 , 	 c.,

 
	 .._
, (...

, 

,,,
, 

,..,
 
	 ..-.4

 
	 • —

, 
	 ,....

. ,
' -

-;
/, -.

J _.
_.. 	

4.... 
,_0 

0 u
 

.. -2 . 	 4--. 	 C..)
 

	 . - '  r" 	 brj ;
:r5 

	

7-
-

:5 b 
.0 
	 r7 •
5 ,

 

	 c •
.. C

) 	 r.
 

O
 

5 7
7_

, , 

	

V
 

 )
 	

,-
4

 

	 4- ,  ,
 

	

,
 	 ... 	 ,,.. ' 	 r -, 	 r
 

	

6' r
-,- 	 I
:
 

	 J 	 ,
 —J

o
  

	

e
J
 

2
 
	 .J; :: „.

 	 ,
 

u
 

	

0 	 c -_,_
, 

	

_a 	 .-- 	 - 7.5 	 ,77.1 	 o 	 ,;;
 	 .,. 	 7 ...,

, 

	

u,--.  4-- , 	 --C
 

	 ,-, 	 -, J
 

	

,,-- 7
 ' 7 .!
  -s. -- ■ 	 r-- , 	 ,
 
	 t
 

	

,
 	 c7.1

 
	 '1 ,
 
 

	

1.)
 
	 C7,

 
	 '1.)

 
	 J 4-, 	 C -7 :
:
 

	 '1)
 

	 1,
  

r - , 

 ..., -C
 ' r- „:

,

.. 4
..

,  '
 a - , 

,:- •,." • 
7" 

r : fr-1 777;
 „c, , 73  C

., c7.1 

s-
, 

 

 :
>

 U
 

 77:1
  =2 

d 
° 

U 
'''' . C.

.) 
* 4--

, 

 U
 

 
 

.., .
._. 

 

0
 

3
■ • 

U
00
)

U
r.

 
"

o5
0
0
 

s
t)>

 

)

(
3

•
 

r
 

U

S

C

O

L
4,

c
 

r

-
 

_c 
a

) 

•
 

—
 

n
3
 

rr 
O C

N1
 

0
 

L 
0 

a
) 

4-
J 

t
r
l 

ui
 

)
)
,
  H

o
w

  U
SI

 C
a

n  
H

e
lp

  

C 0 0 
u 	 • 	• 



M
id

-
Ye

ar
  2

0
21

 (
YO

Y)
  

O 
fr1 
0 

0 

R
at

es
  C

o
n

ti
nu

e  
to

  S
o

a
r  

P
ro

du
c

t  L
in

e  

0 

fsl fsl 

fsl 

	

0 	'  
U 	

C_, 

	

 
CI-) , 	 y:a a 	 .,4 t ""_) 	 U 

	

____z_1,-. 	CLJ>.  ".t._., 	_,_, 	0, 	. , • 7._: 	, 	",, ,,,,a  

	

0 	',.//2■ 	'0, 	1..) ,--, 	>, '.1., 	 ,   

_0 	1_, ■ -' 	'''' 	'.7-: 	C-'-' r I 	0 	' 	ej .= 

- 

, 	—. .--- 0 ■-.2,r3 -.7.; :-_-_- d o ,- J 
 ,- 0-: U ..,]; `,.-"? . E' `='  

"r)  .-.E, 6 8 • ,,-■ r 0 _,-> ,,0,,  F.',  0 .1) a --- 

	

r > 	-a r -a' 
 r--'`r 

	 „...) 	 . „ 	 e,-, 	 ;4., 	--,e 	0, 	. ,r 	 ,...e ,,„ 
r--' 	 ' 	 -'''' 	 • 	 '-4 	" -e 	 ,te 	 1,4 	 '-' 

. ,f,  ,2 -7 __, ,,, p- to  E'L  .,'.., 	,.,..,,C, r. 	t 	'.:.r 	,.., 	7, 1 	• ' 	r 	E.' 	:.,,, 
'3 ''.-) 	-0 a — 

U 
br, > " >", 0 U ,- 

	

.22 	>•-• , 	✓ 	6' 	r,.__. 	• 	72, 	cr, 	u 	'-') 

	

P.,. 7--", 	,- 0 -5 -o ;,.,, -U ;:". 5  :., ,:,. ,.., u ,- ,T,, u , ._ 	1.) ,, -.=,. ^l — tj  co u S , ,:. r.,-; 
'', 4 "I' o 0 4.-  .2. 

• 	

_, 	.. 	.-- '.. 	'-' 	LC., ...0 '-,i . 	y-. 	'71 	'4 	'''' ' 7:J•    

	

u --- ._. 	7 	,t, 	r 	',2. 	,:.:, 	0 	.".•`-' 	P  , 

'.i._, t`y_o ''V-24,.._,  :.: -' 	 ".j.),____j  -F,,,,,  2--.  , C",  -'7: 

- 	" 

'':.':-•0  2  

	

>, .) ',=•' , ,--':- 0 1-' 	'7"-- 0 	0 ' C '- .., 	.,_, 	—, 	,....„ 	. 	,4 	..„, 	-14 -7,...) 	,-. 	_ 	._:,- 	. 
'7, • 7., 	,,,' 	0_, 	-,---, 	' ' 	^4 	,L, 	U ' __-' 

r 	V 	7- 	:..: 	r. 	;..--, 0 	u 	y 	._,  

	

...= 	C., 	0' 	:'" -.0 	rlj 	'.,_-2, 	0 -- 	I) 	,,..7i 	,'1.  
-.' 	iL--;  

	

„„ 	, 	,__ci 	, 7-21 	 ,  

	

.c,, 	'4 	,-, 	-. 	E 	,:-.1 	'.=. 

	

+,, ,,:-., ,,,,, 	.,2  	a_ 	.o.--. 	- 	0 .., 
,:-, 	br., __'-, _,0 0, _, _t_..., , 7j,  s. 

• s

: „, i  , ,--1  u. 

	

670_, 	- 	g,jo 	,N r.:_t_, .4.E 	',.E.-i . 
..,..0 	, ' ,--:., • 7' - 0 	- 	!DI) . : 	e..,) 	:7-,' .4 	U 	9 	,.., 	U
0 -' 	,"' 	*: 	,),.) 	''' 	''' 0 '(7'., 	1) 

 • 

,-° . 12  "-7', '-',„ r. ...„ 	..,0 . —  	.--'' c- 	- ,,, , U " k6--  ---) , 	,--:,-• ,_.0 	,- —. 	7.2-,' ''''' -,,te 	- 	---- 0 ;,._TJ _3 	L,,,77:,, 0,,, „..",- ,,,,, , 

	

-, 	r.„ 	E., 	3 c

• 	

,:,-; .--;.:,, —2.  —,, 	,=..- 

 0 ' ej .= , —. .--- 0 ■-.2,r3 -.7.; :-_-_- d o ,- J  ,- 0-: U..,]; `,.-"? . E' `='  
"r) .-.E, 6 8 • ,,-■ r 0 _,-> ,,0,, F.', 0 .1) a --- 

	

r > 	-a r -a'  r--'`r 	„...) 	. „ 	e,-, 	;4., 	--,e 	0, 	. ,r 	,...e ,,„ r--' 	' 	-'''' 	• 	'-4 	"-e 	,te 	1,4 	'-' 
.,f, ,2 -7 __, ,,, p- to  E'L .,'.., 	,.,..,,C, r. 	t 	'.:.r 	,.., 	7,1 	• ' 	r 	E.' 	:.,,, '3 ''.-) 	-0 a — U br, > " >", 0 U ,- 

	

.22 	>•-• , 	✓ 	6' 	r,.__. 	• 	72, 	cr, 	u 	'-') P.,.7--",  ,- 0 -5 -o ;,.,, -U ;:". 5 :., ,:,. ,.., u,- ,T,, u , ._ 1.) ,, -.=,. ^l— tj co u S , ,:. r.,-; '',4 "I' o 0 4.- .2. 	_, 	.. 	.-- '.. 	'-' 	LC., ...0 '-,i . 	y-. 	'71 	'4 	'''' ' 7:J•    

	

u --- ._. 	7 	,t, 	r 	',2. 	,:.:, 	0 	.".•`-' 	P , 
'.i._,t̀y_o ''V-24,.._, :.: -' 	".j.),____j -F,,,,, 2--. , C", -'7: 
- 	" 

'':.':-•0 2 

	

>, .) ',=•' , ,--':- 0 1-' 	'7"-- 0 	0 ' C '- .., 	.,_, 	—, 	,....„ 	. 	,4 	..„, 	-14 -7,...) 	,-. 	_ 	._:,- 	. '7, • 7., 	,,,' 	0_, 	-,---, 	' ' 	̂4 	,L, 	U ' __-' r 	V 	7- 	:..: 	r. 	;..--, 0 	u 	y 	._,  

	

...= 	C., 	0' 	:'" -.0 	rlj 	'.,_-2, 	0 -- 	I) 	,,..7i 	,'1. -.' 	iL--;  

	

„„ 	, 	,__ci 	, 7-21 	,  

	

.c,, 	'4 	,-, 	-. 	E 	,:-.1 	'.=. 

	

+,, ,,:-., ,,,,, 	.,2 	a_ 	.o.--. 	- 	0 .., 
,:-, 	br.,__'-, 

	

_,0 0, _, _t_..., , 7j, s. 	s: „,i , 	,--1 u. 

	

670_, 	- 	g,jo 	,Nr.:_t_, .4.E 	',.E.-i . 
..,..0 	, ' ,--:., • 7' - 0 	- 	!DI) . : 	e..,) 	:7-,' .4 	U 	9 	,.., 	U
0 -' 	,"' 	*: 	,),.) 	''' 	'''0 '(7'., 	1) ,-° .12 "-7','-',„ r. ...„ 	..,0 . —  	.--'' c- 	- ,,, , U " k6-- ---) , 	,--:,-• ,_.0 	,- —. 	7.2-,' ''''' -,,te 	- 	---- 0 ;,._TJ _3 	L,,,77:,, 0,,, „..",- ,,,,, , 

	

-, 	r.„ 	E., 	3 c,:,-; .--;.:,, —2. —,, 	,=..- 

El_ 

—• 
a 0 	••-z,  

• 
> •-r-1  • , 	 br) 

r" • - 0 u 0 a 
1 

r "' 	 , 	0 

r-d '112,  
>7' 	 o 

-a 
• r U75_, 

0 

	

"0 	 ' ' CJ ■.>" 
U U

r' • r "0 
-E-= • 

	

_27 C-) 	> 	' n > >'• p - 	 c.L) 

, 

• CO 	 a" '7' 0 ■.-= , 0 
c.1.1 

- 	" 
F 

,c,6 r r:27•! 
" 	 g 

0 -4  44,, 	 - 7.1 	 • 
> 
0 	 r  • .71 . 

?Dr.) • 	- -72  

	

. 	" 

—• 
a 0 	••-z,  

• 
> •-r-1  

	

, 	 br) 
r" • - 0 u 0 a 

1 

r "' 	 , 	0 

r-d '112,  
>7' 	 o 

-a 
• r U75_, 

0 

	

"0 	 ' ' CJ ■.>" 
U U

r' • r "0 
-E-= • 

	

_27 C-) 	> 	' n > >'• p - 	 c.L) 

, 

	

CO 	 a" '7' 0 ■.-= , 0 
c.1.1 

- 	" 
F 

,c,6 r r:27•! 
" 	 g 

0 -4  44,, 	 - 7.1 	 • 
> 
0 	 r  • .71 . 

?Dr.) • 	- -72  

	

. 	" 

—• a 0 	••-z, • 
> •-r-1 

	

, 	 br) r" • - 0 u 0 a 1 
r"' 	, 	0 

r-d '112, 
>7' 	o -a • r U75_, 
0  

	

"0 	''CJ ■.>" U Ur' • r "0 -E-= • 

	

_27 C-) 	> 	' n > >'• p - 	c.L) 
, 

	

CO 	a" '7' 0 ■.-= , 0 
c.1.1 - 	" F 

,c,6 r r:27•! 
" 	 g 

0 -4 44,, 	- 7.1 	 • > 0 	r • .71 . ?Dr.) • 	- -72 

	

. 	" 

In
d
u

st
ry

  I
n

s
ig

h
ts

 
 



> 5.,  2 (13  c ._ 0 ...c 1-.. 
-.Z 

RI C U 
Q.) 	(13 cn  

tr) (7) 

v) .4-:* > l't  . RS 

N U t-- c 4--, ._ .,... 
>, sa) c a 4. a 
0 mi  1... 4•-• 

ti.) 	4-,  

u 
c • Cr)  (1)41) 

 L.. 
0 (i) Q) 

 VI 
C 

W...,  

C 0 '-.0 
 0 13 Cr)  

.4.-  U -", :E 
ns > ..,- 	cli •> *;., .- C 
ra z 0 

 t ' Wu 
 n3 v) 	) c -0 

0 s 

bi3 

4-,  
C7'..  
CO 	 , 

r 	 --,-J . ." r r  :-. - 	'n 
1.:, 	 .7t 

7 C, 	s... 	 C  
C 	 o , 	 ...., r 	,,,,, 0  , 

0 , 	 0-, 	 ., 
:-.; 	 :,-: 5 . U 1, 

,-, _ ,..„.._ 	, .------ 
r--', -0 	.20 	, 	, .,  

u 0 E., 	 .:0 	CO 
, ' ,,,,,,  

7.7 r•-•_14  .-,., 	 )-4 
...; 0 

.., 	0 	 Fd 	,C,„, 	
.., 
CI 

>" 0., 	 , 
C 	k 	' ID 	•0-. '- 	.-- r -2,  

' 0 0) 	 r-' 	0 	CI, 
r7'.■ 	 r-. 	C./ 	.-., 

0 C .L0 	 r- 	G.) 
0 

' 0-' 	 CO 	
_1 	,'" 4-, 44, 	 on 	0 I ) 

, 
:73 	,t, 	Jr. 0 ;-: 	 en 	 S-1 4_, 	 :14 ,._, 	.--, 	 C 

n 	 0 	CI.) ..., 	,--n• 	 7-.. •-■ 	 n' 	G.) 
0 

	.41 	L.) 	n n , 	 :-.4 
• ni 	--, 	,-) 	,7-4' 	'7.--, 	r--' r. 
..c.T.,u 	:--,... 	,- 	...v. 	o 

o ,-- v - 	o 	, 
r. 	v 
%- 

J , 	.7..  r.  
0 .7c. ,:.,,, 	v  

J..., 	 ,- 
.-- .c. 	,,,, 	v 	.- 	r,  v v — 	v 

:,. 
v r. 	!.:,.o 	br4, 

T4
_ 0_, 	 r,  r,.., 	. 	o 	0 	0 v 	ro v .v v 	v 	;-v_,_, ,-, 	- 

-,--... 
r 	b P: 	GAb ip 	t.,.0 	

to v 
,--• ,- 	. - -. c 0 C ‘....- 

0 0 	
4-4 
r.71 	'; 	Z-3 
	G. , ..- 	> 	•-,1, 	0 . N4-, 	 — 

r ;•,) , 	0 	C 	0 
00 --' 

, .- 
7- 	

, 
-- 	,- , ., 	:--> 

,:..) 
'-r. 	

I 
J rY' 	r,-._, 

r.../-) 	r '.7: 	'.1) ,- 	,-• 
,-- ■ 	■ 	• 	■ '7,c 

M
an

u
fa

ct
u

re
rs

' P
ro

du
ct

  L
ia

bi
li

ty
  

• • )
)
  H

o
w

  U
S

I C
a

n  
H

e
lp

  

U 

r 	b.°  r 	 6 	
4 	

-1-, , 
9 	 GA ;17 

r - 	) r) r: --■ 
 

'7-1
,.-4  

4-. 	 . 1-r -,1  . ' 	
-7-',  

0 	,t, 	 • 17: 	F1.1 	 r, 
----. , 

•—' .0 	 -0 ,..,.., 	 0 	r,  , 	 , • ,,,, 	 >, °-' 

•.--. 	r 	 >-.. 	 > r . 4_, 	 •=0 	••1,  
0 = 	-0 	r ,-, c..) 	,--)- 	

,-.. r 	
-C. "..̂, 

-77, 	 7, r 	 0 
L.,  , 	•-• 	 -, 	0 r  c ;.- cj 	 o 	. 	--a  v ,.., 	,-7.: 	 rs 	 v < 	 v - 

o 	; 	 ,.....,, , u___.  
, 	 - 	,.., 	 ,.---, 	 '._., 	.-- ..,_, 	to ,- 	 , o ,,,, 	to •,-, , 	t 	 0 't, 	 • ° 0 

0, • , 	 P v .,.., 	....., 	,.-_, u 	...r 

	

'73 	 c-. , co 	 _7, 	 o 0 	 .- '‘, 	-,73 	co ',-2 , 	 t., 	co 	 0 z C, _14-• 	c-7 ri ,t 	 F3 	 r 	 0 -73 

	

7-0.-., 	C 7,7 	 0 r.• ir 	 0 	>..4:., 
0 	 '0 	- 	 •-• 	 U 

er 	r , r 	 ..', ■_-j 	 0 4_, 	 Li. 	0-'-' - 	,_., 	 r 	 -7.1 	..._. 	, •-•y  44 	r 	r 0 	 0 r 	r ", 	,...) 

	

't.) 	Cr; 	74. -..,,r 	• ':::' 	:;'... 	
2: 	0 .__. 	

Cr • .,:: 	
.'1.4 C 

J 2 

	

,..-- 	
-4.... 	 .H, 	..-. 

4-, 	 ..:. ,-.0 . ,__. 	Cl.) 	4-.■ 	
8'1) 	, 	 , 

r 7-4 
C, 	o 

u ,-.7.• 	---, 	, 	0 	t=2  
, ,,:5- • ,-- 	, 	-0 , 	, , 	'.. -0, 	''--7 	V•-% 	 --, 	 ,-, 	r, 	• 0 ..-, 	

y
...,  0 , -, 	'n v;4--. 	 0 	 CO 	 0 	_ r"7-4; ^J 	v 	,   v 	.- o v 	o Lri , 

	

,2,4-4n 	_,'  4-,  
C 0 	<71 	r_. r -4,r, 	 C-4 C 	r• •- ■ 	= 	C 

	= n • r 
,...) 	^ 	r•-• ..1.,- 	 r.,.. 	0 , 	• - 	r 	-,.., To __.4 	C• 	-7, - _ 	 v 	-- 	 c:', ,t 	.,r, • '.---4 	> 	 --c ...--, 	o  

	

-0 	to •-• 	,---• 	r._1_, c- 	-• i- 	>-. :., 	.'-' P 	
,-,- 	o 	,- 	U,•-- , 
...., 	.,Lc 	 .-, 

	

--," P E 	,— , 	.:-..  
>-.. 	,s, 0 _c 	,._.> 	,,, •— 	< 7., , 	-• ,,, 	,.., 	>, , •.:., 	0 	t---. 

4-, 	,_, 	 2' 	t 	0 	0 	,.., — 	 ,-- 	c., 	 cc, c-r•-• 	,--• ..., -- _,- 
,_,, 	r-, 	 Cti 	,-,.1 	,D0 	 C4'  7-..., 	.--.■ 	'..-:1 	I-. 	,-, 	cr) fl 

r 	 0 	0 L., 	Z r "--• 	)--, C., 	r 	, :r.  tri ;,7 	 -,,. v 0 - .- c-,. 	'77-, r;2 cr-_-• 	> 	:._. , 	._, _ 	o c-• 	. 7f 	T. v  4, 0  .1., 	 3  o 	P.- 	 ,,., ,2_, 	 r.4 

	

r 	 L., 	 C 0 	473  r U 	 CC) '-' 7"_) 	„:2 
K./ 	 1.) 	i.) 	v(1.) 	

--7 
> 
,•. 

	

a 	>,. v 	-75 c 	u 
-riC -..; 	f tH 

C2, 	c. 	--. r  
-C 	...,-,  

v 	+-' 	e--' 	 ,-V.: 	■-. 	 ,-. 	-"". 	'.E-.1 	, 	 J. > 	0 
ca., 	0 	 .7.1 

tH 	H. , _, 	:.-. 	1..) -7:.■ 
'..2, 	r 4--■ 	4_, 	Cr: 	 :•_.r :, 

.47)  Co"' 	 -;--' 

	

C.) 	 ,.,' 	0 	r.,..) 	■,:AD .z5, 	t..., 	...., 	c, 	■--- tH 	 •  V . :=1  
 ,--i  •-•-■ bo u tip 7:  = c.', 	--, 	F,o c-,  ---,-' A ,-  

)_-, 	,:-C.  

	

- 	 n) •ri 	- b0 	 ) , 	1. 	 r 	 tr., 	,0 ^-. 
> r 	,-, 	-C t''''D  

	

'....., 
	>,.. 	or 	-' 	0 ..:)' 

	

4 	v ,...) 	-1-, 	r-t 	r  ---, 	?..'--a  

	

?-' 	...`" 	-' = ,- 	:7; 	ci) , _:::. 	,..-1 -.0 ci 	̂-7 E 	CL2) 	X .÷:: 	efo 	cG e.., 
0 

■ 	 .) 	 ," 	,c,-- 	■ 	■ 	 ■ 	■ 	■ 	■ 

••>-, 	.., 	0 	 r,  
0 	, 	, 

, 	rt, '0 	 0 ,-.  
'-17$ 	 !...) 	 CD 

. .7., 	 ,r, 

.) 	 ...f, 	 ,..., 
r-' 	 ■-.., 	 ,,'-'''. 
...., 	 c...1 	 ? 	 .--"-.. 

or, 
74' 	, 

GO 	0  
C 	

4.-. 	 , 
6?. 	.-, ';'...? 	 :L.) 
"..0 	• r. 	 ,.. 
......, 	"--. U r.-.1 

..--, 	 bi-,  
O 

	

	
.7) 

■-• 

+CI 	 C.) 	 .12  
-0 	 .- 
, 	,..., , 	 0 
-, , 	 rt. 
0 	0 	 ,..., 

,-0  
, 	

, 
__, 

, 	0 

ri 	 :-■ 	
, 

r 	7:4 	•71 	 2 = . - 	r 	r 	 1.... 
-0 	C 	5C ,-'5 >--- 
c -- 	0 	.,..--. 
7.. 	1-) ,77:: 	.7- - 	 ...:-.. 	49 
0 --d  rl -- 

,...,.., 	 'J 
7-...■ 

- 
	0 	 :i'.  

,—. , 	• .-.. U J-.., 	,--. 	
> 

5_,,c 	r-,_:,.., 

	

____, 	--. r- 	 , —I 
0 t- 	, - u 	, 	 '0 , 
,..1 00.., 	0 

, 	

0 
 

L  0 	 C.', > , 2 	 , 	 co 
, 	'?,.:, 	

to 	0 	...,--., 
- 	 0  -- 	j_-, 	 co br-) 

,4-,  	o , c  
_, 	.- 	• , 	.„,__,- 	r._,., 	:.., 	,73  . 	,•••• 	cc: 	--- 	, 	.--, 	...J 	,„,.."-., 	E; .0 	 r, 	■-' 	.4._ 	 L.* 7'. 	. - 	,... 0.4  

v 	U , 	..,. 0 	v v 1., 	o 	;,,_-,  
0 r.; , 	

C 	..X) .0 
0 	> •—• 	• r CL.) r 

CO 	'-' 	..C.4 	° -,-, 0 
1-1 	 0 -40 	, 0 	5_-4 	vj 	 •.., 

4,..■ 	0 ^J 	tO 0 	■.,r)  
1.4 	.1--) 	r- 	.-;._,-.• 	:._, -0 	!..,, 	....:. 
,7"3 	 rt 	 or., 	r 	,.., 	r 

-r,i.  7../...4 X, 	j 	cr.1 	4,:,.... 	H X 	 0 	 .77:4 ....• 	' 
U 

• • 



15
%

 t
o 
 2

5
%

 

10
%

 r
e

d
u
c
ti

on
  t

o
  f

ia
t  

Fl
at

  t
o
  i

n
fl

a
ti

o
n
ar

y
  i

n
cr

ea
se

s  

M
id

- Y
ea

r  
20

21
 (

Y
O

Y
)  

P
ro

d
u

ct
  L

in
e  

E
nv

ir
o

n
m

en
ta

l C
om

b
in

e
d
 G

en
er

a
l L

ia
bi

li
ty

/P
o

llu
ti
o
n
  

Ex
ce

ss
  C

o
m

b
in

e
d
 G

en
er

a
l L

ia
bi

li
ty

/P
o

llu
ti

on
  

E
nv

ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l C
on

tr
ac

to
rs

' P
o

llu
ti

o
n
  

E
nv

ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l P
o

llu
ti

on
  L

eg
a

l L
ia

bi
li

ty
  

C..) 	1-  

,,,,,, 
U 	3,. 	-- --' 	,.-.. 	, 	,,,, 

t..- 	c.,, 	'1.)  
T., 	'-'  

:1, 	■J--, 
'.--) 

'"? 

.....d 	.... 	,-,-- ■ 
•:.., 	,i_.7 	'2? 	47:. _, 
 ■.r., 

(.' 	-pt-,'  
',? 	..,;' 	, 	.___, 	- 7) 	752.• 	,' 

. '-' 	.:L) 	-1 	---• 	- 
" 0 	0 
, 	• .-, 	.1::: 	,22, 	 I.? 

0 	' 	-L 	C. 	•- ,f.., 
..-. 	C:'--. -- 	',,,T). 	. 	c 	̂ --- 	 "- , 	V: C.) 	u 	— 	j-,,,, 	0,, 	J.:,. 	,L,.-.3' 
'--,  
' 	70 	1-, 	..L., 	--, 	> 	, 
9 	,.._, 	'. .t. 	 , 	, 	= 	Z.'  

> 	• _,_, 	,_, 	, 	0 	., 
0 	.'r? 	-'0  
.,--• 	_, 	-, 	"-".: 

:I, 	0 	. 
..--,.. 	, 	--- 	7 

■- 
> 	̀--) 	• rr.'' '' 	' C 	'-,-.5 	, c:„) 	,--, 

",-,' 
r 	" 	,_A 	,- `i. - 

3 	) 	
Pi=i-1., 	>7.;!.-' 	or) ...2 

— 	0 j 	or; 	-, 	:_. 	,,--: 	- 
- 	c) 	0 	a-) 	0 4--' 0 	r= 	;31--, 	• 	, 

LI-- 	•-• 	"0 	0 	2 	= 	,..., 
' 7 	. -■ 0 	,-, 	> 	",-1 	-.12 	,zir-, 	-_- 
J e 
--i- _ 
xi 	u 	0_ ;0'  	' 7'-'  

'-,  

0, 

 (,) Cj--  
--7 	 - -'72.. 	7L" 	CD 
3--. 	.,..) 	,.., 	,__, 
0 	..-- 

' 	>, . 7-'.. 
'0 	'''f.  
','.. 	r- 	' r= 	. r,-:-2. 

 .-.-, 
, -• 	'ID 	-:-.--1' 	,12) 
0 	, - 	0 	■-, 
r-• 	'6.-- 	,a.,, 	-,., 
0 	p=., 	',"L'-- 	bi)  • - 	r-, 	0' 	,7; :-... 	■-., 	S3 
.0_. ...L., 	9 

	

> 	C-7 
7-' 	•+ 	--.Z,• 	0 	0 

.Z 2.:: 	0 	,J 	U 

;75.i 	, 	,„,--,... 	..,.:,.) 	_0  

c _C 	C 	s-. 	*- 

	

0, 	2-' , 

-.0 	f_:. 	.4. 	,,,._, 
;_, 	U 	7-:.■ 	c___j 

■ 0 	tr' 	r;1' 	■7.,.-' 	6 
--'-, 	i-e. 	.-, 	r."'" 	

ate, 'er.). • P=' 	,--- 0 	ate, 
c-, 	- 	0 	(..) rj 
'2..) 	'.--. 	0 

• 

:> 	!".• 	, 	0 	-7-3 3 	,,i„, 	, 	,., 
U 	.- 	--, 	-i 	-7,-; 

--c 	d 	.:_,. 
- 	- 	V;,-- 	rt G

en
er

a
l O

ve
rv

ie
w

  

-7.--, 	L- 

6 

..,' 

6) 	. 

J 

,-- 	, 	--7, 	, 
'. 	t: 

.0 

L.., 	,., 	:-,. 	,s 	0 

0 	(--1 	..--, 	--. 

.i..) 	- 	., 	,7.; 	.:_. 

	

t-- 	-.-' 	7 	C 	. 
is  

	

, 	1.) 	r-- 

	

> 	-7,, 	;.--  

	

, 	-,- 	, 	, 

	

'-) 	-- -;-.S... 	.1) 	--77 	,— 	.., 	.:, 

	

rz, 	r- T., 
'",.6 

	

-t 	- 	- 	, ,, 	.  

	

r--• 	 0 '''' 

	

'7' 	'.,-, 	•P 	,--. 

	

---= 	....t= — 

0 

	

CJ., 	, 

	

r-• 	. 0 	r-rJ 	''' 

, 

> , 0' ..,-, 

t 

..--.- 
-' -:, 

:,---, Li 	.7.; 
""-'   

--2, 	u 

-17, 	ll 

2,-) -,...,   

	

-■=3 	
r: 	,..... 	--.. 

CI 	kr, 

	

° 	rte- 	•■--.  

,.- 	„--.,- 

	

-,- 	u 	._ 	, 

	

f-' 	 4.--■ 	. ,-. 

	

ra 	■-3 	23 

	

CJ 	0 -7_1 

	

C 	 _,_,r, 	,1-, 

	

11 	
J

J 	,L) 

	

H-■ 	,--;--7: 	 U 	,:_,-' 

	

L., 	-E, 	:]3, 	't 	'-r 	.- 

-....71' 	. ,..„2 	_,.:„.ii 	u 	vD 	, 

	

r•-• 	..-/ 	. •,,,-• 	•• 	r-. 

	

"1.) 	,, 

	

V) 	...„ 	y 	° 	j_-_,) 	77., 

	

' '92 	'.,,, 	. C 	'-' 	'e2 	.-C-",  

7_, 	? 	6 	', 

7• 	''-2 	;".."1 

-- 	-, 	5-2. 
"'-'' 	''' 0 

`-' 
 

, 

:0  r r-- r ,,, PLI 	- •,--, _ c L ■ , --0 J r 	0 
. 'Z.' 	,-. 	g 	."D' S 	• 	r' 	' 4 _ - , 	,r, 	c, 	,-, 	,,.

▪  

', 	r

• 	

'7'7.1 	',-rj 	 ' - 	, t 	- 	' 	r-7-.; i--, 	! " - -  
7 2  't • "C 

> 	._ 	-..,-, ., ,_L,  '-', „ 	0 	ric ■ 1 . ) - . 7 . i cLL,  r, 	7--, 

' -7 'll _r:, 0  --,,  - 	--'4 - C ,-, r, 	_, 

	

..-, 	-'-'" 	, 	,... 	r 	 1.) 	 • 	'-, 	, - , 	....7.: 
.0., 5  

C..' .1 	?:, 	
"1..? 

0111 r - r 	
r-' ›, -i-2,,:,  i .=. 	5 -75 	CD 	,, 	 , .-,_ 	-,-.' 	 0- cx, 	--, 

. .-F-/ •-•:• 	-• 	r-  -10-• ,_ 	r- 	0 

- 	

--' L''' 	,•-• N 	4-, 

▪ 	

.. '-' 
.:.) r, 	• _, 	r- 	5,) 	,..'-' 	,-- 	c_-_, 	..,-=:, 
- :2:., 	-. 	,., 	r 	.•,,-, 

^ • -. --., .C.  _C  
'''' 	., 	,- 	bri 2 	Dili  -72,  

> :--, 	- -,-_, c, ,...., 7', 	-,-- , 
	 7; , c 	 .-'; — - x 	c., 	_ 

 .,,, 	 t̂^c ' a 	 J-. J .-- , 

	

r 	,.._, 	4--, 	:,..) 	• ', , L' 	- • - 	,...,- 	 .Z.; 
0 , ,-, , .,-,  

-: 	_ ''•_.' 

'-= 	•,, 0 
,Lr -" ,- ■ 

• •-• 	
0 1 :- 	..: 

	

7.1 	,-, 	■-• 	L-,-, ,,,. „....., 	•,,:!{, 	 C_-./ 	-r---- 	-' 	
' ' -' 	1 	1 	• 0' 	0 	cr '_ • 

'7,  'r -'' , @ P -C 	:•,,, 0 	, -,- ■-■ 
,-- 	u 	

0 ■ :_,-:: ',.f:; 	 ' - ,!, < H 	, , -r- 
r-  

•- 	

e 	
, 

__ 	,-- _ . > , 
 , - ---' - ,='•0 tr FL; • -c • - . ,,, ,_, -1,2  

...- c) 	;_-_,_ f._, 	I, 	,e. 	, 	,,- 	y 	 .1 	 ..., 	0 ... 	 .4-' 	■.", 
CO 

• 

e-, , ,C --C ,_) CL,-, .--:i 	%-- 
, 	;:.- 	. 	4.--. 	. . 	r77; 	t ._.,) 	0 	P-' 	,-. ..- ■ 	

, 	• t - 	-C , , 0 . Z, 
,-,..1 	 7'.• 	• ,. 	 . .7_,  

'-' ■ l'  ':-  
--,-, - 

,-.2 	i- 	, 	...... 	'J • -• 	r-• 	, 	 /-• 
1-- 

• _, 	„.„. 	', C -,'" ) :- -2: 	,45,:,  10  „. 	- , 	;•'..,2, 	9:, 	 , 	 , 
P-0 	 '7 	/" "-r.,  

1.-- 	-•-• 	- • 	'-. '7-21 	: 	rij 	'--• 	 r•-• 	•:71 	 7  
▪ '''  

• , 0r)-F-41  ',1-2, C c:,  

- 

, 2  .7, ,., ,_.) ▪ 0 f--  c  	-  	, 7,_ ) C". 3 
7 	5,- ,C-1 

E 2 .'-" T':' 	',-. ° 	u ---.4-,  .;.Q P,, 
t,,, ,,,, 	-,.) ,_. 	5  -7,-, 	p, 	 . ,-,2 ,_,- 

	

,

▪  

,ij 0 0 	0 ,r=: '._1 0  
".••_,• •--.0 0 = 	 4 rj•-•.„: (), 

O ' ' 	> • -. . rj 	0 	 , 	. 3 ----• 
0 	0, 	 ■•-■ 

	 7_,• 
• 1.0 	1-, 	•=, 	p 	, 	, 	-. -. , 	,-, 	'J .- 1 	.-2 '--- ■ 	0 

4 	,.:-:, 	.7., 	'-i.;-) 	';' 	e„, e" 6- 	
- 	u 	,...„ 	--_-2 ----, 	,- 	.,•-- 	r-•--,_  •-_.: 	1.1 	,..,., 

,..1z,, 	 ,-. --, 
Ca-, U 	:--, 	J..-:-.. '..-' — 	,..1J 	. - 	 '----'.-, 	'...., 

,-, 
-C 	,--, 

, 

T: u'
,--. 

' '''' 	•=1 
'3C. 

, ,

0 

-,--". 

	

J 	'--, 

• , = , 
r. 	'-L-, 	'-'. 

>, • , co 
r-  _a 

7, ''J  :-----, 

	

,-. 	4_, 
, , 0 !:_.' 

	

..c) 	--. 
j :--■ r 

'7.: U 
C-,  , 

• ,-- 	r_.. 
-4., 

_a 	, 	T;,.,.... 
 -,-, 

0 
4-.J 	'') ,--C ., 

. '2,12._) 4-4, A-- 

	

-0 ,-.0 	•77', 

	

0 ?-,, ":>:,, -- 
	er' = , 

,-', 
U ,:, , , 	 ■-. 	 ...-1-. 	..-■ 	 ,L) 	• 'll 	,..., 

	

r- 	 '7.• tr.) 	 2 -,-- 	;L, 	,-, 
 - ,c-,, _, u 	,,,,,, 

✓ 
	 •-

- 

• • 	
■-•    

	

:.---• c-  , 0 	-,' -0 

	

0 	
r-• 

,1.1 	•C• 	r.r. 	 r 	0 
r-. 	 - 	 -'-' 	''' 	' 	° 

, 	 r"C 	 . -. 	r ';: 	
,  ▪ U 

	

- 	
, 0 

..., 
O 03 	C,J 	, 	

'.1.) 	-1-, 	 r./-■ --7-:, < 	1.)  < 

:-, 	',>. 	 1.--, 	 11 	...z 
r-• 	,--. .-,,,, 	 L.., 	e 

''T 4  • - ' 	C '-'i 	
r-. 	,,,../ r•-• ...-, 	

-',71 .E c_.) .7?. 	-,.„,,, • ,;., 	73- , - i 
-> r,  

, T j 	p , , , 	,_, -E; 	. --■ ._,_, , — 	P '-'• - - d t.,-:..  
r-  : : r 

r ,

• 	

' 0 . _ 

	

_, 	r 	,-‘, . 

In
d
u

st
ry

  I
n

si
g

h
ts

  



....,La 	
'T.'-) 

ta 	 .,, 
t" 	

>... 

>.■ 	 >, 	 ri 	 :11 
 

..,_, 	 vs" 	 ..z-_-, 	:,:› 	 .-7.• 	 . ,7-' .=,: 	..7,: 	• '-.2 	...• 

5 	 o .,---, 	,- 	:?.„ 	,,,,r,  ; 0 	 - ., 	 --cc 
 z- 0  tri 	,_ 	o 	,:•,,c, 	 .4. -,-' 	c,-, 	

',:,-. 57_, 

u 0  , 

1 	
_ r-,, 	,...) 

 • -, 
e•2_,), r, 	 , 	

..z.) 	,..); 
4_, 	 CV -0 	— 

• -,, 	 7: 	•.'-' 	 ,-_,_, ,-7; 	 P 	"_:_•1 	 ,  
--, 	--; 0 	 L.) 	 . , 4•-• 	 —• , 0 

,d 

	

 -,- 	 >-.. 	 t..) 	,..7: 	,...,--.• 	- 	 ,-,-; •_•_ 	-4- 
u 	•-;+  

4--) 0 	 u  

077:4 	 ).,. 	 7,7 	
r-• 	NI 

...... 	 ..-. 	
f -. 

, 

''' 

) 

..-1 	 .--C 	 7:. 	 ,---• 	
',"■ 7-1 	

,-1, 	 .-. 	 ,t 
13 	 12, 	 V 	 ' 	 't , 	

• •-. -.4 
•I 	

0 	V 	 ,-. 	

.--. 

3  
,•-•• 	o 	

'711 

 

1-4 	 I -' 
• :-G 	 LL, 

' . 	
- 

1 	 .: 	 I,' 

1-, 	 I". 	 .0 	 .42,44  ;L.) 	 :D. 	 • ,-■ 	r...1 	0 	fr., 	 ...... 

:.-■ 	 —, 	 ....1 -..-, •—• 	0 	7.-- 	'-'-' _,.0 	tr.- 	 'r'.."' 

,0 	 e--Z ■-,.4,4 	 ..) -'-' 	0 	4--. 	•,' 	 -'2 	0 	 •- 
, ,... 	 , ---• 

• - • - 	 ',,-. , 	' 	 .•-• 	..-,  

, 	. J 	 .-.6' 	 LI-- 	0 	1.) 	■-,--1. , 
'1.) 	 .., U  I'. 	

. /-. 	,..,__, 	 . ,..., 	 74 
• , 	 , 	 r-.  ' 	 ,-4- 0 	

:'--. 
'-'"  

U 	' 	, : 	:15 	 •...-. 
0 	

CL.) d ,-, 
S 	

7-  CL) 	 , 	
< 

,>-.,-.- 	U 
,' 	

-.. 0._ !DO 	 -_, 

r: 	, 	 :' 	 c.) 	 -•••';_J 	. .,',1 	--a 	 .(:: 

" . •.-. 	,-, . ,..., 	.71 	 „0 	') 	r. ra 	0-1 	..-,..; .-", 	,t 	.., 
C.) ‘..---... 	,—.. 	 •---.. .-..-1 

4-4 	 '-. 	 •.-. 	0 	 . , 	 , •—•. 	 (-a 4-.  

,. 	 0 , ..-. 	 ' 	E 8  
0-, 

v ,_ ..„.„ 4_, 
`., ..---.  

V 	 ''') 	 .--. 	 ,,, .• ) 	 r•-. 	 04_, ,7... 	 r"' 	 ,  

I-'• 	 .-" 	
4-4 

0 0 	
•—■ N 

.-, 	• :::' 	
■-.. 	..., 

• • 	 .,-, 	 ....) 	 ..1.) ., 	Q, 	> 	„it° 	
k„) 

, 	I 	, 	CL, 70 tr) 	'77; 0 -'"" 	4-.■ 	 :1:' 

	

'-4-■ u 	:- 	, (-, 	o c-„, 
... 	,s1 	,." 	■ ':', 	' ..:, - 0 

	
- 

 

	

.,., c: 	.--, .- 	-, 
z,,,  

Ct, 	 rj e" • ..0 , 	P4 '7-3 	
, .-+ ...- ... ,-. 	IV 	7, 	0 ...,-. 	r' 	,-.. 	4-, 	4-, 	 , 	.-,-,. 0 

• •-•• •—■ 	,-• 	
.-.r.-, 	 .,.' 

4 6 	,.., _,--- >,.. ..,... U 
	:.._, 	

. 	_ r' ,t --CS ;--. 	, 
 c•-.: 	

' 1 

'., 	= ..... 	 0-, CI 	crj I. 	2 	z c 	 ,.., - c 	„,..., 	,  

	

chi 	g o 	 —  o I) <71  .*.) 
C 	1-, 	Si 	•,:i 	Q.) 	... 	,..) 	 '''' 	0 	CO 	0-..  '-• 	 7-> 

rd ,•_, 	,..., 	 1., 	r- 	 a".  (I, 	b.r) -0 	C--a. 	tr, -,..-_,. 	-,,,. 
..„-: ,,, 	z -77, 6 	1■1 r. 	 ,., 	; 0 t-4, 	. 9 , ° 	la  ,,,., 0 

b IT. ) ' . - ' . 7 ' 	0 _ , ; . - L-, .7, 	
• -, r 
r• ', •_4) 	, 

re: 	',-"t 	r, 	0 	 ,./, 	C..- 	bf) -,-,•1)  

	

,..,-• - 	0 	•••,) • -. 	' '-' 

■:.1 	''''' 	
, 	,.,,,-- 	, •-..., 

•....0 	---, 	4 	4-, 	,  
. - 	,- 	4•-• 	 ...) 	'-■i 	r--:  

. 0.V. • -, 	. ,: 	..... 	:__, 	17.■ 	-H.  

E."' '-', 	Z',it"  2-_,) 	0 K, 	
, --, 	,- . ..-,-- 	-- . '....) ,..-.: 	,,, 	0 	- 	,--, 	- 

 -, --. A 	- - '- 	 I--1 	 ,-.  

■ 	 ■ 	 A 	 ■ 	 ■ 	 ■ 	 ■ 	

, 

cn 4-• 
_C 

f _,_, ,„.... 	 (1.) 	,- 	-■ 	0  • - 
bip . :--_,. 	..., 	„„ --a 

,--1 	r,..) 	, 	u 	1.1..1 
,0 	 , , 

	

_.0 	
,- 	s, • -,_•-, — 
,-. 	,t 	 0 .---- 	,''-•' 	

. ,- 

.-•  .., 	r-,   

	

- r" 	.-•,J 
 ,1 	,,,.., 	....) 	4-,  V 	■ , 	 > 	.. , ' .. , 	,j., 	r.11 	;...,., 

,-. • 	„ , 	r.... 	. 	C.) 	0 	C":1' 	 r:: 	,.'",:, 	 0 ' 
U  > 

 
b„0 	,11 

	

,---, 	.7,., 	C,,, 	 0-, 	 0... 	 L' •:- 	7..7; 	„,  .,.,., 	ri 	H' 	 .1) 	r.., 	 ....■ 	 ...., 	• 	,--,i 	1:::,  
...-. -1-... 	4.. 	E 	' 	

0 

G'3 	2 	"'a 	'J 	 ;,j 4_, 	
':j 	. 

(D 	.)  > . ,--. 	„ 	r 	• , •,.. 	 '.1)  . 	 r.  ___,   	 ," -ra 
. ;Ll 	

ra 	r,2)_, --• --a . c.) 

C.-) 	',.t 	•:',..) 	1., 	U 	4-,  
U C.) U tO 	'-`- ■ '''' '-' 7 	 0 	 rr. '75 --I .. . 	

r S'  :4'. . t;--■ Lj  .75  

 r,   >•., 	 -".. 	> 	 .../ 	,,,, 	 ..-■ 	 5:-.- 	• ",---1 	F:1.,  

L.. 	,' 	 . ,--• 	 -0 '-. 	,.....7 	r.i 

	

--", „C 	—M '--F- -7  "; 1) 	
-, r. 

—, , ■.-1 4_, 	
. 0  • ••■•1 V ›... 	 '2 - 	 u - 	..%), --.., 

,., 	,-.,., 	..,..„ 	t.. 	- 	 - •- 	 0 	,, ,E 	c, . , 	- - - ._, 	...„., -i __. ,_ 	, .: 	bri .., -7.-..., 	0 ;... 	r. 	4-, 	 re. 	 '•••' 

	

I-. V 	
-, •-1-.  

V I) 	 .-' r-7.1 
,., 	::-.. (--  

.._, 	L.) 	c:., 	)-. 	•'-. 	1., 7-- 	...... 	..... 	, 	 ...-7: 	0 - 	r.1 	0 	6 
• _ 	- _ - , 
0 	r• 0 H 	 , , 	 'E. ;,-4 	

, ,.._, 
(-. 	 .--.' 	 •-. 	 ,, 	 •-•-ti 	V 	. •- •.--. 	 0 	 .7.- 	 ,A . • . ,  ,. 	 9_, r. .42, _, f•-. 	0 	,-) _C 	,-- 	Q.) 	 f:-•_..... 	," 	 ...._. 	, 	4 , 	e- 	-, 

-,--• ..,__, 	r:- 	 = 	 2 	, 	u 	 •:a) -1= • -  
-;..-', "a 	r. 	>, 	.7... 	 - 	'-' 	' 7 	 ',./ 	• 	 ,,22. 	..-. 	'1.) 	, 	,..., 

'11 	 or , 	 ."' 	-' 	 r" , ;.., 	rS 	7 	S.. 	,...., .

::"..4 
 ..-■ 	, . 	 , , 	y.-, 

U 	. 	1-.1 	r^ 	, • ■,-1 	CL) 	C 

c., 	 (- 	 ..,- 	 r -. 	 '.1) 
 

0 2 ,.:., r.  p 
0-- 	 '-' 	'1) 	' 	-- 	.--. 	 .■ 	 :-... 	 „, • 	 . , 	 ,-.. 

,,,  

	

. 	 -E ."--1 It  ,_,) 
C:, tr)  11$ 	',='{-') 2 	-.̀,'' .=.. 	o 	

,,,. - :._ _ u <u z - .., 0 

IA 	 r- 
,3-) . - 	5:: 	,-, 	, 	r 	..., 	• , 	,--1-, :.-■ •"-, 	r.-. ,-.... 	-,..., 	r'' 	-:-.■ 	̂.' 	 "--:' 	,7 4-,  

ce 	- 
ca_, 	

,,, .t: 	•„• -,,,, 
;I, -_ 	„, 	c, 

 • .-- 	,- E. 	-...„t 	- .7...,  _ s_e 	
, 	,,,, •— 
C.1  or 

 
'...r) 	. 	 .' 

 
,_.,1 

DI 	
V> 	- 	 0 

 ,-.,' 	.. 	
-- 	L-2, c,,, 

:-,. 	
. 	:__,  L.:-■ 	c.%) 	,-7, 	0 

,... 	L., 	J,..., 	L., 

	

,-4 ,:n 	„ c.: - , ;_..- 	- - - 	J ..., 	 , 	v 	C:., 	C  '  '0 	, 	.=■ 	r' 	' -' 	.--,- '.:- ■ 	 -' 	"  • -, -C 	.....; 	L.) 4 -• , ...i -'=': 7-3 0 	. 	...! H. 	(." 	" 	, 	!-- ,-, 	 r.,'  ;-„,.. 	.,-, 	 '—' 	tir) 	0 Cn 	, ''
"-7-; " 

ca., _,  
:: ., 1 . Z: , > , 	

-, ,71 ■.--. 	
* 

a J r 	■--L,'  
CIO 	VD 	

Ia. 	r,   
E 0 	✓ >. 	,,,, - 

	

rr 	..-, 	, 	
r,.L7:: r" 	 t" 	r.  

	

71 	..-, e 	a 	F'.  '0 	,... r" 0 -71 	-",„ , 	

,-■ 
	

J
O 0 " 0 ✓ 

Ill r, 	1..) 	blD 	--.• 	'-■ '':' 	C-7, 	•,..2. 	>, 

 
....1 	r.-1 	-. 	,..., 	:_, 	s-• 	._.) 	,-_: 

,-, O  __,6-. 	r-- --: . 	. 	%.4 	' ,6-* L,,,,  lz- ,3  ,_, , 	,--, 0 J 	a 	;-7  	 ,. 	.,.,,,_ , :,-, 	,c., 	r4 ■-■ = . 	CS' 	O_ . 0 	•.:3-I 	> 	,..  •_, 	, 	.,-,,, 
■■■ 	e--1 	11-* 	L.) 	.,., 	...?_, 1:1 	',I% 

-., 	tv., ..„--, .--C, 	C.)  
.... 	.---.. 	,.... 	-L-i 

CD 	'7; 
," 	0 ".-0 .> '-' 	 0, 0 ..j 	 b ,„..rt 	.() 	T •••■ 	 :7_,, 	 '71 	 ■—■ 	 •-- 	 e- 

P., ,-. 	 r7 	-5)' 	- -, 	r-. 	4.--• 	,- 	:.„ 	 11 	> 	,.., 	0-, 	..l ..,..-, rrj 	,_.., 	0   
•F, 	<1.) 	 ;....: 	--- 	,t, 	',U 	 r.1 
() 	1-1. 	is 	 • 	 (L) C:.) r7 	4 

c2_, r-' u 	17. 	• 	• 	• 	 0 	• 

,-L-• 	 C., 	 :77-:, 	 'Z., 	 C..,  
•■■■ -LI 	

,-I 

0 
C., 

F - 	_I:, 	 i, -a 
.1--I 	CO 	0 	 ,. 	,ai 	. ,--. 	 ... 	4... 	 CC: 	, 	

c 
a  ,s, 	0., 	 •--■ 	 I) 

7-.-1 •-"-' 	,ri . !I-2. 	bo 	„... . 	 ::,,  
:,-, ,- - 	 v .- 

,.‘, 	 • - 	,- 	,-• 	,1„, 	u 	 --c, 	q, 
- - --_, 76  

.- , 	- = . - • _ Ez 2 	- 	,.--- 	 -.•  c..., 	 ,-,.., 	.•__, 	,•,:„ 	. 7.  

blO ,-.  

,--! 

. --' 

c) 
-IT, 

,t...■ 

9 

,1) 
.,, 

..,.., 

'L' 

: 
%:.1 

- 

,-,  

to 

>, 
,, 
tn 

-0 



0 
(,) 

-c 

In
d
u

st
ry

  I
n

s
ig

h
ts

  



M
A

N
U

F
A

C
T

U
R 

.0 m 'To 
o 

zn1  3 

I:LIo 
-a 	,n Cr 

 

-  '4' .71 
rts E 

rt; to 0 
V1  L E 

E S  fi 
 

N 
 

0 0 N 
(1) 

0  al  > •- 
U 

QJ 

U 

113 	
(13 4./ 

L- 	QS 

E 
0  _o 

C 
C) 
E 

C)  

0 

"TOft  
U)  

-c 

4- 

Tr
a

d
e  

C
re

d
it

  R
is

k 

C 
'ci 
-c 
t.) 

0  
n. 

--, 

> 	74 ,-- 	-,1., 
('4.4 	> 	.4, 

•-LO 	•-• p 
0 	̀,-?-• 	''-' ;-•- 
, c 0 ,-, ,•:, 	,~: 	•-. -L, ,--• 
-..=•-•... 	',_i 	'-' 
ci  ,-. 	L.) 	Cs,  
..., 	el) 
Cr , %- ■ 
11 	,o 

r-■ 7-   - 0 ,- ■ 
(1-+ -r = C.J 	-.. 1-, 	cr, 4--,  ,-5 	cl 	4--,  , --, 	-, 

, ti.0 '-, 
r , 0 

Z  0 

n 

r 

' , -0 

,, 

	 ' -, 	4--.  

0   ,-, 	,-, I:14  ,.., 	.-7'. 
7-, 	0 	••, ,.- 

, 0 , ,-7 

11 	"-- ..7L-. 
, 

0 4-7 TO 

..1) 
 

.. @ 

Ca 	T 
I) 	C-1 
, U 
S, 

..71 	■-■ 

Ce 	r .0 r 
.P 	

-,  

-, 
0 ,....: 

„-. 	@ C2' @ 4-,  

	

, 	-,./ 
'I' 	Q.) 	

, 
,,_ 	H ■73 	 ---, 	i 	. , -4 	,2L- 	'''d 

1--, 	,__Hfl 	H 	;, ,--,-F - SA @ > 'Y -,-, r. ,-.■ c.: -, _c  

	

--_, , 	,•- ,- vl, -='• 	- - — .._. 	- Jto 	
r•-,, 

,-,-• • - 	r  , 	bo __-: 	••., -. -- C) 
,,-2 --' -r--..."H 	,'=,' . -F3 	0 	',..,1 	:n 

"7- 	8 ._, 	0 	-,) 	0 	i...,, 
 U" u t..L.- c=,, ,- - .„., .',.., 	,.4 c 	..,,  - ,- ...7... _ ,...--- 	, .- 	',--1 	71.,  — 	or - ' 

...., 
, 0 

. ,-:., 	1 -• 	.---i 	4-' 	.v.r: 	.... 	t•■ .., .... 	• 	, 	, 	,,..' c,..; 	,, 	4-,  .--7:, 	;..-3 ,c 	i-_2 
•-44 	7, 	,-zt 	'--  

_-1)  . 	.4 

	

,--- 	(_, 0 --,- J 	0 7.-',,, ,--, r 

• H  > r.i ,,.' A, i... 	,. , 
	0 

	Vti '''-'' 	,.., ,- 	r-, 	r 	7.-, 
t''• 	'''' ,-.0 	'-' 	0 	;3 	b r, , :•-, •-• r7•  ,,,, 	.„, 	• 	,, ---,-• 	, 
U,_ 	6 	•,-, 	4-,,...„ 	,c• 	0_, •---. 	6. 

4-, 	0 	'" 	1.) .., 	,,, 	 /1) 7.■ r P. 	
V  ,,-• 	, '72) > 4-, 	@ 	r''' 	.1' 	1.1 	,1) 	:1.) 

C., 0 CL) 	;V 	,..r 
,,,., 	. 	,.... 

	

0 r) 	
1) , 0 	,- 4.-, ,--, 

4-' 1-' 	;(■ 	 r. r., r,2,-.  	
''' ,-, ›, 5 .5.) 0

OJ ' . T4 
J ..-= . ;7-1 ,__C 	6  

'''') '7) u> 	 '.., ,...,) >,,. C) 	rj 	'• ,t u .;,... 	✓ -, 4-,  :7 7-7_ ,.. 	 - CrA,  
cj 	 ,-. 	r 	77; 	3.---  ... 

,_. 	71.) 	ck,' 	C) 
0. .-7-, 	71, — 0 7- 0 , -. 

r .  '7-,  ' c7; r,'7:7-i  '-'=" 	I/ . .0 -:, 
Zi.) 	

■-■ 	 n. 	,..7 ., 	:__, ---. 	-,.7.,  
(7.) li to r__, 0 -,  ,-. 	.._; :•_. -7-_,  5 0 ., 4...+ .r.. 	

0 U e, 	J 
^ 	i^1 	:..-. 	,  C' 1 	 0 

P ri' q) 

, '•-•-• 	V) 	, 	:1 	., ,-., 	.--1 	 ■7-: 	0. 0,f 	--, • --, 
-0 	0 	 sr, '11 

-C Cli ,ri '" 	r 
> u 

4-' tic) _,0 'p 
'..., s.,-4 	.,., 

''.. 	.1) 	raj 

	

S-I 	 ,- 	>  1.-) 	' 	0 	,-,-, ,,_, 
•:-- 	.:.--, — 	0-, 4. 

	

,-, tip vp 	, -• ,=., ___ — -, 	• - .-, 	p 	co 	 (---.4 	r.,-4 	.>.-- ,.,., 	 -. ' 	Li 	 ,-, 
. CD 	4--, 	'' 

 
• r 

	

tr, _11,s !DO . 	,-• ,- 	• . 	,a) I,  -'... 741 	 0 r 

	

0 f0 	 -!-_,  
0 	r:,' 	Cs( 	Co 	,a.) 	-•..' 	>, 	- =2  .___n E -',On' ',"il :."-, P ---0 C---0 	77.• 

>, 
:.-■ ,-.= 7:1  
pCl trj 0 , 	

r sr2 
0 ,--, 	 ,.._; <-. 	c..7.; 	qj 

	

(-- 	0 r 	r-, 	-, 	--;;) 	 , .  
• 4-,  SA 	7° 	 V _sfl ,-, 0) „ 	— - - _c-, - 	,-..--, 0) 	-0 	a) t.-.0 0) „ , 	6 •- 	,.... 6 

',:-• 	u 	 (...-• 
H' H  "1.1 

70)0 ..-. .- ,__, (t) .-- ■ -6-,  

,-,,9 	'Y 	1 ,„ ,,,, 

	

, 9 	 s, r^ U 
,__. U CJ -T '-'73 I) 	 e;y 

 ,,,, ,-
■ e--' 	 rj 

1.1 
	C. tr., , '-' 	P 	 6 	•,_-_,. r77 	7-, 	n' 

. .772. 	i- 	0 	 ...•ff:', 	,.is' 

	

4.-:-'  ;'-' 	 , Sr, 

:, 	r: 	s' 	-'-' 	7: 	 •-' 

	

 0 , 	 r, '1. 
= ^ ..) 0, 5: 	

.-0 ,. 
, TN -' -, 

tA 	 U H 	 Ti ‘1-1 
• ̂  	

'4) 	C'7P3' 	
'-4--, 

0 ,,,, 

r-7  >
,. 	:,-, 
0 CI ''.■̀" 

„__.'C" .--7:1 

	

brj r 	0  
0' CJ ti 0 • 0 	 o _2 , c.) 

	

-- 	4-, 
tin ,. Hi ..1 H ,---, , 
Ct: @ 

	

0 	SA. ,__, 	■-■:, 	■-i 	..., 
.-., 	 . --, 	. 	C.1 

. '..) 	,-, '77r, '. '' .-4- •  .--6-i' 	
.nr_ 
 r.■ 	0 	C•=1  0 L., 	'DO 	. ':-'2 	 0 '■7-: >,  

,., 0 , , s•-■ , 

	

.'-) 	,.n ,..— 	 ,.., 	r 

,-, 0 r,. o ,....r, 6 , 	.— -4-_,- -• 
,-- 	1-, 	- 	---, .-- - .---- ,:t --7.-, 

_0 r_ 
,-- 	.., --- 	0 , • - , 	•-, 

L.,  
..,, 

,.../ 	 5 	,." 	L) 	.-... 
,....., 	,.., 	, 	. , 

.4-,  
•-■ 

: ribl) ._,,>.' ,. 
,.., 

	

()_,0 - ,. 	0  ..,.) 
-• 0_, -.4, 	, 0  
4-,  L) 4-, -7 	

...., 
0  '7.  0 

9- 0  

b0 

,.., " 1..., 	,,=: 	8 	,t.c., u-' ,-, 	. 	-, .,.- „_, 	„„, u 	3- ,f. 	 - 	- 	_,,,, '--0 1., 	2-2 	t.,13 ,-,--' 	1, 	, 	0 	,- 
: 1 . 1 	,T.,' 

0 (30 .5 't '77-; E-,  -0 
u , ,-, ,..., V) 	

t • 'g , 
•D•o 	 ,t.o • 	,s' _7, ,-. 	

0 , 

o P ,,, „1, 	,_.• , 
-•-• .o 	0-) 	• - 	, 	,,, .77.,  
,.., 	,.-4 	 > 	P 	•-• 	0 _ 	- 	>, •,.. 	- ,;_-_,• •-, 0 	0_,  0 	r , ,.s.."' 

'-', ¢ 	,-.., ..... 	,J , !C  , 	- ,L, 	,1, 	rt 	• 	e-' 	r. ,-) 
, 	'.7-: 	. ' ,-, . -4 

,71 , CI. = 	• -. , , 
'',.' 	''' 

-0  — .- • - 	.., 	'11 	 1.1 
, 	,,,E.:o  i'. ,''' 	, 

_..,  ,74  11 _0- 	,-.1 '1) , ....-•■ 	 .., 	.,,,c, 	...  
,f4 	• ;.,. 	 ,," 	,.. — ,0 _•,4 ,,L, • 	-, s 

, , 	C . -. '., 	, 	,.., 
,..-- 	. ,4 	>  V GO .-4 .,:, , .--, 0) H 

u — 	. 	'...) 	;_j_,  
''' 	r.' 	• •-• 

<7; P o E.' , ,..• ..1, • - 	, P 	'-' 	_.) -" _c 6 c• , 	,.... 	.,, 	-,• :65 	
.6 	:... 	_,_, 
o , o - 0 ,,,*- •-;._ 5  , -- 	,, .- - 

	
, 	, --_,, •,.,3 .....• 	v,-,z-T, _c 	-,-• 	1.) -6, 

l-6-■ 	 -.—. 	>, .,.--.' 	r,7_: 	q.) 	 4_, 
,,, 

5 P -o ,-' 	• ---, 	;7•., 	>_. O 	 o _c • - 	oz.,  U ,=': .,?, ,`,.,' 	,...., 	'ril 	,r 	r■ 
•-.I ■ 	Jr; c,3 4-'. 	r- 	'-' 

_ 'I7 ''.-' 	0 	,. 	, 	, . --, 

'r--:  

H '--4  a-,  • - 6.) 1_, 0 	-,r-,  , d L.1 .-17j ' 	,..../ 	■-•. 
, 	,.__,••-•-• 	i.,L.  

P-TJ 	' 	c.. : 	■ :.. .1 	-. . ' ■  	. ■ 11  

'  	
, 	...-, 	• 	, 
CO 	0..) 
	✓ 

;47, p - -.,:. -3. -c, _ , - 	, 

-ri r'' , 0 ,u S{ 
UCD 	'1.) 	0 • :7_,■ -4-, 	0 	0 

..- 	'.- U 	rl 1- 	'-'° ..  -C.  r 
GO ,J 0 '--n c4, 

ti) -,-' 	•J 	r 	,,-' 	C.) 	C 	,,,,.) 	r > ., r - —, 
0-, __,-. ,,,, 	,._, r  , 	(1) 

"--,  P
ro

du
c

t  
R

ec
a

ll 

co
n

tin
ue

.  

C
ar

g
o/

S
to

ck
 T

hr
ou

g
hp

ut
  

In
d

u
st

ry
  I

n
s

ig
h
ts

  



'1 
 ,-. ,, qz 

• .7 --r. 

	

q-N, 	 17,.• 'Li = 
..... JJ 	 ■ 	 "7:0, 	1C.I.L1 "ra  V 

V:. 	 t7  
. 

 ...J... 	
.= ,, ; 

	

-.., z: ---; 	P 	,_... 
,./..  
.c.• 	=.: 	1.; 	,—. 	,..... 	 -.; —.:., 	;1„, 	...., 

''.1.) 	 LI 	,-- 	1— 	 ■^7:: .— 	 — '—.J. "7-. 	 — 	 r Z.  --. " 1—  77—i 	r 	' ,—  .—+ ,   
...-.4 	 r- 

'.a 	 LA  4 .., 	 6-1A-■  ....." 	 .44- 	 ." 

.4.4.4. 	 ''.4 	LI  "1' 	-.4. 	I■P V  .  P.'  f•--,•■ 	
-  .- 

.., 	r-  -  , 	:7, -I- 	 • 	̂7. r, 	 ,.- 

Co 	 .-.  4.-  't.r.. --;.0—  E 
.t 
	F 	r  'I., 'a' 	.  - 

,;-,,f, IZ =  2-.•  ..- 	 .  - ...., 	
Z 	t....k., ',7::, 	 .- 

,-, r-- 	 L-. 	- .  - 	,-..' 	- 

	

1.-  • 	
4.... 	,, 	:.-._ r 	 I- 

G 0 t " 	
f 	

.= 

r,  d.—... 	 LJ 
,..t 	 r.?  .=, 	tr. 	,....r. • WM. 	1 ,  al-■ 	.-••••• 	0 	 •■■ 	 7.4 	 6.. 
:-• r c , 	 s..  G 11 	 .a".. > 

CL. r-' 1-' 	" 	.".' +"•• 

	

. .  -•^-,  r  ,... r...., 	'...i 	" 	C-J  .  .- 	 ' 	

--- 

'-■ 	 r• 	 ,..  .,,_d. 	4-1 C. c,_. 
t 0
t. 

cr;  .  "-- v; —I *,;-, 
:J -,,,,,,—.— U 	,_ 	•.,  'f...4 la  fl  _ 

.M 0  	̀-' 	= 	 v.. 

	

v. 	:=1 	
■,.., 

e- ^
..jp 17 

1:: 	,.. 	"•A 	 '.1). r.: 	 r. 	••J  •  -, 	!_,,, 	.17 	a..  
..-.■ qv  •  4='_ 	,_ r 	 .-.  .  = 	„f• ,.".  '  •,.= .,../ 

V ..0  6,1 	tr' CI= 7=1  = 

	

U  = C 	 L 
.-44.  CI.. 	1■1  , 	 ' 	 r- ,...:-..;  V 	a,-. •-• V".  r r 4-,  ,-  • ■-• 

. 

	

...zi 	 .L 

d" P...4 	7,  	.....-. 
'`7 `.... v 	it ,..J 

	

Ai-. 	

I.: 	.4  
= 1.0 	4-■ 

t) 1-' 

^1, 	
,"..1 	r•-• 

	

r 	
..-• 

	

.6  it 	 ,/-  '  •- 1 , = 
.= .— 	...... 	

..— .  "-= •= _.—... 
P EL4 ,L. 

	 e.-  

W.. '.. j 	0" f.
■4' L 1:11 	'Li .44. 	 47: 	.A,' 

	

...,". 	',J 	I.L._. 	,-) 	I.-. 	.1-• 
r- 	r- 	-." 	....• 	...; 	--" 	 1-. 	/- ..-■ 	, 	

a-• 

S-- 

"-: 	 •:' 	
•., 	'Jr 

1 	
--. = '_,, 	'Jr 	■-• 	•-; 

'_, 	'77  .  :.• 	-, 	

,- .1,...• 	,--; 
L 	

4.-..... 

..-m. 

	

"4"4 	1-4, 	..... (11) 	.r.) = 
...7...... 	,..,—. 	,_.SIXJ 	1-1 

SI  - 

	

.....• 	

:- 
$- 1 	•...-• 

..,, .*
. 

1/. 	,..., 	
'-.. 	.'- =■ .■,..= 

rt r... 	E...  . 
..  ■•■•• 	7.... 	. 	 I.■ 	,.. 

r- 	 ■-. 	
■,. 	 •-■ 

..- C 	!;.•• -.-. 
.•••• 	

........  • 	 • .-, 

i•-.- 	,e, 	"-. 

CO 	r 0..D.rj .... 	,-.. 
.1...• 	• 	 ..... 	'7ri  •  =, 7...... 	2. 	.._, 	0  

:-.,...  ..,L 	4" 	 •••■ 

U 	L •■‘ 	

...'. '14.  r-•• 
r-  -. 	-  ^ .C.  " •16.4 L 	

CO- 
... j 

47, J.  L.  ir I . 	'1■•.,  c 	'V 	....  '  ... ,..0  1.-• 

• ._. _.-_-• , -z; ,-.1 = 	t.-Ar-, = 	..-... 	,- 	"  •  .,14.1 1-...' 	
."?.  C. 	 .7.7  .  -.  .. 

	

;:;.■ 3-: ..' 	.." 	70. 
o- ..m. 	

-I-• W. 77 4-• .._ ■- 

■,- 	 C. 	 "... 	.0 	 1■.• 	 ■■• 	.7.1 	Cp 	.•••• 

n ,7: ,:'. 

- r- 

r;, 0   

	

:- 	i-  a 
..., 	 ,. 

	

f, d 	 =4 • 

CU .- .-■•• .-.... •-,1 	>  0  
p;-- - 	 rp 	i i Fa -]    , 

1 v-- c, 
-• s_.. 	• 	 • 	• 	 • 

n
d

u
st

r  
In

s
ig

  i
s
  



3 

)
}
  H

o
w

  U
S

I C
an

  H
e

lp
  

0 
S 

V 
L... 'J 

>-.. 	0 

• bj_j

. - 
• ,_,.. 

✓ V C 
L-,,, r, ,,,,, 

tf; r r :-.. 

0 
--. 

C.',) , V> 
r  

J V ..-, 	

• 

r ,- 

CO 
	:C. 

,' 	4-, > ;,- 
CO 	0 > 

	' 
.--- 	 0  C  

>.-. 	7-; 	>, ..... 

C.)..--.  
-C.) 

L)  
, '-- 
✓ 0 7 

 r  

7 	W.) r 

r-_,__, ..... 
r, 	-.-. 

' '''=" 	r 	., 	L.>. 
•_-!  
5 r" ,-; 	.-- 

rj  
'.-2, 	C) 	u 

GC 

• 

7.1 	.....,  

• CL  
U 

il 

0 

0 
CJ 
bip 

'17) 

0 

C.) 

is 
0 

0 

J.) 

0 

6 
-, 

(1) 

C-) 
: 

;IC 

CR, 
4-, 

• 

CJ 

7=3 

■ 

• 

74-4-t 

„,4 

• 
4-cs 
r-
CJ 

CJ 

• 

O 

P 
:6-7: 

0 

. 

■ 

"CS • 
it 	...I. 
elk 

—0 

4..47t 

va'• -.v 
• L441 

TS T 

a., 
.0  

44. 

C.) 

4-,  

-C 
4-, 

4-, 
ti 
r•I) 

4-, 	CL 
1.) 
U 

"73 

C) 

r7.1 
U L 

C.) 

S. 

0 

U 

■ 

0 
U 

U 

is 

r-,  

S 
'7d 

• 
0 

773 

0 

• 

• 

(L) 
4-, 

0 

0 

1, 
) 

L4-  

(Th 

CL 

0 

C) 

■ 

V 

P
an

d
e

m
ic

  E
ff

ec
ts

  

CL 

0 

U 

S 

0 
4-, 

Cr: 

r- 
e` 

• 3 

t-•  

CL) 

U 

Cri 

U 

0 



S
 an

d
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 

0 

.14 

or o 

bo 

H
E

A
L

T
H

C
A

R
E

 
C) 

L-8  , 
,,..i 

	

 
b 	

, 
, 0 o 

	

,, 	 r 	- 4 
,./. 	,' 	y 	 'r 	.----  

4.--,  

	

2-) 	 0 7,^ 	 r ,--: 
▪ > 	 --7,  u U 	r ,--, -4 - 
✓ 4 , 	3 	 .•,-■ ,7-7 ' 

,--, 	.., 7-1 	 7-1 	-,:i 	r 

	

U 	
U 	

.C..) 	Ct■ :.,i,  _ 0— , 1 , 
J r 	F 	, 	2- .,_  4., 	.-., 

v 

 :__,  
,'. 	F:  ,,,,,-.., 	,..,._, ,___.,, 	4_, 	-1-.■ 

O .r.--  . 	
U 
..ai . 	 r-, 	

—
N 	,..) 

'-"" 	Ci >,: 	 -'7:' 	-. 

	

-r 
	1, 

"I) 	 :5 , • r -1 .4_, 	„ 

	

C.., ,__, 	 , 	-1 	'-• , 	-- 	r 	;.---, .'''''' 
, 	: . 	-

-.t 	'7,. 	'., J 
.1_, 	 , --C1 	• -. .--,- 	'-'-. 	',.1 	'-' 
,--. 
:11 

• 	

. v: 	 ,-, '-"r-ri 	p .0 — 	r 	, 	.-• 	cL, 	r., 	.L_..- 	,7,1•:2, 

	

-0 
z 

4-,  ' 	 0 r , u 	 u 	r , r .-"•-• 	,V; , ,--,) • , • 	' - ' , - ' -Le 	

• 	

•-•-• -• 	-1-..• 
e . 	''.-, 	 ,i) 	'1-, 	• .-' 

r-•• 	,--, 
7 

 W 	

1) 

: 	 ,DID 0. 	C.) , 

0>''  --•-474  ') -.. 

-,--• 	0 

	

, 	 -I-, 	... 
'--4-.-. ',__, 	r-' -I-,  
3 	1:5 0 	'.L.1 

, CD '' 	 , 	U  

C,-.■ 	 .7.-,±4 --'-j 	'-' 
;.• 0 	-,-,

- 

• r-• 	--• 	,- 	r--• 	r•-• _,-- 
r-' 

	 'J 
 r - , 	, 	 ,,, 	,.., 	CL.)  C.) 	: - - - : 	-.:;,' 	--. 	,..1 	',J 	L1.4 	-, 	— 

-0 	U 	 r- 

r-• 	--C 5 ' : ',---2 	 4-, 0 0 
> r 1..) - 	 r  -.4 	I) O 4.• 	L--, 	Cl..) 	 --, 	V 	r'i 	r, 	C-1 	',.,..., br., 	ID C-1-,  '.=' 	._ 	'.   ;--.; 0 .--. 

..-1 
(-) 	1.-4 	0 	 CJ 'r.'-- 	 4 ■ 	 C.) 	1,?-4'D  6 	(, 

Cd 	, 	,r: 
C2'-' 	,7) 	c_j__4  - 	i--4-■ 	5,1 	C.,-,  

O 

- 

	r r., , 	 C 	C.,-) 

-7-2,. 7 	"---  
-C 

< 	--/ 

▪  

7 _,_,  5 3-.: 	0 r a- 	r,r -,-, 

	

r.) .Lt, 	••---' 
".. 4-0 •-; 0 , , a 

— C: '-' , 
--:-. 	,.,,-- 	,.r. 	:...J 

-.. 4 	Ci 	u ^-.4 	''' • • U

• 

r r '"•, 	 --, 
U 	>. 	 . ,C, 	Y:4) 	,C-,• 	r., 	,"•. 

,,,_, 	, 	•.7.,' 	(‘) 	,:- 
,...L, 	cd 

0 

 

U 	 '.- ▪ ,,,, 
, 	r̂ 1  O --. 	L-: 	' --, -C 	 :-. --C 	,,-, 	r"-. 	+:_-_: ._■ , •-■-■ 	 ',t 

X 44:' ,-, -- 

,- 	0 ...., 	— ,... 	,-,_: 	.- 	'.Z.-- 	,L.7.: 	1.1 	0 a.) 	,- 	0 	;..'d 
, 0 el.)  -C 0 

	

_,... — 	'L) 	U ,0-.., ' 

	

t,0 tr.,. 	r  
-u 	r C 	̀.:5 0 

 
. ;=1  	_z_.., 	-C 	•1_, 	•-r-',  0 7- 	 0 	> '-'• 

✓ 1.4 	,=-Lj 	,•:4 
cf,..., -•'' 	.=-+ 	2, 	- 	'3 —,— 

	

, 	,. 	, ..., 	—„, 	,.. , ,L, ,-... 	i.' ,.., 	— 	, 	...>CJ,.,,,, — ,,.., 	,-,-,-. 

	

_, 	, 	,..,  „. 	 ,e_. 	--„,.. e-, 	TU 'V • 	 0  '-r  a Si CL- 
_2, -0 r '-' 

, 	

r 
, 0 

ci 	.6 	 ,7:,' 	'-'-'4-. 
1) 	 .- 

	1

-,-1 
- , - , 	' : ■ 	 , '.-7.; 	H 	

0 ." 
`,., 

"v. 	, 	:-I 

	

r"7:: Fa 	,v, •t 	H' 	G-1 'r,  
7'1:2 7.1 r ■-, 0  

.4- ' 	,'-_-' 

• 	

,7_, 	'-' 
,_,E, 	c.,- 	;-:, 	-■-, 

cs bij ?.., 

P., 0 7' ra, 

✓  
7- 

--' 	c__•1_, , 

— , r,  '-' ° 0
  H

o
w

  U
S

I C
an

  H
e

lp
  In

d
u

st
ry

  I
n

si
g

h
ts

  U
S

',  

,-, 
:-..r.) 
::_ ,'" 

— . U 
,,LL_ 

1-=' 

--,,i 
c7.; 
r ,-4-- 
,  'n 

(L5--- 

:,:;, 

__, 	, 	o' 
t,,C, 	1", 
0 	,:,.., 	,- 

r 
.--C --74 	0 

4_, 	y_4  
br4 •-..., p 	,,:-., 	,,L, 

'--14, 	I .--'  

0 
, 
G 

ru".) 

r 

-0  

0 



C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 

-0 	 ::•,* 

	

c,... - 	 C) 	,... 

	

v) .---1 	 _0 ‘-, 
,-. 	 -- ,, 	 -0 	=. 

:_.. 	c,., 	J Y 
.0 	 4_, - • - 	, 

•- 	 -. 	w - 	...., , 	..., ... 	. p _ 	e 	.,.... 

	

V >,.. ''t 'V ' 7i 	`P-. a.) ■.) '7■72' 	 Cr: 1.7 
.4.--' 

r1 •:,- 	 7. 	 . 
b....., 0„  ,..■6...  

.,, .. 	..., 	U 	>-• c;,, 
'74 	g=,- 	C'a 

	,,., -. .-.) 	-..,  ....., 	.:.... 	 U 	•  
1J (...) 	0 -■-+ 	 n .--. 	•-. 	C.) 

	

.":7' 	 -0 	 u 

	

6 r 5?•,0  :„..n  Ff. 	::-.. rj 0 ,_.0 
, • r" rJ (.1 .--t • - .7.-_, C) 	 -7.; 	' 0 	r 	 F,' 

■-• 	0 . 0 
_.0 u ,-.7 777= 1.74' 0 	co o_, _.L.4 0 	3 o_ ?... o = 	..., ..• 

-•,..•  .,_,Q) 	> 	• 1.) 

	

bl:, JE; t;-4  ° 	 .F., ...7 -0 0 

	

, 	 0 
-21 or,  0 .z4- .= 	,.--z a. 2 

,--. 	a 	•..... 	--,....-• 	0 	c,,, 	1....,, 	- 	.:-_-2 	tr) u 	•:..) L.. 	--  .- 	0 L., 	 4 	r. ,-, 	 0 ,..A..I .0 J-.■ r ) 0.o r c.) al! 	n n 	 :1 	= 	.-14 r..1 

 

- 	,..1 ...../ 	 rs.J 	••.,. • '11 	-,., 	: 	,- • ,Li- 	1-.. - ,,,., 	u , 	- 	 .•-•., , 	o -, . 

	

a - - --cs r.,.• 	 . 3- 	-0 7-4.,  
■0 3-t 

 

4-,*.  T f. 	._, ..,), 
e 	, 	'.. 	

.....) J., 
C., 	e. 	.-) 	F.) , •-• 	

, > 	0,1 (.... 
0 ."J ,... 

.-.0 ..j • ,,,.5 
... 

 

	

e.2. 
	.-0 

	

0 t0 Y.-I V E 	C.) .--' 	 • --; 	.... 	 '-' ....G .,_,•-• 	- en ',0 	 --n 	0.) 	': 	
n 

 r-L 	:.: ," . 7:2' ''' 	 -r..5 	CI 
0 	J 	0..) 7 	 . j  ...IL 	e 	 ..., 	0! 	,." ' n.- n u 	 :75 • - ,  	..__,  	u ra 	. 7, 	 _., 	rt .--■ 0 

	

,-, •-. 1.) rn, 4-, 	 ›, , top 0 	,- -1  . t.• 	 --. c.- 
4.--, 	u 	:-■ P" 	 1-4 	J., 	 ..., • S- 	'. rU 	C., 	V:: 

 ./-1  .-■ 	
0 	t, 	 ,..) 	C 	L''  

LE ' •:, 	'- 	 -1...,  , 4-./ 	.-* 	7;1 pe 0 	
n .... 

 • ...---' 	 u 	0 	- 	Ed 7-1-, 0 
- (--1 	,- 	 . 1-) 	3 	,=•.) 1:.; 	 .= 	• .---.1 

- 	, (--,1 • ,--_,• _.0 	:Y., 	e_. .5 	1..1 	
...:2  •,,,••. 	e ;-,s• - , 	L.., ,_:•_. ,-. 	...., 	• , 	q... 	'•'' 	..•t 

,-• 	 ,,_ 	s... 
0 	7.5 r^1 ,,) ;....-. 	..• 0 4-..  17.. 	-±-,. 'L,  MT= 	e.; CL) . 7 ,... I-. U

,a:: 	 -F. o .2.---  •-7... 	-.=;.  , c,..) 75' 73 
,-•--:  P > ,- 4 	,.-4 -='. •.-.1 fr..- 4„. Al, 	 Q . Sp L.) 

•--. 	•.,n 	• -, 	.,.....' 	 ",...:, 	 4...',.. 	--,__,_ 7d 	•-• n 	 5-. ,-!j 	...., 	 -rt 	CD 	5.t 
..- 	. -F 	.-. .5 t..) 	

0 _0 +- 
- 0 , , 4_, 	r:' c■-,- 	-7.3 	 >,... is ,.._,, 	., 	.,;,: ,... 	- „- 	 ,--: 	• -- 	1 .5-) . ,) 	1,) 

• •-• 	1.... 	T.,.. 	U 	 . 17:1 .-,....d 	.7,.; 	 CO ., 	0-4  
-4 	 .1-, 	'••••' 	-I-J r ^ 	 .4-. 	0 	P ,._, 	..... 	‘..) .2 8  

	

7,7 	_ . 	'0 : 3 -0 	S  jp• - 0 r- rr 	(...) -,. 
.1) 0 r`l 7" v 	(-1 c..) ,...c  v 	 ,....,  . 

5  
„_, ,,-_-; 0 p 	

0 
U  

i:... .-.. 
.' 	0 ".., „ 	s.-+ 	',..., 	 $•-■ 	 ,..1 	 ,.,.., 

>, C,-.1 'I) ..-Th ' 	.4 ,',..4 	 -0 	; 
> 	

,'T:, = 
'' 4., 	,...". 	 Ct %J.. ._. 	

0 
f...J 	 ■-. 	C •--C'' 

■ 	CO a; 0 u 	„1. 

9 

,-,L"., -,v  rt,  
'.4 V, nti fll 

vi d P ,..r_., - 	'-'-' 	 m  y_.) a - --• G., 	:.1) 	 •••: ■ •-. 	 .' •-.C. 

	

b1) 	.., 	 -0 ._ 
bU   

..,.,, n' L1 n ,, 	 d r u , "7-‘V ,i) 1 	 d • r r. ,..,, 
V 	,±1_, c..) 'cZ 	

_.= a.  .2 ,,.. 	'.....+  •-, u - 
....1„-  j_-,- • r 	, 	v 	>,.. '--' n-7. -, v, p  C r, 

.  :'--  • - ,-.-, 	, 	,'", 
E 	-:= 

0 
-,2 

	

.6, 	... Fd E. g -2-, 	 :.-..  :. 	0 0 - ,...) 	... 0 	 -C 	y U 	- 	 - 	 be) 
  ,rd ....) , 	,,,, 0 t 	.•.) 	I. ,j, 0 	 ...  0 > 	/v.,. .4,-,  

, 	i...) 	1 	•,-, 
4-, 	CI.) ■•-• 	r2„,,, p• 	'1)  . c'7 t '''', 	a: 	C) r- --- ..-_:-, 

0 in' > 0 .r,'?  , 	 $•-■ --■ ,..-, i.7 - -- 0 	tf, 	> 	",,-, 	
,4  ...--, . .. . 	,..-■ 

u 	d -:- 	..,.. ..-7-■ 
	 • , , 	e. • •-I V) 	.... 	0 	,--, 	 r• 	,,,, 	,.,; y., - 	-6 	0 7:.-.. ,.?_-, -•• i= 	.4  ..--, Z,.,.. 	0 	1.) 	- u ,, . _ 	,_, ;'•'.. 	I-: -0 -t( 	4-, 	u 	

}' 4•-• 	1-4 	r.., -7, -_, 

cd 	c_',' 	r......0 	F3 	 Q 	'.. 
g . 	, ,'-' . ■..i ' 	'1  >,. 0 	.., 

0 	› • co  p = 	

5 
,- , 	

., -74 '95 5 	
,a.. o •,...) 0  u 
._x -= bo ,-• a- 	

_c 	= GA-6-  :- ,--1  V u .---"' u,.., >-, 	v .:-. --- ;.,, ,..., 	 v ,:,.,
b  -

ri 	 -, ,/, t-, 	r _I) 	• 	
,) U -, - 	, 
0 	0 	r-' 	'-'" 

	,,,, .-1...- 

	

4...■ 	4.6 	, 
.1) G.) ,-0 	l) 	ri 	>. 	4-, 	.,7„i 	■ ,) 	0  ,-.4 

6-  .,-, ."' -0,„ d '12 ‘f':. 	
0. VS r 

V 	, ,.. 
`V - 	••• 0 1., 	

..0 L3.4 
_o , -1 o„ ..-. --- d 	.;:•- ..0  	-- D 	 , 	•.:.: 
---, 	._. -,E, c5 :.3) 	-- - yr.„,-; c--1 	2 - 	6 ' 	- 	F/. 	11 0  '-) 
<-`1 	-I-' 	, 	u 	..-. 	. ■ 	 .., 

	

.- 	..--, 	 c., 	v, 	 .... 
--.. 	0 	

,0 
...,..,..,. 	0   ,, 	

'14 ..
,
`o ..d 

‘.4--, Z._ C 5 0 7-1 	ce: d n ■-. 	C:.) 	e,c., 4- 	I-. 0 	C;.., 	r. 	r* 
0 	,,-., • •- ■ 	 VI 	''' 	. . . 	' 	CO 	C.) , . .0 	,-. 	rr) 	2 	,,, 	( „ 	-4 ... 	cr.. .r, 	_L4 -.,= r-i '-,4 - 	,..., 	6 - u 

'-'-, -.0 -5 r. 	 ! 	.,--- 	 ...>-.-. Ei 5 0 P. 4 g 	0 ;=. .-..-_, ,_-_-, .7:-.., 
0 -0 --„,.. 4 	0 '',-,'.3 .GT, • - tx) 	

0 n ,... ,_, . • 	--ri 4-. 
d r  j•_-, t,-4 = L' 	'' >•-. i-, '' 0 	V •-. 	E-•.: --- 	u z 

,f)  d 

	 , - 7.-4 	:-. 	U 	. •-•.-1 	,-, • 1..-,-,., 
W--1c3 	0 	i.:,' 	u 	•-•., 	• --'  0-•  ,a) 	C 

	

,--■ 	,-,,,, 	0 	0-, ,.7.>  
e.) 	 v ,..,0-..= 0 '--', 	-_-. 0 ,.'7, v 	C 0 r 

 U 

IWO C.,, 	 ....--. ,-.4 • 	VI 5 	T 	0 u .', -0 --c 	- 	 , 1-. 'V r -_, ,,, 	4 , 
cd d 0 p 

%5 -s-' _z . 	7) 01 	
--, .1..., 	-0 	0 	

....-■ 	 '-' .-..... ...--, ...... ■ 	 0 .0 	1) 
u  ..■-■ 

	"--Cd"  	Q 

U 	
' 

'.• 	
-1 	•V• 7., 	0 	L.) 	,-.. 

' 
••-•••-■ 	, 

6 ' F 	0 U ■ 	

4., . . 	ti 	'...' 1..,  > 	, )'-' - (..■ 	 ..,, 
.I-,0 
	

'-- 	r■■■.'. 	 - ,-..-, I ?) S. ° 1)- .y 
.41 

	+-..  
'T.J. 	1- 	'''' r -, 

r ' `,.., < -'LL P 	2 77D, ;7) _-•;:-H ..r 	,̂,4., ,.., -7: 0 	tn 0 G .,, 7.3 .,, n , u 0 	7.C.,  C.) -,-, , 4-'  e. , 	0 0 	
< 0 

.-5 
■-■ 	 ,..-, 	>4 .......■ 	 ..., 	 rr■ > 0 ,'-' C4  r•-' 	 < 0 , '-. C 

1--i rj 	-:0 Ca 0 ■n 

In
d

u
st

ry
  I

n
si

g
h
ts

  '1 
 l

_J 



tr., 	 1 0 9_,  >•". 	 , 	0 	 --.-,' 	'`-. 	'-•,- '='' 	CL) 
,-/%0 7.,.' 	±L1 Y .  ,15.  

,-, 	, 	... • -,.,,,  
..-., 	., 	J, 	 • '.1.,‘"-- 	'DJ') 	,''',- ''., • 2 	' 	,-7 	,,A).  f.". 	1-, 	-V-■ 	 ....., ...., 	 0 

	

J  	4-' 	,.. 

	

Fir) ,-P=, .0 0 	 0, (71  

	

_, 	, .'''' 

C.) 

• 

.'" 

	

,„. 	, 	 ''-j '-' 	 E.0 ;••••• 	 •,-, 	 ;72' 
r..., ,. 	:').,, 	 9 	,C9' 	 -, 	.t5' 	• ' -- 	C-"' 

• .- 	,". 9 	 t....., 	c„  

	

c 	2 ,_., 	,-, 	,;..-.9. 	,,,, 	-„,99:; 	:.., 
1- 	,_:, .0 	• '9,' 	■-, 	'1.21- -;...,'  

9 ...-, Ler"  1-)  r • -- ^ 

.:,.., :t° ' 9 	cl)_, CIL •-:-, 	
9: .,_'-', 

'-) ,=)-, — 	 , u iT • ,c,-. ::: 4_, ■-• - 

	

"41 	 ,-• 	a) 	4-.. 	 • ,-. 	C 

	

.-.0 	.

• 	

.,, 7 	7-1 	J ,-, 	,74 	 .,-", ,-,r" 	' 	0 	r. 

	

■-, 	'-'' 	4- 	.-, 	i'-' 	.. 	 ''''' 	7 	'71 	,'' 	1.-. 	7-• 	'-- > 	1) 	9 	- 	̀..,•,'1", 	0 	._,., 

	

j.). 	'J 	11.-. 	r 	' 	,_. 	 ...."- 

7, 	0 '7•_:' 	::-.,-- 	,-- 	,, . _ , 	 . . „ 	, 	3  r  
=..) 

9 , •99, 	- 

	

9_, • - 

- 	

il --,- 
,•-•• 	 ;-> 

• - 	J 	 0 r_.)
C  , 

79r. (`) 
.44 

- 7

7'4 4

- 

74 7  • .4 ,Z0 	 0 (7. 	0 

- '

• 4

4 7-47 	• 
4, "1) 	 71) 

"74 C 5-,  
-: 0 C 

P P -4--' trj '7 -3 0 ;35 „; 	r 	,..56 .11 	
-..-' t--"Z' 	 .-.. .---■ 

u ▪ , u ,- 	,--, ,_, . 4 	,_, 
`,°.• 	, C9 GO  0-  ;--,' '-'472, 	

— 	•,‘,,, , •_, r 
 

0  .---1 r 
a3 

 - 
' 	

'er C-1 	r  '4-- 	..,79  t 	0 .9-2, 	 .,...., 	,7- % 	t 	t9 	;2' • , z . 
 

` 	'' 	9-, 	C,..1 	9; --• 	 'Dr= '-';', 	 '" 	11:5 	'1'L 	'':') 	ci,, , 
to  'F'•  "  -°  ;-, 	' 	 — •_+-' c.', , -:- 

•-•- - 	„-• 	, 	,,,, 	u 	•-• 	,- 	..,_ u 
0 

	

..-• — •,-- 	• 	.2 Cr ,-• 	,._, 	u 	.0 	0 	.,--, 	 ,... 	,.,.., 	.. 	....., 	„.. 	.,__, 
"... 	H 	••11,13 0 	6r:, ...-'2  -c 	• 1 • — 	, 	:.- 	„ 	..._,.  c..,  	,,, 	•-' 

u 	 ,-• 	 -•
 

_ —
• 0, 

B
u

ild
er

's
  R

is
k 

',-, l f r 	 l - 	..1.1 79, 	4-, 	'...., 

• 0 --_, 	-9  

0 	

. 	..9,-. --, „, H r 
0 

	

t rr, • -E'4'  -'--4 	 .' 
=1 .-0 1-7 t.,' H 

 ' 	7=1  0:1'  •"-- 	2' -,-, 
:J.  0 C 

Hp .22,  1_, 	 P 
t CU ,...- -7,-,  ' 
9 7.  '30 • 7 --) 7  

'j j._,7,  • 7  
, t9. 0  

-7- 0 - ,,_, -75 0 
0 ° -15 
-• , - 
7,  . _7, ; , O 

• 	

`H. 	..,.;.1..`' ,--) 
	1-2,  

;: ,  

-7-/-Zi 	'''' 	''=.• 	
, 	,-4 	0 

`J k31'.1 7.2, ', 	"='' 	C.:  

-IC 
 

U 	U 	 i .11-':j -^'.. 	'' 	• 
r 0 U 

U
m

b
re

lla
/E

x c
es

s  

U
P

D
A

T
E

S
  

C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E  

E
nv

ir
o

n
m

e
nt

a
l 

0 

. - 

• 

r 
-9- 	, 

• 9' ,_,JD 	.. 	, 
.'/j 	._..r,  ..•__-. . „....)0 	31.'1) :67 

	

.__C 	''.:.•- 
O 0 

= 
• 
2 6 , 	2 E --.. u --'-  > 	, 	E-,.0 c:,,_ ..-2,, 	u 	■Dr.) u - 	 9 	 r-• 	 ,-• 	 -  .- 	79 	-' 	7 	t: 	.473 0_ . ._ _0 0 , 99 

3-.  -0, 
, ,. L.- 7 	 _ 

:3 -0 -  .0 	- 	7-t, — ..- ;-P =.7-  

	

L 	 '  

E' ,,7.2E 82 '0'--".'  '0'..  '5.1, '30  '1,1)r., r•C  

'J 0 

01-, 	..,.  

'" 	
'J 
	

,..-. 	.0 	
J r" 

 

..,_, 	..-.; 	-' 	',--' . -C.  • 0 C • ,--, ■-■ 

.1) '''J  _,._. .1-, 	" 	, 	 -0 	.1-). 	 . 	..-. Y. 	0-, '-' 	1,, 	 ..-' 	- 	..... 

	

C-' 	I) II) 	,15, • .,), 	0 	 I-L 	
,J 17-9 	r 

	

`, 	,--1, 	., r r 
H.  r / --'3'  J c_., 
O 2.  ,—,-- 

	

5 	•,-, 	7, 
, 0 ,j- 

	

, 	'.Z.' 	,_, 0 

	

91:, ^-- :n' 0 0 0 	.2; U ,- 
..>•". ' ri r 0 	1., , 7 ,-I ' , 'DO 	.,_, 	1,  ''' "79 	C -',  

0.) 0  0 r 0 '-' '9C '-- •7 
729  -C •=', o C., r-  0 0  4--,  , 1 

u 

	

'.1 u 	P 	,-. 	7.4 O T.: '4 1 7,, 	b.f) - 0  
' 9 ' r--. g -  

,-. 

• 	

co 	,,-, 	, 	, 	c,_......„ 

	

,-.) 	, . ,.., 	— ., , 

	

„L., 	-  --, 4,-4 	,-, 

''-j  • Co' 	
, 	

''''' 	0 	3 	''..71 'D  

	

.4i- 	',.jr,, 0 0 C,_‘ 
0 	' 	H r   

7-■ 

4-4 5 	 r ^--._, 
O 0 .n --, .._, 

-7:, ..,79 	> '-, (,:,' 	?'Eo'l Ps-, 	u 9 r.  
0 '-.9 r 	'1)  ---,-- 	'''') 	.0 	:1, 	r--• 	9:, 9-  `' 	,9.. 	i.19 	 . -..4., 	4-,  

'71..  

	

,-, 	r'-' 	(--'. • r 	r 	c., 	1._ 	r n 	 '..-1 

	

, 	..v. 	v-,  

	

"*, 	 ,.I.) .., , ....., 	r., 	,..,. 	,,,, 	■ 	 .-V- 	.77.,..; 	', 

, 	

• 	

9^-4 	-.. 	9 
9. 	, --. 	'-' 	'-1  ''-'- 	9' 9 ,..-..,'-' 	C., 	0 	C---)-. • '-' 	.C. 

b ---. 	r 	L.,,r1 	1p ' 9 	1.) 	r 
',-) _C 	---'-' c,.) 	r 	r 	...9 	0 • -, ,-,r 	_ r 	?-• 

	

,7_, , , 	1) rt 	11,,0 ^,-2' ---, 99 --r-,-9 , 
0 	r 	CO 	'='-r 	li 	1..) 	c2, 	0 	'',-.7  

	

-z  	-_, , 9' 	 ,71 .,.. 	C'  
1- 	-• 	

- 	

'.

▪ 	

--- 	r'9 
u 	

4/ 

	

,0 - 7,  '2,- ,-• 
	u 

	

-• 	
4_, 
'77 

	

' br-4 ÷-7 r, F9 .9•-•' 	-,,,
.' u 0 

	

..,_, 	••,,., • -. '-'9 
.4 	0 0 ..- 0 

4-,  

	

,7" '-'2' 	'74 	, 	,-4 	0,r4, 7) ,,-,-. 

	

4-' 0 "" 7  , 	'3  r.' 
,... • 7,71 • ,-.-,_, 

70 	_..-r_,."  ...-' 	r-: 

• 

7, 	,-• 	5>,, . - 
J u ,n...= 	-...... 	9 	r 9 

	

..,_, 	, 	, 	,.. 
11.1 9 	"7,7 0 	0 	-.- 

.,6.0 ;,-). .0 0 7'
,  

".9, 	u 
0 _ 

' ' ' '' 
 

, :=1  9.-  

t-  ' ' -' - '0 -2 9, '   -'3'..:,. . - P- ; ''''..-` 0U
,_,.4 to tr., r-• 	,...,•" 

	

:f.: 	0 	;__, 	..-  
u c_-_ : 	• 	, T -..,- 	•:±-2 6 c.. 

▪ 01-: -7-JC  7, •-z-_,'-

• 	

'7.: ,-)..j 

	

r- 	r 

	

H ,,,,• •4;,•2 •,_, 	, 	4_, 	•,_■ 

• - 



"..r. 

■ 	0 	p•-• 	
''...   

.., 	
■,..-•  1:11 	

L 	 :;.-,  ...  -- 

	

.I-. 	
, 7■  . 7,  1,.  . 7 a' 	'..., 	 --... ,.-.  -• 	 V. 	 = 	r >,, Cyl 

._.L.  ^ 	 'LI, 

- 	■■■•• 
,.■  •-• 	..." 	

r 
•-•,  .,. C 0 

	

U 	•=1.,.  
C' 

..•  1. 

•-• 	 .- 
A.,,,  

	

r- 	'....) 	'-r..; ft,  ri -•■..  I.- 	!- 	:7; 
ti :=  )77  i .  =.  .    . 	•'  . 9 	

'..... ■••••••.:-- ft  0 

r-•  
	

...• 	,  -  ...) 

rl  C. 	" 	 .... ., 	.-:., :3 !--= 	 '  

	

r-  r: 	
, 	:"-' 	."1  -  	

17 	 .7.  

	

,=,.. "•=. 	 •r.  >  '  .7.73  ....7 	 .77  r- 

= 7"1 77.  	
-.0  ,-.. 	;:-.- -.-1.-- 	^- .7. :.."-- :/1 	 ;::: 	p. 

- 	

c -7, 
._ 	_ 	,...,  ...L.-  .'- 	7...   

I" 	,,7,. 

	

:•••-, " 	.......r.d. 	•-,-.' 	
•,i 	,... 

•■• 

M ,. 	
I-  f .  4,  L.,.. 	... 

c c. 	riff, .-  -u .x.. .-.. -,  ,  : :., 	..7.4, ,- 	td,  -: 	 ., 	I-.•  - ._, 	 '..r. 	LI 	„:..., 	.4 fy,,  1- •-.. 	, 

/.., 	 0 
•••• 	 .  .... 

	

.41■1 	

V. 	 /7: 

t,..s.„ .•_, 	-  il-  __,--: -.7  c..-e--  

	

..- 	,... 	o- .:;. ... ,...t„. ,... 	
o:., 	-  r :7•7 

"I. 	r  •-r7 

	

'• r••••  r.7, 	
•-.. 	M C 

	

.0,....--. 	I-. ,7d.  rC 

_J0 r- ',I 	 0- :-. 	=7 "r'  ''  .'.  .1-r e- 	.., .-+ 	 .,_'-',1 	...,. 	C' 	r• 
77 	7...  ,-_, 	 r• •• 

,_, 	 er 7.77. 	
7:7  7  1., 47 C/7  '+' 	 ,  ._=,  ..1 	

r•-• 	- 	LP. 	.7 
.-,  4+-1, 	 • 	J 	

.7!  

,- 

,..+, 	
J ..., 	, 

..-t 
e-
t-. 

Z 

... 

.....e 	.._ 'T',.- 'f,  

- 
• -  .7..' 	,-.' 	._..; 	c: 

_  .,..r, :.L, 	.2-_-. 
:11 	' 	•-•d 	 V= 

r  ...  -.0  ■r 7.4 

^:Jr., 17_7. 
;-■ 	:....„ - _ o: Po  Li   ;71  " - . :  .P   : 

-0  - - to  ..,_. 

	

P.:x.,  -  s 	•  .7.,_   

..- 

. 

air 
.1 

❑ 

co 

--.;  •  ,7_, 	

.  - - 
..-' 	 •.7r  ..-2 
• -0 7., = 

-'._'.:' 	r':, 	'r--  
7.--11., 
•7 r-.. 

...' 

• .--  L  •-•-•  "...J 	--, 

0 73 
 

r 	
,,,, 

 W 

 r- 
.72-  -=-:" 	 .,.  , 	w 	

..r, 
I:4 l

r"-:  em  '* r/ 	 :  - • - -  S 	l: CI.. 

	

Y P ❑ .-., 	 4.0 ..'' 	
•  r-. 

le  -  C, 

L'■. ,•-• .,,, 	
tarrj .....„ 	 = g  0 J o, P-...,.0 	to  -,.  

.....  •  7, 	7  -,  i 	
r 

	

r 	
:7 	,,, 	..:: 	.... 	•  ...al 	,'' 

 
77: 	7:-, 	

■.-. 	.- wr 	..,i  ,,, 	=,  -. - 	■-_.._  v .-- 

rl, 
, 	•-••  .-  = 

	

.,_, 	.... 	...4 '  ."'. .-. 	'1 	.-.; ..-. 	, 	,_,.■ ..  • ..-. 	
•-• 	0-.. 	7-2 	..'..1 	7 	4.  

_., -.; 
• ..._, 	-, 	,- 	"_■: 	•'.---- -  - 

:•.:  C  : 

f... 	v -- ,... _o. 	J 4" 	 •
.1.• 	,,,,. tV  ■,. 

Le: 	J 	
.L. 	'...■ 

....: 	-...., 	
-;. 	_!,, 	

e

1-.....,  
, ,-,  .- 

.I. 	..4  . 	 _ 	n-• 	

:::e 	1.7.t, 
 

-,_  .- 	•-; 	,..) 	..71 	'.-•:r--, 
..-1 	.4,.._ 	"7;  7- 	--+ 

 - 

	 C -1-1 ,•._• .-a 	 J:- 	•-• r
7• -1-0'211 

._, 	 '---• 	
:,.. - l  r-,-'-' 	IA :,...,_,_.4 	4-.. 	C  rI-  . 

F 	

._, 

Lr. -.-.' 	el 	.., 	
^-■ 

	

-drJ Pr  L' 	t. ..- 	_..... . _. 	..., 	'-.L.  ''.'  "77;   

	

-.: :... 	 ,  	--J. 	 J 

..r.j :-'1  F" Le 	E ;71 	- 	-... 	 •:-, 	 . 

.- 	..,. 	..-.; 	,...; 	r- 

	

'  - 	-. 	AJ 

1.... 	
.7... 
•-• 	 47J 	 P.--4  

'., - ". 	
•■••• ..-• 
IF. 	.. 	

, 	 ■-.... 

	

" 	g1w1 	e•-•.,: 

CIL 	1-  -  ■-,. 0 -...„: 

 -.7 	

.  

7=7.  

	

i■ 	--) 	•'. 	'..j  Z.. 	t• 	 .  , 	.7 	P7:  ‘... 	- 	..17 	=, 	2 	•  ,,. 	',,  . -  .-7.,, el ^  -r- 	 r- 	.._,• 

7  n' 	-_, 
 

:, 	
=' 	 '7, -  ,:-. 

r- 	.• 	
;.17 	."-, .. ,  

..,.„. 

	

47..1 	 ' 

.0--,  r. 0  :=  '..) 	
.1-• ,... 

; 

	

.z., 	
-^ 	C,..7 2 :J to v:  

. 	n, 	r- 
7:1 7.1 

--,, 	1- 
'---, P 7- -Tir  •  - 

1 	,-'  4  = ..:„./L„ r 

tr■ 

-•'  ' 	r 	.  e-- 	
= 4 
et; , 	

r:', 

1 -.41 . ,••■.'49"  . . . .  1 	.

.n. 	Pri

7_C  ' ,  _  .:  ,  .'  . • .  4 _:  " . . . - -  -.  -  j 	

.%-..  ••-• 	Ir. ,- 4-4 	...• 	• 

	

'7;  '  772• 	.'7.■ 

:_-. .-... 'lb tj•  .,  =, 	
eJ sf 	"-Ir.  '4,/ 

	

:---  ..•4 	7..4 	':d •-j ;-  -  r- 	
-7; .7  
= .-+ 

	

"  = 	
r:••• 0 ,_,''''."..- 

•.e. 

0 	'L. 

 

0 .,-. 
	❑ 

 r- = •-• ,-.  tC, 

	

.-%.' -,5 	'....■ 	f- -, •-•0 r_.  ,- 
.  - ..., 	,'-''. - to c ,:-„, 

.  ...- _ . . .  .. :  :74  E    	
....--.-. 	_-  •  ....r. c....,..„ 

'..... 	'•-• 
.41.r. U 	 -  777  r"- 7  „7_% 

	

.-.  p.  J. :- 	

: 

-  -, 
- 	r , t.,,, ,, 	1J 	•LI 	■. - 	 7- 	.7.- 	rj 	 .7 

in 	 -7  •rr 	:-7.  ,  -.1 	U 	 71.• 	".• 	'7.... :77., 	.7 	
i„.j,  1,,, 	 r 	 , 	0 	7r) '7 	•_/ 	7..  

 

-  _, 	 tn.  .„ 	
-  n 	./  ,,,..)  7... 	 •  .. 1J  ri. 

V. •-• 	-  -  r  , 	r-  ...," -.■ 	..... 	 4, 	I-. 	;,.., •-..0 	-'' --.) 	 - ....- 	::"..... 
r- ,...r. 

L..) 	.  .  j:t• 	v! 

7 •-•

•  • 

	--'" '-''-' •-.T :7+  .--Z  C ••-• 	..., 	, 	
r- 	-- 	.--' 	•;,.. ''.:1  1= 	.?-_• 

-L, ,....„ "J"  0 	

GYM 

.., 	 ! 

	

', 	
'1" 	77 . -7  ::+)  :4' 
r  •  ,. 	 . 

	_IL' ,"-  „,-. ,' Y 
r- 	.-_, 	7 -72  .  _, , 	

.....-. _  ._ T.. #.±..._.  _tt E  ,. ...-- 
... 

• -. '=" 	7- 
-  	,,. S.,. 7j 	 • 	4". 'L.' 	dr' :-:.„ 	r- 	r---,  

	

-.' 	''..J 

	

- . . -.  CZ -7--: 	....1::-.... , 	.2 ,:.,I 7-.■ 1: 	'": 	g  ''''  Ci'Z  
,' • 	....  77/ 
CO ....17.  ° 	... 	 r..... 	1^.  dt■•  4.; I- 

0 	- Z  r'a 41...• 

•-j  =: 1.6.1  C  CL. 	

tf•  7 
■-1  '-+ 	• 	• 	• 	

- -..0 

• ■

.._, A. j  ■1■1 

■-- -. 
1 	 2 



D 
0. 

E
N

T
IT

Y
/H

IG
H

E
R

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 

.1-+ 	 r•-■ 	:2" 	7.: 	,-" 	, 	C--•  
tik, 	ll c 0 ,L:,... 	•1., r1 76---• t,  .-1-7 	.E" 8 .1=-_,.' -t,-;;' ,0 --''' 	 ,... 	..._ _., 

, 	= ,_......' 

V , 

(1, 	 r- 	7 	••■••': 
.1)  

•-• 	V 	••-• 	• 

.....' '--7'' 	• -"E 8 V - ' r 1 	- S.  . , , . . " '' F r-e'  7..._, 	0 	Lo 	•-• 	...• 

	

0 -0 	li 	
;:,-. 	

' v. 	r, ...., '.-••=. 	)..) 	 , 	)._, 	1... 	c._-_, 	..,.... _c.-. 	I 
r r .-4. 	0 5 ,.- '" '" r, 	..3 C 	::.,- .-•-• n 	6" ,..2 ›c'' r —6 

v 	
,., 	

,-," - r .....• .;.:;".. c„..,  1;"  ,...., 	..., 	.-• 	2.,... 	>. 	0 

1.) 	,.._. 	'-• 
?... z_.---; - 	0 	b.') ,„- 	'' 	•.,-.• 	t...s 

	

,--• 	 „. • 	,... . 	, 	>, 	7: 7-.7 >.  	a) 	-,5 -,:-; .=- r_ (--• . 	01 C.) 5/3 

	

P , 	 , ,- v) 

	

,-, 	,.., 

	

CD 	0 	.=. .7:,  --., 1:4 	0 	•-'4  3 ,7-1  
- 	- 	....._, ^... 

r".; 	b.!) __, 	,.. 	..0_, 	,..., 	/C 	••••• 	C., 	"-• 	,'"4 	r" 	•- 
..7. 	bo. ... 	..-, 	CO 	.--,-, 	'-' 	r..' 	-..' ....2 	t..) — 	 111.1 	0 	V 	.I...■ 	 .-., . , 0 0 

	

, ,..z, 	_ 	,..„, 1) 0 -ID 

	

4-- 	.,.., 	,   

	

••-• : 	
- 	'.) 	F4 	'-. 	 ;;;;, . 	Co  •• - i:-  : .' 	e , 	7, 

	

0 	 r-• 	'--: 	0 2, 	=_,' • ,c c  -, 	t., -: 	,.., 	t •:-. 0 't >, — $4,- 	0 	ci .L. .-  e -t 

	

_c  	iv 	_  	.7„, .2 	.L-t.), 	3.,' ,...) -7--; 	,-.7'.:: 	.J,-' _).4 	0 	• 	,-. 
,--• 

	

0. 	v.) 
,--, 	v 	.....„ 	0.., — 	,-.-j, 	u 	c/a _,-_,-• 	cl• ,  • 

Gdf, 	 L...,_,..., 	•"-,, 	C 	,...,, 	ra..  z..., 	:-'''  

	

)-- 	 el 0 	" 0 0 	0 ,•• )- ' 	̀-' 
0 s-, ,•-7.„ 

	

--, CJ 	 4 4-, 	4, 	:4 	44 ,,
.5 	:J 0 	r- (1-,  v ,  

0 .1-,,d  

	

0, 	.C. 	• -- 	v) 	CL., 	(MT 	f _-.1 	..-. 

	

Z U c, = 	
C..  ,-, • •--' 	 -a •-0 >„.. -, 	U .4-' 	 r-- 	0 r-: 

	

.-• 	• 	 . = , 

	

■-• "CS 	e•-• 	(1.) -- 	4..., ,.., .__,,, 	„...., 	,..: —_, 	• .,7_,-,  
1.-'"'''''  ''',-•,•-■'-' 7...)r-'  7,-,G 	

•--0 	F•• ":" 	':•-•''., 	• •., 

	

(1:1 	• 	•-• 	^ 	• 

,_ 
4.... 	,,, 	--, 

,. 	, 	, • - - • 	C, 	•-' 	'• • • " 

	

5., 	a 	- J 	, 	. -.../ 	'-‘ 
--, 	c4 	' 	,,,,., 	--, 	r....) 	,,, 	U ...„_, 	M 	

■ .-Z... (t,- 	■7 	r•C' '. 	.' 	6  

	

,....„ 	,-. 	-0 .."=" >" '7" ,v  	72  LI' - u  0 ,...,• .-. 	)... ••,7 • --. .1-.• n 0  
0 E 

	

> 	...., 	, —c, •,,-_, 6 ,...,..., _E-, 	L- 	,_.0 	_, 
,--, 	,-- 	.,,)--•• 	v _r.,- 	,D 	;.:(,3 	, - 	.1-+ 	,-, • 

	

,---I • •-■ 	:-.-■ .:., 4.-• 	■-1TN 	

C 	.6_, 	•-, 	
^ 
	I, 	

C ,..., 	.,_, 	. " 	 ,•-. 

	

0 	 "--i3 	 ;•.-; 	..-..,.. 	)._, 	i_.,' 	a„) 	> 	r 	0 

	

(...) 0 	 .47. 

	

.4-, 	L., 

	

0 	). 	J ..., c,,, .— .L....... --. c,..,  	....) 	C C ...,•-• 	I" 	_"-• 

	

C 	•;.-3 :, ,,,/ . C P -'0 p' 

	

cu 	 c) 

	

'" ,-.) 	0 	0 	• 

	

0 	)- • • 

	

V 	̀,....) •-•c :.7., V :.'sj . ,0 8 

0 
I) 

4.4 
0 
4-, 
t7:: 

7,7-• 

--, 	..,, 	u 	•-• ,::,. 	, ,7„; 
. 	̂  7 .- 	u 	,-,-, 	0 	> 	;:-.. 	. -- 	:n.:: 	•:.; 	c 	2. . - 	 v 0 	).... 	,7,, .-., , ,,-. 

77.■ .1.) 
••--■ 
•-• 
0 

.":-• 

a.. 

u 
•.,) 

0 
. L'2, ...,- .... 

•""".., 
sn 
v 

, ,•-• 
"1-'0 

C•  ,.... 
• •.• 

..,.,.. 

••-•, 
;:•2, 

".L.) .I..• 

. •--. 
r., 	., 	 •,;_, 
>  

77, 	...,- 	 ,--:. 	 ,_, E3,.. 	v_._," 

	

Il 	, 	--. 	••-• 
U — 

	

' - ' , - - - - ,>. ' $ 7'  ' • - '' ''' ) A ,R : " 'g 	

U Y.t, 0 	C.,  0 -,-. 	,..• 	•----, 	 4-, 
• ,-, 	,.- 	, --, 	r•-• 

...,••• 	....,, 
7---d 

	

,... 	_ 
,__, -, ..':. 	'° 	CO 	. 	.-S 	„...,e1.) 	.1, ....7-7 	: ,t: 	 .2 	::)I '---• 	- 	, 	0 

.2 ','•'.,) 	 ° '?. t > 4-,- 	,r- > 	 0 

-,- — ,,,•-• ;_, 7 	 ._ ,--‘.. ,'•• rd v C..) -- 

>. 	
.-

--,-. 
 

	

—•,,.., 	2 	, 	0 	 ,...• 	,,,, 	, . - 	.--,-. ....., 

• ..r:_, . DC) ;1,j . >7 t...Q r-9 	

.e.--4  Ej ,.• -r.D. ;•,=_, 	g' 

	

.) 	4-+ 
• •-• CI •12 7...."" /.., ..0 , U -5 :-' 	 v 

	

■---. , cj 	>--. 	0 ." 	,-,/ 
).- 	O

r` 	r- 	,.•..) 	, . '-' 	 I-• 	 ,r). 	■-r 

	

>, •,--' '-.7,^ 	;., 	•,-, 1-.' 10 • 111 17 tj)  5 1..• 
U s V. 	"'"-..). 	

-ti ' „ ^ 15 • . - . . - Z: 

	

rt 	,.... 	I-. 	,..... 	C_ 
 

	

.". ,^ 	fr:E 
E =7 	 a 4; 77", 	)- v _o 

	

br, ,.., __. 	7.•,. 	h. 	0 

	

1.• 	. C.," 	U". 	 r-1..., 	• •-•'  

	

'5' 	.-- 	''' CO  
= -.6 - 	 _, 1.) co ... , 	.'...., :-, ..., 	,, 	.•::` 	 ..= 	.-1 ...: 	">'` .0-,  i' 	 cr... 	cn 	C 	z 	,,_ ,2 	. . -0 '-- 

„., 	,- ...... 	h 	_., 
 

	

0 , 	
0 ,  

— ..7.; 	v . 71 	':.' 	e..) -44   

	

7_1 2 	2, 9) • :=1 	U••-,1;) 

	

.._. ., 	_ 
v) .." 

0 = 0 ..,-' P. v :=, 	■....-- 	, v 

	

,,z 	-,-,,_ 	,) 	7,." 	",.z.„ 	u.,v) 	,-t 	,--• 

	

c..- 	h 	).., • 
v.) — 

. - 
, 

, 
	,..  

	

''''' •-, 	> -.I,' 

	

c., 	
C 

--• 
U --' 	 to; —. 	••• . ,..; 	■•1 	:•_, 

U 
X :7% 	 v 4.-• 	0 	••-, 	t..■ 	.... 

'-' 	 2 	 -12.• 	
.--, 	ti . ,-, 	.C: 	-.. 

 
1.• --- 

s- .).• ...., ` 	. ''' a, 3 	V u  " _ >,. 0 fr: 7,̂ 	 ..„- rrl 	r- 	•.,5 	•...., 	, 	- 	 .> 	,,.... 	,..1.) 	, .--.1 

	

0  7,- --71 f;..,  — 	
'-•--, 0 ..0 .•7 	0 .: 

	

b ;..7., v , 	•-, v 

	

.0." f-, 	■-• 	V . ''''' 1.-4 	 ..:, _.o 	Cl-, . 1) 	:-,1 	'73' 

	

,-_,," 	- 	i•-• 	•. 

	

t4C? 	11 	' 	• --. 
'S • -:. 

.-• 7, 1--• 	-C -- CI 	 r2, '1--/ >, C 0  
t 5'"  F-• — V ','-■.'C' fr 	-0 	 7 	71. 	v 	',•'• • C' '''-' 	° 	 ...„, 	• " 1.-' 	,., 	, 	,,,)'' .-.C.,_ 	8 -60 	,,._,:.' 	,,,...-•'. 

,..2 ...C*.' t. 	
0 ..', ,, 	I, 	 • .-.. 	.-. 	G, 	‘`... '--.., v.i . 	 -7 .:.2.--:' 	.4+  	>.-. ,-;" n-,' 	-,-,,, 

	

00  ..-0 C v im ■-.. 	 P h .. ..--.:. 	, 
• - ,-, 	a; 

	

7-.., 	- — .-  
........,  

c- 	, 	,.., 	,...) 	, 	■-■ 	 , 	r- 	:71 	 p  ,..r., 	2,  -2 3 :..- 	n ;  77) 0 

	

,..,• 	u 	..... 	:...- 	63 	- 
• - 	).-:,.., v   

	

,.P.-  - T• •-•" . A).  1 	-., 	— c..1 .) ,1" 0>  . ,.."- 0,... 	4..) -, --, 	 )7-  „..,-; 	
0 .._0 • 0" — u • 

,.,.. 0 	(-• „,'  ,-•• 	... , c71 	— 	 '.= 	7-•' 	U 	_--_,, 	0 

	

.-...._ 	., 	,..- 

11) 	....L. - 	...• 4- , 	= •-,,,c, 	e-, 	0 0 	 1.)  `,.'i  E ,,,,t,0 0 7,...;  
t 	

v 	,-, e-• 1 	:::: 72' 	,-, ..,:-.. -ID 
U 	,,,, 	a.., 	, 	CO 	i:...• 	

',E.° ....;, 	0- 	z.: 	,...,,,,-- 	,- - 	,-• 	,- 
C..) -...') ,•13 	-0 	u '-' '',1 v P '-) r::. .- 	__,‘”' -0 --, :1_,  v 0 

.1--,  ,.., 	, 	:V, ._,0 	. ....I 	■,,,. 	

....--., .-- 	....' 	V 
1.) 	 v 

• U 	• 7 	7.• "...- 	 C.:: 	J  '- 	'-'-' 	C'''' 

	

,.. 	 •■■' 	 0 	 ...CO 	 ;'..'. > 	 •., 	 , 	 ..../ 

	

0 	' '' 4-1 0 ..7:1 	a_, Q ' •-• 	U ,'"--, ,-, -. -C ■- ct 	..._. 

c.:,... 	z• u  .... „, >. • -- 	'1' -0 " 	U 
r , 	• 	bi) :I, • — 

0 	;:„,-.. 	:- 	,r., 	:,..,, 	,- 	, 	1.1 	77 ,.: 

L, 	, — __.., 

	

0, cu.< 	= 0.. 1) ••••••'-' 9" .1, „ 	- ,......„ • ,..,..: 	,c,_, ,-.2.„_, , 7: 	■ 	br, 	u 	c.) 	c-) 	 h. ;:,^ 	- 4--. ^ C2) , - 	;...0 l•-• •-•z-, 0 
0-  '..) ,-, 	,,,,, 	•• 	.,...., 

>•-■ 	 , 	 r-, •,:• 	 '1., 	 -1-■ 

‘.1 0 
,..,, ...,..-4 	

t..., 	• •-•" 	o-,-, 7i ••- • , 	_ u .4..., ,_ _in  3 
.r,.., 	r--, 	,,;.:: 
:„•:), U 	0 	

:::: 	..,., 	r- • •-• .> 

"-
0 

v a re) . ,;),.., •..7) 

. ,-.7'‘' 	tip, 

'...- r...,.tt • _,_,,v 
• ••-• 	--, 

'73>.- 	'-' ,; 
p 	 :, E., 7 
,., 	CY \ 

...--■ 	'-'" 

• .7•-•'•  

c' . briC, 
, 

'..,--- , 

0 
 (..) 

' "--'-;  

>-'-' 

C7.1 ,_,••-: , 

(_,' 

u, 
 .•••• 

••-• 

7-7. 

	

r" 	-•-• 

c°  0::  

	

6 	r--  

	

70 	̂  

	

,--, 	r..., 
• - 	- 

- 

•-•• 	".•-• 	
Z 	.-- .,_ 

'-..t 
 -, 

,...e 
(17 

:•-• 	,....E 
0 --- 	 . 
C.... CD 	0 ..... ,... 	•;. 	1, 
0 	,,, -- 

	

). 	• ;',3 

0 : 	-, 

	

-0 • - 	7_1 

, 
.,) 
•-• 

t: 
c.: 

'.0 

,.„-z 

_, „:„.::: 
-0 

p c---  
F 	c ,' 	":'• 
"-' 	•..? 

C..1 	'.-.." 

0 _;1,- 

, • , 
G-- . -- 
U 5 

rt  

7777 0 
-0 L)  

	

c .) 	tr.) 
44  

O 
U 

5. 

•=7, 

ter. U 
r • 
9 U 

O 

• , 

'•-••- 

	

0 	C.,
GJ to.  0 

• 

CA 

• ••-• 

■ 



0--, 
CJ 
r 

4-. 

0 
0 

o 
0 

«y ' - ' 
,-,-' 
--' 
-b-'0, , 0 	--' 	r-,/ 

o, 	,...._, 

.,--. 

,--:4 

="j, 
su, 

 r-,/ 
C.":̀, ,...._, 

0--, 	 .,--. 	
0 	o 

CJ 	 . 	7•• 	-7; 	 ,,.., 
r 	

,--:4 	,--), 	 ,,,D 

4-. 	«y ' - ' ="j, 	,_-_, ,_ , 	F ,", 

0 o 

. 	7•• 	-7; 	 ,,.., 

	

,--), 	 ,,,D 

	

,_-_, ,_ , 	F ,", 

	

tr., 	V fry) 

• 0 

	

.E 	' -if-) :7) 
,-,-' 	su, 	tr., 	V fry) 

-b-'0, C.":̀, 	• 	0 

	

.E 	' -if-) :7) 
,., 1..) . -'  ,- 	.2 -0 ,L,' s0 ,,„.„  --7.1 

_ -  
0 	5 	,..; 	:=..... - )3  . 	o s- 

'—' sn 

	

,-.., 	CIL, 	•,__, 4-, 
.r,'.. 	..E, 	i..: 	,-/ 	0 
oc 	 > .0 0 -T-1 

■ 0  ..^; 	9-,  ..), u 
0 r — .---. 

2-- • - 5 , ..--,- 	• •„L-, 	.,_-.4r, ,--,.. 	,, 

	

o 	. _ 
7.4' U,'z' ._.,0  c, 	.,. >-. 
> , 	-■--:-, rte/ 1) r,-,  -  u cp  ,- 	0. 	.,., 	c- ,-,  c.,-,- ,.-," 	. 

	

" 	U V , V V C 4-, 	,./s 	•.--, 	r '-, 

	

r-, 	. - ■ - 	,c - • c, ,--  sr...., 	- — 	..t 	c 
T, 	--, 	-- b0 'z' 

	

..2 	4_, s'Dri  > 	o..) 	r-  •, , 

	

7.,' 	., 

,,44,) ', 0  
:01 	 , 	,1) ,--.= 	 ,' 	't  

u   
r 	

,.? 
r:r-  , 
:-. 0  0 --, 4-,  ,---, 	 ''' ,_0 u =1 6  

i 	r.,  0 u 
J  

	

r 	c..  
;----,' 40.  0 	:-' ,7'.4 0 ,?. .-1 

	

0 	 ,... 	,_., 	_ 
.72 	C.) 	j 	sr 	.--. 	.... J5 o_. -:-. .-, 	. i.,; _ ..,---.: ,f, 	I) ..- -  ...j,. 

ID  0 	 0 ,1-, 

04/ 
4-,  

0 
J 

o c:,.., 
ter.  

_c tr, 	.., 	., .:._-2, 
..:-. 

,.7'. 	 s--..' ' ' 	 e-- . - 

r-, ' 
Q.) 	 .-. 	 ,-,'  ..--. 

r,Lr_i 	 4-..  
S.)  

U
S

I  a
ss

is
ts

  p
ub

lic
  e

nt
it

ie
s  

an
d 

u
ni

ve
rs

it
ie

s  
by

:  

,CL, 	o>... 0 --rte 

	

0 6' 	,- u , 	,. 	.c.' 	2.,_•• 
._.E 1") ._0 !3° '—',..,' y 

	'-' 	'-'' '-'-' , r,_, 0 0 ,..... 
.- , 	,t r. 

	

r:2, r. 	r
r-. 
C 

o C2 r-' 0 
,-, U , u- r- ■ 

U ,-i ,0 -0 5 
, 0 u  0  
ct'  

' ' 0-4 C  I.) 'DO 	 0 
44.. 	 ......-. 	(-44 	,..., 
-,4-. • -- 	4,-,, 	r 	r 
E r u , "47: " 

r 

	

).--■ 	 p..) 
r 0 7./-, - , 
0, 4_, 	r: • - 

, tr) 	. o ,:, 
,-, 	0 	̂J 

C  

7'■ 
..E ..-L ,_,  , r^ 

r-• 

, , • -- 
,-1 

— 	 CJ --, -- 
, `,, 0 i-,44,0 r, 'J 

44, 

,4, 	,4.) 	
1.)  „._,• 	,_. 	r 

11 	,.-. 	0 ,L._ ..,, 	.:3 
c...) 	3›... c.-.-  ;-.) V 0 r 

.--.., --s-41 
,-, 44-, 	u 	',..) 	0 	C., 

,CL, 	o>... 0 --rte 

	

0 6' 	,- u , ,. .c.' 2.,_•• 
._.E 1")._0 !3° '—',..,' y 	'-' 	'-'' '-'-' , r,_, 0 0 ,..... .- , 	,t r. 

	

r:2, r. 	rr-. C o C2 r-' 0 ,-, U , u- r- ■ U ,-i ,0 -0 5 , 0 u  0  
ct'  ' ' 0-4 C  I.) 'DO 	0 44.. 	......-. 	(-44 	,..., -,4-. • -- 	4,-,, 	r 	r E r u , "47: " r 

	

).--■ 	p..) r 0 7./-, - , 0, 4_, 	r: • - 
, tr) 	. o,:, ,-, 	0 	̂J C  

7'■ ..E ..-L ,_,  , r^ r-• , , • -- ,-1 — 	CJ --, -- , `,, 0 i-,44,0 r, 'J 
44, 

,4, 	,4.) 	1.) „._,• 	,_. 	r 
11 	,.-. 	0 ,L._..,, 	.:3 

c...) 	3›... c.-.- ;-.) V 0 r 

.--.., --s-41  ,-, 44-, 	u 	',..) 	0 	C., 

In
du

s
tr

y  
In

s
ig

ht
s  

1
„  

c,., u 	, r 	;:-.; 	,.-■ r 	
0.., 

0 	0 ,_,0 
.--, 	.--. ,-, 	1.) 	rt 	U 0 tr '

r- 	'=', 

 ' 	

11 	c,„) 

,14 	'1., 	r • ." 
0 ,-. 0 
r  J -r ,4 r - , 	rr 

,..,.> 	,D.C) ..,-, 

r. o 
 

r" 	&:,- 	0-.1. 1) CJ 	, 	o  , , ,,,, -- 
-,- O 

c,., u 	, r 	;:-.; 	,.-■ r 	0.., 0 	0 ,_,0 .--, 	.--. ,-, 	1.) 	rt 	U 0 tr 'r- 	'=',  
' 	

11 	c,„) 

,14 	'1., 	r • ." 
0 ,-. 0 r  J-r ,4 r - , 	rr 

,..,.> 	,D.C) ..,-, 
r. o r" 	&:,- 	0-.1. 1) CJ 	, 	o  
, 	, ,,,, -- -,- O 

}
}
  H

o
w

  U
SI

  C
an

  H
e

lp
  

O
th

er
  E

x
a

m
p

le
s  

o
f 

th
e  

H
a

rd
 M

a
rk

et
  

.- 	 0 	 r ,--, 
 

--C , 	 tC  r 	 .-■ , ---. •—, 
,r; 	

4-, 	-,, 
,. 	 < = -0  

■-• 	.-. 4-,  .--, 	 3-, 	0 	 7--■ 	, '' .1-.• 	, 	F.'  r 0 	r 	 , -.4. 	 0- . - s.4, 	 C---. 	1-)  4-,  
, r  GO 	 -C C.,) 	;.4, 	 ^J 	 r .C, 	r 	 r,..) 	" 	"a 	;:-." 	ir.-, 	r 

r 	 bri 

	

I) 	0 

,.... 	
-1..., 

	

0 	
...., 	6.■ _. 	:-.., y; 	U 	P 	.-7.:, 	''-' 

...n 	r 

	

r'-' 	 —i 0 	 0 0 ,-■ -0 	 ..7' - br., ,-, 	,.,-; 	, 	--, - 	 u ,- 	 ,,7'.. 	■--• 	br.:, ,-- 	
2 	0-, 	 J,---:, 	1., 	 --, __, 

r'2,  

r. 	,.: r 	 r 1) > U 
12' 0 .7- 	. 	> 0 1) __, 1) 

 ;1  ) T..+ 	__, 	
,...., 	<,, 	0 	r. 	U 	• ,..., 	..., 	.... 

S., 	r  

	

,- 	P '-' 	- ,..■ , r 
-0  r 	-0 r 	, ,4., 	, -:-: 	0  ......, -7; 	 0 U . -' 	 e.., - 	0 J ,--. 0 r4.) 	 ■--1 	'..) 	r ,--. ■ 	 CL, (_-_,... _0- 	c..., .F.D■ 	 r 
>. ',..  > 	,-A 	.,__, u .„-,. 

o -0 	> 	',-, L' S ' 	_ : ... 	o rt  ts 0 hj 	.7.; 	r 
_..i 	, 	;,..,. r 

V >, , 0_, 

	

:.-_, 	 7,.--4 _i.,.) -0 	'(2,  --,- 	 C --2, 
, 

--,.. 	r 	 >4., 
-4 L'-  U 	 •• 	r 	.,7; 	 ''''' 0  N;=--' 	 ,... U r 

I.) $ 	-- 4-, 	 r U r, , r 	CU 	 r 0_, 	'-' 	 r "0 0 .--, 
r, 	 t" 	.4.0 r, 0-. 	r-  ",1 '—' r 

-F.' I,  ;.....„ __ u 	 -0 	rr 0 '4' ) 	,:--' -0 24,)  
r 	..., .4. 	 CO --,.3 

	r-■ 	
,-, 	 0 	C:: ° 0,, 0 	 4_, 	.---- 	• - 	 J „,,, 	br., 

 

' 	

; 

	

r 	
11 

	

'= 	u 	 -, 	 .) 	 .,I 	 0  V 	V 11 ',..) 
0 	 r-a 	':: 	!--) 	 .;',..) 	V 	> 	r 	- 

	

4 	r :72, ''J 	CO V 
C.1 	-, 	'::.) 	., .s_.1 	0 

U 

	r: -,.... 
0 '4 	

-, 

6 '4) 	, , 

	

-_, 	,- 	- .:_, 

	

.1, 	,__, — --,' 	), 
C 	--;•• 	 Ti"0 CO U  

r v' 2-,  ,0 -,0 --' r -,44 	ct ,il r 	0 0  ...,i' 	C `  r, r.. ca..,  ,>.. 	 .,.., -0 - 	r- 'J 	 0 --r-' 
..F._ .._2 	C3 	1-: ..4,t 

'4'2 
	' 	1) 	r 	 >=, 	,24,) 	co 	r 	1, 	̀- 

	

t 	 ) 
r_-.4., 4_, 1-.L. 	r 

 1.- 

0 .4 	r 	 r 	0 '-'3 CL) 	..,.... 	r..' 	,7_,' 	 s-., 	. 
',1J 	r> 
	

>-O 	4'"' -0 	r:' 	 - ,,_, 	(,.) -4:5 

,=-1 	- 	
u 0 0 	, = '. 0  .0 -0  CJ 	,./ 5 	'-■ J 	vs 	s.., 	 6 	,..-,• 

0C 
	” -0 0,-) 	0 r r ›.... 0 	0,:,•0'-'  	ET 	;L '(-7  c > - 

c;  o 
s- ,- - — 

, _ = 
,-, 	r 	1-. 	 ',.. 	-r 	 -, 	 ,- 	r.. 
t.%) 	.,, — ..-- 

C 	

.7-■ 	-0 	> ,D,c, - 4_,, 	 CJ r-414  4,4) 0 ‘----" - ,,,' 0 
I-. .-.. 	...-. 	0  ,--1 	- 	 _, 	 55J bri 0 	C;2. ' L-'' P  5) 	0 -- u r 0 	r 

,,_. 
"0 '-'-'r 	cd.-  ---- 	b.f.') 	

t . E 	,t4/D 	,.-='' 	?•-• 	,4, 	--, 	 , 
,-, 	r , 	11 -T 	t..-■ 	

-1-, 	r 
•-■ 	 :_, :-_-.-' ,-- 	:>, ,C2. 	 :i 	= 	, - , .... 

• o 	
0 

__, 	o :- 	- 	 ,--, 	,-. 	,.T 	0 	.._ 
s-,_, -,, 	-a, 	..,---. 	7-7., 	, 	1-. 	5, 	rz,_  	r... 	c---, 	rj 	a) 	',..) rr r. 3-., 	,-I 

',1J 	r> 	>-O 	4'"' -0 	r:' 	- ,,_, 	(,.) -4:5 
,=-1 	- 	u 0 0 	, = '. 0 .0 -0 CJ 	,./ 5 	'-■ J 	vs 	s.., 	6 	,..-,• 

VC 	” -0 0,-) 	0 r r ›.... 0 	0,:,•0'-' 	ET 	;L '(-7 c > - c; o s- ,- - — 
, _ = 
,-, 	r 	1-. 	 ',.. 	-r 	 -, 	,- 	r.. t.%) 	.,, — ..-- 

C 	
.7-■ 	-0 	> ,D,c, - 4_,, 	 CJ r-414 4,4) 0 ‘----" - ,,,' 0 I-. .-.. 	...-. 	0 ,--1 	- 	_, 	55J bri 0 	C;2. ' L-'' P 5) 	0 -- u r 0 	r 

,,_. 
"0 '-'-'r 	cd.- ---- 	b.f.') 	t . E 	,t4/D 	,.-='' 	?•-• 	,4, 	--, 	, ,-, 	r , 	11 -T 	t..-■ 	-1-, 	r •-■ 	:_, :-_-.-' ,-- 	:>, ,C2. 	 :i 	= 	, - , .... 

• o 	 0 __, 	o :- 	- 	 ,--, 	,-. 	,.T 	0 	.._ s-,_, -,, 	-a, 	..,---. 	7-7., 	, 	1-. 	5, 	rz,_  	r... 	c---, 	rj 	a) 	',..) rr r. 3-., 	,-I 
• • 	 • 	 • • • 	 • 	 • 



2 	''....■ — 
0 ,--..- 0 
CI :) 

'a."' 	7--  
,-- 

- 0  -- 
..75 'r0 
0 ,--, ,--, -.----- . -.-- ■ 	-,-■ 

-7_ z.s• 
F." _0 -, 0 

• :- 
 Ejj 

---' 	, r, 	.77: 7 	,....., 

:t.-' -0 	,-.; 
,..., 	0 	r 

,..... 

_:..f.7:- .-Fr 
---,- J , 

.,-- 

C
yb

er
  L

ia
bi

lit
y  

J 
0 

. - 	..c. 	,---, 	• .- 	.. 

0 	,s., = 	,4 0 

= 	:.,*--;,=,"  

	

J 	 u 

	

',0 	_,_>-,.. _077 	rt 	, ,_ 	t 	1) 	0 
'I) 	..-'=. 	,,: 	.1) 	6': 	, 

	

.0 	 .0 	'' 	I? ,.-:). 	. 
' i.J..1.4, 	r-4 	LLDr 

	

a 	0) 	0 	V 	.17., 	a 

	

0 	0 	 -- -0 	H 	::.) 	-IL". 

	

6, 	 "-''' 

• .--1 	• .... 	---. 	bri 	(;•2 	0 	C--," 	,..4) 

	

..), 	. 	.k_. 

	

„:, 	0 	 ._, 

	

, 	ti-.) 

,.7•., 	, 	,-. 	— 	, 	u 	Cr 

	

l-r 	..---■ r-r. 	„ or,r 
70,.6' 	CD 	'' 	--1 	0 

,r, 
.', 

	

,„ 	. _ 	, 	•-• 	•-,, 	d 	.--, 	1) 

	

,,,„ 	,_ 	-.2. 	71 	._, 	r 

	

ts, 	'-'  •..) 	,- 	:., 	•,7•.,- 	t 	('-•:), 	'•--- 
 ,- 	.*,-..3 	,' 	, 	7,-'. 	• 

..., 	,', 

,.--, 	,_, , 	....., 
-0 	'-',--, 	0 

, 	, 	.-.. 
,, 	-: 	,0 

---5-7 	f--, 

,-..,, 	• -, 	.2_. ,- 	0 
0 

.. 

--..-„, t 

7r,,7" 	7.., 

,.., 	.L-=,- 

- 

-0 
, 

7772, 
''J
,z-) 

. ,--, 

V 

--- 
r 

0-. 
o 
„•:„. 

0 

• - 
r,  
...... 

7- 
 

:>-.... 

,-, 

:7-: 

u 
V 
v 

,.'---: 

0 

, 
;-, 
r 

C: 
—' 
0 

'T.. 

,. 
7,  r 

'0.; 
0 

to F.-- 
0 	 0 

.--,-, 	 ,-- 
,7•7; 	 .1.-1 	 r 	,...; 

0 	 , 
....0 	 ..-?; 	Tf • ..,_, 	 -0 	C.,-. 

.-b.C. 	 ,7d 	-7'.;' 	 0 6 45  
0 	 ,, 	 ,:.-717, 0 0 	,., ,_., 	 ,-, 	,--' 	-0- 

‘,” 
"-_-, u 	 0 ,1 , —  
4-, 	-,., 	 i- 	,- 	. 75-' •',='. 

7- 	.0 , 
	7, 

O .-= 	- 0  	,'-=' -0 	- 	-, , 
0 	• - r 4_ , 

4-,  4 	 0- 	 0  .-4 	- 	 .1,'/ 	- -D '- ■.-, C7 	'--7, 	7, 	
--,' 

r  
0 ,,.2 -,-.: 	 0 	2 	:•-, 	4.., 	, 	u 
-.2, 	u 

'J a ,-'' L'''• ;;,.; - ,]..) 	51) 	.,,,•  
▪ u ,,  0 

 , 
= ,.' ,-j 7,s U ,--' 0 , ,-, ,..., ■ /-, 

• , 	,.._, 	.':'_, 	C; 	-,-,7, 	, 	,-_,U - 	ET) 	...,-, ,- ..,, 
,--,' 	:) 	-,--, 	0 	, —, 

:-,-- 	,-- 	0 .- 	 ., 	,-, 	,,L., 	.1,-... 

 <'- 
r----. 	.-L.  

,--r 	6'- 
, L

- 

---' ..L."; 	'J 	.

• 	

=7, 	, ' — 	— r''' '-:. 
0 	r--  0 22 , 	r 	-'-' 	• P cr 1 0 	"-, 	,r,' 
7. '.. 	• 7--- 

• 

..) 	5,_ 	 :,-f 	V 	 77.; 	r., 	•-_, 
r.1) 	,-, .--, 

, 0 	— __ 	, • - 
-,7, 	,- 	.0 	0 	---,  

E 	:-----,. , ✓ _, 	u ., 	 u 
• - 	, ..-,-., 	",=d- 	-"-• 	u 	..:_,-. 	, 	,..., 
- u -,-, 	.---•• 	>-.. 0 	:.,--, 0 	/=--:,7, 	,-) 	0 -' 

	

; 	..,- 
O 1-" , 	,...,- ..., 	7., 	_C 	,.:j  
-,-, 	, 	r, 	, ,__, 

7.,...  t::::, 	
,_., ,_, .,, 4..„ ...„ ._0_ 	,. `J ›. 0 _ 

77, ,,,,,, .,--,-- 	_ , , _ ,._ ._., 	, _ 	U ,0 • 
o 	,- , 	 r., 

.- 	,--• 	- 	
F
. • , , o . 74  

r:, cL7 	u 
,z_.-• 	

u .__c 	,L., -'2,  
r 7.: 

H t-." ,.■ 	1,-.Z., i-: 	, V -,- 0 

-,,-... "0  
V C-, 

	

0 	 P 
rt  

'0 4_3 	7, 

	

_.rte. 0 0 	 - = 0  • - 0-  — 	 , 	 - ,:- 	 ' 	..., ,7) -=. 	

• 	

' 7 -r--5  0 -C 	5--. 	, 	-1--. -, 	71 —,,,,o 67. 	0 	 "-U 	l"..) 	 , 

- 

0 	.7-% 
,-, 	-,--. 	,--- 	,- 

	

.0 	7: 	 7 

	

.-' 	0 •-/-, -.7-3 	 r 	.1,- 	 ' , ....-, 	, _O 
..,, 	 ,--: 	r . y•-_,-' r-. 	,__, 	,_, 	 0 

a 	--"--' 	. ',__, 	-1--. 	7,01 	-0 r-ca • :-"'r 	'`") 	 ,r3. 	'Cr- 	V 	,,, 	 72: . ,74 	',::-' 

.,.2.  ,,.. 	 ,..', 	 CO 	 Li 	 ,,, 	 .0, 	 •••••• ■C 	 . 
 , '•'. >, .•'•' •••••' 70' t ' f7 2 	 P'''•  , • .' 

• •• 	 , . , , 1 	0 	 ' 	 ' 	U 	'' 	L''' 	b° '.0 	 '''' 	 , 	'..) '.,. 	
■4 	 •,'‘'', 	 • 7' 	 CU r-  V'  

..., 	, -a 	...-0 0 D-' ;.L.) 0 - --, •-7_,' -,, , 

". 	r ' 	. 	1 	
71 , --. r • - 

	

i 	
7 •--.._:-: 

-, ,..„... 0 	r 	r . - 

- 	

,.•.: --r.; 	-:-.: 	 ,:-.1. 	.0 	'3 
.0 	, 	h ,72, 	7 	G 	4-r  0 	4.a  , ,2 'c4  CD 	,) 	J0  

	

a, 
	'-,r 	V 	L., 	,-.° 	!" 	., 	:- 

et 	0 4  .-'-' rt 	0 	0 At 	a r .,:-'r 	V 	CI) 	;"' 	'''' 	r r-1  • r" 

u 	
,_.,  

	

:- ,,, 0 	tr) „t-, 

	

,.„C 0 _0 	.

▪ 	

-.-; • - .__, ,_, . - 
u P :If; .1) ,, t-.,r,., 	-- trJ i P T 	,• - 	b,c, , 	 ,.,. •- 	u '-- ,.... -- 	,-,.,. 
u ,T., u •=,,. o != t)-,o :•(..; . E. ::: 0 , . E' . E.' 	, -, 	 u ,-• .5 	2 u  .,., 	,_. 	,.._ 	.,..., 	 r 	, 	'TA 	,_, . L_,  .---, 	■ ,„ 

	

-V 

▪  

- ■ ,-, __ 	,  
• ■

• 	

?2, 	c'.,-.:-  . -LI:L' 	'''' 1-,  r 	-. ,- 	 • , 	,--, C.; 	
r , -, , ._, , 	0 '-' 	 ',39 Ha' -1  - - ) 73  ,- -- 4.- ■ 	 , 	_, 	-I-2  0 	'17  V .440, p ' a  

P V -1-- ■ 	•.__ 	tto ,;=:. !::-.,LP 2 	 0 0 	7- ; b 	 — , ,- U 
'•-•< , j

▪ 

	-0, 	J a-, , F'

• 

. , " 0 -5 •-•=, 0 	- •-ar- 	
-

• 	

,-.., c- 	__, -..o. 
.-... _,-•_t -77. 	:_ — 

,--• 	,_,_, 	--, 	,,_,- 	,Th  . 

7 	
.5 	-3 tr.) '" c-- 

 

rct 	 ., 	---' . ,-- 	,4 	.--, 	r, 	,--, 	„,/, 	ra..  ,,,, 	ri 	V 	,... 	, 	0 	e4.1--•  I" 	0 	'-' 	, 

,0  	 L..1 	,4 rr, 1 

	

u „ 	 V r j 74".•  ' 
C-1 	=.1 r.-"r” 	'4., 	'''' 	.... 	0 	 r-r r- 	2-4 	b)  .--• " '") ;,•,.  , 

	

..E. ,,...h a j:' (L)  ' = ' 	 , 	 .' , 	 ° 	 t • 	 r2 ' • .'

- 

	
''•'' 	, 	

'7: '6?, . 	0 
 

'''..' 	 '"- -7.,  ...:_,-, 	--: '-t 4-. 	h  -k-,  1'71 	,7:, 	 ?:■ 	 ,-2 	U —C: 	, 	0 

	

0 tip "=. 	7/ -0 P,  r-r ' 	 .2 	cl ,- 	O 
r•-•• 	,,,: 	,-, -„7,•, 	,__, 	 ••••-, 	0 

.;_•_,- 	,-:•• 	— 	,__, 	, 	„D 	J 	,P,' 	- 	-,-) 	,- 

	

._ 	._, 	,,.--,_ _ 	.... ,-, 	, 	 :••,.. -. 	,c, 
, 	,,c2 _c.., 	P 	,--.• v-, 	- 	Fr 	, 	 , 	0 	..... 	cl 	r._.) . - 	J, ^-0 	f: 	''''' 	'-',7] 

	

^.1 	• 	

c  

1  V 0 	,r, 0 , ----, a 	ra"  0 	r 	>. 	. :=7: 

7" 	7 	';'/..) 	''3 -' 	
,,./ 	:-, -:-..• 	0 	r 	E_-,_, u 	,..- 	, 	, 	-.., 	;.. 	o.., 	-;=, 	'•-1 	, 	u  ♦

„ 

	

'.' 	:•- 	r,_-_ 	, 	br:, - 	.:q.) 	--, 	cL.) 	:- 	-, 	 , 	. • - 	,,, 	. 

▪ A.... _C 

c j 7-,' .7t , ..--4  
, 	,

L) 	 e- ■ . ,--. 	,-, 	c. 	, 	CI 	, 	V 	,--: --■ 	 I) 	'I 	(,-.7).-; 	0 

	

. '—' , U 0 , 	• a  , , 2,  13 :---, 	 4—,  0 
• • 7, 	' 0 - .0 

'7' 7  0 
 

71 br3 0 

__77- 	•57-7  . 7, 	 -. 	:-? 	, •_.•:'. 7,=.! 	b./3 u • - 

	

.:_! 	,-„, 	-,',.; 	71 . 7 	 "..  ;... 	- 	 c--) 	u 

	

.- 	u 	,,7_,. 	r  _ „ ._ 0 -1-,  . - 0-.1 4-. :0 	r0  p 	...-7.  7, 	 Q 	.., C 2' i:5 	> 	 a V U -. 

	

-.. r 	
0  

.. 

• 	

..., 	,"..c., 	,,, ,,.." ,Tr  
..: ',42 V 7-1;1 	< ,..-2 

 
i ,■"‘'  - ' 	C CU 	?--,j 	11 	,G.'. / 7 L' .c,  :)-, '4'  U 

 

	

, 	r--' 7E' -]E, 	'ft' 

C
U

L
T

U
R

E
 



"..1 

.1-•  

e—  ".= 	:7. 
.  e— 	

1-/ 	 .. 	1.... 
,.., 	 •^. 	 • ' 	...' 
..C. 	•-'.._ 	 '':) 	 Cor■ 

•-:=•_, 	 ,  7.././ 	 ..L. 	....... 	
••••':.. 	al... 7 	q..., 	r...  j 	4, 

.t.  ' 	=  7.  • 	_  - 	 - -,-..  .,-_,  -: ,_,, 	'..., 	,.., 
 C 

 ;,.. 	
S' 

- 	 ..... 	:., 	...• 
of..... 	 e 	 ...-. 

- 	 ., 	e.-.:,  

:••••■  • •■ 	 cd 	''7 ■' 	 .0.-.. 	'../. 	 ■ 

.0_, 	 ....■ 	
'..., 

 C  ,  4,-. 	•- - ■  '...,  — 
;a  •-•-• 7= V:, 	 . - 

...., 	'-:. 	,.... 	= 	
, 
-.■ 	

.- 	 .-. --- , 
'...., 	•- 	toe, 	 -..- 	

■-t 
.-4 	 .  :L." 	:..., 

'''.: 	 - 	. • 	 .... 	r- 	4-. 	"..-... 
r•-• 	 ,": 	.... 

Jr: 	 '7./ 	r" 	 - 	 ,•-• 
.... 	,- 	7...; 	• •-•  -,„ F  ." 

f•-• 	;-_-, 	 1.-. 
. 	r•-• 	 .-. 	,., 

›,.. 	'..r ...-. 	... 	 :,,, 	" 
I 	 . 

..... 	= 
, 	,,,•!:: 	,- 	 "..1 •-,-. t 

''' 	e..7 	...' 	,... 	 r-  
• •-• 	 .  ::: 	.•-, 	 ' 	 •-. r".: '-.: 	 .....  ...", 

Col 	..-' 	".l 	.-1" 	 r- 4-•-• 	,-, 	.0 
" 

.6-. 	.-. 	....  r . 	".... 	"-r• 
..... 	I.- 2 f t  ,  - ._. -  t.f.,  '-' 

-1.- 

.... 	 C.  
,.:, 	 .  ... 	 ..... r.-- 	 .-. 	 ..., 	P. 
■-• 	 "-,■ 	- 	> 	 4.- 	•-• 

-  a. 	.'7.;"  
•-,- 	v.  •  - 

'.1.4  
,:,, 4.... L._ 
:/: 	es 	7: ...„. 	=  --, 	 ,..• 

.1—■ 

''' 	•••••,. 	 F.. 	 ,.., 	 • 

.•••• 	 •••• 	.'.../ 	r—  — 0-17 	.4  ..........."'- f•-• 

7 

,-. 
- 	 -. 	:". 	•-• 	 . 	= 	...., 

1-, 

Z,, 	 , 	-:- 	f•-:  .-- 	> 	..--: 

.. 	.,,, 	..,:  _ 	..., 	..- 	r  •  ' 	 .  .7. 	; 7.  .  .' 
4.-. 

f•-• 	 •-.0 	 ,_. 	 , 	

'j 	 7.5 	 '-,) ••-• 	 •—• 	r- 	r- 	..,-,  -= 
....-.., ,-.. 	 , 



<NI 

In
d
u
s
tr

y
  I

ns
ig

h
ts

  ; 
 

'7' .-77  C  0 tr.,  '''' ' -d r., ,-t 
>. ° o.., 

c-, 	- 	' 	,'_, 	.., 	,.. 0 	--- .1.., 	. 	 (1)  0 ,ci  - ,e-_-_1 .= 
st, 

5 :77.-; b/`J,) , 0  .,_.• 

0 •- . - , 1, ,7,. .' --ri 
0 1, r 

r 	 .,-■ -.. 0 

, P ,-_, ,.,j  > ,t, 0.) r -7-. - 	 N

7: P t:-' ,L-7., r,,,, • v rj 4...,  ,-, 
V • v 	

, 6 

_,,-- 	ri.) ir \ ,-j 	 , 

	

'-; 	
, 0 r C:,  0 0 ,-. f_L• 	I-,  

r.,1 -•=-L , r 
 0 ,_, 

 ,,,). ,-. 

0 0 	,,,, 	,',.,' r '-7-'-, 	_, 
  ,-, ,  

r•---1 	'.,,.5 	',-D-D :-.1-, -= 	0 	',".!) 	•,-, 	c." . ,-, 
r 

'-"- 	:,. 	t .,t 	;7'- 
0  C../ 	0 0 ,t 4-," 	

',7'C 
,-- 	0 0 

- j.,-• 0 0  7',  V, P = -6  
. 	, ,.._, 	, 
V0 7; • r ■ r  ;T.")  0., .1) 

U
J

r, r - 0 ' 0  r ,-, 	' ,.., 	.-; r, 	0 - 7-,' 	._0 	;:. 	,L) 	
,-, :-.. ,..313 E; 

v r 

- 	 ,  
^J\ ,/ 	•-, ,r-i- 

	

,),'. < 	: : - .'' 
 

C/ 	U ra 	 --' ,t 'y', - 
..> 	 'E 	br) --, . Y' 	,c-_,_ ',-; 	',:-,) ,- 

	

.... 	,-- 	t  
1̀-: , _ 	 • 	,t, , ,'- ,t ' • 	,- 	-,.., -a 

.4-3'' • r • -1  

•-=4 	,-■ 	0 2̂, 
 7 .472. _L- 	C)'''' E,0'. I, 	U ,_, , 

, 	b.() ,  
J 	 or)  ;:- , 0 :-..r.• _ 
p,' 	•-_, -r. wE,' 	r, •-.2  

0 r 
::-!., 	0 	0; ",-- 	:at 	 "; 	' 

tn 

z  

 

Ll. 

Cr, 

p  

Pr
o

du
ct

  L
ia

bi
lit

y  

	

. 	 , 	,.,••• ••,.' 	C 	 ^-a 	 V 
V • v ..n. 	r^ v 	 V 

	

, V 	 7... :=)-■ 	 , 

	

,-) 	0 	IU 	,.,,'' 	'."0, t.') 

• !„.. L) 

■ 

, Pr 

* < r7i ..: ,, • Ff., 	„_, C4) 	-■ 4,D V 0  .-) 
"7.4I 	,'-'.. 	■-■ 	 I—' 

	

0 	 , 0..) . '.--I
•C)  Fj) 	 0 	 '.4..-:, 	77.‘ 	:77) 	, 	u 	 ,__, 	> 	, ,)...I 	 -., 	4.-•  , 	C. '7:;.. . ,-77• 	',...) 

,) 	../.7 	C 	'...-C-1 
	.... 	C.,' 	7.) 	C 	'72! r■)-, 	 C. 

, 	 •-• C.) . C..) 	).,-..., ,..--, 	-., 	L., 	 , 	I, 	, 	, 	+ ..' 	e77) 	..j 	(7', < 	,•-• 	>'-. v  

	

. 	- -. 
,•-' 	,..' 	 a., , ,-, 	• --, 	. '-) 	r 	.r.: 	'-' 	' 	'=, 	r''' ' 	';_-..-' 	 _._... 	, 	,, 	,I..? 	• - 

-.:,- 

,,..., .22, • ,-, -- ■ 	`ZS; 	0 	0 ____,r7± 'L: 	'4, -0' 	
r 	,- 	, 	,-, 	,,,,, 	:__, 
” n-, ,•-) v - r ,r- ,-, ...- 	•,,, 	 ••:•., 	 •••,• 	0 	4 	,.,-.. •,-• 	• 	-, 

 
-C '-0 r1, 1-' >,,, r-- 	-' 	, 	C., -' 	.- 	 Do 	,.1.. 	 , _ 	„, 	-,-) ,...4 , ..2, 	'',.> 	!DID U 	,-: 	7-7 .,_, ..•4 	 '''' 	'-'[./ ,-0 	' :-. 	-' 	. 7" t= 	;..r.i r-j b  ---; 	
2, 0 	 4 

	

,-, •-'.. 	, 	-, 	r_ 

0 -'-' 	0 4-, 	•-• 	 , ,_, 	c., , ,..., 	4-■ 	, ,,,,, 	 0 	"..,.., 	'-',,„ 	i2,_. , 

u •  , „ . . . , .- 	„P „P t., 0 -- 	 ,.. lu.0 ,- -,-. &)- 

 

,---,. 0 =L •r-, u , 	,,,, _:._, 	,- 	,-,,.0 • 77. 	 '> 	, 	f7_1,. 	, , , - -  , 	..J  ,-... -,, 7_; 	 0 > 	_c P 

	

,- r7.,' 	--7.D =-' 0, ,-,:t 2 	,,-__,, U CD ;„ c-,  bi-, ,Lr 
. .: 0 r 1 	,-,.r 	0 	•-• 	c,., 0 ,c.L. • 	-, 	„,• 	,  	.•_, -1--,  . „.., 	,--, 	" 	, 	" 	,..■, " 	',-, 	 ..'5D C.') 	C.: -1-.) 	',": "" 	" 	" 	".-, 	S-■ LT-1 	
, 	.7., ,-./ 	- 	 , ' 	t._ 

	

D 	Ii'r...,  0 "■ 	0 	 1-■ 

	

0 	,..... 	 .r_.. 	''-, 	.>") 0 	0 	 '7" C: 	;', 3 : "  	' 0 ': 	I " " ' 	1 	0 ,. 	,-.. ,- 	,-• 	,-• 	 _E., , 	'''' '47. 	"-'' 	''''' 	'..' -F.; 	° 	t'-') 	.r-I„, 1,7, 	 L.) 	 ° 	''"-: 	,-• ri 0 	r_. , cr., 
,_ • - 

, r -• 	0 	r•-•••- 	
•_,' 	'- 

	

, ;,-• „0 	 ,L, ".-,f,  -,33  0 , 1'1  

	

, - ,_„ c„., 	,•:,„r_, -72 or - '-) -7. 	5a, '•:' :._• 
r 	-- 	 r- 	,...,7 	■-• 	0 .",=, 	■:-../) 	 ii- 	r 	,- •_., •-• , ao ,- J ,- , 

	

_,_, 	0  ,..,,::; ..„•:: • - '-' 	:_, 	, 	 .. j' • , 	- , q.) 	,,,, -- 

	

0 	0 	-, 	 - 	::.- 	> ..- 	,_, 	,-,.., 	- 	 • - 	-.L., 	-, 	,- ,,-, 	.--   

	

,-, .-'.:_,' 	,,,' u -,_,_ 	„,., u c-- .-:- -a -..', 	, FL  PI 
---- 	, 	....., _ 	0  _, , -c-:_ , 	- al)  _ 

,   t 	.L-,- 	....

0 0 

u r' 	
U 0 	0  tf: 

0 ' El, 	.a. 	, 	.0 	-Iv 	 ...- 	■-,A, ..... 	ct 	 V 	v 
z ,,,,, '--' 	p 	■-i , g 	 " v; 	0 	0 	0 , , 	" U ..,:, ,,,- .r,,  , 	, , 	,_.9  - 	,,,, 	 ._ 

4_, 	.-■- ,—, 	CD 	> 	 i-' 	 '■ 	 (-', ,- 	rt  ,-- 	I'll  
", -■ 	 WI 	Cf. 	 0 	 I" 	 , 

	

u 	';:f 	 q..) U -0 
r.; , r: 0 4-; , -rj ?-2-., r„) 	- 	-. -v . v 	,r7 	.,...: 	v. 	 ', 	..,-, 

v -1,7J c7; ,,.0 	p 	 ■C 	 V 	= -,,T,, 74 , -71 --rD 	.0 	,-' 	-, 	,-, , .,.. ...., ›- 	,7,' c) ._ 
, 

..t., 	,.. 	
C 
	0 1.- ■ 	 0 ) .1.) 

	

.1-.■ 	 -).-.) 	,--, . ".. 	 CI-J'  ,› -0  
v,- Li 	 c,.) ^ 	.0 	2 	'-''':: 2 	,r,  ca.' 	..."  ,:a.) 	0 	,,i, 	- 	, 

	

r-, 	, 	-- 	 a-, .. '.. 	ca, 
o  .2 t 	3. :1) 	-   

,-4.-I 7,2 ° '11 	-"''''- ,-.-„, 	. 	1, , , - y 1.) 	:-   ,--  0 0 	 4-) ro 	 C r
-  

.r,_, 	_.,r-  

	

a .1"1  . ■4 	-1.--/ 	.../.., ... •:=7. 	, I)  ,...) 	..-..; 	• •-• 	, 
)..) 	).-,, 	, 	(..) 	)... 	, 	:7) 	Ci.)  •- 	a cl., 

 
0 	'' ' 	 .) . ;11 	, 	i",_,1 	

-"4„, 	C..., 	--l.4 r" r..„/..., 	C■4  
C"."1_ .1_, 

 
'7,77.) 0 '.) 	a0._, ._=. ,-- 	r- 	'3,0 r- ) 	■_.) 	> 	,-) 	- 	..a., r_. 	 ..-• 	,._ 	c 	r 	,- 

	

,,_, 	,- 	•__, 	c 	>•, 	,-• 	c.T.,_, •-,..• C.) r 0 -.:.- r• 72, ::;• 	in 	r- 7 ra: 	— 	1,-,  r, .,,, r: 

sc
ie

n
ce

s.
  

"::_l 
,-1-- .--i • ,-, ;:, ■ •--:'' 	 C.) 	4-■ 

 . 	
-,- 

r, 	,.... 	5' '-'2 	 ..---, 	p 	.., 	,- 	•0  0 •,,, 	__,•-• 	 _ 	,-• 	.••,, 	U - 	- 	 c.:, ,•--, i 	_,_... 	r- 	••:,, Y,- •-• ,- 	 0 > •:,-3- „r., 	' 7 . :L1 
 

-.0 . 7 :, -1, 	c, 	;.--; 4- 

	

0 0 '.-.) ,t 	 , 
,..1. 	 _, 	it  0 	v, „:.; 	,,,,, 	-, _,_, ._;_-_, ..;-• 	U 	tjj 

.0 0 	

, 	r r ,•- ■ , 
,;=,„ , 	0 C, ,C,'? P '-' ° 
0 • - 14) 4-: ._:,,.., r_c, ___ 	s., ..--, 	0..) 	,..., 	, 	• „r , 	 • .-. 	 _,_, 	U,-■ V, 

	;', 1) 	'g 	 . 77'..r 7.-'-1  
'' v , r. 	r..-. 	r. 	4-) 	• ,r 

,--,) 	0 	,” 
-,-.   	 • ,-, 0 u 	 .t1'- 	ry:),  cd n .?:- 	 , ,-,,,,:;- 	 .,- 	, _ U 	 , , 	0_, -72,  , ,-:', ' -c, vi P 	 0 , . . - , 	,,,, r, 0 	I 	 , 4-, ,'LH I" 	, ;."4„.,.  0. 	

'C 	" 
0 	' 	U 	1) 	'j.,2,>`.. CO,I.) 	

r_r) 	.-. 
„, ',,, 	-C - V , " 	 CO 	',-, "0 V  '' . ■-■ >".. "0 0 

. '. . 1--..7'. 	 -.= 	2. "--.0 " '-'-'j  
. ■-■ 	 r 	I 

--or ' -T:r ;L■ '.-.-3 	r2   ,__,-- 	.,-,... •  

	

,1; 	u ,_ 	 , 

	

,...r. 	.1-,  
J 	'," 	

-1 

	

, 0 ,--, '' ,-; 0 " U■ 	 0 a:: ") V 	> „'.7; 	:-, 	r ,_,, 	.-- ,t 
✓', . 7,:, 	■,:j 	P- u..-, 

V
,-,  ,-, 	-r., 	r ,..., 	 r-. v0 U '"''''' 	T. ' -V r 	--r -, U r 	 C, '7,,  ,,__,” 	0 	CI 	r: •- 	r", 	,-, 	 'T, 	-1--, 	c::' , U .,.• . 	t" 	 0 	,-7" >, 4_, 	p --- 	- 	-, 	,- 	.:.?- 	 .4-, 	,-■.., 	„ ..s 	„.... r' +-I u 0 U ',_, 

0 Co :4  1 " C ) 
, 0 u  

• 5 . 'd  0 -;---•".' ,`0. 0 	P 	. - 
...' 	-:-- 77; 

 "'"7-7H- CL'H'; 	----' 'D „c, ,_,-., Vr_, 	_,,■ "Ti,a,  0, 	, 	 V 	,,,, 	C-.-' 'Li 	 r 
-, 	0 , 0 	• ,- , ,,7---1 -4-■ ;7:,” 	, * 

rli 	,..-1 	, 	-, '74.--.1 	11 	;74-1
..) --,,,, 	,_, .--, 	...... 	,.., 	• --. 

-1-, 	, 	.'"..' • ,7'.. 	).-q 	> 	■-■ 	:1' Ur).- 	, 	, e:t C r-) 	r- .- 	.1-, 	., 
E 	IC) 	bip '') 	C.1 7-1 	.-.-I • " 	I)-: 	

r, ° 	--:' 	T■ .---■ 	 ,..■„, 	, , 	u 	...., 
, . 0 , • 0- ' --T- 	 - • -I 

	

'''' tt) '' "l 'a, 6 	
J 2 . 

0 '..--, 	 " 

._,,, 	,.... -1--dr,  

' 4-• 
U 	 b,0 ■-L■ 
"14i 	:.■,_. 	CI,  .....-, 	T., 

, 	" 	C..., 	, • " 	''''''' , 0 ,_E-'  . j_,-" 	,',-,:t 	0 	C.-.) -."2. 	c---: 	:."..-'-' 	0 • --' -C. 	I-)  



re, 
- 7.1  .. 	■-■ 
0 

	

2 	
4-4 0 	Y7: 

	

)- 	 7, 	r 	• ,- 

	

0 ...:-,' 	 .--, 	 4-■ 

	

rp 0 	 5
!-C r•-' 	 4-, 	 0 	"-- .  	 .-Cr 	C 
 r   

- 	,-_,._ 	0 	u --=-- .ri 	,, 	to • - 	,,, , 

‘•-•-•■ 

. LI.' 	-I-, 	 '1, 	bti 	 4--, ..- ■ 
:..-. 

0 	0 	A 	— ,_ 	-,='• - :,,,-' 	, ;•_•, 	,___ 	. 
u 	4..., 	 T.) P. 	A' 	 . 0 !I 	11 0 ' 	 C.,' r 	)... 	> 	-1-3 	r 	

), Li 
	• ,rj 	. r 

1.1 	0 	r 	 . ,- '0 t- 	 0 0 	r  .--, 	2 	0 	 ,_ LC  
	 C, . 	 r ,.., ,.. 	,,, 	 ...., 

i---. 2 
, 	, 	d 	,■ -7.., 	El 	2-, ,...,b1) 	 i- 	 ,-.J 	4-4 	,-,,, 

1.) 	7; 	.4_, 	 — X0-1 .11. 	-X '-•"! 	0 , 	'-'0 .0 

	

  , r--,''') %. -›: 	

..., -0 	-1.-■ ,--d.  
, 	 :L. 	

-4--■ 	 E.: 	, 	'..4.) 	r 	 0 '- 
0 s_. to 	) 	 ... 	41 

kr 	> ' 4 	77't -.- 	, ',) V  H 	 5 .4 	 .4-4 	 C-1 

	

0 : 	 >, 'Li  , 
. a 	-■ 	 7.a.  'X) 

e-. 
r 	

, 
• .- 

U 	0 	 t4) 0 	C.', •L- 	 4-,  
'...0. 	0 	 V 	.) 	 r".) 0 	,-= 	 - 75 .r- 	V ,J :4' 	 0 	 0 , 	 Cr; 

C.-) 	c::,_, 	r ....4 	 T. 	
1;, ,_2 E) 	

0 ,„ 	,,, U 	 , U 	 s- _C 	 ,.., 	C.) 	c.) 	 eT", 	,..,_ 	 .,_, Tr., 
VD 	2 	:- 	 ..,..., 	. ,...., 	,.„,., 	■..., 	.,.., 	,_., 	c.., 
r 	 0 	 Co, 	>.• 	u 

0 	72) 	-75 	1, 	P 	>-, 	 .,.: 	 .,-.. 7- — ..„.._. ..,„, - ,, 

	

. - 6. .._,_, 	,, _c 	: 	2 ,_, 	c..) c..., 	 _,C 7:  ,. 	,...., 	u 	. 	,. 	c_., 	-0 -■-■ 	 ,--1 	7re--] 	 .70 	 U 
, 	 1.-) 	 -1, 	 •-, 	 r,-) 	

k; •Lt• 	.,... 	 ••■.) 	
0 	 r-r  --, 

-■-■ 	 I* 	 p , 	, 	CI, . -_, . --, 	,.., ,; 	U -,-' 
, 	 rit-' t...I  

. 	'._L4 	,-.=', 	

,t, 	.4„. 	 ,".; 	C 
C.) 	-,.., 	 .._, 
bo r- 	v 0 	' 

..-__;,.., 
1.) 	;•', 	4  

	

.1)  u 	, - 	, 	,-. 	,7-) 	0 	, .,14)  

	

7,' 	
, 

4;0 	..- 	S-- 	- 	 r 	0 U 0 	C C) 	, 0 	''' 	-'1'7', '-'-'ra '7,-; 	2 sr'.  
, 
< 	

1) r 

	

.2 	:-.2 	d •;4:-; 
, - 

 cc;   
V) 

■ 	 ■ 	■ 	 ■ 	■ 	 ■ 

	

0-. 	 ..:.) >  .;,_-L_ , ,r)  ..., 	 '7  r.,./.3 	 CI 	 ,--1 	r- 	 a) 
C. / - ' .  -, .4_, 	 - 	, r4_, >. 7 	0 	 ,--, 

4..0 	C, ,--, 	 u 	._ 	 4-4 	,-, '-a 
.-- .1 	C 	C.) 	F,., 	 • — 	-,  .74 ;>- 'I)  C 

d -1--■ 	 ■-•-•I ----71 
,..., 	

:-1 	1:2. 	0 	•'=1 	 •:•;6• 	4-, 	,-, 	 . 7, 	r'-' 	 a' --- 	c,  
..., 	0- ,r, 	- u,.: 	, 	,,, 	J.., r  '. 	 -7--.. C• 	 • ,--• 	••-• 	;-", 
.7,..„ 	 ,..., 	 . , 	• .- 	 r:, 	...-, 

	

,_CI 	 0 0 ') 	
'a C  ...--... '' 	E_H t r . 	.--. 	 r.- 	 __H-'.,--, . r•-• 	,,-, 	,4, 

',.-1 	̂-`-■ 	
..... 	 v;, 	..-. 

.0 . ' .L.- • 	 , • 	 . 	cil,.., 

, 	k , 	:=1 	0 0 	'') = 	,:l.) ,, 	 •=' 7" 	_.'-' 0 	0 	P-) 	c., 	-, 4.-J /---, , 	•,,/ 	 i•-• 	 ,..., r, 	".1.) 	ate- 
 -0 -' >, , .... 	, 	-, 

Cl d --,-,i ,- c; •_ 

	

- 	,, • :-- __.„ c:.•,_•- 	- ,,, 	, •>,... 	z - s ,,,' 
,-• 	,:-i 	4-, 	,,,,, 	,, 	, 	„-„-.: 	0 	-7 	 -0 	C.2 ,-, 	.-_. '-4 4_, 	1.) 	;.•-,,) 	cr, 	r 	0  r_,  

, 	• r • r 	r 0 

	

4.., .,— u 	 0 	 r 	. , -.0  1.1 0' 0 	 0 -4-, -0 	 C.) -10 .,-) 0 0 0 	> . ',-_2.  '47-1  

	

, 	
0 

,..' 	(." 	0 . :-. --- ■ 
. , 

 
'-' --',-e, r, 	r. 	..... 	

U 
0) 	a' 

	

c,..,  .15' 	 u 	
, 	,-- 

,., 

I..' 	 j 	 , 
 - -..._, 	- ,..- 	 -, 	, 	 c.'.. 	t- 	,.-. 	p --, 0 	2-. c-,  

>. lt   7 _ ,C )''' 	

.1.1 17.:'  'L. 7- 	 T.-', 	0 ,I3 	4-4 0 • -4 r r 0 , 

	

0 	' 	, 	r 	T, C. 

	

E.,› '10 0 	 0  

	

---, r rrj 7. 0 	 0 , , 	!..) ',...., 	, '''' 	0 O tz 	 7) 	 1,. 
	

cC '--' 	, ...-̂ 7) r- 
-4-7 .7)  77-,  0 .0 , 	 > $4,7)  • r'••• 	r 

, 	•E 	al. 	
-.).., 

4.4 	cl: 	 ,,-, 	 0 	1.)'"  ,21).--' 	 , 	>. . '44'.'"' • r.,,-,  n 	 ,_v 
--7-1„, ',2',. 4.  '7. ',_ 	

■—■ , 4-' 

	

0 	 t— 

	

r) 	 0 , 
_. 	,4...) 	----  ,-- _., , :-. ,-, ,7J 	iu  ,-..  .-. 	',"  

	

1) .•'•' 	 0 , _0 

	

,cs 	 ,i• c,„; 	F,.■ 	, Cj 	:71 	,-. 	 ,„.) 	,.....: ,- 	 ,-, 	, 	 .■__, 	■-, 	.7.7: 	,- -, ,--, 	1.) ,-__.‘ ;,-• 	•-. 	 /Th 	 ,..) 	,_, __,-.z. 	;LH 

0 
 

' 7, -I, 	r 	 0 	 r b.f.: , 	 ,•-• 	 '')': 	't 	'-') .47-, 	0 	-C--L 0  7--) 	r 	 4__, 	 1,__: 	.4_, U -7_, 	'-',. 	 r 	:-... r , 	 7) 	 .C..."  CJ 	 r 0 x., 1) 7;  
> r r 

0 C-7, 0  

, ; 	.. 	1.1 	,,, 	7.1 	-,-., 	1 	,71 	..,) 	 0 	 0  
'72) -0 	

f-,' 	° 	(--. C.. 	, 	s: 	',.---, 	,-, 	,:c, .....7  
,:-_, 	,-- 	 •.-4 ----4  ..-*. 7.,--• 	',0 	

• '.'4 1..) ':.1 	 =•,' ■,..0 c,.,,  0 0 t' , _,,-...,. 	■,:,-._- 	 .....  ,,,_ 	• 	c,.., 	2 
o 	:'---- 	 br.) r--, 	'-• 	, -,-- 	.7,-_..1 	,..: 	,- .,1 
,, 	__,:i  . ..= r 	0. , • . , 	4 4 . ,.„ „ , . 7 5. 	,_., ......, 	,D 	,, 	--, 	 E...' 	',.'-_, -7 7: 
- - 

,,  ...., .., , - —  .,.., ,- 	 s_. 	J,.,,, =_,' 7_1 	 r 	7.4 	-4. 	 " !--k.-- 	-4-,--' 
r r — , r, !,__„) -0 0 	

, r ---.. u , 	1) 	4- p -,_-.) 	7. '-' 	al 	r 	13 	,_., 	 I) -04 -4-4_, .7.1 — 0 -.- • - cd ,-, 	p 0 ,,,,- 	.., 	r, 	, -. 0 	, 
, 	.) rt 	''-: ,,:?•_, 4-, 	c4-1_ 	.1-1' 	'-' 	u  
r r 	 ,--C 	 ., r- , • '..= ' T.,3 	' 	C . . - ) 0 c.-__, 	0 _0 J  ,c, 

:1)  -C .t= ^ L) 	
...-) 

	

.',-= 	--'1.' 	
, 
<  • 	. 

>>
  Ho

w
  U

S
I C

an
  H

e
lp

  
C

on
tr

ac
t  

M
an

u
fa

c
tu

ri
ng

  
0 .4--. 

-0 

mr,  

144 

.- .-.0 

•,-... 

.-7-, 
r•-) 

Ji„  
'42 	, 

), 	r 

,......it 	›, 

, 	.--,-, 

0 	7-1 •, 	, 

0 0 

•,,-.5 	.--6ip 
(7,1 

r -4-- 

r 

.4_, 

,•-••• 

.,,,. 

7-• 

 tr4  - 

• 
;•') 

- 

-1-- 

73 

(';.)  

, 4.  

=4 	.0-,  
'''' 	'T. 4--, 
,-. 	. .__. 

r__,, ,.„, 

;7-■ 	L) 

'7: 	r-, ,-_- 

'-}i 	t•-• 
, .•77:o 

1-::,  to 	4_4  

, 	„..,, 

(-•  

y 

 - -4 
, ,-. 
I)  
0 	-.--'• 

CI, 
4., 
r-. 

u • - 
-7.1  

"._:% 	, 
, "T-5 

 f•-• 	r..) 

U 





PEASE R  ,  

e Ave. Portsmouth. NH 03801 

MANAGEMENT 603.433.653.. 

Memorandum 

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director -a_.G 
From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison 

Date: 8/5/2021 

Subj: Noise Report for June, 2021 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received eight noise inquiries in June, 2021. Seven of 
of the inquiries were pertaining to fixed wing aircraft and one inquiry was pertaining to a rotor 
wing aircraft. 

The fixed wing inquiries originated from Newmarket and Barrington. Six of the seven inquiries 
were from a resident in Newmarket on the Newmarket/Durham town line concerning aircraft 
flying low and "targeting" their home on June 22nd  and June 24th. Runway 16 was in use almost 
every time they had a concern. A message was left on their voicemail to explain the situation, 
but I did not receive a call back. The last fixed wing inquiry was from a Barrington resident on 
June 24th  about two military aircraft flying so low that they were frightened. Pease did not have 
any military activity at that time so I was unable to locate where the aircraft originated. 

The rotor-wing aircraft inquiry was on June 16t h  from a Portsmouth resident who lives adjacent 
to the south east end of the airfield. Since the aircraft did not take on fuel I was unable to 
determine the type and registration of this aircraft. 

All inquiries are reviewed and logged in the airport database. Individual inquiries are 
researched and followed up on with phone calls where appropriate. Certain callers have 
indicated that call backs are unnecessary. 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 



PEASE 
AIRPORT 
	

line Ave. Portsmouth. NH 03301 

MANAGEMENT 663.433.6536 

Memorandum 

To: Paul Brean, Executive Director---K5 

From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison 8ne1 

Date: 8/5/2021 

Subj: Noise Report for July, 2021 

Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received three noise inquiries in July, 2021. Two of 
the inquiries were pertaining to fixed wing aircraft and the third inquiry was pertaining to a rotor 
wing aircraft. 

The fixed wing inquiries originated from Newington and Newmarket, New Hampshire. The 
Newington resident called on July 6 th  concerning a non-based T-38 training aircraft that 
departed Runway 34 and frightened workers who were working on the resident's roof. I was 
able to track down the military base where the pilot was based and spoke to his supervisor. The 
pilot was asked what he could have done differently to avoid any noise issues. Also, a copy of 
Portsmouth's Voluntary Noise Procedures was sent to his superior officer and he informed me 
all of their pilots will be briefed on them to help combat any future noise complaints. The 
Newmarket resident's concern was about a continuous noise around 2:30 AM on July 18 th . At 
that time the on-duty Airport Operations Specialist informed the caller there was a non-based, 
military KC-135 tanker running at idle for 30 minutes before it could depart Runway 16. 

The rotor-wing aircraft inquiry was on July 6t h  from a Portsmouth resident who lives adjacent to 
the south east end of the airfield. The helicopter arrived and departed to the south east putting 
the Helicopter over the neighborhood. The helicopter is owned and operated by Lifeflight of 
Maine, LLC and stopped at Pease for fuel before returning to Portland. I have contacted the 
company and they will be reviewing our Voluntary Noise Procedures with their pilots. 

All inquiries are reviewed and logged in the airport database. Individual inquiries are 
researched and followed up on with phone calls where appropriate. Certain callers have 
indicated that call backs are unnecessary. 

(ThrTh  0 _ 	 K 	YOU THERE 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Fournier: 

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA") Board of Directors approves of 

and authorizes the Executive Director to: 

1. 	Expend funds in the amount of $14,081.00 for legal services 

rendered to the Pease Development Authority from: 

Sheehan Phinney Bass & Green  

May 1, 2021 - May 31, 2021 

(for Tradeport General Representation) 

May 1, 2021 - May 31, 2021 

(in support of MS4 and CLF 

settlement implementation) 

May 1, 2021 - May 31, 2021 

(in support of Ports and Harbors) 

_June 1, 2021 - June 30, 2021 

(in support of MS4 and CLF 

settlement implementation) 

June 1, 2021 -.June 30, 2021 

(in support of Ports and Harbors) 

TOTAL: 
N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \ Legal Services 8-19-2021.docx 

$ 	232.00 

$ 6,322.00 

$ 1,691.00 

$ 4,408.00 

$ 1,428.00 

$14,081.00 

TAKING YOU THERE 

.,v1.,olv.peat3'edev. ,arg 



Pease Development Authority 	 Jun 16, 2021 	PAGE 	3 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Trade Port - General Representation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-10167 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 
Invoice Number: 362011 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $232.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

	

TOTAL THIS BILL: 
	

$232.00 

	

PREVIOUS BALANCE: 
	

$3,944.00 

	

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 
	

$4,176.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 



Pease Development Authority 	 Jun 16, 2021 	PAGE 	4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Permit Implementation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 
Invoice Number: 362013 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $6,322.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

	

TOTAL THIS BILL: 
	

$6,322.00 

	

PREVIOUS BALANCE: 
	

$7,888.00 

	

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 
	

$14,210.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 



Pease Development Authority 	 Jun 16, 2021 	PAGE 	3 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Division of Ports & Harbors 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-9621 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $1,691.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

TOTAL THIS BILL: 	 $1,691.00 

BALANCE DUE: 	 $1,691.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 



Pease Development Authority 	 Jul 26, 2021 	PAGE 	4 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Permit Implementation 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-19658 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 
Invoice Number: 363481 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $4,408.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

	

TOTAL THIS BILL: 
	

$4,408.00 

	

PREVIOUS BALANCE: 
	

$6,322.00 

	

TOTAL BALANCE DUE: 
	

$10,730.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 



Pease Development Authority 	 Jul 26, 2021 	PAGE 	3 

SHEEHAN PHINNEY BASS & GREEN PA 
1000 ELM STREET 
P.O. BOX 3701 

MANCHESTER, NH 03105-3701 

SERVICE AND EXPENSE MAILBACK SUMMARY 

RE: Division of Ports & Harbors 

CLIENT/CASE NO. 14713-9621 
BILLING ATTORNEY:Lynn J. Preston 

	

TOTAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED: 	 $1,428.00 

	

TOTAL EXPENSES: 	 $0.00 

TOTAL THIS BILL: 	 $1,428.00 

BALANCE DUE: 	 $1,428.00 

PAYMENT DUE 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE 

Please return this page with your remittance and please reference the 
client/case number on all related correspondence. 

AMOUNT PAID... $ 

To pay by CREDIT CARD, please visit www.sheehan.com , 
scroll to the bottom and click " ClientPay " or contact our office directly. 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

	 ',..)uth. NH 03801 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Lamson: 

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby 

approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract 

with Honeywell International of Westbrook, ME to expend an amount not 

to exceed $76,820 for the purchase and installation of dual authenticity 

card access inside the airport terminal building and at the security gates. 

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8, VIII, the Board 

justifies the waiver of the RFP requirement to allow PDA to contract with 

Honeywell for this security upgrade as Honeywell is the provider of the 

airport's primary access control system, which is a proprietary closed 

system. 

NOTE: 5 Affirmative Votes Required 

N: \ RESOLVES \ 2021 \Honeywell - Dual Access Terminal Gate 8-19-2021.docx 

,JL)) TAKING YOU THERE 

W W 	s e d 



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
PORT COMMITTEE MEETING 

	
Thursday October 3, 2019 

MINUTES 

Presiding: 	Peter Loughlin, Committee Chair 
Present: 	Franklin G. Torr, Committee Member 

John Bohenko, Committee Member 
Neil Levesque, Committee Member 

Attending: 	Geno J. Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors Director; David R. Mullen, PDA 
Executive Director; Paul Brean, PDA Deputy Executive Director; Lynn Hinchee, 
PDA General Counsel; Anthony Blenkinsop, PDA Deputy General Counsel; Irving 
Canner, PDA Director of Finance; Roger Groux, Port Advisory Council Chairman 

I. Call to Order 

Director Loughlin, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. in the 
conference room of the Division of Ports and Harbors, 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, NH. 

II. Acceptance of Committee Meeting Minutes: April 4, 2019 

Director Bohenko moved and Director Levesque seconded that the Pease Development 
Authority Port Committee accept the Minutes of the April 4, 2019 Port Committee meeting. 
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.  

III. Directors' Comments 

Port Director Marconi (Geno) gave an update on the Functional Replacement of the Barge 
Dock. Back in 2014 NH DOT hired Appledore Marine Engineering to do a concept study to 
replace the functionality of the Barge Dock due to the relocation of the Sarah Long Bridge. Geno 
used a large graphic to give an overview and illustration the project. The 65% preliminary design 
was submitted to NH DOT a few weeks ago and unfortunately since 2014 the estimated cost to 
finish the project has increased significantly (from $18.5 mil to about $31 mil) and NH DOT has 
put the project on hold going into Final Design. The project will be on hold until 1) DOT can 
determine if funding can be found for the increased cost, or 2) during DOT's internal review, 
determine if there are other options that could reduce the cost. Director reported the cost increase 
is primarily due to the increase in marine construction costs, soil disposal and the number of 
pilings. Appledore is taking suggestions from NH DOT to see what might work engineering wise. 
Geno said he became aware of a deficiency regarding replacement of the Floating Dock, Bob 
Landry (NH DOT) recently showed Director a letter from Federal Highway that said the floating 
dock was an ancillary improvement and would not approve funding for replacement. Geno will 
need to follow up with Federal Highway as this is an important piece of the original dock that was 
lost and it was in the original concept plan and in everything up until now, the floating dock was 
to be replaced. The floating dock provides a place for the Portsmouth Fire Dept. Rescue boat, the 
DPH Harbormasters boats, and allows for launching and docking of several other emergency 
service boats that service the marine community and is an important part of port security. Another 



reason for the cost increase is the cost of disposing of contaminated soils, we knew there were 
contaminated soils but we didn't know the extent of contaminated soils until the permit process 
was started and EDA stepped in and deemed this a Toxic Substance Control Act ("TSCA") site 
because of the presence of PCB's. Test borings were done on the grassy knoll on a 10' grid to start 
(more borings were required later) and only found out the extent of the contaminants after the test 
borings were completed. Counselor Hinchee indicated there may be an alternative for remediation 
in the way of a company called Clean Earth that burns soils (even wet soils) using a mobile skid 
mounted unit rather than trucking it off to a disposal site. This is something that will be monitored 
and hopefully can be used in this situation. 

Director Marconi segued into the BUILD Grant, which will also include some remediation 
of contaminated soils in that area. The BUILD grant will rehabilitate the Main Wharf at Market 
St. Terminal. That project is a $12.5 million job, $7.5 mil is the grant amount and $5 mil will be 
provided through the State appropriation (Port Expansion Fund) that has been on the books since 
1990. Because this is a federal project, we cannot execute the agreement with USDOT/MARAD 
until the NEPA process is completed, which should be very soon. The Division has been going 
through the draft agreement and will meet after this meeting with Anthony to plug in the numbers, 
go over the schedule, and review the template. The Division will then go to Governor and Council 
for approval to accept the grant. One other item to note is that the Functional Replacement Project 
is a reimbursable project. The Division has been using the Port Expansion Fund as the bank to 
pay the invoices involved with that project. Now that we've been awarded the Grant, after 12 
years of trying, we realized that we will no longer be able to use that account. Director noted that 
he's spoken to the Governor's office and a couple of State senators about it and was told that this 
happens all the time with smaller state agencies and there are options to deal with it. Now that the 
budget negotiations are over he will revisit with them. Lynn reminded Geno to work closely with 
Iry and the accounting processes that go into a project like this that uses state funds 

Lastly, Geno reported there was $3.25 mil allocated in the negotiated budget to replace the 
failed seawall at the Fish Pier. Geno asked Appledore Engineering (on call marine engineers) for 
a proposal for the design, engineering, and permitting to replace that wall. Geno reported he will 
hopefully be going to the PDA Board at their next meeting looking for authorization to accept a 
proposal once he and Appledore can agree on the terms. Also to note, this is going to be a major 
impact wetlands permit because there is 180' of wall in the intertidal zone. This is going to be a 
complicated project because of the location of the building and utilities and the work needs to be 
done from a barge which drives the cost up. Lynn commented regarding the money source, as a 
reminder there are a lot of questions that Geno gets from Concord as far as why PDA can't front 
the money. There is a misconception that PDA is sitting on piles of money and he is continually 
reminding Concord that PDA cannot put up the money for this or any project at the Port. Geno 
reported that the State Senators are really attentive to this, he's seen Senators numerous times 
down at the Fish Pier. Senator Sherman and Senator D'Allasandro have been spotted and have 
actually been very instrumental along with the Governor and the Governor's budget director. 
Chairman Loughlin asked if the slanted piles were installed, and Geno confirmed they are in place. 
Geno said we watch the pier on a daily basis to be sure the welds are holding. One tricky thing 
that remains to be figured out is how to keep access to the pier for the fishermen during the 
construction project. Geno reported that they still do have the replacement of the entire facility 
down the road and he is looking into options for additional grant money for that project. There is 
one with the EDA and it's a 50/50 match but it's a minimum of $10 million dollars. This was the 
end of Geno's report. 



Roger Groux spoke regarding the proposed increase of pier use permits which only applies 
to our piers, not the marinas. There is no harbor use fee for folks that are using the harbor but do 
not have a mooring or pier use permit and therefore are not contributing to the maintenance of the 
harbors. Roger said it would take legislation to have anything changed. The majority of harbors 
in New England have a harbor use fee that is comparable to the mooring fee, and they are required 
to pay one or the other. Roger referred to the folks that keep their boats on slips at the marinas, 
such as Great Bay and the Wentworth. 

IV. Public Comment 

There were no members of the public present. 

V. Press Questions 

There were no members of the press at the meeting. 

VI. Adjournment 

Director Torr made a motion to adjourn at 8:32 AM, motion was seconded by Director 
Bohenko, all were in favor. 



Oh- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

Date: 	August 11, 2021 

To: 	Pease Development Auti *ty, Board of Directors 

From: 	Geno Marconi, Direct 

Subject: 	Camera and NVR Replacement, Rye Harbor Marine Facility 

On June 10, 2021 the Division of Ports and Harbors (the "Division") requested and received approval 
via Delegation of Authority from Executive Director Paul Brean and Director Tom Ferrini, to upgrade 
the security cameras at Rye Harbor. The cost was $9068.00. 

During the camera replacement project it was determined that the server would need to be replaced to 
handle the newer model high visibility cameras. Due to the time sensitive situation the replacement 
required immediate attention in order to continue security surveillance at Rye Harbor. The CTV system 
is linked to Federal, State, first responders, and local law enforcement. Paul Brean and Director Ferrini 
authorized the server purchase in the amount of $5,820.00 on July 29, 2021. 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PD 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPH 

DATE: 	July 2, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #4182, from Brian Walsh to Daniel 
Riley. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

0 0 (_ 
ph: 603-436-8500 

TAKING YOU THERE 

fr-,,7: 603-435-2780 	www.peasedev.,rg 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck 

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	July 2, 2021 

Brian Walsh and Daniel Riley are requesting the transfer of a Mooring Permit 
(#4182) in the Rye Harbor mooring field. Attached is documentation of Riley's 
commercial enterprise in the form of his fishing licenses. Also attached is the transfer 
request from Walsh. Daniel Riley has asserted that he understands that the mooring must 
remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #4182 be transferred to: 

Daniel Riley 
1661 Ocean Blvd 
Rye, NH 03870 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director. P 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DPI 

DATE: 	July 29, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring For Hire 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for a commercial mooring for hire from Esther's Marina, LLC. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial moorings for hire. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the application. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

0 3 - 4 3 6 - 8 5 0 0 a : 6 0 3 - 4 3 =3 - 2 7 0 0 	w pease: 	0,g 



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Captain Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Tracy R. Shattuck, Chief H/M 4 

Re: 	Esther's Marina Commercial for Hire Mooring Application 

Date: 	July 29, 2021 

Attached is an initial application for a Commercial Mooring for Hire in the Peirce 
Island Back Channel nearshore mooring field. Esther's Marina, LLC was on the waitlist 
and was offered a mooring pursuant to the waitlist process. Esther's Marina, LLC 
already holds Commercial Moorings for Hire and is on several waitlists in an effort to 
expand the business. All of the required documentation is already on file. 

I recommend approval of the application as it meets all criteria for a Commercial 
for Hire mooring permit. 



000-- 

PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 	 555 Market Street. Suite 1 Portsmouth, NH 03301 .  

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DP 

DATE: 	August 3, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #6021, from Charles W. Eastman Ill to 
Tyler McLaughlin. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

0000 TAKING YOU THERE 

ph: 603-436-8500 	tox: 603-436-2 7 8 0 	www.peasaoev.org  



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck ---7Y-S 

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	August 3, 2021 

Charles Eastman and Tyler McLaughlin are requesting the transfer of a Mooring 
Permit (#6021) in the Seabrook Harbor mooring field concurrent with the sale of fishing 
related equipment. Attached is documentation of Eastman's commercial enterprise in the 
form of his fishing license and landings. Also attached is the transfer request from 
Eastman. Tyler McLaughlin has asserted that he understands that the mooring must 
remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #6021 be transferred to: 

Tyler McLaughlin 
7 Laurel Ct 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 



10' 
PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL "- Suite 1 Pr2riscric-J ,.--  

PORTS AND HARBORS 

TO: 	Paul Brean, Executive Director, PDA-42615 

FROM: 	Geno J. Marconi, Director, DP 

DATE: 	August 5, 2021 

RE: 	Commercial Mooring Transfer 

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors has received a request 
for the transfer of a commercial mooring, permit #7728, from Jeffrey Redican to Randell 
Collins. 

I have reviewed the attached paperwork and concur with the local Harbormaster and 
Chief Harbormaster that the request meets all the requirements of the PDA-DPH Code of 
Administrative Rules regarding commercial mooring transfers. Therefore, I am 
requesting approval of the transfer. 

If you have any questions or need further information, please let me know. 

TAKING YOU THERE 

2 7 F.; 0 	w 'N  



Division of Ports & Harbors 
Memorandum 

To: 	Capt. Geno J. Marconi 

From: 	Chief H/M Tracy R. Shattuck 

Re: 	Commercial Transfer 

Date: 	August 4, 2021 

Jeffrey Redican and Randell Collins are requesting the transfer of a Mooring 
Permit (#7728) in the Seabrook mooring field with the sale of fishing related equipment. 
Attached is documentation of Collins' commercial enterprise in the form of his fishing 
license. Also attached is the transfer request from Redican. Collins has asserted that he 
understands that the mooring must remain in commercial use. 

I have reviewed this application and I believe that it is in compliance with the 
administrative rules. 

I recommend that permit #7728 be transferred to: 

Randell Collins 
26 Centennial St 
Seabrook NH 03874 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MOTION  

Director Anderson: 

The Pease Development Board of Directors hereby approves of and 

adopts the Winter Boat Storage Final Proposed Fee Amendment at a rate of 

$18 per foot effective November 1, 2021; all in accordance with the 

memorandum of Geno j. Marconi, Division Director, dated July 26, 2021, 

attached hereto. 

N:\RESOLVES\2021  DPH - Final Winter Storage Fee Arnd 8-19-2 1 .docx 

OniThn TAKING YOU THERE 

www.peasedev.orp 



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

PORTS AND HARBORS 

Date: 
	

August 3, 2021 

To: 
	

Pease Development Authority ("PDA"), Board of Directors 	0-7 

From: 
	

Geno Marconi, Division Director 

Subject: 
	

Winter Boat Storage Final Proposed Fee Amendment 

The Division of Ports and Harbors (the "Division") is presenting the Board with the Final Proposed 
amendment of winter storage fees for adoption. 

The current winter storage fee is: 
• $9.00 per foot Length Overall (LOA) 

The proposed winter storage fee is: 
• $18.00 per foot Length Overall (LOA) 

The Division received approval from the PDA Board for the initial proposed fee amendment at its May 
20, 2021 meeting. 

Following the PDA Board approval, the Division Director held a Public Hearing at the Division office 
on June 9, 2021. The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the NH Union Leader and physically 
posted in public facilities, including several seacoast town offices, the NH Fish and Game offices in 
Durham and Concord, and at the Division facilities in Rye, Hampton, and Portsmouth. There were no 
members of the public in attendance at the meeting. The public comment period remained open for 
written comment until the end of business on July 9, 2021, during which time one comment was 
received. After taking the comment into consideration, and further researching the winter storage fees 
in the surrounding area, the Division recommends the winter storage fee be increased to $18 per foot 
to begin with the 2021 winter season, which is Nov 1St to April 30th. 

Therefore, the Division requests that the PDA Board of Directors adopt the Winter Boat Storage Final 
Proposed Fee Amendment of $18 per foot and set an effective date of November 1, 2021. 

C)t',1)( 
3-436-85'00 

TAKING YOU THERE 

H::•;.: 603".3 o -278O 	www.peasedev.org  



PEASE 
INTERNATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM 

To: 	Pease Development Authority Board of Directors 

From: 	Paul E. Brean, Executive Director _.q46 
Date: 	August 9, 2021 

Re: 	Special Events 

I am pleased to report on the following special events: 

1. Cisco Brewers Portsmouth (a/k/a Redhook) will be hosting the following upcoming 
events: 

August 22" d  — Food Truck Fest 
September 25' 1' — Potential Concert 
September 26 11' — Lumberjack Competition 
October 9` 11 — Brewfest 
October 16` 11 — NH Rocks Concert 

2. Sabine Strong - Right of Entry for Use of Portion of Arboretum Drive for a 3.3 mile 
Road Race held on Sunday August 15, 2021; and 

3. Foxpoint Sunset Race — Right of Entry for Use of Portion of Arboretum Drive for 
a 5/10k to be held on September 25' 1'. 

BOAR VAT+ "0 I Y,Spcc ial 	22.tiocx 

TAKING YOU THERE 


	Agenda
	II.  Non-Public Session (Levesque)
	III. Vote of Confidentiality (Fournier)
	IV.  Acceptance of Minutes (Anderson)
	Minutes of June 17, 2021
	VI. A. 1. Spyglass Dev. - Exterior Improvement (Parker)
	VII. A. 1. Finance Executive Summary
	VII. B. 1. FY2021 Financial Report for the 12 Month Ending 6-30-2021
	VII. B. 2 Cash Flow for 9 Mo. Period Ending 4-30-2022. 
	VII. C. 1. Service Credit Union - Establishing Account (Lamson) 
	VIII. A. Licenses / ROEs Report
	VIII. B. 1. USCG - 75 Parking Spaces - ROE (Fournier)
	IX. A. 1. Lease Report
	X. A. 1. Contract Report
	X. B. 1. OAG Aviation Worldwide LLC (Lamson)
	X. B. 2. Bobcat of NH - Tracked Skid Steer Loader (Parker)
	XI. A. 1. Sign - Global Seafood Alliance - 85 NH Ave.
	XI. B. 1. Sign - Galvion - 160 Corporate Drive (Levesque)
	XII. A. 1. Insurance Update
	XII. A. 4. c. i.)June & July 2021 Noise Reports
	XII. B. 1. Legal Bills (Fournier)
	XII. B. 2. Gate 13 - Secured Area Requirements (Lamson) 
	XIII. A. 1. Port Comm. Meeting Minutes of 10-3-2019
	XIII. A. 2. Camera and NVR Replacement - Rye Harbor
	XIII. A. 3. Commercial Mooring Transfer - Walsh to Riley
	XIII. A. 4. Commercial Mooring for Hire - Esther's Marina
	XIII. A. 5. Commercial Mooring Transfer - Eastman to McLaughlin
	XIII. A. 6 Commercial Mooring Transfer - Redican to Collins
	XIII. B. 1. Winter Boat Storage Final Proposed Fee Amd (Anderson)
	XIV. A. Special Events
	New Bookmark

